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Securities and Exchange Commission
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Washington, DC 20549
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Attention Filer Support U P P L

Mail Stop 1-4 PROCESSED

Ladies and Gentlemen: MAY 3 } 2055

THOMSON
FINANCIAL SEC FILE NO. 82-4217

Re: PYI Corporation Limited
(formerly known as Paul Y. - ITC Construction Holdings Limited)
Information Furnished Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)
under the Securities Exchange Act

On behalf of PYI Corporation Limited (the "Company"), S.E.C. File No. 82-
4217, the enclosed copies of documents are submitted to you in order to maintain the
Company's exemption from Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
"Act") pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under the Act:

(1)  The Company's announcement regarding acquisition of assets related to
liquid bulk logistics business in Whuan, PRC and issue of convertible
note, dated May 12, 2006, published (in English language) in The
Standard and (in Chinese language) in Hong Kong Economic Journal,
both on May 15, 2006;

(2)  The Company’s announcement regarding declaration of special dividend
by way of distribution of the value in GDI shares and closure of register
of members, dated May 8, 2006, published (in English language) in The
Standard and (in Chinese language) in Hong Kong Economic Journal
both on May 9, 2006;
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)

(4)

)

(6)

(7

(8)

)

(10)

(1)

The Company’s announcement regarding acquisition of minority
interest in Yangkou Port Project, dated April 11, 2006, published (in
English language) in The Standard and (in Chinese language) in Hong
Kong Economic Journal, both on April 12, 2006,

The Company’s circular regarding proposed adoption of new share
award scheme and of new share financing plan and proposal to adjust
subscription prices in respect of certain options outstanding under
existing share option scheme, dated January 27, 2006;

The Company’s announcement regarding results of the SGM, dated
February 14, 2006, published (in English language) in The Standard and
(in Chinese language) in Hong Kong Economic Journal, both on
February 15, 2006;

The Company’s circular regarding scrip dividend scheme with cash
option in relation to the interim dividend for the six months ended
September 30, 2005, dated January 12, 2006;

The Company’s announcement regarding disposal of motor vehicles,
vehicle registration numbers and club membership to ITC, dated
February 2, 2006, published (in English language) in The Standard and
(in Chinese language) in Hong Kong Economic Journal, both on
February 3, 2006;

The Company’s announcement regarding acquisition of additional
equity interests in non-wholly owned subsidiaries, dated January 23,
2006, published (in English language) in The Standard and (in Chinese
language) in Hong Kong Economic Journal, both on January 24, 2006;

The Company’s announcement regarding results of the SGM, dated
January 16, 2006, published (in English language) in The Standard and
(in Chinese language) in Hong Kong Economic Journal, both on January
17, 2006;

The Company’s announcement regarding proposed adoption of new
share award scheme and of new share financing plan and proposal to
adjust subscription prices in respect of certain options outstanding under
existing share option scheme, dated December 29, 2005, published (in
English language) in The Standard and (in Chinese language) in Hong
Kong Economic Journal, both on December 30, 2005;

The Company’s circular regarding proposed disposal of Paul Y. Centre,
dated December 23, 2005;




(12) The Company’s announcement regarding delay in despatch of circular,
dated December 14, 2005, published (in English language) in The
Standard and (in Chinese language) in the Hong Kong Economic
Journal, both on December 15, 2005;

(13) The Company’s announcement of interim results for the six months
ended September 30, 2005, dated December 13, 2005, published (in
English language) in The Standard and (in Chinese language) in the
Hong Kong Economic Journal, both on December 14, 2005; and

(14) The Company’s interim report 2006, dated December 13, 2005.

The parts of the enclosed documents that are in Chinese substantially restate
the information appearing elsewhere in English.

We would appreciate your acknowledging receipt of the foregoing by stamping
and returning the enclosed copy of this letter. A self-addressed, stamped envelope is
enclosed for your convenience.

Very truly yours,
%@ﬁ&
Simon Luk

Enc.

c.c. PYI Corporation Limited
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PY1 Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bérmuda with Izmued liability)
(Stock code: 498).

RESULTS OF THE SGM i

The board of directors of PYI is pleased to announce that the resolution for
approving the reduction in the subscription prices of “certain existing PYI share

options was duly passed by the PYI shareholders at the SGM held on 14 February
.2006. .

. Reference is made to (i) the announcement issued by PYI Corporation Limited (“PYI”)
dated 29 December 2005; and (ii) the circular (the “Circular”) dated 27 January 2006
issued by PYIL. Unless the context requires otherwise, capitalised terms used in this
announcement shall have the same meanings as those defined in the Crrcular '

RESULTS OF THE SGM

The board of directors of PYI is pleased to announce that the ordinary resoluuon '
proposed. to approve the reduction of certain existing PYI share options as set out
in the notice of the SGM contained in the Circular was duly’ passed by the PYI
shareholders at the SGM held on .14 February 2006 by poll.

As at the date of the SGM, PYI had a total of 1,378,785,910 Shares in issue. Any
connected person with a material interest in the Reduction was required to abstain from
voting in respect of the ordinary resolution to approve the Reduction and there were

‘no-Shareholders permitted under the Listing Rules to attend- and vote only- agamst the
resolution at the SGM.

The branch share registrars of PYI in Hong Kong, Secretanes lerted acted as the
scrutineer for vote-taking at the SGM. The results of the SGM were as follows:

For Against

e Approximate % . Approximate %
) : of the total of the total
Summary of the | Number of number of votes | Number of | - number of votes
ordinary resolution ) " Shares | .cast at the SGM Shares cast at the SGM

To approve the reduction in the : i

- subscription prices of certain | - '

existing PYI share options [ 819, 117,442 . 9353% | 56,699,846 | - 6.47%

As more than.50% of the votes were. cast in favour of the ordinary resolution, the
.ordinary resolution proposed to approve the Reduction was duly passed at the SGM.

By Order of the Board-
PYI Corporation Limited
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Company Secretary

- Hong Kong, 14 February 2006

As at the date of this announcement, the composition of the Board is as follows:

- Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph : Chairman (Independent Non-Executive)
Mr. Tom Ko Yuen Lau : Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles : Non-Executive Director
Mr. Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest : Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan Shu Kin : Independent Non-Executive Director
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“The Directors announce that, on 19 January 2006 Glory Well,

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, makes no representation as to its accuracy {
or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of

the contents of this announcement.

ACQUISITION OF ADDIT

IN NON-WHOLLY O

ion Li

cszth Imiztedlnz zj }

partner and .60% by PYI's said 90.1% subsrdtary

the Listing Rules,

The Directors announce that, on 19 January 2006, a 90.1% owned subsidiary of PYI entered into two share transfer agreements to acquire 15%
additional equity interests in each of PYI's two joint venture project subsidiaries in Yangkou Port, Nantong, Jiangsu Province, China at a consideration
of US$2,500,000 and US$2,000,000 respectively. Each of these project subsidiaries is curremly owned as to 40% by .the PRC joint venture eqmty

The acguisition of additional equity interests in'each of these two joint venture project subsidiaries‘ individually -and together constitutes a connected -
transaction for PY! under Rule 14A. 13(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, but is exempt from the-independent shareholders’
to Rule 14A.32 of the Listing Ru]es and ‘is only subject to the reporting and announcement requrrements set out m Rules - 14A 45 to ‘14A.47 of

approval requirements pursuant

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL EQUITY INTERESTS IN YANGKOU
PORT & YANGTONG INVESTMENT

‘absidiary of PYI Corporation Limited, entered into two share transfer
agreements to acquire 15% additional equity interests in each of Yangkou
Port and Yangtong Investment at a consideration of US$2,500,000 . and
US$2,000,000 respectively.

Both Yangkou Port and Yangtong Investmem are sino-foreign joint "venture '

enterprises established in the PRC, and each’is currently owned as to 60%
by Glory Well and -as to 40% by the Seller (a PRC state owned enterprise).-
Yangkou Port currently has a registered capital of US$16.65 million and
that of Yangtong Investment is US$13.33 million. Both companies’ primary
business objective is similar, which is to build and operate a bulk cargo

“handling sea port and related land and other facilities at Yangkou Port,

Nantong, Jiangsu Province, China, but no competition exists. between them
as each of them pamcnpates in different parts of the project in Yangkou
Port.

Pursuant to the respective joint venture contracts of each of Yangkou Port
and Yangtong Investment dated 9 December 2004 and 20 August 2004, the
Seller had granted Glory Well .an option to acquire 15% of its -interests
in each of Yangkou Port and Yangtong Investment.

On 19 Januaty 2006 Glory - Well exercised its option and éntered into two
share transfer-agreements with the Seller in respect of Yangkou Port and
Yangtong Investment, pursuant to which the Seller has agreed to sell and
Glory Well has agreed. to purchase 15% additional equity interests in each
of Yangkou Port and Yangtong Investment.

The consideration for the Acquisitions is US$2,500,000 in respect of
Yangkou Port and US$2,000,000 in respect of Yangtong Investment, which
was -determined with reference 1o, the respective net asset value of Yangkou

- Port and Yangtong Investment as at 31 December 2005. The basis of the

. alculation for the consideration was set out in the relevant _yomt venture
contracts.

Transfer of the subject equity, interests is conditional on the .obtaining of
the . requisite governmental approval and completion of all necessary
registration procedures which are expécted to be fulfilled by end of March
2006. There is no other condition precedent for the completion of the

Acquisitions. The consideration shall be paid within 3 days after completion
‘of the necessary registration procedures.

Each of Yangkou Port and
Yangtong Investment will then be owned as to 75% by Glory Well and
‘as to 25% by the Seller. )

REASONS FOR THE TRANSACTIONS

The Acquisitions mark the Group’s further commitment towards its
investments in port and infrastructure business in the PRC and are in line
with the core business strategies of the Group. Further, the: Directors
believe that this is the suitable timing to increase interests in the two

- subsidiaries as it will improve the capital structure of these two subsidiaries

so as to strengthen their ability to raise funds or obtain financing to carry
out their development work.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, consider
the terms for the Acquisitions (including the considération, which is
determined with reference to the net asset value of the two subsidiaries)

" to be in the interests of the Company and its shareholders, on normal

commercial terms and fair and reasonable so far as the Company and its
shareholders are concerned.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Seller is a substantial shareholder of both Yangkou Port and Yangtong
Investment, each being a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The Selfer is therefore a connected person of the Company within the
meaning of the Listing Rules.

Accordingly, each of the Acquisitions constitutes a connected transaction
for the Company under Rule 14A.13(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, but the

a 90‘1%'

“Stock ‘Exchange”

individual and aggregate consideration to be paid by the Group for the
Acquisitions amounts to less than 2.5% of the applicable percentage ratios.
The Acquisitions are hence exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.32 of the Listing Rules and
are only subject to the reporting and announcement requirements set out
in-Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the L|snng Rules

GENERAL

The Group is principally engaged in the business of development and

_investment in port and other infrastructure projects, property investment,
" treasury investment and, through its subsidiary, construction and engineering,

project management and facilities management.
The Seller is a PRC state owned enterprise.

DEFINITIONS ‘
In this announcement, unless- the context otherwise. requu-es, the followmg
expressions have the following. meanmgs

“Acquisitions” the acquisition of 15% additional equity interests in
each of Yangkou Poit and Yangtong Investment. and
individually an “Acquisition™;

- “Board” the board of Directors;

“Company” or

PYI Corporation Limited, a company incorporatéd
“pY1”

in Bermuda with limited liability, the shares of
which are listed on thc Main Board of the Stock
Exchange;

“Directors”
“Glory Well”

the directors of the Company;

Glory Well Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and a 90.1% owned subsxdrary of the
Company;

“Group"
“Hong Kong”

the Company agd its subsidiaries;

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of
the PRC;

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on -
the Stock Exchange;

the People’s Republic of China; -

WHEBHEEHEGEREATRELLA, the PRC

joint venture partner of each of Yangkou Port and
Yangtong Investment and a PRC state owned

‘enterprise;

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong erlted
Jiangsu YangKou Port Development and Investment
Co., Ltd. (IEFOEREHBHERLT), a sino-
foreign joint venture established in the PRC;
Jiangsu  Yangtong Investment and Developmem Co.,
Ltd. (Eﬁ#lﬁﬁ%&ﬁ’ﬁm/\j) a sino-foreign

joint venture established in the PRC;

United . States Dollars, the lawful currency of the
United States of America.

By Order of the Board

PYI Corporation Limited
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa

Company Secretary

“Listing Rules”

“pRC™
“Seller”

“Yangkou Port”

“Yangtong
Investment”

“yss”

Hong Kong, 23 January 2006

As at the date of this announcement, the composition of (he Board is as
follows:

Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph : Chairman (Independent Non-Executive)
Mr. Tom Ko Yuen Lau : Deputy Chairman and Managing Diréctor
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles: Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest : Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Chan Shu Kin : Independent Non-Executive Director
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PYI Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) ’
~(Stock code: 498)

RESULTS OF THE SGM

The Board is pleased to announcé that the resolution to approve the disposal of Paul
Y. Centre and the transactions contemplated thereunder as set out in the notice of the

SGM contained in the Circular was duly, passed by the Sharcholders at the SGM held
on 16 January 2006.

Reference is made to (1) the announcement xssued by PYI Coiporation Limited (the
“Company”) dated 24 November 2005; and (ii) the circular (the “Circular”) dated 23
N December 2005 issued by the Company Unless the context requucs otherwise, capxtahscd

i terms used in this announcement shall have the same meanings as those defined in the
Circular. -

RESULTS OF THE SGM . ’ ‘ S

.The Board is pleased to announce that the ordinary resolution proposed to approve the
] disposal of Paul Y. Centre and the transactions contemplated theteunder was duly passed
by the Shareholders at the SGM held on 16 January 2006 by poll.

; As at the date of the SGM, there were 1,367,540,720 Shares in issue. No Sharcholder is
| required to abstain from voting in respect of the ordinary resolution to approve the disposal
‘ of Paul Y. Centre and the transactions contemplated thereunder “and there were no Shares
entitling the holders to attend and vote only against the resolution at the SGM.

The branch share registrars of the Company in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited, acted as
the scrutineer for vote-taking at the SGM. The results of the SGM were as follows:

For _ Against
. Approximate % Approximate %
of .the total | - of the total
Summary of the Number number of votes Number nsumber of votes
ordinary resolution of Shares cast at the SGM { of Shares cast at the SGM
To approve the disposal of
; Paul Y. .Centre and the
; transactions contemplated
i thereunder 1 932,723,207 : 99.999% . 6691 . ’ 0.001%

As more than 50% -of the votes were cast -in favour of the ordinary resolution, the ordinary .

resolution proposed to approve the disposal of Paul Y. Centre and the transactions
contemplated thereunder was duly passed at the SGM.

H By .Order of the Board
) . PYI1 Corporation Limited
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 16 January 2006
As at the date of this announccinent, the composition of the Board is as follows:

Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph . Chairman (Independent Non-Executive)

Mr. Tom Ko Yuen Lau : Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles : Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest : Independent- Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan Shu Kin : Independent Non-Executive Director -

The Directors jointly and severally dccept full responsibility for the accuracy of the
information contained in this announcement and confirm, having made all reasonable
enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge, opinions expressed in this announcement have
been arrived at after due and careful consideration and there are no other facrs not

contained in this announcement, the omission of which would make any statement in thzs
announcement misleading.
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes. no responsibility for the contents of this
announcement, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon
the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.

PYI Corporation Limited

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability}
(Stock code: 498)

DELAY IN DESPATCH OF CIRCULAR.

PYI has applied to the Stock Exchange for an extension of deadline for despatch of
the major transaction circular in relation to the disposal of Paul Y. Centre from 15
December 2005 to 23 December 2005. . : :

Reference is made to the announcement made By PY1 dated 24 November 2005
(“*Announcement”) in relation to the disposal of Paul Y. Centre. Capitalised terms used herein -
have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Announcement unless otherwise defined.

DELAY IN DESPATCH OF CIRCULAR
Under Rule 14.38 of the Listing Rules, the circular of PYI (“Circular™) in relation to, among
other things, the Disposal and the transactions contemplated therein should be sent to the

Shareholders within 21 days of the date of the Announcement, that is, on or before 15
December 2005.

As additional time is required to finalise certain financial information relating to indebtedness
and working capital of the Group for inclusion in the Circular, application has been made
by PYI to the Stock Exchange for consent to extend the time for despatch of the Circular
from 15 December 2005 to 23 December 2005.

By Order of the Board
PYI Corporation Limited
Weong Lai Kin, Elsa
Company Secretary
Hong Kong, 14 December 2005

As at the date of this announcement, the composition of the Board is as follows:

Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph : Chairman (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Tom Ko Yuen Lau : : Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles . Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest : Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan’ Shu Kin . Independent Non-Executive Director

The Directors jointly and severally accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the
information contained in this announcement and confirm, having made all reasonable
enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge, opinions expressed in this announcement have
been arrived at after due and careful consideration and there are no other facts not

contained in this announcement, the omission of which would make any statement in this
announcement misteading.
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B38 NOTICES '

' . ’ (Page 1)
PYI Corporation Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited fiabifiry} .
(Stock code: 498)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2005
y Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continuous)
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS . B N Unaudited Audited
> Turnover $1,792 million +7% Notes 30/09/2005 310372005
> Net profit after tax $149 million +291% HKS'000 HKE 000
> lEFS DPS 10.9 cents +289% (Restated)
> ntesim DP; 1.5 cents Unchanged
> NAV/S 5175 - & NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loan from a minority shareholder - 241,000
RESULTS - Bank borrowings - due after one year 296,875 300,000
The basrd of discctars (the *Board”) of PY1 Corporaion Limied (formerly known a5 Paul Y. - ITC Constrstion Deferred ta liabilities 927,473 923,020
Holdings Limited) (the “Company"”} is pleased to results of the Company 1,224,248 1,464,020
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the six momhs ended 3om S:plember 2005, lege!h:r with the comparative il —
figures for the corresponding period in 2004. and idated cash flow 2,913,538 3,714,721
statement of the Group for the six months ended 30[h 2005 and the idated balance sheet as at Z
30th September, 2005 of the Group, allof which are unnudited and condensed, along with selected explanatory  CAPITAL AND RESERVES
notes have been reviewed by the Company’s audit committee and external auditors. Share capital 5 135,868 136,920
Condensed C 4 tncome § Reserves 2,237,599 3,041,905
. Unaudited Equity attributable to equity holders of the Compan; 2,373,467 3,178,82
Six months ended Fifulty stribuiabic 1o equity holder mpany "40,071 ii5ias
Notes 30/09/2008 30/09/2004
HK$'000 HKS$'000  TOTAL EQUITY 2,913,538 3,718.321
Turnover 4 1,791,511 1,678,883 " q \e 1
Cost of sales (1,645,900) (1,538,366 © C Cash Flow
Gross profit - 145,611 90,517 . Unaudited
Other income "5 101,906 21,829 Six months ended
Increase in fair vajue of investment properties 85,400 30/09/2005 30/09/2004
Administrative expenses (81,369) (63, m) HKS$'000 HKS$ 000
Giher expenses (74,134} @.722) ; it
Finance costs . (6,020 @500)  Net cach from choed ng imvasing sctivities et 18508
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries R . (82) Net cash (used in) from financing activities (1,093,939) 175,28
Wrile back of impairment loss on interest in an associate 23,289 -
Loss on dilution of interests in associates (15,004 Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (597,197) (5.697)
Share of results of associstes . 122.080) 25,673 Cash and cash equivalents brought forward 1,247,572 233,207
Share of results of jointly comrolled entities 2,101 18
Profit before taxation 5 174,562 47,355 Cash and cash equivalents carried forward £50,375 227,510
Toxation 7 9421 B2} Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
Profit for the period 165,141 38,532 Short term bank deposits, bank balances and cash 671,681 239,534
ol Bank overdrafts (21,306) (12,024)
Allributable to:
Equity holders of the Ccmpany 149,280 38,144 650,375 227,510
Minority interests 15,861 388
: Notest
165,141 38,532 1. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The condensed consolidated financie) sttements hawe been prepared in accordance with the sppficable diclosure cequirgments
Dividends 8 of Appendix 16 1o the Rufes Goveming the Listing of Securities on The Stock Eschange of Hang Kong Limired (the “Hong
T dividend 0,380 20.538 Kong Stock Exchange™) and with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 34 “Interim Finuncial Reporting” issued by
nterim dividen: 20,38 . the Hong Kong Insuiute of Cenified Public Accountunts (“HKICPA").
; 2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
HK cents HE cents The condensed cansolidated Minancis! statements have been prepared on the historical cost basia, except for certain prpertics
Earnings per share — Basic 9 109 2.8 and fintncial instruments which are messured at fair valuer or revalucd amoumts a2 appropriate.
The accounting policies used in the condensed consolidated financial statements are. consistent with those followed in the
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet prepsration of the Group’s snnual financisl statements for the year ended 115t March, 2008, except (har, in the current
Unaudlted Audited perod, the roup has applied. for he first time. & umbe? of new Hong Kong Financial Reporfing Sundards CHKERSS,
. Int") referred to Bs “new S5") issued by the A that ate
Notes 30/09/2003 31/03/2005 etfetive. ror accounting pemm beginning on or afer It January, 2005, The application of the new HKFRSS has resulted in
HES$’ 000 £!KJ UodO) 2 change in m: presentation of the income slrntmu;l balance sheet and the staement a!:h-n;:: in eqmly In plm’t‘uhr. (he
estates mmuunn of minoriry intereat and share of 12 of assaciuieafointly contralled enities have been ch The changes in
( ¢ been upplied retrospectively. In addition, the adopiion of the ncw KKFRSS has resulied in changes fo the
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Grony s nccuumm.dyol in mcd!ollnwmg arc2s that hve on effect on how the results for the current of prior accounting
Property, plant and equipment 10 222,268 237,278 periods are prepared ang prescated:
Investment properties 540,400 455,000 Share-based
¢ payment
Project under development " 1,838,003 1,772,458 In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment™ which requires sn expense 1o be recognised
Prepaid land lease payments 129,981 131,576 where the Group buys goods or obtaing services in eachange for shares of rights over shares {“cquity-setiled transoetions™),
Googwill 61,646 61,646 or in exchang for ather assete :qm{.lxieﬁxr,knsv;m 10 8 given number of shares ar rights over shater ("cari-geiled
Interests in associates 12 415,38 381,209 transactlons™). The principal impact o on the Group is in relation to the expensing of the fair yalue of shire
Intereets in Ju,ml'y controlled entities 11%45 9'544 options granted to directors and empioyees of the Group, determinsd a1 the date of grant of the share options, over the
Investment in secorities - 17718 veyting period. Prior 10 the spplication of HXFRS 2, the Group did not recognise the financial effect of these share options
P S N 2,060 g unti) they were exercised. The Oroup has apolied HKFRS 2 to shase optians Sransed on or sfer st April, 2003, In elation
2ifable-lor-sale investments 4 - 10 share options granted before kst April, 2003, the Group chooscs not to apply HKFRS 2 with respeci to share options
Loans receivable — duc after one year 1,508 1,508 gronted on or befose Tth November, z&u 208 share options that were granied sfier 7sh November, 2002 snd bad vesied on
Amounts due from related companies — doe afier one year 779 779 1:)\015\pr;’| 2008 in Act;oéd-;;:swnh the relevant !nnsmn;\ll provisions. As all I?;’: share options had vesied before Isi April,
Other long teym investments 15,841 15,481 the adoption of HKFRS 2 has had no materisl effect on the results for the curreal or prior periody. Accordingly. no
Defarred tax assets 1,680 1,680 prior period adjustment has been required.
: Business comblnstions
3,241,194 3,069,934 In the current period, the Group hat applied HKFRS 3 “Butiness Combinstions™ which is effective for business combinaiions
CURRENT ASSETS for which the agresmeni duie is on or afie |3 Janaary. 003. The principal effects of the spplication of RKFRS 3 to he
Toup are summurise :
Amounts due from customers for contract works 192,529 185,188 Gooowill
Debiors, deposits and prepayments 13 1,098,666 1,586,246 revious periods, goodwill arising on acqaisitions before 1at Apnl 2005 was eapitslised and emontjsed over its estimsted
Propenies held for sale 78,245 91,278 useful life. In the current peried, the Group has applicd the relevant iransitiona] provisions in HKFRS 3 pursuant 1o which
Project under development 1 34,200 34,011 the Group has discontisued amortising such goodwill from 151 April, 2005 onwards snd goodwil] will be 1esied for
Prepaid land lease payments . 3190 [t impairment at least annually. Goodwill arising on scquisitions aftes I3t January, 2005 is meusured at cost lesy accumulared .
Loans receivable - doe within one year 100,000 190,401 impairment losses (if any) after initial recognition. As & result of hit change in accounting policy, no amortisation of
Investment in secarities 173,284 $00dwill has been churged in the urrent period, Comparative figures have not been restated.
Iavestments held for trading 55,512 - Leasehold Interest in land and ses wse rights .
Amounts due from relaled companies 240,077 346,102 In previous periods, owner-oteupied leasehold land and buildings were included in property, plunt and cquipment and
Amounts due from associates 181,750 168,683 measured using the cost model. In (he current perfod, the Group has applicd HKAS 17 “Leases”, Under HKAS 17, the fand
Taxation recoversble - . 1 7,506 and bu“:gn:p lements of » lease of iand and buildings are cansidered separately for the purposes of lease classiication,
. unless the lesse payments cannot be allocated reliably between the fand and buildings elements, in which case, the entire
Short term bank deposits, bank balances and cash 671,681 1,254,556 letse it generaliy teared 15 £ inknce lense. To the extent et the uitocs(ion of the ase payments between the land and
buildings ¢lements can be made reliably, the leaschold interests in fand are reclassified to “prepaid land iease payments”
2,655,984 4,040,445 under opmmu teases, ;mch e :;med 1 cost and ln;cnucd aver [he lease term on a araighi- Jine bnsudTm; change in
has been applicd retrospectively. ANzrnatively, wheee the allocation between the jand and buildings
CURRENT LIABILITIES i A G el ibly, the leasehold nierets in 1KAd commindc to be.seeounted for ks Property, piant 4nd
Amounts due to customers for contract works 441,885 435,198 cquipment,
Cregitors and accrued expenses 14 825,520 1,076,195 Previously, sen use rights held for undetermined future use were carmied af cont teis Amp:xrmenl Under HKAS 17, such sea
Amounts due to associates 2,907 804 use rights are classified as prepaid lease pl{mmn under operating leases, carried 1t coal and amortised on o straight-line
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities 20,766 20,766 basis oves the lease tem, In the abtence of any specific tansitional provisions in HKAS 17, such change in sccounling
- Amount due 1o & minority shareholder 1,368 104,833 policy has.been applied reirospectively, Comparative figures have been adjusted in order to reflect the cumulative smorlisation
Loan from & minority shareholder 1727697 s Chacge for the seh use rightn. The amortisation Charge 1 icladed bs part of the developmenl con of the project.
Dividend payable 32,487 - Investment properlies
gnxnlion payable " sg :;z zsl,ggg In the curreat period. the Group has applied HKAS 40 “Invesiment Property” r-mi has ciected o use tne air walue model (o
ank borrowings — due within one year 259, X account for i13 investment properties which requites gains-or Josses arising from chinges in the Fair value of investment
wings = due Within one y 4 propertias 1o be reco, n.,eapd,fnny i rolis o Jovs For the period in Whch they arires 1 presious pes
1,759,392 1,931,638 Froperties undes SSAP 13 ~Accounting for Investment Properics wire measured 11 Spen mumel valses,
’ b : ;\lrylnu_l or deficit mdhed lnv :hmﬂea to mvenm;nl propenhy unhuu?n rc:uu‘ unlu:dlhe balance mh .
. nsufficient (0 covet a revalustion decrease, in which case the eacess of the fevaluation decrease over the balance on the
NET CURRENT ASSETS 896,592 2,108,807 investment property revalustion reserve was charged (o the income s(atement. Where 8 decrcase had previously been
charged to the income statement and a revaluation increase subsequently arose, that increase was eredited 1o the income
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,137,786 5,178,741 sizrement 10 the extent of the decrease previously charged. The adoplion af HKAS 40 has had ne material effect on the.
results for the current or priof periods. Accordingly, no prior péviod adjustment has been required.
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Financlal instruments
In the current period, the Group has xpplied HKAS 32 “ann:ul lnslmmenh Dn:lature and Prnenlllwn and HKAS 39
“Financial and AS 32 requi
HKAS 32 has had no maierial effect on ths presentation or {mmcml esirumnts i the financial siatemenis of the Group
HKAS 39, which is effective for accounting periods beginning an or after Ist Junuary, 2005, generally does not permit
recognive, derecogaise or messure Gnuncial ssets and Titilitics on b telrospective K cieal shiocts resmiting
from the implementation of HKAS 39 are summrised :
Classification und measurement off'nanrh:l assets nndfnan:ynl tiabilities
The Group has applied the relevant wansitional previsions in HKAS 39 with respect to clasiifieation and messurement of
rmnmx assets and financial Habilitics that are within the scope of HKAS 39.
316t March, 2008, the Group clasificd and measured s ey ecaritis In gocordancs wih the benchmark aiment
Sulzmenl of Siands. ecurities™ (“ sSAP 24™). Under SSAP 24,
mvespments i Saulty pocurmis are Lot as ~vesmment szcu S o “other investments” ax appropriate, “Investment
securitics” arc carried at cost less impairment bosses (if an “other investments” tre measured ol fair value, with
snrealised gains or losses included in the profit of loss. Do 15 April. 2005 onwards, 1he Group has classified and
messurea 1 eyoity securtes i accordance ith HKAS 35. Under HKAS 39, financial assets are lassified 11 *inancial
assets at fair value thraugh profil of 10s5™ or “svailable-for-sale financial pssets”, The classification depends on the pu
for which the 333cs ure asauired. “Financial assets at faic vluc heough prali o Ioss” and “availabie-forsale ageret
g™ arc canicd s fair ealue, with changes in fuir values recogniied in incoms satement and equlty, wspecilvely
Batunce of the Group’s investment securitics was remensured at fair velue with an adjustment of HK$1,321.000 1o the
piévious carrying amounis of sssels ond the Group's accumolated profits at It April, 2003, which will be Teeased 1o the
income statement upsn disposs) or of the relevant
Financial ossets and financial liabilities other than debt and equity securitles
From Ist April, 2005 onwards, the Group classifics and mensures its financial assets and financiaf liabilitics other than debt
and equity securities (which were previously outside the scope of SSAP 24) in everdance veh the requirements of HKAS
39. Under HKAS 39, financial assers are classificd a1 “financial asscts st faie value through profis or loss™, “available- or-
e financial assets” oans a0 recrivables” or “beld-to-maturity Arancial assts, “Fintnclal liblitics are generally
classificd a3 “Minancial liabilities Al fair value through profit or Jos1™ or financial lisbilitics other then Finaneial lisbilities &t
fair value through profit or toss (other financiel n-mlmcs)" “Other financial liabilities” are carried at amartised cost using
the effective interest method.
SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial effects of the changes in sccounling policies described above are summarised as follows:

{a) Effects on the resulis for the carrent and prior periody;

Six months ended

30/09/2005 30/05/2004
Hx: HKS' 000
Decrease in amortisation of goodwill 3,7 -
Increase in share of loss of un xssociate 114.217) -
Decrease in profit for the period . (10,505) -
(b)  Effects on the batance sheet as a1 313t March, 2008 and st April, 2008:
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Note: The share of effect of changed in #ecounting poli
Interprezation 2 ("HK Int+2") “The Appropriaie Accounting Policies
ition and * and HKFRS 3 “Business Comb

s on an associste arose from the adoption of Hong Kon
for Hotel Propesies™ IKAS 39 “Financial
ions™ by the Group's associate.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Business segmen

For managament pucposes, the Group's operations a1t currenily organised Into i operatng divisions, namely buiiding
d property

.t cilitic: asury
o e o s %o Wi the Group reports s primary sgment o,

Analysis of the Group's tamover and profit before 1axtion by business segments are as follows:
Turnover:

Six months ended 30/9/1005 Six months ended 30/9/2004
Inter = nter ~

External  segmeat Total  Externat  segment Total
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKI000

Consiruction and other

contracting businesses: ,

Building construction 1,008,967 - 1,008,967 1,248,740 30374 1279114
Civil engineering ‘GH4S 50,210 AB8356 408,881  $1.760 466,64l
Project management 6,044 - 6,044 - - -
Facilities management 1,919 - 1,519 - - -
1455076 50210 1505286 1657621 . BB,I34 1745755
Treasury investment 307,639 - 307,639 - - -
Property investment 28,79 9,659  384SS 21262 7876 29,138
Elimination - (59,869) _ (59,869) = - (96010) _ (96,010)
1,791,511 - 1791513 1,678,883 - _1.5678.883

Profit before taxation: -
Six months ended

30/9/2008 301972004
HX3'000 HK$ 000
[ ion und other .
Building conslruction 37,388 8.926
Civit engincering 14270 29169
Project management 3,899, -
Facilities mangement : . 1,702 -
57,227 38,093
Treasury investment 33778 -
Property investment 14,658 3.481
Segment result 105,659 46,576
Interest income 17,417 20,344
Increase in fair value of investment properties 357400 -
Unallocated corporate expenses 31,182) (27,448)
Finance costs (6,029) (2,500)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 82) -
Los on ditution of intcrests in essociates - (15,004)
Write back of impsirment loss on intereat in an associster 23,289 -
Share of results of associates (22,080} 25,673
Share of resulis of jointly controfled entities 2,101 1]
Profit before tanation 174,562 4759

Inter-segment revenue is charged at market price or, where no market price is available, st terms determined and sgreed by
both parties.

OTHER INCOME
Six months e-ded

anies/z00y /2004

HKS'ODG

Gain on disposal of investment properties 1129

Interest income 19477 20,344
Recovery of interest and legal expenscs in connection

il 8 cour aciion againat an ex-shazehoider of the Compiny 79,928 -

Dividend inc ~ 356

Writs back o[ lllowll\ca for doubtfui debts. 4,501 -

101,506 21,829

. Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

3010974005 30/09/2004
HXS$'000 HKS'000
Depreciation and smortisation of property. plant and equipment
ets 19,318 27,958
Less: Amount capitatised in respect of contracts In progress 1.215) {799)
18,103 27,139
Amortisatlon of goodwil (incleded n adminisrative eapenses) - 1,183
Loss on disposal of investments in securities - 1,579
Unrealised holding loss on listed other mvesments - 8,143
Decrease in faie value of investments held for trading 4,029 -
Share, of taxation of associaics (included hare of fesalt of associntes} 445 13,108
Share of taxation of jointly contsajicd entitie:
(included in shire-of re3ults of Jointly controlled enties) 3% -
TAXATION
Six menths ended
30/09/2008 30/09/2004
. XS0 HK3 00
" The charge comprises:
Hong Kong Profity Tax
Current year 1871 2t
Underpravision in prior years 30197 -
. 5,068 2
Overseas mxation - - 1177
Deferred 1axation 4,353 7,629
9,421 8827

30/09/2005 31/03/2005

HX$000 HES'000

(Restated)

- Within 90 days 248,511 329.088
More than 80 days and within 130 days 16348 839
Mora than 150 days 67,600 §7.663
: o 332,456 399.560
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Six months ended

Hong Kong Profits Tax is caleulated at the rare of 17.5% (2004 17.5%) on the estimited Asscssable profits derived from
Rong Kong for the pe:
Overscas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jutisdictions.
DIVIDENDS
Six months ended

30/09/2005

HX$000

. 20.330

[nterim dividend - 1.5 cents (2004: 1,5 cents) per share

The amount of the interim dividend declared for the siz monihs cnded 30h September, 2005 hus been calculsied by
reference to the 1,358,675,436 issued ordinary shares outslanding a3 at the date of this announcement.

During the period, o special cash dividend of 10 cenus ger share amounting o ¢ (ot dividend of spprorimaicty
HK 5937, 177,000 (2004: Nil) was declared by the Bosrd of Directora snd a fina dividend of 1.5 cenis (2004: 1.5 cenis) per
share amounting fo a toia! dividend of approximately HK$20,380.000 (2004: HK$20,119,600) for ihe year ended 3ist
March, 2005 wat approved by and payable (o the sharehofders.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculstion of the basic and diluted carnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company for Lhe period
it bused on the following data:

’ Six months ended

30/09/2008 30/03/2004
HKS$'000 HKS 000

Earnings: -
Eamings for the purposes of basic camings per share 149,280 44

Number of sharea:
Weirhlaﬂ average number of ordinary shares for the purposes
re

of basic eamings per s 1.365.282.332

1.145.249.019
No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both periods a8 the exercise prices of he Company's sbare options
were higher than the sverage market price per share for the six monthy ended 30uh Stprember, 2003 1nd no potentisi
ordinary shares were outstanding during the six months cnded 301h September, 2004
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the period, the Group spent approximately HK$7,848,000 (20045 HK$4,143,000) on property, plant and equipment
1o eapand and upgrads its aperating capacity. The Grap also dispased of propecty, pisnt and equipmicnt with an aggregaie
carrying value of approximately HK$2,912,000 (2004: HK$2.373,000).
Investment properties were valoed at their open market valuea at 30h 2005
valuer on an open'marke basis. This revalustion gave rlse Lo an increase S TRE Y 40000 wiieh was
Sredited 1o he fondensed incamé iatement during the period.

PROJECT‘ UNDER DEVELOPMENT

30/09/2008 310372005
HEE 200 HES'000
(Restated)
Sei-use right 1,662,216 1,669,907
Development cosis 209,987 136,559
: 1,872,203 1,806,466
Less: Current portion of rea-use rights shown under current assets (34,200) (34.011)
Amount shown under non-curent sisets . . . 1,838,003 1.772,433
The development projoct is located in Jiangso Province, the People’s Repablic of China.
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES .
. 30/03/3005 31/03/2005
HX$000 HKS'000
(Restated)
Share of net assets:
isted shares in Hong Kong (note below) 380,521 370,977
Unlisted shares 38,487 I
419,008 408,123
Less: Impairment toss recognised 3,625 26.914)
. 415383 381,203
Maskes value of listed shares in Hong Kong 214220 139.763

The listed shares in Hong Kong represent me Group's 29.36% (31.3.2003; 25.36%) equily interest in Chiny Srm:;vc
Holdings Limited {“China Slul:g!c ). The Group’s share of net assets in Chi ui:pc as at 30th Scpiember, 2005 i
calculaied ased on China Strategic's net asseta as at 30t Junc, 2005 as shown in its liest publithed intesim report.

During the period, the-directors bave assessed the estimated recoversble amount of Chins Strategic bascd on the terms of
the scheme of group reorganisation as set out in its circular dated [0th September, 2005. Accordingly, an impairment loss of
HRE23 269,000 previausly recopnised has been writien back i ihe (ncome suatement.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREFPAYMENTS

‘The Group's credit terms for contracling business are negotiated on ferms determined and sgreed with its 1rade customers,
Trads deblors arise from property leasing business are payable moathly in advance and the credit terms granted by the
Group to other trade debloes normally range from 30 days to 50 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debrors a5 at the reporting daie;

Included in debtors. doposits nd prepayments s 19 amount of apororimatcly HKS132, 164, 000 (31.3.2005: HK$449,174.000)
which represcats the balance of proceeds from disposal of interest in Downer EDI Limited (“Downer”), u foemer associate
o the Gloap, deporited with » biaker in Austraiis. The smoun: wis withheld by the Australian Taation Office unll the
clearance of all tax Habilities arising from the disposal of Downer's shares. During the period, an amount of appronimately
HK$317,010,000 was paid to the Austraiian Taastion Office out of the deposits wilh the broker.

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
The fotiowing is arl aged snalysis of trade creditors 2t the reporting date:

010912008 31/0372008

HES'000 HK3'000

(Restared)

Within 90 days 4,699 218,556
More than 90 days and within 180 days .

More than 180 dayx n Sl 17,038

234,416 236,743
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15, SHARE CAPITAL
Issued and fully patd
.

Number
of shares Value
HKS$'000

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each:
At ist April, 2065 1,385,198 436 136,920
Shares sepuichased and cancelled (10,520,000) (1,052)

Al 30th Septiember, 2008 135,868
INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board hab resolved to pay an interim dividend of 1.5 cents per share for the six months ended 30th
September, 2005 (2004: 1.5 cents per share) to sharcholders whose names appear on the register of members of

1,353,675, 436

shareholders by post on or around 13th February, 2006,

The Board has also proposed that the interim dividend should be satisfied by way of a scrip dividend of shares,
with an option to ¢lect cash in respect of all or part of such dividend. The market value of the shares to be issued
under the scrip dividend proposal will be fixed by reference to the average of the close prices of the Company's
shares for the three consecutive trading days ending ) [th January, 2006 less a discount of five per cent, of such
average price of to the par value of the shares, whichever is the higher, The proposed scrip dividend is conditional
upon the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) granting listing of, and permission to
deal in, the new shares. A circular giving full details of the scrip dividend proposal and a form of election wil) be
sent to shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the period from Sth January, 2006 to 13th

January, 2006, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of share(s) of the Company will be effected,
)

the Company as at the close of business on 11th January, 2006, The interim dividend is expected 10 be paid to

o ’ . (Page 3)

Treasury Investment

During the period under review, HK§34 million'(31.3.2005: an) of the operating profit was contributed from the
business of treasury investment.

Tota] value of the Group”: securities i y HK$58 million (31.3.2005: HK$175
million) as st 30th S:plember. 2005, equivalent to about l% (31.3,2005: 2%) of the total assets of the Group.
Portfolio of high-yield loan recejvable mmaunted 1o epproximately HK$489 million (31.3.2005: HK $668 million)
as at 30th September, 2005, equivalent to about 8% {31.3. 2005 9%) of the total assets of the Group.

China Strategic

In March 2005, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agrecment with an independent third party in
relation to the disposal of 135 million shares in China Strategic at HK$0.193 per share. Upon completion of the
disposal, the Group's shareholding interest in China Strategic will decrease from 29.4% to approximately 14%,
and China Sirategic will cease to be 2n associated company of the Company.

The disposal is conditional upon, inter alia, the completion of a capilal reorganisation (including, inter alia, a
consolidation of two existing shares into one consclidated share) and a group rearganisation (the "Group
Recrg!msnhon "} |nvolvmg in specie distribution of certain assets to shareholders by China Strategic. Hanny
Holdings Ltd (“Hanny") has in turn proposed a voluntary offer (the “Hanny Offer™) to acquire the assets distributed
under the Group Reorganisation, Under this offer, the Company will be :nmled to receive one Hanny share plus
HKS$1,80 for every 5 consolidated shares of China Strategic.

Currently, the Bosrd continues (6 favour a possible distribution to sharcholders of & significant portion of the
Value to be derived from the divestment of China Strategic. However, given that the requisite court approval for
effecting the proposed capital rerganisation is yet to be abtained by China Strategic and there is stitl no definite
time frame in relation to the effective date of the'Group Reofganisation currently, the Board does not consider it
appropriaic to make any decision regarding the aforesaid distribution a1 this stage.

MAJOR EVENT SUBSEQUENT

Dlsposnl of Paul Y. Centre,
1o 30th 2005, the Group entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with a

In order-to qualify for the interim dividend, all transfer of share(s), accompanied by the relevant share

with the completed transfes form(s) with overleaf or separately, must be lodged with the Company's branch share

registrars in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at its new address at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road

East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (effective on 3rd January, 2006, formerly at Ground Floor, Bank of East Atia Harbour

;’tste)w Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong), for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on 6th January,
6.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND POSITIONS

Continuous growth

For 1he six.months period under seview, the Group's cansolidzied turnover was approximatety HK$1,792 million

(2004: HK$1,679 million), representing an increase of approximaiely 7% when compared with that of last

corresponding period. The increase was mainly attributable to an increase in the Group’s business in treasury

investment.

The Group's gross profit rose by 60% to some HK$146 million (2004: HKS?I million), representing-a gross

% of the consolidated turnover, Profit before 1axation-of some HKS$175 miliion was achieved as

margin of

compared to some HK3$47 million for the same period Jast year, The Group's profit before taxation comprised:

() net gain of spproximately HKS57 million in construction and other busi (2004: HK$38
million);

(i)~ net gain of appmxlmnlely HK$34 million in treasury investmenr (2004: Nil};

(iii)  net gain of approximately HK$15 million in property investment (2004: HK$8 million);

(iv)  interest mcom: of npprommnlzly HKS$18 million (2004: HK$20 millio

(v)  increase in fair value of investment properties of approximatcly HK$85 million (2004: Nil);

(v1)  net corporate expenses of approximately HK$31 million (2004: HK$27 million):

(vii) finance casts of npproximately 6 million (2004: HK$3 million):

(viii) pet gain of epproximately HK$3 million from associates and jointly controiled cntities (2004: HK$11
million).

Profit for the period attributable te shareholders of the Company was appmxlmulely HK$149 million (2004:

HK$38 million) and carnings per share was HK10.9 cents (2004: 2.8 cents),

When comgarcd with the Group’s financial positions as at 31st March, 2005, mm assels decreased by 17% to

some HK$5,897 million and net current assets decressed by 57% to some HK$897 million, mainly due to the

payment of a special cash dividend totalling approximately HK$957 million in July 2005. Consequently, current

assets decreased from 2.1 times to 1.5 times of current ljabilities. After accounting for the net profit of

approximately HK$149 million net of dividends paid/declared of approximately HK$978 million, equity attributable

to shareholders of the Company decreased by 25% to some HK$2,373 million, represeniing HK$1.7 per share as

at 30th, September, 2005 (31.3.2005: HK$2.3 per share).

Net cash inflow from operations was about HK$167 million and outflow in respect of investing and financing

activities was about HK$764 million, resulting in a net decrease in cash of about-HK$597 million. for the period

under review,

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Port & Infrastructure Development
The rapid economic growth of Maintand China gives rise to a growing demand cn the ports and logistics scctor
which is now the Group's business focus, and jt is expected to contribute pesitively to the Group's future
earnings base,

The development of Yangkou Port progressed well during the period under review. In Seplember 2005, an
official groundbreaking ceremony was held to signify the commencement of work on the 13-kilometer Yellow
.Sea Crossing. On completion, the Yellow Sea Crossing will link thé | square-kilometer. man-made island and
berthing facilities with the 42 square-kilometer harbour front industrial park. The master planning of the industrial
. park is elso under way.

Jjoint venture company effecuvely owned by Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., Capital Strategic Investment Limited
and Paul Y. Engineering Group for the disposal of Paul Y, Centre (lhrough disposing 100% of the subsidiaries
owning Paul Y. Centre) at an agreed gross value of HK$780 million. Such agreed value is derived from a yield
rate of 6.28% based on the rental income of approximately HK$49 million for the year ended 315t March, 3005.
The disposal constitutes 2. major transaction of the Company and is subject to approval by sharchalders in a
Cpmal general meeting to be convened. Details of this transaction are set out in an announcement of the
ompany dated 24th November, 2005,
LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND GEARING RATIO
The Group contintes to adopt 2 prudent funding and treasury policy with regard 10 its oversll business aperations.
A variety of credit facilities are maintained to meet its working capital requirements, During the period under
review, the Group obtained new bank facilities in the amount of HK345 million, of which HK$22.5 million were
used 10 finance the purchase of a property in Hong Kong and the remaining balance for general working capital
purpose. The loans of the Croup bear interest at market rates and are with terms of repayment within five years.
As at 30th September, 2005, the Group's total borrowings amounted to appmxlmnl:ly HK $72% million (31.3,2005;
HKS$831 million), with HK$432 million (31.3.2005: HK$29C million) repayable within one year and HK3297
million (31,3.2005: HK$541 million) repayable after one year. Cash balances as at 30th September, 2005 amounted
to approximately HK$672 million (31.3.2005: HK$1, ZSS’miIIiun)
As at the period end, HK$662 mil (31.3.2005: HK3765 million) of the Group's borrowings bore interest at
floating rates and were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, and HK$67 million (31,3.2005: HK$66 million) of
the Group’s boncwmgs bors interest at a fixed rate and were denominated in R:mmb. Th: Group’s gearing ratio
was 0,31 (31.3.2005: 0.26) which is calcolated based on total borrowings of HK$72: 0 (31.3.2005: HK$831
mllhcn)) and equity atiributable to shareholders of the Compnny of HK$2,373 mnl[lon (31 3.2005: HK$3,17%
miltion,
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30th September, 2005, the  Group had contingent liabilities in respect of outstanding performance bonds on
ion contracts of HKS$131 million (31.3.2005: HKI!IO mlllmn)

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 30th September, 2005, certain of the Group!s p i with an aggregate value
of l(p'Pmnmnxely HK$834 snillion (31.3,2005: HK$753 i mxllmn) nnd the issued shares of certain subsidiaries of
the Company and its benefits under ceriain construction contracts have been pledged to banks and financial
institutions to secure genernl credit facilities granted to the Group,

COMMITMENTS

As at 30th September, 2005, the Group hld expenditure contracted but not provided for in the financial statements

m respc:! of mcquisition of certain property, plant and equipment in an amount of approximately HK341 million
§9l million in respect of certain property, plant and equipment and HK$48 mitlion in respect of

c;mm equlty investment).

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at 30th September, 2003, the Group employed a total of approximately 1,235 ful} time employees (among

which 1,092 were employed by Paul Y. Engineering) (31.3.2005: 1,163). Remuneration packages comprised

salary and performance-based bonus. Details of the share option scheme were discussed in the Group's Annual

Report for the year ended 3]st March, 2005, No share option was granted or exercised during the period under

review,

QUTLOOK . §

China’s GDP grew 9.4% in the first nine months of 2005, while its consumer price index rose 2%. China's

central bank secs & continuation of GDP growth and expects it to surpass 9% for 2005.

The momentum of global economic frowlh is likely to remain retatively steady over the next six months, though

by oil-price volalility and US interest rates rising at 2 measured pace.

Complélncn of the initial phase of Yangkou Port will slign with the opening of Sutong Bridge, the
Yellow Sca with the southern side of the Yangtze River deita through Nantong, On completion in Iate 2007, the
Suteng Bridge will link up Suzhou and Naniong and cut by half the commuting time between Shanghai and
Nantong.

In August 2005, the Group announced a proposed 45% investment in Nantong Port Group at a cost of approximately
HK$417 million. This move fits well into the Group’s strategy to develop a comprehensive and integrated
transshipment network on the Yangize River.

At present, Nantong Port Group owns & total of 4 major terminals which together bperate more than 20 productive
berchs at Nantong Port, the first major bulk cargo pert in the Yangize River delta.

In 2004, Nantong Port Group achicved & cargo throughput of approximately 33 million tonnes. Currently, it is
undertaking m 6or expansion plans, upon completion of which by mid-2006 throughput capacity will be increased
by more than 5

The proximity in location and the complementary nature of Nantong Port and Yangkou Port not only will allow
the Group to build up an effective logistics network but also will offer a comprehensive spectrum of services to
shippers in the Yangtze River delta.

Engineering businesses - Paul Y, Engineering

A relatively stable global environment should underpin external demand in Chine, thus creeting a favourable

environment for-our ports and infrastructure business in the Maialand,

Havmg secured the spearhending position in the Yangtze River delta, the Group will focus on the development of
%kvu Port as well a3 the enhancement of capacity and efficiency of Nantong Port Group. In addition to the

dry ulk operational skill at Nantong Porl Group, the Group is exploring uppormmu:s 1o invest jn Liquid bulk

terminals in the upper stream of Yangtze River,

With our well defined business focus and & hnghly liguid b:lance sheet, we are fully committed to redeploying

our resources to the ports and logistics sector in the Mainland and are prepated to maximize the opportunities

that lie ahead,

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the period under review, the Coimp: anyfpurchued a total of 10,520,000 ordinary shares of the Company

on the Stock Exchange at-an aggregate price of HK$14,477,780, representing 2n average price of HK$1.38 paid

for each share purchased. All of these shares were cancelled upon repurchases,

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company hn. lhmughoux the period ended 30 September 2005, complied with the code provisions and,
wh best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance Practices {the ¥Code”)

For th¢ period under review, Paul Y. Enginecring Grou? Limited (“Paul Y, ") and its
“Paul Y, Engineering Group”) achicved a gross ’Profn of some HK$98 mxlhon as compared to some HK$91
’ aul Y. El

as sex ou( in Append:x 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Secunties on the Stock Exchange cxcept for the
g deviation from code provision A.4.2 of the Code:

million for the last corresponding period. Net profit after tax
for the period was approximately HKSds million as compared to some HK$37 million for the last corresponding
period.

During the period, the Peul Y. Engincering Group secured new contracts with an aggregate value of Appmxxmnlely
HK$1,734 million, At this period end, the value of work by 5% to approxin y HK$4,933
million when compared with that of the last financial year end. Profile of contracts on hand as at |he cnd of this
period is as follows:

Value of contracts Value of work
on han remnlnlng

As at 30/09/2005  As at 30/09/200:
HK$ million HKS million

Building construction 6,096 3,909
Civil engineering 2,266 1,024
4,933

. . 8362

" Subsequent 1o the period end, the Group has secured further contracts of approximatety HK$165 million.
Property investment
During the period under review, approximaely HKS15 million (2004: HK$8 million) of the operating profit wes
contributed from the business of property investment,
Total value of the Group's propérty portfolio, cxcludmg those self-vsed p
HK$619 million (31,3.2005: HK$546 million) as at 30th September, 2005 eq\uvllcn! to about 10% (3] 3. 2005
8%) of the total assets of the Group. Included in the property portfolic is mainly Paul Y. Centre, the Group’s
hexdquaner: in Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The overall rental rate of Paul Y. Centre has been increased

hen cvmspued with thst of last period and Y Tate was d at a satj; y level of around 95%

(Jl 3.2005: 97%) at 30th-September, 2005.

Under code provision A4.4.2 of the Code, every director, including those appointed for » specific term, should be
subject ta retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The rotation of direciors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 September 2005 was in
accordance with the Company's previous bye-laws which stipulate, inter slis, that one-third of the directors for
the time being (or, if their pumber is not a meltiple of three (3), the sumber aearest to but not greater than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation %anded that notwithstanding anything therein, the Chairman of the
Board and/or the Managing Dircctor of the Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to retirement
by rotation or be taken into account in determining the number of directors 1o retire in each year. This devinted
from the requirements of code provision A.4.2. .
To fully comply with code p jon A.4.2, relevant to the Company’s bye-laws were. proposed and
approved by sharcholders nz the same annual general mecting of the Company, pursuant to which every director
shall be subject to rememenl by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general meeting in future,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this announcement, the following are l.he directors of the Company:
Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph H 'Chllrman {Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Tom Ko Yuen Lau : Deputy Chairman snd Managing Director .

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles :  Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kwok Shiu Keunx. Erncst :  Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan Shu Kin :  Independent Non-Executive Director

On behalf of the Board
' Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph
Chairman,

Hong Kong, 13th December, 2005
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makes no as 1o its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
P ¥ 4 i 24 ¥

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the comtents of this anno.

whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any peri of the contents of this announcement.
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PYI Corporation Limited

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited tiabiliry)
(Stock code: 498)

PROPOSED ADOPTION OF NEW SHARE AWARD SCHEME

D OF

NEW SHARE FINANCING PLAN
AND
PROPOSAL TO ADJUST SUBSCRIPTION PRICES IN RESPECT OF
CERTAIN OPTIONS QUTSTANDING UNDER EXISTING SHARE OPTION SCHEME

to subscribe new Shares with the subscription price left outstanding by way of loan.

proposal will abstain from voting it.

Sharcholders as soen as practicable.

The board of directors of PYI proposes 1o adopt the Share Award Scheme in which Eligible Persons (including employees, consultants, advisers or agents of the PYI Group and 2ny entity in which-lhc_}
PYI Group has invested in) will be entitled to participate. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, Shares will be acquired by an independent trustee at the cost of PYI and held in trust for the Selected
Eligible Persons until the ¢nd of cach vesting period. Vested Shares will be transferred at no cost 10 the Selected Eligible Persons. i .

The Board also proposes to adopt the Share Financing Plan in which all Eligible Persons will be entitled to participate, Pursuant to the Share Financing Plan, Selected Eligible Persons will be invited

The purpose of the Share Award Scheme and of the Share Financing Plan is to recagnise the contributions of Eligible Persons' and to seek to retain them for the continued operation and development of
the PYI Group, and to altract suitable personnel for the further development of the PYI Group. Through the Share Award Scheme and Share Financing Plan, Eligible Persons are encouraged 1o re-invest
part of their remuneration by way of equity participation into PY], thus closely aligning their goals and interests with those of PYI and its Shareholders as a whole.

A proposal will be put 1o Shareholders for a reduction in the subscription prices payable on exercise of certain options outstanding under the Existing Share Option Scheme by HK$0.70 per Share, The
proposed reduction factors into the HK$0.70 special dividend enjoyed by the Shareholders in July 2005, which was not afforded to the existing option holders as the Existing Share Option Scheme
does not provide for any adjustment to the opticn exercise price following the payment of cash dividend which s not a capital distribution by nature, Shareholders in PYI who have an interest in the

A circular containing, inter alia, details of (i) the proposed reduction in subscription prices togethet with the advice from KPMG Corporate Finance Limited, the independent financial adviser
appointed by PYI for the purpose of advising independent Shareholders on the proposal; and (i) the Share Award Scheme and Share Financing Plan for information purpose only will be despatched to

Purpeses and Eligible Persons

The board of directers of PYI proposes to adopt the Share Award Scheme and the Share Financing
Plan, in addition to the adjustments in subscription prices proposed to options cutstanding under
the Existing Share Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Share Award Scheme and the Share Financing Plan is to recognise the
contributions of Eligible Persons (including employees, consultants, advisers or agents of the PYI
Group and an Invested Entity), and to scek to retain them for the continued operation and
development of the PYI Group, and to attract suitable personnel for the further development of the
PY1 Group. Through the Share Award Scheme and Share Financing Plan, Eligible Persons are
encouraged to re-invest part of their remuneration by way of equity participation into PYI, thus
closely aligning their goals and interests with those of PY] and its Shareholders as a whole, A
summary of each is set out below.

The Company now bas in force the Existing Share Option Scheme. Once they have been adopied it
will also have in force the Share Award Scheme and the Share Financing Plan. It is. intended that
these will give the Company more flexibility in providing incentives, by way of equity
panticipation, to such Eligible Persons in various jurisdictions in which members of the PYI Group
operate, where different regulations and tax regimes make it desirable for these Eligible Persons to
be given different ways of panicipation in equity subject to all restrictions of the Listing Rules
including the prohibition oo issue of new Shares to connected persons of the Company without
independent Shareholder approval.

The adoption of the Share Award Scheme and the Share Fmancmg Plan and their related rules do
not require approval of Sharehelders. The substance of both is provision of financial benefits to
employecs and others structured so as to benefit the Company by requiring them to invest in it.
They are effectively cash bonuses. They are to be administered by the Board and the Board will
have full authority to delegate this role to a committee of directors (including the Remuneration
Committez of the Company}. All directors will be eligible to sit on any such committee, subject to
conflicts of interest, which will be selected by the Board if and when it determines to establish such
a committee,

NEW SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Duration

Unless earlier terminated, the Share Award Scheme will be valid for & term of 10 years from the
Adopticn Date for the relevant Setttor.

Restrictions

No instructions and no payments to purchase Shares will be given to the Trustee when any director
of the Company is in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the
Compnny or where dealings by directors of the Company are prohibited under any code or
requirement of the Listing Rules and ali applicable taws from time (o time.

Operation

The Board will select Eligible Persons to invite to participate in the Share Award Scheme and
determine the number of Shares 1o be awarded to each, by reference to, amongst other things their
past or potential contributions to the growth and development of the PYI Group or any Invested
Entity. Similar factors may be taken into account under the Existing Share Option Scheme. No
guidelines have been established on whether Eligible Persons who are also employees will be
invited to become Selected Eligible Persons or offered options under the Existing Share Option
Scheme, or both.

The Board will pay the Trustee the purchase price and the related expenses from the Company’s
resources. The Trustee will purchase from the market the relevant number of Shares awarded and
will hold such Shares until they are vested in accordance with the rules of the Share Award Scheme.
There are no set limits on such purchases or financing and no set limits on the awards to any
Eligible Person and it is not at present intended to apply guidelines similar to the requirements of
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules (which apply to share option schemes). The conditions attached to
each offer will be decided on a case-by-case basis and may be different for dlfferenl Eligible
Persons.

The Trustee will purchase further Shares for the Selected Eligible Persons to be funded by the
proceeds of the sale of any non-cash distributions such as dividends in specie. When the Selected
Eligible Person has satisfied all vesting conditions specified by the Board at the time of making the
award and become entitled to the Shares forming the subject of the award, the Trustee will transfer
the relevant vested Shares (awarded Shares, related scrip distribution and further Shares acquired or
subscribed out of the income derived therefrom) to that Selected Eligible Person at no cost. The
Shares will not be repurchased by the Company or for its benefit and the purchase of the relevant

Shares will not fal] within the definition of “shore repurchase™ for the purposes of the Code on
Share Repurchases or within Rule 10.06 of the Listing Rules,

No Eligible Persons have yet been selected for offers under the Share Award Scheme.

Vesting and Lapse

Awarded Shares and the related income derived therefrom may be subject to a vesting bcnod for the
Eligible Person in quesnon Vesting of the Shares will be conditional on the Selected Eligible
Person ining an ) adviser or agent of the PYI Group or the Invested Entity
(as the case may be) unnl and on each of the relevant vesting dates and his/her execution of the
relevant documents to effect the transfer from the Trustee,

An award will sutomatically lapse when the relevant Eligible Person ceases 1o be eligibie and
quatified under the definition of “Eligible Person”, or the Group Company or the Invested Entity
employing or cngagmg the refevant Eligible Pcrson ceases to be a Group Company or an Invested
Entity, save 'that'in the*case when the relévant Eligible Person dies, or retires at his/her normal
retirement date or earlier by agreemeat prior to.a vesting date, all the awarded Shares and the
related income will be deemed to vest on the day immediately prior to his/her death or retirement.
In case there is no claim of the vested interests by the legal representative of the relevant deceased
Selected Eligible Person within two years of his or her death {or such longer period as the Trustee
and the Board will agree from time to time) or the Trust Period (whichever is shorier), such vested
interests will be forfeiled and cease to be transferable and will be held as Returned Shares for the
purposes of the Share Award Scheme.

Where the awarded Shares do not vest in accordance with the Share Award Scheme, the Trustee will
hold such Shares and the related income for the benefit of one or more Eligible Persons as it
determines in its discretion, afier having taken into account the recommendations of the Board.

Volting Rights

The Trustee will exercise the voting rights in respect of any Shares held under the Trust (including
but pot limited to the awarded Shares, and further Shares acquired out of the income derived
therefrom) at its sole discretion. It will be entitled to vote at its discretion on transactions reguiring
Shareholder approval under the Listing Rules (subject to restrictions under the Listing Rules
including but not limited to restrictions on connected transactions).

Termination

The Share Award Scheme has not yet been adopted. Once adopted it will terminate on the earlier of
the 10th anniversary of the Adoption Date or such other date as may be determined by the Board
provided that such termination will not affect any subsisting rights of the Selected Eligible Persons,

Upon termination, all awarded Shares and the related income derived therefrom will become vested
on the relevant Eligible Persons so referable on such date of termination, subject to the receipt by
the Trustee of the transfer di duly d by the Sel d Eligible Persons within the
. stipulated period. Net sale proceeds (after making appropriate deductions) of the Returned Shares
and such non-cash income together with the residual cash and such other funds remaining in the
Trust will be remitted to the Company forthwith after the sale,

The Board intends that subject to any legal restrictions full disclosure will be made in the
Company's annual reports of awards under the Share Award Scheme,

In addition to the Share Award Scheme the directors of the Company . propose the Share Financing Plan.

SHARE FINANCING PLAN

Under the Share Financing Plan, the Board can make invitations to Eligible Persons inviting them
to apply for vp to & number of Shares as specified in the invitation. The Eligible Persons who
choose to apply for Shares will be issued new Shares by the Company at such subscription price as
the Board may determine at the relevant time, Subject to obtaining all consents and approvals as
may be required by law or under the Listing Rules, the Company will issue Shares to the relevant
Eligible Persons, There are no set limits on the number of Shares that Eligible Persons may be.
invited to apply for and it is not at present intended to apply guidelines similar to the requirements
of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules (which apply on]y 1o share option schemes). No Eligible Persons
have yet been selected for invitations.

The Eligible Persons may either pay the acguisition price in full or, if they fail 1o do so, will be
deemed to have applied for a loan from the Company for the acquisition price less the amount of
any payment made by the relevant Eligible Persons for allotment of the Shares. Any such loan will
be interest free.
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If an Eligible Person is not a connected person of the Company for the purposes of the Listing
Rules, then loans or deemed loans 1o that person will be not connected transactions of the Company
for the purposes of the Listing Rules but may be notifiable transactions under Chapter 14 dcpendmg
on their size.

If an Eligible Person is a connected person of the Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules,
then loans or deemed loans to that person will be connected transactions of the Company for the
purposes of the Listing Rules and may 2lso be notifiable transactions under Chapter 14 depending
on their size.

The Company will at the material time comply fully with the Listing Rules (including Chapter 14
a5 regards notifiable transactions and Chapter 14A as regards connected transactions). Depending
on the sums involved this may entail a press announcement and a circular to Sharcholders and
approval by these Sharcholders who are permitied under the Listing Rules to vote on the proposal.
Whilst issues of Shares generally can be made under general mandates granted to directors from
time to time, if 2 proposed issue of Shares is (0, a connected person of the Company for the
purposes of the Listing Rules then it will entail a press announcement and a circular to
Shareholders and approval by those Shareholders who are permitted under the Listing Rules to vote
on the proposal. Again, the Company will at the material time comply fully with the Listing Rules
including the restriction on issuing new Shares at a discount higher than that as permitied under
Rule 13.36(5) of the Listing Rules. The Company will also issue an announcement on each issue. of
new Shares under the general mandate to Eligible Persons (with appropriate details- included) and
apply for the necessary listing approval on each occasion before issue of the relevant Shares,

Duration
The Share Flnancmg Plan has no set term and may be terminated or suspended by the Board at any
time.

Repayment
Whilst the Plan Loans remain outstanding no dividends will be passed over in cash 1o the relevant
. Eligible Person in respect of the Shares to which that Plan Loan relates and instead the repayment

of Plan Loans may be made from cash representing dividends received from those Shares. If there

are no such dividends that will not affect the obligation to repay the.relevant Plan.Loan, Each Plan

Loan must be repaid by, the relevant Ehgxble Person within 3 years afier the Plan Loan is made (or

such other period as may be determined by the Board either generally or in a case-by-case basis).

A Plan Loan must be repaid in full on the earlier of the day:~ ’

(a) the relevant Eligible Person ceases to be employed or engaged by a Group Company or Invested
Entity for any reason whatsoever;

(b) the relevant Eligible Person fails to observe or comply with his or her obligations under the
rules; and

{c) the aggregate value of the Plan Shares beneficially owned by the relevant Eligible Person
calculated based on the market price (being the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately pr:ccdmg the
subject day) is less than 50% of the Plan Loan then owed by that Eligible Person,

If a Plan Loan is not repaid to the extent required, the Company may sell, dispose of the relevant

Plan Shares and apply any proceeds towards repayment of the Plan Loan in question. At all times

unti} the Plan Loan has been repaid in full the certificates or other title documents for the relevant

Shares will be in the physical custody of an agent. The Eligible Person will not hold the serip.

Restrictions
Shares acquired by the Selected Eligible Persons. under the Share Financing Plan cannot be
disposed of until the later ofi~
(a) the expiry of the prohibition period, being-a minimum of 6 months and a maximum of 2 years
from the date of acquisition of the Sharés as determined by the Board before determining to
grant the Plan Loan (unless the person ceases to be an Eligible Person); and
(b) the date on which the relevant Plan Loan is repaid in full,
The directors are satisfied that the Share Financing.Plan is lawful under the laws of Bermuda and
that Plan Loans can be made to Selected Eligible Persons under it in compliance with the laws of
Bermuda. It is their intention to comply fully with all relevant laws.
The Board intends that subject to ‘any legal restrictions full disclosure will be made in the
Company’s annual reports of Plan Loans made under the Share Financing Plan,
PROPOSED REDUCTION IN EXERCISE PRICE OF OPTIONS'
The Company has outstanding a total number of 44,200,000 Share options granted under the
Existing Share Option Scheme to directors and former directors. The exercise price for half of all
these options {i.e. 22,100,000) is HK$1.94 per Shar¢ and for the remaining options (i.e.
22,100,000) is HK$2.20 per Share. The following directors and former directors (who are still
engaged as general advisers of the PYI Group) own the options sct opposite thcxr names below
exercisable at the prices specified below:~
No. of Shares
in respect of

Subscription which options

Name of directors price Options exercisable were granted
(HKS) . @ :

Tom Ko Yuen Lau 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 6,500,000

2.20 28 December 2004 1026 August 2012 6,500,000

Chan Fut Yan 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 6,500,000

. 2.20 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 6,500,000

Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 6,500,000

2.20 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 6,500,000

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 650,000

. 2,20 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 650,000

Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 650,000

2.20 28 December 2004 1o 26 August 2012 650,000

Chan Shu Kin 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 650,000

2.20 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 650,000

Cheung Ting Kau, Vincent 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 650,000

2.20 28 December 2004 to-26 August 2012 650,000

The proposed new subscription prices are HK$1.24 for options with a current exercise price of
HK$1.94 per Share and HK$1.50 per Share for options with a current exercise price of HK$2.20
per Share. The closing price of the Shares reported in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on 29 December 2005 (the last trading day prior to the issuc of this announcement) was
HK$1.48 per Share. The directors believe that one reason why the current market price is
significantly below the exercise price for the options is that the Company declared and paid a
special dividend of HK$0.70 per Share in July 2005, The p d reduction was d not by
reference to a particular formula widely used in respect of options gencrally but by deducting from
- the existing exercise prices under the relevant options the cash value of this special dividend
enjoyed by the Shareholders, The dividend was not afforded to the existing option holders as the

- “Board™

Existing Share. Option Scheme does not provide for any adjustment to the option exercise price
following the payment of a cash dividend which is not a capital distribution by nature. The
directors believe the proposed reduction is reasonable as a way of encouraging the option holders to
continue their efforts for the PYI Group and to exercise their options, and taking inlo account the
aforesaid circumstances, it is fair and reasonable for the Shareholders as a whole.

The reduction in subscription prices will constilute connected transactions between the relevant
directors and the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules requiring independent
Sharcholder approval. Further, as the reduction is to the advantage of the option holders,

" Sharcholder approval is required under the rules of the Existing Share Option Scheme. The Board

will put the proposed adjustment in subscription prices to Sharcholders for approval in a special
general meeting to be convened.
Shareholders in the Company who have an interest in the proposed reduction will abstain from
voting on the resolution it is put to Shareholders.
A circular containing, inter alia, details of (i) the proposed reduction in subscription prices together
with the advice from KPMG Corporate Finance Limited, the independent financial adviser appointed
by the Company for the purpose of advising independent Shareholders on the proposed reduction,
including its fairness and reasonableness; and (ii} the Share Award Scheme and Share Financing Plan
for information purpose only will be despalched to Shareholders as soon as pracucable
Definitions
In this announcement the following terms have the meanings set opposite them:—
"Adoption Date” means in respect of a Settlor the date it adopts the Share Award
Scheme; .
means the board of directors of the Company;
means any employee (whether fuil time or part time), executive or
officer, director (including any ecxecutive, non-executive .and
independent non-executive director) of a Group Company or any
Invested Entity and any consultant, adviser or agent of any Group
Company or any Invested Entily, who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, has contributed -or may contribute to the growth and
development of the PYI Group or any Invested Entity, and “Sclected
Eligible Person” means an Eligible Person who has been selected to
and does participate’in the Share Award Scheme; .
means the Share option scheme of the Company adopted by resolution
of the Sharehélders on 27 August 2002;
means any entity in which the PYI Group holds an equity interest;
means the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;
means i6 respect-of an Eligible Person who has been invited to apply
for, and has been issued new Shares under the Share Financing Plan,
the sums owed by him by Wway of subscription price for the relevant
. Shares;
“PYI" or the “Company”  means PY] Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and the Shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange;
means the Company and its Subsxdmncs. and a “Group Company”
means 4 member of the PYI Group;
means Shares and related income which are not vested and/or forfeited
inaccordance with the Share Award Schcme,
means the settlor(s) under the Trust Deed;
means 4 Share award scheme adopted on the Adoption Date by the
Board whereby. awards-of Shares may be made to Eligible Persons
(such Shares being purchased by-the Trustee) pursuant to the Trust
Decd and the'related rules;
means the plan adopted by the Board whereby selected Eligible
Persons may be invited to apply for new Shares and: offered the
oppertunity to finance their subscription by way of Plan Loans; .

“Eligible Person”

“Existing. Share Option
Scheme™

“Invested Entity™

“Listing Rules”

“Plan Loan”

“PY1 Group™
“Returned Shares™

“Settlor(s)”
“Share Award Scheme™

“Share }-;'mancing Plan”

“Shareholders™

means shareholders of the Company;

“Shares” means shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company;

“Stock Exchange” means The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;

“Subsidiary(ies)” . means subsidiary(ies) of the Company fmm time to time within the
meaning of the Listing Rules;

“Trust” means the trust consumbed by the Trust Deed;

“Trust Deed” means the trust deed to be made between the Company and some or al}
of its Subsidiaries as settlors and the Trustee as trustee, establishing
the Share Award Scheme;

"‘Trustce" means a professional trustec to be aﬁpoinled by the Board for the

purpose of the Share Award Scheme which is independent and not

connected with the Company; and

means in relation to a Settlor the period beginning with date in which it

becomes party to the. Trust Deed and ending upon the first to happen:~

(a) the expiry of the period of 80 years beginning with the Adoption

Date; or

(b} the date when an order for the winding-up of the Settlor or the
Company is made or a resclution is passed for the voluntary
winding-up of the Settlor or the Company (otherwise than for the
purposes of, and followed by, an amalgamation or reconstruction
in such. circumstances that substantially the whale of the
undertaking, assets and liabilities of the Company or the Settlor
pass’to a successor Company); or

the date that the Trustze déclares to be the end of the Trust Period
as may be informed by the Company that the Share Award Scheme
-will be terminated.

“Trust Period™

(e

GENERAL

As at the date of this announcement, the following are the directors of the Company:

Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph Chairman (Independent Non-Executive}

Mr. Tom Ko Yuen Lau Depury Chairman ond Managing Direcior

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan Shu Kin Independent Non-Executive Director,
By Order of the Board

PYI Corporation Limited
‘Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Comipany Secretary

Hong Kong, 29 December 2005
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, makes no
representation as 10 fts accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loxs howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any parl of the conients of this amnouncement.

| e

PYI Corporation Limited

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 498} .

CONNECTED TRANSACTION
DISPOSAL OF MOTOR VEHICLES,
VERICLE REGISTRATION NUMBERS AND
CLUB MEMBERSHIP TO ITC

Disposal by PYI of fxv: second hand motor vehicles, four vehxcle registration numbers and a club membership to
ITC for HK33.5 mmmn‘ which .is equivalent to comparable market value and the nct book value of these non-core
assets.

PYI no longer requires the disposed non-core assets following its refocus on port and infrastructure business in China
and reform of the board of Directors.

The Disposal is made on normal commercial terms, fair and. reasonable and in the mmes:s of PYI and its sharcholders
as a whole.

—  The Disposal d tr: jon for PY! under the Listing Rules and requires disclosure” by way
. of press spnouncement nnd in PYI's next poblished annual seport and accounts.

DISPOSAL AGREEMENT .

The board of directors (the “Directors™) of PYI Corporation Limited (“PYI” or the “Compsny”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Gronp”} announces that 8 wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company bas entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(the “Disposal Agreement™ with a wholly-ownéd subsidiary of 1TC Corporation Limited (“ITC") for the disposal of five
second hand motor vehicles, four vehicle registration. numbers and a golf club corporate membership (the “Disposal™ as

follows:—

Date: 27 January 2006

Parties: . . .
Vendor PYI Management Group Limited, & wholly owned sebsidiary of the Company (the “Vendor”)
Purchaser ITC Management Grovp Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of ITC (the “Purchsser”}

Subjecl’nf disposal; The entire issued share capital and sharcholder’s loan of Darierian Limited and its two wholly-
owned subsidiaries, which together hold the following assets as their sole business-and assets:
L. Five second hand moter vehicles;

2, Four vehicle registration numbers' and

. 3. A golf club P hip in D Chins
Consideration: HK$3.5 million in total, payible in cash in full upon completion
Detailted breakd of -the iderdtion for the disposed assets arc as follows:
Allocated consideration
. n HKS$’million
Item . * Year of purchase . (approximatety)
1. Five second hard motor vehicles )
3. Beatey Arnage (Fed Labdel) 2000
b. Mercedes Benz S600L 2001
¢. Mcreedes Benz S600L 1996
@, Mercedes. Benz E240- Avantgarde® 2005
e. Mitsubishi Super Excesd 2001
. ’ Sub-total; 17
2. Four vehicle registration numbers . Various 15
3. Golf club corporate membership 2002 03
Total: 35
Note: Original ncquisition cosi wai y HK$0.6 millioa

Completion: Simyltancously upon signing of the Disposal Agreement, i.e. 27 January 2006

REASONS FOR AND BENEFITS OF THE DISPOSAL AGREEMENT

The consideration was negotisted between the Vendor and Purchasér on an arm’s length basis with reference to the net
book: value of the disposed assets &g at 31 December 2005 2s well as their comparable second hand value in macket if
available, 2nd no independent valuer had been engaged by the Group in this connection, Among the disposed assets; only
the second. hand motor vchicles had aveilable market value (which was obtained from independent second hand car dealers
in market} for comparisen purpoxc‘ A.r to the vehicle rchsrrmon numbets and club membership (which are not mmfeuble
in market on their own), the was wit £ to their ition costs as’ d by their
- respective ‘expected useful lives. .

Majority of the assets tnder the ‘Dispossl had been used by the ‘Group for a significant period of time as shown-above.
The Group no longer requires these nog-core assets fol\cwmg m urocus on port and infrastructurs business in China and
reform of the bosrd of Directors. The Directors (i ing the i ive Directors) consider that the prosal
being at a coasideration equivalent to the sssets' net ook value and comparable to the availsble second band value in
market, is on normal commercial terms, fair and reuonnble and in the intérests of the Company and its shareholders as
a whole. .

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND DISCLOSURE REQUXREMBNTS

- ITC, being an approximately 39.8% .controlling sharéholder of ‘the Company, -is a conuected person of the Company under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchangs of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules"). In addition, . -
ITC, being approximately 33.5% owned and controlled.by Dr. Chan Kwok Keung. Char}ex who i & non- executive Director,
is an associate of a connected person of the Company. The Disposal heref 8 I jon farthe
Company uoder the. Listing Rules,

As- the conud:nlmn under the Disposal Agreement represents.less than 2.5% of each of relevant ratios, the Company is
only subject to the repomng and lnnouncem:nl uquuemenu set out in'rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules and
is cxempt from the ind 1d. In other words, the Company is required 10 disclose
details of the Dnspusal»by way of, lhu \pIEss, nnnauncemem and to inctude mformahon in relation to the Disposal in the
next published annual report and stcounts of the Company:

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the business of development and investment in port and other infrastructure projects,
property investment, tressury investmeat sud, through its subsldury' construction and engincering, project management and

facilitics management.
The Purchaser iz an investment holding company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

As et the date of this aanouncement, the following are the Directors

Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ! Chairman (Independent Non-Executive)
Mr. Tom Ko Yuen Law : Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
‘Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles 1 Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest H Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr, Chan Shu Kia H Independent Non-Executive Directdy

By Order of the Board
PYF Corporation Limited
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 2 February 2006
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NOTICES N41

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no .responsibility for ihe contents of.this announcement,
whatsoever for any loss howspever arising Jrom or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the con

maku no representalion as.do its accuracy or completeness and upru:ly disclaims any habx!uy
tents of this announcement. .

This announcement appenu for informatien purposes anly and does not constitute an invitation- or, offer 10 atqutr( pwchau or. :ub;crlbe ,(qr any securities.

s

PYI Corporation lelted

{incorporated in Bermuda with limited Iiability)
(Stock code: 498)

ACQUISITION OF MINORITY INTEREST .
IN YANGKOU PORT PROJECT: S ' .

SHARE TRANSACTION

Port project,
ition is about HKS$167.8 million,

The consideration for the acqui
The acquisition constituies a share transaction for PY! for the pu!pase o! the Listing Rul:x

the local government,

On 1§ Apsil 2006, PYI's wholly-owned ‘subsidiary agreed to scquire the remaining 9.9% interest held by 3 minority sharcholder in another 90.1% owned. subsidiary holding the investment in the Yangkoo

which shall be satisfied by way. of 'allotment and issue of 68.5 million new PY] shares sl an issue price of HK52.45 per shuc.‘

Following completion of the acquisition, PYI's effective stake in the Yangkou Port p(OJCCK will be raised from 67. 6% 1o 75%, The rcmmmng 25% is hcld by & sm: owned enterprise owned by

The acquisition strengthens PYLD's further commitment towards its investments in port and .infrastructure business in the PRC and is in line with its corc business strategies. The increased stake will
offer PYD an opportunity to capture -additienst benefits that may.arise from the Yangkou Port project.
The issuance of aew PY shares to (he vendor will enadle PYI to align the imierests of -this steategic pariner ia the Yangkau Port project difectly with these of .PYI sharcholders

THE AGREEMENT -

Date:

It April 2006 . .

Parties:

Vendor: Steady Forth Limited,

Purchuser;  PY1 Yongkou Port Limited, » wholly-owned subsidiary af the Company

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all.reasonable enquiry;

save for a 29% shareholder of the Vendor who has been sppoinied -as director-to, the, PYI subsidiaries

in. relstion to the Yangkou Port project (including ‘Global Achiever),-the Vendor and.its ultimate

beneficizl owner are third parties independent of the Company and connecied persons’ (as defined in

the Listing Relcs) of the Company.

Assets to be acqulrtd.

(1) The Sale Shares, representing 9.9% of the issued sharé capml of Global Achxcv:r, and

{2) Sharchoider’s loan sdvanced by the Vendor to Glabal Achiever, which 43 af the date of nus
annpbuncement, -amounts 1o approximately HK$4.6 million.

Following completion of the Acquisition, PYI's effective stake in the Yangkou Port project will be

caised from 67.6% to 75%. The remainiog 25%. is held by s .ctace owaed eaterprise owned by the

local government.

Consideration: .
The consideration for the Acquisition is approximately HK$167.8 million, of which ‘the past for the

shareholder’s loan shall equal io its face value and the remaining is for the Sale -Shares. The
consideration shall be satisfied by way of allotment and issuc of the Consideration Shares al an issuc
price of HK$2.45 per Consideration Share.. The basis of determining the price per Consideration Share
is made with reference to the average, of the closing prices-of the Shares for.the 30 consecutive
trading days up (o and including L0 April 2006.

The issue price of the Consideration Shares.represents (i) s discount-of approximately 14.78% to

the closing price of HK$2.875 per Share as-‘quoted on the Stock Exchange on L1 April 2006, being:

the date of the Agreement; (i) s discount of approximately 5.11% over the average of the closing
prices of HK$2.582 per Share 8s quoted.on the Stock.Exchange for the 15 conseculive trading days
up to and including [0 April 2006; (iii) equivaient to the average of the closing’ grices of
approximately HK$2.45 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the 30-censecutive lndmg
days up to and including 10 April 2006: and (iv) a. premjum of approximately 40% to the di
consolidated net assel value of the PYI Group of HK3$1.75 per. Share ax at 30 Sepiember 2005. The
value of the Consideration Shares, based on the S-day closing price of HK$2.855 per Share up to
and including the date of this announcemént, amounted to npproumuely HK$195.6 million.

The Consideration Shares represent (i) approximately -4.96% ‘of the ‘existing issucd share capital of .

the- Company as af the date of the Agreement; and (ii) npprox.mucly 4.72% of the issued shAre
capital of the Company a3 enlarged by the. issee thercof.

The Consideration Shares will be issued under the general mandate granled 10.the Dircctors by the
Shareholders at the manual general meeting of PYI held on 8 “September 2005, The Consideration

Shares will rank pari passu with.all the existing Shnrex in all respects as at the date of ‘issue of

the Consideration Shares.

OF the 68.5. million Consideration Shases, 40 million Sharcs shall ke subject to a Tock-up period
of six months from the date of the Agreement, during which these Shares will be held in.the physical
costody of an escrow zgeat.and the Vendor shall not be entitled 1o dispose of or otherwise deal
with' them,

The consideration for the Acquisition was arrived 2t after arm’s lcnglh ncgoxunons between the ‘partics
with reference to' the underlying intrinsic value of the assets of the Yangkou Post project comprising

principally sboul 42 square Xilometsrs of land bank and the development rights for besths snd msn-

made island. Such land bank, without a deep ses port, was-valued by an-independent professional
propesty valuer at approximately HK$3,528 million as ac 31 March 2005, and s 9.9% sitributsble
value of sach fand bank is cquivalent to approximafcly HK$262 million.

Condilion precedent: .

Completion of the Agreement is conditional upon the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and
permission fo-deal in, the ‘Consideration Shares.
2006, then unless otherwise agreed in writing between the Vendor and the Purchaser, the Agrecment
shail lapse and be termintied’ and thereafier all rights, obligations and lizbilitics of all parties
hereunder shall cease ‘and determine and no party shall have any claim against the olhcr under the
Agreemenr except for antecedent breach.

Completion:

Completion of the Agrc:mrm shall take place 3 business days after the condition referred to above
has been satisfied or such other date as the parties may agree in writing.

The foilowing table shows the shareholding structure of the Company lmmcdulely betore and after

the Acquisition:
Be!are the Acquisition Alrer the Acquisition

{approx_%) (approx %)
Substantial Shareholders 28.95% 27.58%
Director L 0.36% - 0.82%
The Vendor 0.00% 4.72%
Public 70.19% 66.88%
Total: 100% N 100%- Ve 21
Notes:

L. As w the'dace of the announcement, PYD hus 1,381,293.910 Shares in issuc.

1. Upon issue and allotment of the Coniideration Shates, the :niu;ed issue share cuplul of PYI wul be
1,449,791,910 Shares,

There will not be any Board represcnunon to- PYI by the Vendor as a result of the Acquisition.

INFORMATION ON THE GLOBAL ACHIEVER GROUP

The Global Achiever Group is & 90.1% owned subsidiary of. PYI Yangkou Port Limitcd, which is

engaged in.the business of development and investment in port and other infrasjructure pm,cc:s for

If such condition cannot be fulfilled by 30 May -

. Dr. Chan' Kwok Kenng, Charles

the Yangkou Pert project, Upon completion-of the Acquisition, Globél Achiever will become & wholly-

owned sobsidiary “of the PYI Group.

REASONS FOR THE ACQUISITION
The. PY1 Group is' principally engsged in the business of development and investment in port and

‘other- infrastrocture projects, property- investment, ‘reasury investment and, through ils subsidiary,

consuu:uon and cngmeermg project management and facilitics management,

The Directors consider (hm the Acquisition: could further strengthen the Group’s commitment towards
its investments in port and infrastructore business in the PRC and are in line with the core business

strategies of the PYI Group. The iincreased stake will offer PYI an opportunity te :aplure addmonnl

benefits that may arise from the Ylngkou Port p!vjcc(.

As ‘the consi rof the A will. be satisfied by issusnce of the Consideration Shares,
theé A:qmsmon will’ also enable PYI o alngn the interests of a uralcglc partner in the Yangkou
Port project directly: with ‘those of PYI and. its- Shareholders.

The Agreement was negotiated on an arm’s length basis and was agreed on normal commercial terms
between the parties.. The Directors consider that the terms of the Agreement are fair and reasonable
s0 far as the Shareholders are concerned, and are in the interests of PY! and the Sharcholders os

s wholel N
GENERAL
The Acquis.
An spplication will be made to the Sleck Exchangc for the :listing of, and permission to decal in.
the Consxderanon Shares.

ion -copstitutes a' share Irarisaotion for the Company for.the purpose of the Listing Rules.

"DEFINITIONS

In 1his announcement, unless lhe context rcq\urn ‘otherwise, the following terms shall have the
following meanings:
ncquisilion .of the, Salé Shares And-shnraholder's loan advanced by the
Vendor to Globat.Achicver, which as at the date of this announcement,
. amounts 10 spproximately. HK$4.6 million pursuant to the Agreement

the sale and purchase ogreement daied 11 April 2006 entered into
between the Vendor and the Purchaser.in relation to the Acquisition

“Acquisition”

“Agreement”

the board of directors, of the Company

" a day (other than Saturday or Sunday) on which Ticensed banks in Hong
Kong are open for ordinary. business

. PY} Corporetion Limited, a company incorposated in Bermuda with
limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the ‘Stock Exchange .
68.5 million new Shares 1o be issued and allotted to lhe Vendor or its
nominee(s) to satisfy the consideration for the Acquisition

“Board”

“Busincss day”

"Compény” or “PYI”

“Consideration. Shares”
the direclprs'or the Compmy

Global Achiever Limited, & company incorpordted in the British Virgin
I1slands, which a5 at the date herzof is beneficially owned as to 90.1%
by tho Purchaszer and 9.9% by the Vendor

Global. Achiever and m subsnduugs. including the Yangkou' Port project

“Directors”
“Global. Achiever”

“Global Achiever Group”

- . subsidiaries

“PY1 Group* PYL and its subsidiasies .

“HK$" ’ Hong Kong ‘dollars, the lawful curreacy of. Hong Kong

" “Hong Kong" theCHong Kong: Specisl Administrative Regnon of the People’s Republic
) of Chins

“Listing Rules” the Rules Govemmg the’ I.rmng af S:curmcl on the Stack -Exchange
“Purchaser” PYI Yangkou Port Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

“Sale Shares” " 99 shares of USS1.00 each.in the.issued 'shore capital of Global Achiever,

representing 9.9% of the Igsued shares in the capital of Global Achiever
ordinary- share(s). of HK$0.10 cach in the issued share capital of the
Company

holder(s) of the Shares

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong- Limited

Ilendy Forth l.u-nned a company incorporated in xhe British Virgin
slands

“Si‘taré(i)"

“Sharcholder(s)" -
“Stock Exchange™
“Vendor”

By Order of the Board
PY1 Corporation Limited
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Cotnpany . Secreiary

Hong Kong; 11 April 2006

at the date of this  announcement, the composition of the Bosrd is as follows:
Chairman ‘(Independent Non-Execulive)
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kwok Shiu Keung, Emest : Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan Shu Kin _ s independent Non-Executive Direcior

As

Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph
Mr. Tom Ko Yuen Lau
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NOTICES B37

. 1o be issucd. by Hanny in respect of the GDI O

The Siock Exchange’of Hong Kong Limited iakes no responsibility for the tonients of this . makes no
a5 io its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any 1058 howscever. arising from of in relionce
upon the whole or any part of the conlenis of this cnnouncement.

s

PYI Corporation Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code! 498)

DECLARATION OF SPECIAL DIVIDEND
BY WAY OF-DISTRIBUTION OF THE VALUE IN GDI SHARES

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board approved on. 4 May 2006 the -declaration of a special dividend by way: of distribution of the value in GDI
Shares, in the form of either one of,. or’a combination of, the lwo.choices available under the GDI Offer, to be paid
on or around Monday, 26 June 2006 to the PYI Shnrehc]dcrs whosc names. appeu on the register of members of PYI
on Friday, 26  May 2006,

For every 500 PYI Shares held, a PYI Sharcholder will recéive value in 40 GD! Shases in the form of cither:
(i) 8 Honny Sharés plus HKS$14.4 in cash; or

(iiy 8 Hanny Bonds (2% S-year convembl’e bond of Ham\y with .face value of HK$15.0 cach).

PY]- Shareholders’ can” elect to accept any of the above choices or 'a combination of both.

Holders of less than 500 PYI Shares shall not be -entithed to receive the Distributed GDI Value. n-.addition, any PY]
Shares held in excess of 500 or its multiple shall be rounded down. and be disregarded for the purpose of computing
the entitlement. PYI shali retain the cash and Haony Shares or Hanoy Bonds attributable to such odd lots for its own
benefit.

The reégister of ‘members of PYI will be closed dum\g chncsday, 24 May 2006 to Friday, 26 May 2006, both dates
inclusive.

DISTRIBUTION OF VALUE DERIVED FROM CHINA STRATEGIC
Reference is made to the .2nnouncement of PYE Corporation Limited ("PYI") dated 17 June 2005, the annual report of PY1
dated 22 July 2005- for the year ended 31 March 2005 and the interim report of PYI dated 13 December 2005 for the
six months ended 30 September 2005 regarding’ PYI's:intention to make & possible distribution to -its shareholders (the “PYI
Shareholders™) “of the value derived from the divestment .of China-Strategic Holdings Limited (“Chino Strategic”). It was
stated that, .given'the requisite court approval for effecting the proposed capital rcorganization of China Strategic was yet
to be obtained by Ching Strategic, the board of dirsctors .of (PYI (the “Board”} did not conslder it appropriate to make
any decision regarding the distribution as that stage.
The direétors of PYI noted from the announcemeni of China Sun(:glc dated 2 May 2006 (1he -"CSH Announcement™) that,
among other things; the approval ‘of the court of .the capital reorganisation of Chima Strategic has been obtained. It was
stated: in the CSH Announcemenl that the group .reprgantsation of China Strategic involving the’ distribution in specie of
shares-(the “GD] Shares”) in. Group Dragon [nvestmentis Limited ("GDI") is expected to become effective on-or before 19
May 2006. As set out in the circular .of China Strategic dated 10 Sep 2005, upon of the group reorganisation
“of China Strategic, all-the subsidiaries of China Strategic carrying-on property development and investment holding. business
and investing in vessels for sand mining and all other associated companies of China Strategic carrying on.manufacturing
and marketing of tires and providing -package ‘tour, travel add other rélated services will bé grouped under GDI. Upon
of the group reor of China Strat PY1 will become intercsted in- 129,409,897 GDI Shares and Hanny
Hotdings Limited (“Hanny”) will make a voluntary offer 15 the shareholders of GDI (the “GDI Offer”) to acquire all the
GDI Shares, other than those then. owned or agreed to be.acquired by Well Orient Limited (a"wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hanny), its associates and ‘parties acting- m .concert with it (provided that the GDI" Offer will be exténded to PYI) on
the following basis: .
Qption 1:
For cvery five GDI Sharcs‘
Qptien 2;
For every five GDI' Shares ..

-.one share in, Hanny (each, a "Hanny Share”) plus HKS].S in cash

.one 2% ‘5-year convcrublc bond ‘issued by Hanny with face value of HK$15.0
(each, a- “Hnnny Bond”)
The Board notes from ‘the aphouncement dated 8 May 2006 usued by Hanny and Well Orient rhat shareholders of GDI
can either accept Option 1. or Option 2, or a combination of both, in respect of the GDI Offer. Deteils of the GDI Offer
were -set .ot in the nrcular issued by Hanny. dated 14 September 2005 and.will be: set out in' the composite offer and
response d {the "C ") in ‘relation: .to- lhe GDI1 Offer and the panying form of and,
transfer. to be issued :by Hnnny | )
The Board 'is pleased to.anpounce that.on 4. May 2006, it has re:olvr—d 10 ‘declnre a'special dividend to the PYI Sharcholders
by way of distribution of the value derived from its divestment in China Strategic,.i.c. the value in GD]. Shares (the
*Distributed GDI Value™) to'the PYI Shartholders whose names appear of the register of members of PYI on Friday, 26
Mzy 2006 (the “Distribution Scheme"). For every 500.shares of PYI (each, a-"PYL Share™) held, the PYL Sharcholders
will be entitled to-recejve -the” Distributed GDI Value atiributable-te 40 GDI Shares. Given the nature-of .the sccurities
“to be offered for the GDI Shares undes the GDI.Offer, the Board 'does not consider it appropriate or practicable to”rcalise
all the securities thatit may receive under the GDI Offer and ‘distribute the sales proceeds thereof to the PYI Shareholders.
" Based on the above and. thé terms of the GDI Offer, under the Distribution Schemie; for cvery 500 PYIL Shnres held, a
PYF Shateholder- will receive the value of 40. GDI Shares in the form of either:
i) 8 Hanny Shares plus HK$14.4 in cash;.or:
(ii) 8 Hanny Bonds:
The PY1 Shareholders can clect to accept one of .the abave thmces or a combination of both, |
PYI Shareholders should nate, that the GDI Offer is a pnuihlll!y only since according to the CSH Announcement,
the' conditions of the proup reorganisation of China-Ssrategic'bave not yet. been fulfilled, ‘Further announcement(s) will
“be made tovinform PYI Shareholders of the status of-the Distribution Scheme if_appropriate; PYI Shanholders and
“dnvestors are advised to exercise. ‘csution when dealing. PYT securities. .
.An clection” form is expected (o' be. d't5 the PYI Sharcholders shortly after Hmny !he C ite- D1
which, accérding to the CSH- Annouséement, is, ex’Pecled 1o be on or about 26 May 2006, A-copy of the Composite Document
fer will also be.sent to the PYD Sharcholders, The Composite Document
is being seni-to’ the.PYI Sharcholders for.information, .only’ so that they have further {nformatlon .on .the GDI Offer, and .
for the svoidance of dopbt- neither PYI nor any of irs' directors takes ‘any responsibility whatsoever for the.contents of
the Composite’ Document, which is to be issued by ‘Hanny and 110, holders of-the ‘GDI sharcs under the Hong Kong
Code on Takeovers 'and Mergera. -Any PYI Shareholder who ‘wishes to receive. the -Hanny Bonds in respect of hisfher ..
Distributed GDI' Value' need not. complete the: election. form.” Any PYI Sharcholder who wishes to.receive Hanny Shares plus
cash’ must complete :the “clection. form and réturn it.to -PYI's branch share .registrars in' Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited
at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, ‘28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, on or before a date 1o be notified to the PYIL
Sharcholders in the election form.
1f any PYI Sharcholders complete the clecuon form’ but do not specify his/her choice, then such PY] Sharcholders will
be deemed to have clected to receive the Distributed GDI"Value in the form’ of Hanny Bonds.
Under the -Distribution Scheme, holders of . less than 500 PYD Sharés shall not be entitled to. receive: the' Distributed GDI
Value. In addition, any PYZ Shalcs held in - excess of 500 or its multiple shall be rounded down and be disrogarded for
‘the. purpose ‘of. Since .the ative impracticalities and costs involved 'in distribiting the
Distributed GDI ‘Value lllnbulnblc (o such odd lots of PYI Shares may outweigh the related benefits, PYI shall retain the
cash and- Hanny Shares.or Hanny Bonds attributable to such odd lots for its own benefit. Taking into account all relevant
factors and that the. Distributed 'GDI Value attfibutable to such.odd lots of PY1 Shares is immaterial, the Board considers
the basis of the Dlsmbunon Scheme ‘as set out in this nnnouncemem (wmch is made as soon as practicable after the Board
meeting held on.4 May 2006) is: fair sad f ble to the .PYI' § I|ders as a whole.
The Distributed GDI Value is expected to paid on or abbut Monday, 26 June 2006, It is expected that the cheques for
cash entitlements or the relevant certificates for Haony Shares: or Hanny Bonds will be -posted to the PYI Shnreholders
to their registered “addresses ap their risk on -or’about Monday, 26 June 2006.
CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS OF PYI
The tegister: of members-of PYI will be closed.during the. period from Wednesday, '24 May 2006 to ‘Friday, 26 May 2006,
both dates inclusive,:during which period no transfer of PYI Share(s) will be effected. In order to qualify for the Distributed
GDI Value, all transfer. of PYI Share(s), accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) with the completed transfer form(s),
must be lodged with PYI’s share rcglslnn in Hong Kohg, Secretaries Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 2B Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hon; Keng, for l:gmunon not_later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 23 May 2006.

GENERAL

As at the date of this snnouncement, the compommn of the Board is as follows:
Dr. Chow Ming Kuen; Joseph. i Chairman (Independent Non-Executive}

Mr. Tom Ko Yuen Lau i . Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
Dr.. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles : - Non-Execulive Director

Mr. Kwok Shin Keung, Ernest i independent Non-Execurive Director

By Crder of the Board

* PY1 Corporation\Limited
. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
. Compény Secretary

Mr.. Chan’ Shu Kin :  Independent Non-Executive Director

Hong Kong, 8 May 2006
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The Stock Exchange of Hong )’ang Limited takes no responsibility for the contents aftl;f:

makes ng'rep

for any loss howsoever arising from or in refiance upon the. whole or any part of the contents of thir onnouncement.

/e

This appears for inf

PYI Corporatlon lelted

(Incorporatéd in Bermuda with limited liability)
{Stock Code: 498)

'DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION
ACQUISITION OF ASSETS RELATED TO

as o ifs arruracy or compleseness and expressiy disclaims any liability whatsoever

purposes nnly ond does not constituie an mwlalian or-offer 1o acquire, purchau or .wbxcnb: /ar any securitles. .

LIQUID BULK LOGISTICS BUSINESS.IN WUHAN, PRC
D.

AN
XSSUE OF CONVERTIBLE NOTE'

‘Financial Adviser
KPMG Corporate Finance Limited

lhird parties, to-acquire assets related to liquid bulk logistics business in Wuhan, PRC, including

On 12 May 2006, » PRC indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of PY] entered into an asset

LPG storage facilitjes, ferminal and jeity, filling stations and equipment.

tal consideration paysble by-PYT amounts to RMBA470 million (equivalent to about HK3$456 million), with RMB350 million in cash’ nnd RMB120 million by issue of a-3-year, zero caupon, HKS denoniinated convertible note

1 of Yl at a conversion price of HK$4.25 per shars, .

d to PYT

The ncqmsmon will (i) strengthen PY1's liquid bulk cargo handling capability; (ii) énable PYI to gain access to the oil and gas ]ogmh:: sector; and (ili) expand PYT's logistics network into mid-stream Yangtze,
1 as soon a8 practicable. .

foseabl

The acq itutes a di

of PYI under the Listing Rules. A circalar contsiniog further details of the ;

will be dj

THE ACQUISITION
Agreement date
12 May 2006

Parties

The Vendars: Wuban Minsheng and Wuban Jinweli, each & company

best of the Directors' knowledge, information and belief
having made all rcasonable enquiry, the Yendors and
their respective whimale beneficial owners are
Independent Third Partics.

Wuhan Minshéng's single largest sharcholder is Beijing

Xinhvua. Another PRC incorporated company, Wuhan: . -

Yangfan, owns 32% of Wuhan Minsheng and 90% of
Wuhan Jinwei,
Hubei Minsheng Liquefiéd Petroleum Gas Limited, an

established in the PRC with limited liability. To the

‘The congideration was sgreed after m-n's length negoxiniom between the
Vendors ahd the Purchaser by reference 1o the valuation of the Asssts by
an_independent valuer, Hu Bei Liantai Accounts Business Co, Ltd, of
about RMB494 million 23 shown'in its report dated 22 March 2006,

The cash portion of the consndemmn will be financed by internal resources
of the Group. However, the Group may also consider bank financing if
favorable terma can-be obtained,

Performance guarantee

Beijing Xinbus, the single fargest shireholder of Wuban Mmsheng baIdmx

drys ended 11 May 2006, being the last trading day immediately prior to
.the date of the Agreement; and (iii) a premium of approximately 142,86%
over'the unaudited net asset value per Share of HKS$1.75 a8 at 30 September

2005,
The initial conversion price of HK$4.25 was determined by the Grovp
and the Vendors on arm’s length basis with reference to the curtent market
price of the Shares and the duration of the Convertible Noje.

Conversion Shares -
Assuming 2 principal amount of HKS116.5 million and there is an

diate exercise in full of the <conversion right atachced (o the

40% of its registered cnpual has executed a per
“favour of the Purchaser in respect of the obhgmcns of tha Vendors undu

the Axreem:m ;
PYI has also executed 8 performance guarantee in favour of the Vendors
in'respect of the obligations of the Purchaser under the Agnemenl

Cnndhiom -nd completion,
will

The Purchases:
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of PYI established in

the PRC,

Assets to be acquired
A. The following items which are owned by Wuhan Mmshenx
(i) LPG storage facilities including 10 storage tanks of 2,000m? each,
tand vse rights, duildifigs, equipment and tools;
(i) LPG termina) and jetty (mcludjng ancillary facilitles and electrical
sudstation and equipment);

(iii) 13 LPG filling siations (nnc}udmg Iand pse rights, buildings, '

equipment :nd tools);

g to the payment lch:dnle as

Convertible Note at the initial conversion price of HK$4.25 by the holder
of thé Convertible Note, PYI will |:su= an Aggregal: of 27,411,764 new
C ion Shares, y (i) 1.87% of the existing
issued share capital or PYI; and (11) 1.34% of (he issued share capital of
PYI at enlarged by the silotment 2nd issue of the Conversion Shares, The
Conversion. Shares will be issucd pursuant to the general mandate granted
to the Directors by the Shareholders st the annual gedcsal meeting of PY]

" held on 8 Sep 2005

det.uled under the xecum; headed “Consid, " above. The A
iz aot conditional upoa approval for listing of the Shares that mAy be
issued upon conversion of the Convertible Note,

The Convertible Note .
The principal terma of-the Conyertible Note re summarised below:

Ths lasuer
PYI e

The Convertible Note holder ’

A Hong Kong company to be nominsted by the Vendors for taking up the

Note, which shall be an Indzpendem Third Party.

(iv) assety employed in its cnopzuuva arr
the'LPG cylinder business (including equipment and tools);

{v) 2LPG tank lxucks lnd other vehicles; and
(vi) all equi and office

are being used for the above operations,

One docking barge owned by Wuhan Jiawei ot the LPG terminal; and

C. Al intangible assets of Wuhan Minsheng required fn the operation of
the abave asscts and business, including trade names, models, business
logos aad signbosrds. .

Consideration

RMB420 million (cq\nnl;m 10 about HX$456.3 m)ﬂ‘an), whlch coasistz

of RMB350 million in’ cash and RMBI20 million by issue of the

Convestible Nole, shal) be p2id in-stages at follows:~

{i) RMBS0 million (equivalent to about HK$48.5 million) as deposit
within § business days of the date of the Agreement;

RMBS7.5 million (eguivalent to about HX$55.8 million) within 3
business days of completion of transfer to the Purcbaser of those of
the Assets which are now pledged to Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China, free from such pledge and oblaining the ‘Building

(i)

Ownership Certificates and other relevant documentation from

governmenial land authorities;

RMB118.8 million (equivaient to about HK$115.3 million) on
completion of wransfer to the Purcheser of those of the Assets which
arg now pledged to Chini Construction Bank, free from such pledge;

(iiiy

(iv) RMB30 million {equivalent to about HK$29.1 million) within 3.

notification for payment of taxes in relation to.the transfes of lha
land use rights for the LPG storage faciliticy;

(v). RMB143.7 million (equivalent fo about HK$139,5 million) less the

referred to in this item (v)) within 3 business days of the Purchaser
having obtained all [icences and permits required for the Assels; and

{vi) RMB120 million by way of the issue of the Canvertible Note within
15 business days of the Purchaser either being transferred all rights
under all Jeases in sespect of the LPG filling ststions with the consent
of the landlords and/or having directly entered.into leases with such
Jandlords, In the event thas the listing approval for the Copversion
Shares is not granted by the Stock Exchange, xh= Purchayer shall

pay an equ:va)cm amouvnt in cash.

which: -

* principal amouat outstanding under the Convertible Note, the. p

business days of receipt from the relevant PRC authority of written -

Deposit (which shall now be applied as part payment of amount

Pripcipai amount
The HK$ equivalent of RMBI2( miliion on lhc date of issue. Applying
the exchange rate of RMBI.03 to HK$1.00, it will be about HKSHG 5
mitlien,

: Currency Adjustment

In the event ihat, on the date PYI i required to mnka Ppayment of ths

The market value of the Conversion Shares (converted at the initial
copversion pncc of HK$4.25) will be about HK$89.1 million based on
the closing price of HK$3.25 per Share on 12 May 2006, b:mg the date
of the Agreement and this Announcement.

. Ranking

The Conversion Shares, when allotted and issued, will rank pari passu in
all respects with all existing Shares in issue at the date of the conversion
notice:

Status of the Canvrrnbl: Note -
“The Convertible Note constitutes 8 direct, g:ner:l unconditional and
unsecured obdligation of PYI and rank pari passu with eil other present

4iid futore unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of PY1.

Transferability
The Conventible Nots is frecly transferable but may not be transferred to

2 connected person of PYI without ihe prior written consent of PY) 2ad
subject to the Listing Rules. PYI will notify the Stock Exchange if the
Note is 112 10 persons of PY).

exchangé pate falls below the exchange rate between HKS and RMB

dopted for detezmining the principal amount in HKS on-the dats of issue,
PYI 3hall psy the hoider the :honrnl (m:ludmg that on the premivm

Ppayable) by fe tothe p rae,

Inserast
The Convertible Note will not bear my interest,

Mmu.m)

The third anniversary of the due of issue of Lhe Convgmble Note. .
Redemption .

Unless previ 1ed and d PYT shall redeem the

Convertible Nate™ on the Maturity Dite as the redemption amount which fs
114.167% of the principal amount of the Convertible Note outstanding.
The effective yield to maturity of the Convertible Naxe is approximately
4.52% per mnum. ,

Conversion

The holder may convert tha whnle of any part of the pnncipal amount of
the Convertibla Note into new Shares at the then prevailing conversion
Pprice, ob any business day commencing from the 15th day after the data
of issue of the Convertible Note up to and intluding the date which is 15
days priot to the Mmmry Date.

Conversion pr::r

The conversion pnu s HX$4.25 pér Shars lubju:: 1o the notmd agti-
dﬂuuon sdjustments, including: .

»(i) sbuevcenmndnlon or subdivision;

i :npix;iiuxion of profits or yeserves;

(iit) capitat distribution; or X
(@iv) rights iasue or a grant of options or warrants, ct
The Initial conversion price of HK$4.25 per Share represénts (i) # promivm
of approximately 30.77% over the closing price of HK$3.25 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchmge on 12 May 2006, being the date’of this
announcement; (i) » premium of wpproximately 29.57% over the average
closing price of approximately HK$3.28 per Share for the lass five trading

Vor!ru Rights
The Convertible Note does not donfer any voting rights at any meetings

of PYI.

Listing -

No application will be made for the listing of the Ceonvertible Note.
Application will be made to the Listing Commiltee of the Stock Exchange
for mc h.vung of, and permission 10 dea) in, the Conversion Shues

PY1 1hur¢hold.lng structure
The following table shows the shatebolding structurs of PY! immediately

before.and after the conversion of the Convertible Note in full assuming
conversion is made at the imitial conversion price of BK$4.25 per

" Convertion Share bassd on the existing Shares in issue:"

- Alter conversion

- Before conversion-
of the Convertible

! of the Convertible

i Note In full Note in full

(spproximate %)  (spproximale %)

Substantial shareboldér 27.34 26384
Directors .a.s0 0.88

. The Cenvertible Note holder 0 1.84
Public i 71.76 70.44

! A 100 100

As at the date of thejannooncement, PY1 has 1,462,363,910 Shares in
issue. Assuming » pn'néi)all amount of HK$116.5 million of the Convertible
Note and x conversion price of HK$4,25 per Conversion Share, 27,411,764
new Conversion Shares may fall to be issued upon conversion of the
Convertible Note in flil. Seve for share options over 74,422,000 Shares
1% pumun! to PYI's share option-scheme, PY1 has

granted and outstandit

no f or any rights convertible into the
Shases, ! .

REASONS FOR AND BENEFITS OF THE ACQUISITION

The Group Is principally engaged in the business of development and
investmeot in pors.and other infrastructure projects, propersty investment,

T
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" ireasary tpvesiment and, through its ¢ubsidiiry, construdtion and engifecring,

- project wod facilities mariagement L .

The Directors consider that the Acquisition, w

cargs handling ¢ ility which complements its dry dbulk

gaining access. to the’ oil and gas legistics sector-in Centrak
| o i 4 shi

it] étrengihen PYI'. Hauid bulk -
cargo expertise. By
China, the Group't
ping 0 £ network along the
be-isinforced. Together with’its ‘existing port ‘and -
the Acquisition will generate & synergy'for |3
ogistics chiin, both upstréam’ and

" 'Yanguze River-will
infrastructure network ip Nantong,
the Group by doveloping 1 sea-river |
downstream of the Yangtze River. . ] i .
The Agreement was Degotiated on afi-afm's length basis and was agrecd on
sormal commercial terms betwegn ths:parties. The Directors consider. tht the
terms of the Acquisition are fair apd redsonadle and-irl the interest of PYT and
ifs sharcholdery'as » whole, . o
LISTING RULES REQUIREMENTS DRI ;
As the pescafitige ratio in respect of the cnsideration to be-pald by the Group . *
_tor the Acgiisition exceed’ 5% but ia'leas than 25% of the applicable five tests )

o) un/w‘chgpm 14 of the-Listing Rul¢s; the acy a I !
. trinsaction-of PY} under the Listing Rules.-A ireular containing further detaila_.
of the Acquisition will be disp d in aceor with the Listing Rules.
DEFINITIONS, . = = . " e o
. ~Acquisition” [ the acquisition of the Adsets. pursuadit to the
Agreement <., e T
whgregmen? T the agieemedt dated. 12 May 2006 entered into |
AT - betwegn the Purchaser 'and the Vendors id relation ;
SERRERIG . io the-Acquisition : . :
. “Assets” . i . the .assets comprised in the Acquisition 3s |
. . " described in the paragraph headed “Assets to be
s acquifed” above © T - N h
' AL W W R - (Bieijing Xinkive Industry | ‘
3 i d.entity
B
=

& : Corp.*), ad P

. R .established fnithe PRC “ .o

| “comneeted person®” L, (he méaning ascribed to it onder the Listing Rule

. *Canvertible Note™ Lthe! 2er6 cOUPC Lyeir-convertible -fote o &

o S, ptincipal amount defiominated in HKS o
B - : . issued by PYT for:payment.of the corisid
SRR . of RMB12) millioh under e Agfecme

“uConversion SHATE(sY" . Share(1)that may b is
B w7 the Co gxii{: Nete o -
- the deppsit movey of RMBS0 million (equivalesi

'“bew:iz” ¢
e . “to atout HK348.5 ol ion) to-Be paid as part o
A 5 sihe considgrnx}ph_' p e
“Director(s)”™ . thedirettors of PYI - ;
#Group" - bsig PR d
’ “HKS;"“ ‘Houg Kbng &o}lus,‘ b cy of H&n‘ y
o o Kong ‘Special AdmiRistrative Region of the PRE
ndependeat Thisd Racty” - aparty which, 1o ‘the best of the Diéctos’
T o knowledge, information nnd}'beli:f’hl‘vh\;'mnd
. o

all rénsonsble enquiry, is & third pagty Indel
F-and THe conriected persdns of FYT

e Eichange .
. liquefiéd petrolesm gas . . X
BHCR A 2 A B P T (bl Minsheng
Liquéfied.Pétrolenm Gas, Limited®), & company. -
incorporated ih the PRC &nd anvindifect whelly «
;owned sybsidianycof PYI . e y .
Bt T e

o NI.’P'(;.:'

of issue of the, _.

“PRC™
LUPTIT
. “RMB”
“Shace(s)*

" Thi $tick Biehings of Hong Kong Limited

ERAREERACEARAT (Wab

Minihéng Liquéfied Pétroleum Gas' Compiny

Limiled*), b compary it orporated in the’PRQ .

with ligited Jiability add’an Independent THir

Py S
R AR AR A R (Wb

. - Liquefied Ous Shipping Company Limited®), 8-

L .0 c " cémpany lbcorporated in the PRC with liatited

: liability and a2 Indephdens Third Party’ :

. ﬂﬂ&ﬂﬂﬂ!ﬂ}!%‘{lé} £, (Woban Yangfan '
Economic Developmest Limited®), s company :
incorporated in the PRC with Iisited liability and
an Independent Third Pasty- P
Piuhan Minsheng ead Wuhan Jinwei

. “Stock Exchange” .
~Wulian Mifshéng"

- - “Wuhan Jinwdi”

“Wuban' Yanglen”

R “Vendors” .

*English transliterasion jér,[&:r'ug;{icarian Ppurpose o R

; unless dtherwize spéciftid, the conversiop
q/RMHl‘.DJ-HKJl..OO’. L

- o . . By Order.of Lo

B - . - PYT Corporation Limited !

" Wong Lal'Kin; Elsa R

Compény Secresary ™

For'ibe purpose of this aRnquncement,
\of RMB inio-HKS is based on the exchange, rate

- Hong Kong, 12 May 2006
As it the dato $f this apnouncemen
Dr. Chow MingKuen, Joseph
MraLav Ko Yuen, Tom ;.

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Chirles’
Mr. Kwok Shic Keung, Ernest |
Mr: Chin Shu Kin .

. the coimposition of the Board'is as follows:
‘Chatrman (Indépendent Non-Execitive)
Deputy Chalrman.and Manuging Director*

+ Non-Executive Director

: Independent Non-Execiilive Director Lo

.+ Independent Non-Executive Director .
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQURES YOURIMMEDIATE ATTENTION

SRy zoos>>

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this cucular or as to tk/a /wn to be taken, you should
consult your stockbroker or other registered dealer in Sy 1tles bank&yy nager solicitor, professional
accountant or other professional adviser. \g\/

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in PYI CorporatigA’Limited (the “Company”), you should
at once hand this circular, together with the enclosed form of proxy, to the purchaser or the transferee or
to the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or the transfer was effected for transmission
to the purchaser or the transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited take
no responsibility for the contents of this circular, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon
the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

el

PYI Corporation Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 498)

MAJOR TRANSACTION
PROPOSED DISPOSAL OF PAUL Y. CENTRE

A notice convening a special general meeting (“SGM”) of the Company to be held at Harcourt Room, 1/F
Hong Kong Club, 1 Jackson Road, Central, Hong Kong, on Monday, 16 January 2006 at 4:30 p.m. is set
out on pages 80 to 81 of this circular. A proxy form is also enclosed. Whether or not you intend to attend
and vote at the SGM, please complete and return the enclosed proxy form in accordance with the
instructions printed thereon to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 31st Floor,
Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong as-soon as possible and in any event
not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding of the SGM or any adjournment thereof.
Completion and return of the proxy form will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the
SGM or any adjourned meeting should you so wish.

23 December 2005
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, the following expressions have the meanings set out below unless the context

requires otherwise.:
“associate”

“*Announcement”

“Board”

“Business Day”

“Capital Strategic”

“Company” or “PYI”

“Completion”

“Completion Date”

23

“Completion Statement

“connected person(s)”

“Consideration”

“Cycle7?
“Director(s)”

“Disposal”

“Group”

“Gunnell”

“HIBOR”

“HK$”

the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

the announcement dated 24 November 2005 made by the Company
in relation to, inter alia, the Disposal

the board of Directors

a day on which banks are open for business in Hong Kong to the
general public for business other than a Saturday, Sunday and any
day on which a tropical cyclone warning No. 8 or above is hoisted
or remains hoisted between 9:00 a.m. and 12:00 noon and is not
lowered at or before 12:00 noon or on which a “black” rainstorm
warning signal is hoisted or remains in effect between 9:00 a.m.
and 12:00 noon and is not discontinued at or before 12:00 noon

Capital Strategic Investment Limited, a company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and the shares of which are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange

PYI Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and the shares of which are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange

completion of the sale and purchase of the Sale Share and the
assignment of the Remaining Shareholder Loan in accordance with
the terms of the S&P Agreement

the fifth Business Day following satisfaction or waiver of the
conditions precedent of the S&P Agreement, or such other date as
the Seller and the Purchaser may agree or to which Completion is
postponed in accordance with the S&P Agreement

a completion statement prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, to be agreed between the Seller
and the Purchaser on or before the Completion Date

the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

the consideration to be paid by the Purchaser to the Seller for the
Sale Share and the Remaining Shareholder Loan, which shall be
HK$663 million subject to issuance of the Promissory Note and
adjustments by reference to the Net Current Asset Value

Cycle Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability

director(s) of the Company

the proposed disposal of the Sale Share and the Remaining
Shareholder Loan by the Seller to the Purchaser pursuant to the
S&P Agreement

the Company and its subsidiaries

Gunnell Properties Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability and registered as an oversea
company under Part XI of the Companies Ordinance (Cap 32 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)

Hong Kong Inter Bank Offer Rate

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
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“Hong Kong”

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

“ITC”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Lehman Brothers”

“Letting Agreements”

“Linkport”

“Linkport Group”
“Listing Rules”
“Longstop Date”

“Model Code”

“Net Current Asset Value”

“Net Rental”

“Paul Y. Engineering”

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

person(s) who or company(ies) which, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable
enquiry, is/are third parties independent of the Company and its
connected persons

ITC Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange, and beneficially owned approximately 39.8% of the
Company as at the Latest Practicable Date

20 December 2005, being the latest practicable date prior to the
printing of this circular for ascertaining certain information
contained herein

a special purpose vehicle established by Lehman Brothers Holdings
Inc., a global investment bank listed on the New York Stock
Exchange

any lettings, tenancies, leases or licences in respect of the Property

Linkport Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability and the holding company of
Cycle and Gunnell

Linkport, Cycle and Gunnell

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange

24 February 2006 or such later date as the Seller and the Purchaser
may agree in writing

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

the aggregate of rental receivables in respect of the Property owing
to a member of the Linkport Group which are, as at the Completion
Date, less than 90 days outstanding, prepayments to utility
companies and/or in respect of insurance premium, government
rent and rates for the Property made by a member of the Linkport
Group as at the Completion Date and all cash at bank owned by
each member of the Linkport Group as at the Completion Date
less the aggregate of all liabilities and provisions of Linkport and
the Subsidiaries (including, without limitation, rental deposits held
by the Subsidiaries in respect of the Tenancies) as at the
Completion Date (but excluding the Shareholder Loan, any amount
due to the mortgagee of the Property and deferred tax liabilities),
in each case, as shown in the Completion Statement

the total amount of all rentals, licence fees and any other money
payable by any lessees, tenants, licensees or occupiers to the
Subsidiaries as landlord, licensor or otherwise under the Letting
Agreements, exclusive of any rates, government rents, management
or maintenance fees and other charges or outgoings, for the whole
term of the Letting Agreements

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange, and a 64.8% owned
subsidiary of the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date
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“PRC”

“Promissory Note”

“Property”

“Purchaser”

3

“Remaining Shareholder Loan’

“Rental Guarantee”

“Sale Share”

“Seller”

“Senior Loan”

“Senior Financier”

“Senior Financing Documents”

“SFO”

“SGMH

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Shareholder Loan”

“Stock Exchange”

the People’s Republic of China

the promissory note of a face value of HK$117 million to be
issued by the Subsidiaries to the Seller on Completion

all that piece or parcel of ground registered in the Land Registry
as Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 734 together with the messuages
and buildings thereon now known as Paul Y. Centre, No. 51 Hung
To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Gain Resources Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and effectively owned as to 50% by Lehman
Brothers, as to 25% by Capital Strategic and as to 25% by Paul Y.
Engineering

the balance of the Shareholder Loan immediately before
Completion less HK$117 million (to be settled by the Promissory
Note)

the rental guarantee to be entered into by the Seller in favour of
the Subsidiaries and the Purchaser upon Completion under which
the Seller gnarantees the rental income of the Property and is to
receive a share in certain excess rental

1 share of US$1.00 in the issued share capital of Linkport,
representing the entire issued share capital of Linkport

PYI Properties Group Limited (formerly known as Paul Y.
Properties Group Limited), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability and wholly-owned by the
Company

the loan not exceeding HK$546 million to be arranged by the
Purchaser to finance the acquisition by the Purchaser under the
S&P Agreement and from time to time and for the time being
outstanding

the lender of the Senior Loan, who, as at the Latest Practicable
Date, was intended to be Lehman Brothers Pan Asian Investments
Limited or any of its affiliates

the loan agreement and/or facility letter in relation to the Senior
Loan

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

the special general meeting of the Company to be convened to
approve the S&P Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder

existing ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company

holder(s) of the Share(s)

the loan owing by the Company and/or the Subsidiaries to the
Seller on Completion, the outstanding amount of which as at the
Latest Practicable Date was approximately HK$405 million

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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“Subsidiaries”

“S&P Agreement”

“Tenancies”

“Valuer”

AL

Cycle and Gunnell

the conditional agreement dated 23 November 2005 entered into
between the Seller and the Purchaser in relation to the Disposal

the tenancies and, as the context may permit or require, any one
or more of such tenancies and such other tenancies with a term
(including any option to renew) not exceeding 3 years and at
prevailing market rent as the Subsidiaries may enter into after the
date of the S&P Agreement in accordance with the terms thereof

RHL Appraisal Ltd., an independent professional valuer

per cent
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el

PYI Corporation Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 498)

Independent Non-executive Directors: Registered office:
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph OBE, JP (Chairman) Clarendon House
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 2 Church Street
Chan Shu Kin Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
Executive Director:
Tom Ko Yuen Lau (Deputy Chairman & Managing Director) Principal place of
business in Hong Kong:
Non-executive Director: 31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles 51 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong
Kowloon
Hong Kong

23 December 2005
To the Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam,

MAJOR TRANSACTION
PROPOSED DISPOSAL OF PAUL Y. CENTRE

INTRODUCTION

By the Announcement the Board announced that on 23 November 2005, PYI entered into a
conditional agreement for the disposal of its 100% interest in Paul Y. Centre (through disposing 100% of
the subsidiaries owning Paul Y. Centre) at an agreed gross value of HK$780 million. The Disposal
constitutes a major transaction of PYI and is subject to Shareholders’ approval at a special general
meeting to be convened. The purpose of this circular is to provide you with details of the Disposal and to
give you notice of the SGM.

THE S&P AGREEMENT
Date

23 November 2005
Parties

Seller: PYTI Properties Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Purchaser: Gain Resources Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
owned as to 50% by Lehman Brothers and as to 50% by a joint venture owned by
Capital Strategic and Paul Y. Engineering on a 50:50 basis, which to the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, is an investment holding company.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all
reasonable enquiries, save and except for the fact that Paul Y. Engineering holds an
indirect, effective 25% interest in the Purchaser and ITC holds approximately 8.4%
interest in Capital Strategic, each of the Purchaser, its ultimate shareholders (being
Lehman Brothers and Capital Strategic) and their respective associates are Independent
Third Parties.

—-5-
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Assets to be disposed

1) The Sale Share, being 1 share of US$1.00 each in the capital of Linkport, representing the
entire issued share capital of Linkport; and

(ii)  the Remaining Shareholder Loan, being all the shareholder’s loan due by Linkport and/or
the Subsidiaries to the Seller on Completion, other than the principal in the aggregate amount
of HK$117 million due by the Subsidiaries which will be settled by the issue of the Promissory
Note. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Shareholder Loan amounted to approximately
HK$405 million.

The Consideration

The aggregate consideration for the Sale Share and the Remaining Shareholder Loan shall be
HK$663 million, to be settled by cash, subject to adjustments by reference to the Net Current Asset Value
and issuance of the Promissory Note as described below. The Consideration was arrived at after arm’s
length negotiation between the Seller and the Purchaser and represents an agreed value of the Property at
HK$780 million less a deferred payment of HK$117 million to be settled by the Promissory Note. The
agreed value of the Property is derived from a yield rate of approximately 6.28% based on the rental
income of the Property of approximately HK$49 million for the year ended 31 March 2005. The rental
income of the Property for the year ended 31 March 2004 was approximately HK$48 million and based on
such rental income, the yield rate would be approximately 6.15%.

The Consideration is subject to the following adjustments upon agreement or determination of the
Completion Statement:

(a) there shall be added to the Consideration the amount (if any) by which the Net Current Asset
Value is more than nil; and

(b) there shall be deducted from the Consideration the amount (if any) by which the Net Current
Asset Value is less than nil.

The Consideration is payable by the Purchaser to the Seller in the following manner:

(1) a deposit of HK$78 million has been paid by the Purchaser to the Seller’s solicitors as
escrow agent upon signing of the S&P Agreement;

(ii)  the balance of HK$585 million (subject to adjustment) shall be payable on Completion in
cash.

Conditions precedent
Completion shall be conditional upon the following conditions being satisfied or waived:

(a)  the passing by the Shareholders of resolutions necessary for the approval of the transactions
contemplated by the S&P Agreement on or before the Longstop Date;

(b)  the obtaining of all approvals required by and the compliance of all the requirements imposed
by the Stock Exchange and the Securities and Futures Commission for implementation and
execution of the transaction contemplated by the S&P Agreement under the Listing Rules by
the Company and all the relevant parties (including Paul Y. Engineering, if required) on or
before the Longstop Date;

() the Seller having proved that the Subsidiaries have a good and marketable title to the Property
(in accordance with the provisions of section 13 of the Conveyancing and Property Ordinance)
on or before the Longstop Date;

(d)  the obtaining of all approvals (including shareholders’ approval) required by and the
compliance of all the requirements imposed by the Stock Exchange under the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Commission or requirements imposed by any other stock
exchange or regulatory body to which any direct or indirect shareholders of the Purchaser
are subject for implementation and execution of the transaction contemplated by the S&P
Agreement by the Purchaser on or before the Longstop Date; and
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(e)  the investment committee of Lehman Brothers giving its written approval to the transaction
contemplated by the S&P Agreement on or before 16 December 2005.

The Purchaser may at any time in writing waive the conditions (c), (d) and/or (e) and the Seller
may waive the condition (b). Neither the Purchaser nor the Seller may waive condition (a).

If any of the conditions (a) to (d) (which has not previously been waived by the Purchaser or, as
the case may be, the Seller) has not been satisfied on or before 5 p.m. on the Longstop Date then the
Purchaser or, as the case may be, the Seller may at its option (but without prejudice to any other right or
remedy they may have) by notice to the other party:

(a)  postpone the date by which the conditions should have been satisfied or waived to a later
date (being a Business Day) falling not more than 10 Business Days after the Longstop
Date; or

(b)  notwithstanding any postponement granted by the other party under paragraph (a), terminate
the S&P Agreement.

If condition (e) has not been satisfied on or before 16 December 2005 (or such other date as the
parties may agree in writing), then the S&P Agreement will terminate. Condition (e) has been satisfied on
21 November 2005.

Completion

Subject to the satisfaction (or, as the case may be, waiver) of the conditions referred to above,
Completion shall take place on the Completion Date.

THE PROMISSORY NOTE

It is a term of the Disposal that the Seller accepts a deferred payment of part of the agreed gross
value of the Property in the sum of HK$117 million, being an amount now owing by the Subsidiaries to
the Seller. On Completion, the Subsidiaries shall execute in favour of the Seller the Promissory Note
whereby the Subsidiaries will jointly and severally promise to repay to the Seller the said sum of HK$117
million in accordance with the terms and conditions thereof.

Principal terms of the Promissory Note are as follows:
Principal sum: HK$117 million

Maturity Date: One lump-sum payment on a date falling 36 months of the date of issue of the
Promissory Note (“Repayment Date”)

The Subsidiaries may by notice in writing to the Seller given no later than one
month prior to the Repayment Date extend the date for repayment of the principal
sum to a date falling 48 months of the date of issue of the Promissory Note
provided that the Subsidiaries shall pay to the Seiler a fee equivalent to 0.5%
of the principal sum (or such higher amount as is applicable to the Senior
Loan) for such extension.

The Subsidiaries may by notice in writing to the Seller further extend the date
for repayment of the principal sum to a date falling 60 months of the date of
issue of the Promissory Note provided that the Subsidiaries shall pay to the
Seller a further fee equivalent to 1% of the principal sum (or such higher
amount as is applicable to the Senior Loan).

Interest: 0.75% above HIBOR, payable quarterly in arrears
Security: the Promissory Note will be secured by the following:

(i) the joint and several guarantee to be executed by Linkport and the
Purchaser;

(1)  the second share mortgage in respect of the shares in Linkport and the
second assignment of shareholder’s loans due by Linkport to be executed
by the Purchaser (subject only to a first share mortgage and first
assignment in favour of the Senior Financier);

B
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(ii1) the second share mortgage in respect of the shares in the Subsidiaries
and the second assignment of shareholder’s loans due by the Subsidiaries
to be executed by Linkport (subject only to a first share mortgage and
first assignment in favour of the Senior Financier); and

(iv) the subordination agreement to be executed by each of the Purchaser,
Linkport and the Subsidiaries

Other terms: (a) all amounts payable under the Promissory Note will become immediately
due and payable if, inter alia:

(i) the Purchaser ceases to be wholly and beneficially owned by its
current ultimate shareholders or any one or more of them or if
there shall be any change in immediate beneficial ownership of
the Subsidiaries or Linkport; or

(ii)  at any time after 15 months from the date of the Promissory Note,
the rental income in respect of the Property for any consecutive 6
months period falls below 110% of the aggregate interest and other
expenses payable under the Senior Financing Documents and the
Promissory Note over the corresponding period and is not corrected
or remedied within 5 Business Days.

(b)  the Subsidiaries shall not dispose the Property unless the balance of the
sale proceeds after repayment of the Senior Loan and interest thereon
shall be sufficient to repay the outstanding sums due under the Promissory
Note.

The Directors, having considered all the terms of the Disposal and all other relevant factors,
including the market conditions and probable fluctuations in property prices, are of the view that as a
matter of commercial reality, the terms of the Disposal are fair and reasonable. The Directors therefore
believe that the terms of the Promissory Note, being part and parcel of the Disposal, are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

THE RENTAL GUARANTEE

It is a term of the Disposal that the Seller provides a rental guarantee in respect of the Property.
The Directors consider that it is not unusual for a seller of a commercial property to provide rental
guarantee to a purchaser. On Completion, the Seller shall enter into the Rental Guarantee in favour of the
Subsidiaries and the Purchaser, pursuant to which the Seller shall (i) guarantee that the Net Rental for
each of the three years commencing from the Completion Date (“Guaranteed Period”) shall not be less
than HK$48 million; (ii) pay to the Subsidiaries as owners the usual monthly management fees (excluding
any air-conditioning charges attributable to such part or parts of the Vacant Units (as defined below) in
respect of which the Subsidiaries are capable of suspending the supply of air-conditioning), Government
rent and rates payable in respect of any lettable parts of the Property not subject to the Letting Agreements
and becoming vacant or unoccupied for more than 14 days within the Guaranteed Period (“Vacant Units™).
Under the terms of the Rental Guarantee, the Seller shall in return be entitled to receive 30% of the
amount which the Net Rental for each of the three years of the Guaranteed Period actually received
exceeds HK$48 million. The Rental Guarantee shall be cancelled and of no further force and effect upon
any disposal of the Property or any part thereof by the Subsidiaries or their mortgagee(s), except where
the Seller has in writing agreed to such disposal.

As disclosed in the Circular, the agreed value of the Property was derived from a yield rate of
approximately 6.28% based on the rental income of the Property of approximately HK$49 million for the
year ended 31 March 2005. The Directors believe that, based on the rental income of the Property in the
previous financial years, the rental income guaranteed under the Rental Guarantee is achievable. Further,
under the Rental Guarantee, the Seller shall in return be entitled to receive 30% of the excess of the
rental income guaranteed. Having considered all the terms of the Rental Guarantee, including the Group’s
possible gain and potential liability involved, and they being part and parcel of the Disposal and all other
relevant factors, including the market conditions and probable fluctuations in property prices, the Directors
believe that the terms of the Rental Guarantee, being part and parcel of the Disposal, are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

INFORMATION OF THE SELLER AND THE LINKPORT GROUP

The Seller, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and is principally engaged in investment holding. Linkport is a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, which in turn holds the entire issued share capital of and in Gunnell and all the
issued voting shares of and in Cycle.
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Cycle is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and Gunnell is a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and registered as an oversea company under Part XI of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Cycle and Gunnell are the legal and beneficial owners as tenants-in-
common of the Property.

The Property has a total gross floor area of approximately 377,000 square feet and is a 29-storey
industrial/office building including 6-storey car parking floors. RHL Appraisal Ltd., an independent valuer,
has valued the Property at HK$772 million as at 15 November 2005. The occupancy rate of the Property
is approximately 94% for the year ended 31 March 2004 and 97% for the year ended 31 March 2005. For
further details, please refer to the valuation report of RHL Appraisal Ltd. as set out in Appendix II.

The unaudited consolidated net profits before and after taxation of the Linkport Group for the year
ended 31 March 2005 were both approximately HK$3 million, and the unaudited consolidated net profits
before and after taxation of the Linkport Group for the year ended 31 March 2004 were approximately
HK$4 million and HK$3 million respectively.

INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in the business of the development and investment in port and
other infrastructure projects, property investment, treasury investment and, through its subsidiary, Paul Y.
Engineering, building construction, civil engineering, project management and facilities management.

FINANCIAL EFFECT OF THE DISPOSAL

The Group would expect to have a gain on the Disposal of approximately HK$123 million (of
which approximately HK$80 million (net of deferred taxation) arising from the revaluation of the Property
as at 30 September 2005 has been taken into account in the unaudited consolidated income statement of
the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2005) based on the unaudited consolidated net asset
value of Linkport (without taking into account bank mortgage loans and the Shareholder Loan) of
approximately HK$638 million as at 31 March 2005 and after expenses of approximately HK$7 million.

REASONS FOR THE DISPOSAL AND PROCEEDS FROM THE DISPOSAL

The Disposal is in line with the Group’s business strategy to focus on port and infrastructure
development in the PRC. The Company considers it an optimal time now to raise financial resources to
support its alternative investment opportunities in the port and infrastructure business in the PRC. It also
represents a good opportunity for the Company to realize its investment at a reasonable price. The net
proceeds from the Disposal will be used for future port and infrastructure investment of the Group.

The terms of the S&P Agreement and the transactions contemplated therein (including the deferred
payment by way of the Promissory Note and the entering into of the Rental Guarantee) were arrived at
after arm’s length negotiations between the Seller and the Purchaser and on normal commercial terms.
The Directors, having considered all the terms of the Disposal and all other relevant factors, including the
market conditions and probable fluctuations in property prices, are of the view that as a matter of
commercial reality, the terms of the Disposal are fair and reasonable. In the circumstances, the Directors
consider that the S&P Agreement and the transactions contemplated therein (including the deferred payment
by way of the Promissory Note and the entering into of the Rental Guarantee) are in the interest of the
Company, and the terms of the S&P Agreement and the transactions contemplated therein (including the
deferred payment by way of the Promissory Note and the entering into of the Rental Guarantee) are fair
and reasonable so far as the Shareholders are concerned. Subsequent to the Disposal, Linkport will cease
to be a subsidiary of the Company and the Group would continue to be engaged in its existing principal
business as described above.

GENERAL

As the Consideration represents more than 25% but less than 75% of the applicable percentage
ratios, the Disposal constitutes a major transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the S&P Agreement and the transactions contemplated therein (including the deferred payment by way of
the Promissory Note and the entering into of the Rental Guarantee) are subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the SGM. No shareholder is required to abstain from voting in respect of the ordinary
resolution to approve the Disposal at the SGM.

Special General Meeting

The SGM will be convened for the purpose of considering and if thought fit approving, among
other matters (if any), the Disposal and all transactions contemplated under the S&P Agreement (including
the deferred payment by way of the Promissory Note and the entering into of the Rental Guarantee).
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An announcement will be made by the Company on the Business Day immediately following the
conclusion of the SGM to inform the Shareholders and the public of the results of the SGM.

Set out on pages 80 to 81 is a notice convening the SGM to be held at Harcourt Room, 1/F Hong
Kong Club, 1 Jackson Road, Central, Hong Kong on Monday, 16 January 2006 at 4:30 p.m.

A proxy form is also enclosed. Whether or not you intend to attend and vote at the SGM, please
complete and return the enclosed proxy form in accordance with the instructions printed thereon to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding of the SGM or any adjournment thereof. Completion and return of the proxy
form will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the SGM or any adjourned meeting
should you so wish.

PROCEDURES ON DEMANDING A POLL

Under bye-law 66 of the bye-laws of the Company, a resolution put to the vote of a general
meeting shall be decided by poll if a poll is demanded:

(1) by the chairman of the meeting; or;

(ii) by at least three Shareholders present or, in the case of a Shareholder being a corporation,
by its duly authorised representative or by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the
meeting; or

(ii1) by a Shareholder or Shareholders present in person or, in the case of a Shareholder being a
corporation, by its duly authorised representative or by proxy and representing not less than
one-tenth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having the right to vote at the meeting;
or

(iv) by a Shareholder or Shareholders present in person or, in the case of a Shareholder being a
corporation, by its duly authorised representative or by proxy and holding Shares conferring
a right to vote at the meeting being Shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up
equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the Shares conferring that
right; or

(v)  if required by the rules of the Designated Stock Exchange by any Director or Directors who,
individually or collectively, hold proxies in respect of Shares representing five per cent.
(5%) or more of the total voting rights at such meeting, and if on a show of hand a meeting
votes in the opposite manner to that instructed in those proxies, provided that if it is approved
from the total proxies held that a vote taken on a poll shall not reverse the vote taken on a
show of hands, then the Director or Directors shall not be required to demand a poll.

A demand for poll must be made before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or
on the withdrawal of any other demand for a poll.

RECOMMENDATION

The Board is of the opinion that the terms of the Disposal are fair and reasonable and the Disposal
is in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Board recommends
the Shareholders to vote in favour of the ordinary resolution to be proposed at the SGM to approve the
Disposal.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Your attention is also drawn to the additional information contained in the appendices to this
circular.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of the Board
PYI Corporation Limited
Tom Ko Yuen Lau
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
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APPENDIX 1 FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the published audited consolidated results of the Group for each of
the three years ended 31 March 2005 and the audited assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 March
2003, 31 March 2004 and 31 March 2005 (as extracted from the Financial Summary of the Company’s
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2005), and the unaudited consolidated results of the Group for
the six months ended 30 September 2004 and 30 September 2005 and the unaudited assets and liabilities
of the Group as at 30 September 2004 and 30 September 2005 (as extracted from the Company’s interim
reports for the six months ended 30 September 2004 and 30 September 2005):

Year ended 31 March

Six months ended
30 September

2003 2004 2005 2004 2005

HK$°000 HK3$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Turnover 3,636,182 3,382,466 3,588,015 1,678,883 1,791,511
(Loss) profit

before taxation (316,718) 208,566 533,684 47,359 174,562

Taxation (37,809) (45,678) (11,812) (8,827) (9,421)

(Loss) profit after

taxation (354,527) 162,888 521,872 38,532 165,141

Minority interests 498 739 985 (388) (15,861)
(Loss) profit

for the year (354,029) 163,627 522,857 38,144 149,280

At 31 March At 30 September

2003 2004 2005 2004 2005

HK$'000 HK3$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Total assets 4,873,156 4,862,328 7,111,316 6,317,612 5,897,178

Total liabilities (2,199,065) (2,081,008) (3,395,658) (3,185,660) (2,983,640)

Minority interests (15,560) (10,448) (535,895) (374,065) (540,071

Shareholders’ funds 2,658,531 2,770,872 3,179,763 2,757,887 2,373,467
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2. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following is the audited consolidated income statement of the Group for each of the two years
ended 31 March 2005 and the audited consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 31 March 2004 and
2005 together with the relevant notes (“Financial Statements”), as extracted from the Company’s annual
report for the year ended 31 March 2005.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31st March, 2005

2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$’'000
Turnover 3,588,015 3,382,466
Cost of sales (3,363,119) (3,284,544)
Gross profit 224,896 97,922
Other operating income 5 52,519 41,228
Administrative expenses (165,332) (123,705)
Deficit arising on revaluation of
investment properties - (14,000)
Gain (loss) on disposal of investment properties 1,129 (2,152)
Other operating expenses 6 (59,574) (76,539)
Profit (loss) from operations 7 53,638 (77,246)
Finance costs 8 (6,266) (9,829)
Gain on partial disposal of subsidiaries 67,968 -
Gain on disposal and dilution of interests
in associates 18(a) 519,873 152,863
Impairment loss on interest in an associate 18(b) (182,087) -
Share of results of associates 79,660 133,704
Share of results of jointly controlled entities 898 9,074
Profit before taxation 533,684 208,566
Taxation 10 (11,812) (45,678)
Profit before minority interests 521,872 162,888
Minority interests 985 739
Profit for the year 522,857 163,627
Dividends 11 998,226 348,290
Earnings per share 12
Basic HK$0.386 HK$0.146
Diluted HK$0.385 HK$0.142
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31st March, 2005

2005 2004
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 13 372,044 417,633
Investment properties 14 455,000 515,000
Project under development 15 1,806,466 -
Goodwill 16 61,646 13,831
Interests in associates 18 382,146 1,426,708
Interests in jointly controlled entities 19 9,544 14,817
Other long term investments 20 15,481 15,481
Investments in securities . 21 1,778 1,481
Loans receivable - due after one year 22 1,508 50,000
Amounts due from related companies
— due after one year 25 779 -
Deferred tax assets 32 1,680 2,714
3,108,072 2,457,665
CURRENT ASSETS
Amounts due from customers for contract works 23 185,188 273,210
Properties held for sale 91,278 -
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 24 1,586,246 1,212,340
Amounts due from related companies
— due within one year 25 346,102 238,770
Amounts due from associates 26 168,683 178,668
Loans receivable — due within one year 22 190,401 196,215
Investments in securities 21 173,284 39,374
Taxation recoverable 7,506 15,831
Short term bank deposits 1,044,337 24,824
Bank balances and cash 210,219 225,431
4,003,244 2,404,663
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amounts due to customers for contract works 23 435,198 456,140
Creditors and accrued expenses 27 1,074,468 856,298
Amounts due to associates 26 2,804 96,273
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities 26 20,766 55,584
Amount due to a minority shareholder 28 104,833 -
Taxation payable 1,882 1,056
Bank borrowings — due within one year 29 289,960 44,048
1,929,911 1,509,399
NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,073,333 805,264
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,181,405 3,352,929

—13 -




APPENDIX 1

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Loan from a minority shareholder
Bank borrowings — due after one year
Provision for long service payments
Deferred tax liabilities

MINORITY INTERESTS

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

—14 -

33

2005 2004
HK3$°000 HK$'000
241,000 -
300,000 517,000
1,727 1,727
923,020 52,882
1,465,747 571,609
535,895 10,448
3,179,763 2,770,872
136,920 134,525
3,042,843 2,636,347
3,179,763 2,770,872
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BALANCE SHEET
As at 31st March, 2005

2005 2004
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
NON-CURRENT ASSET
Interests in subsidiaries 17 2,491,449 3,036,455
CURRENT ASSETS
Deposits and prepayments 216 940
Loan to a subsidiary — due within one year 17 - 71,000
Short term bank deposits 749,579 -
Bank balances 29 75
749,824 72,015
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors and accrued expenses 1,587 740
Amount due to a subsidiary 147,773 -
Bank borrowings 29 - 1,992
149,360 2,732
NET CURRENT ASSETS 600,464 69,283
NET ASSETS 3,091,913 3,105,738
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 33 136,920 134,525
Reserves 35 2,954,993 2,971,213
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 3,091,913 3,105,738
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st March, 2005

Accumulated
Share Share  Special  Capital Other Translation  (losses)
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
HK$°000  HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
At Ist April, 2003 106,302 212,031 124,933 2,480,000 - (9,704) (255,031) 2,658,531
Exchange differences arising from
translation of overseas operations - - - - - 142,847 - 142,847
Share of reserves of an associate - - - - 6,733 1,150 - 7,883
Net gain not recognised in
consolidated income statement - ~ - - 6,733 143,997 - 150,730
Issue of shares under scrip
dividend scheme 27,258 (27,25%) - - - - - -
Credit arising on scrip dividends - - - - - - 184,409 184,409
Exercise of warrants 965 2,895 - - - - - 3,860
Share issue expenses - (298) - - - - - (298)
Realised on disposal and dilution
of interests in associates - - - - 212) (50,937 - (51,149)
Profit for the year - - - - - - 163,627 163,627
Dividends paid - - - - - - (338,838) (338,838)
At 31st March, 2004 134,525 187,370 124,933 2,480,000 6,521 83,356  (245,833) 2,770,872
Exchange differences arising from
translation of overseas operations - - - - - 14 - 14
Share of reserves of associates - - - - (6,521) 11,631 - 5,110
Net (loss) gain not recognised in
consolidated income statement - - - - (6,521) 11,645 - 5,124
Issue of shares under scrip
dividend scheme 2,395 (2,395) - - - - - -
Credit arising on scrip dividends - - - - - - 17,591 17,591
Share issue expenses - (164) - - - - - (164}
Realised on partial disposal of
subsidiaries - - (238) - - 505 - 267
Realised on disposal and dilution
of interests in associates - - - - - (96,067) - (96,067)
Profit for the year - - - - - - 522857 522857
Dividends paid - - - - - - 40,717y (40,717)
At 31st March, 2005 136,920 184811 124,695 2,480,000 - (561) 253,898 3,179,763

The accumulated profits of the Group include accumulated losses of approximately
HK$120,401,000 (2004: accumulated profits of HK$123,577,000) and accumulated profits of
approximately HK$13,720,000 (2004: HK$12,821,000) retained by the associates and jointly
controlled entities of the Group, respectively.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal amount of
the share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by
the Group and the nominal amount of the share capital issued as consideration for the acquisition.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from the cancellation of share
premium upon capital reorganisation of the Company, details of which are set out in note 35.

~16 -




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31st March, 2005

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK3'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) from operations 53,638 (77,246)
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of goodwill 3,371 2,305
Impairment loss on property interests - 1,496
Depreciation and amortisation of property,
plant and equipment 50,439 71,666
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 917) (3,312)
(Gain) loss on disposal of investment properties (1,129) 2,152
Deficit arising on revaluation of investment properties - 14,000
Impairment loss on properties held for sale 3,000 -
Impairment loss on goodwill 9,554 -
Impairment loss on listed investment securities 92 2,142
Net unrealised holding loss (gain) on listed other investments 6,424 (36)
Loss on option agreement - 52,871
Gain on disposal of listed other investments - (3,892)
Allowance for amounts due from associates 40,504 21,526
Interest income (52,236) (37,300)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 112,740 46,372
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from (to) customers for
contract works, net of attributable interest expenses and
depreciation and amortisation 71,323 (101,929)
Increase in properties held for sale (11,578) -
Decrease (increase) in debtors, deposits and prepayments 83,754 (22,096)
Increase in other investments (140,334) -
Decrease in amounts due from related companies - 10,801
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from associates (14,195) 20,667
(Decrease) increase in creditors and accrued expenses (94,204) 8,351
Decrease in amounts due to associates (93,469) (23,092)
Cash used in operations (85,963) (60,926)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (680) (11,822)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 8,543 -
Overseas tax paid (4,166) (4,487)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (82,266) (77,235)
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Notes

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of interests in associates
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of other investments
Repayment of loans receivable
Repayment from an associate
Repayment from related companies
Repayment from a jointly controlled entity
Loans advanced to related companies
Amounts advanced to associates
Additions to investments in securities
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Additions to project under development
Additions to loans receivable
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash and

cash equivalents acquired 36

Acquisition of interests in associates

Proceeds from of partial disposal of subsidiaries
Dividend received from associates

Dividend received from a jointly controlled entity
Interest received

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of bank borrowings

Dividend paid

Interest paid

Amount repaid to a jointly controlled entity

Loan repaid to minority shareholders

Acquisition of remaining minority interest
in a subsidiary

Share issue expenses

Proceeds from issue of shares on exercise of warrants

New bank borrowings raised

Loan advanced from a minority shareholder

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BROUGHT FORWARD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CARRIED FORWARD

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Short term bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Bank overdrafts
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2005 2004
HK$°000 HKS$’000
1,073,643 573,107
61,129 47,056
6,548 30,798

- 23,599

51,325 69,128

- 4,000

87,879 38,439
2,000 3,000
(17,649) (86,881)
- (68,681)

- (40,021)
(12,155) (9,859)
(74,881) -
(167,261) (13,500)
(443,908) (57,343)
(1,562) (96,559)
152,366 -
40,560 52,648
4,000 -
52,236 26,895
814,270 495,826
(59,299) (215,493)
(23,126) (154,429)
(10,432) (14,883)
(34,818) (13,759)
(400) (4,373)
(400) -
(164) (298)

- 3,860

70,000 -
341,000 -
282,361 (399,375)
1,014,365 19,216
233,207 213,991
1,247,572 233,207
1,044,337 24,824
210,219 225,431
(6,984) (17,048)
1,247,572 233,207
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st March, 2005

1.

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange™).

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are set out in note 44.

In October 2004, ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC”), the Company’s former ultimate holding company which
is incorporated in Bermuda with its securities listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, has disposed of
certain of its equity interest in the Company and became a substantial shareholder of the Company. Details
of the disposal are contained in the joint announcement of the Company and ITC dated 19th October, 2004.

POTENTIAL IMPACT ARISING FROM THE RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In 2004, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) issued a number of new or
revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (herein collectively
referred to as “new HKFRSs”) which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January,
200S. The Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2005.

HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” is applicable to business combinations for which the agreement date is
on or after 1st January, 2005. The Group has not entered into any business combination for which the
agreement date is on or after lst January, 2005. Therefore, HKFRS 3 did not have any impact on the Group
for the year ended 31st March, 2005.

The Group has commenced considering the potential impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to determine whether these new HKFRSs would have a significant impact on how its results of
operations and financial position are prepared and presented. These new HKFRSs may result in changes in
the future as to how the results and financial position are prepared and presented.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified for the
revaluation of investment properties and investments in certain securities, and in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31st March each year.

The results of subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation, amortisation and any identified impairment
loss.

The cost of leasehold land is amortised over the remaining period of the relevant leases using the straight
line method.

The cost of buildings is depreciated over the remaining period of the relevant leases or fifty years, whichever
is shorter, using the straight line method.
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Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other assets over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight line method, at the following rates per annum:

Plant and machinery 10%

Motor vehicles and vessels 10% - 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Computer equipment 33 1/3%

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are held for their investment potential, any rental
income being negotiated at arm’s length. Investment properties are stated at their open market values at the
balance sheet date. No depreciation is provided on investment properties except where the unexpired term of
the relevant lease, including the renewable period, is twenty years or less.

Any surplus or deficit arising on the revaluation of investment properties is credited or charged to the
investment property revaluation reserve unless the balance of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, in
which case the excess of the deficit over the balance of the investment property revaluation reserve is
charged to the income statement. Where a deficit has previously been charged to the income statement and a
revaluation surplus subsequently arises, this surplus is credited to the income statement to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. On disposal of an investment property, the balance of the investment property
revaluation reserve attributable to that property is transferred to the income statement.

Project under development

Project under development is stated at cost less identified impairment loss. Cost includes the cost of sea area
use rights, development expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and other attributable expenses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is capitalised and amortised on a straight line basis over its useful economic life. Goodwill arising
on the acquisition of an associate is included within the carrying amount of the associate. Goodwill arising

on the acquisition of a subsidiary is presented separately in the balance sheet.

On disposal of a subsidiary or associate, the attributable amount of unamortised goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost, less any identified impairment
loss.

Interests in associates
The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of its associates
for the year. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group’s share of the

net assets of the associates plus the premium on acquisition in so far as it has not already been written off or
amortised, less any identified impairment loss.
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Interests in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer has
an interest are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are included in the consolidated balance sheet at the
Group's share of the net assets of the relevant jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of jointly controlied entities is included in the consolidated
income statement.

Investments in securities
Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis and are initially measured at cost.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as investment securities or other
investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified long term strategic purpose, are measured at
subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any impairment loss.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses included in net profit or loss
for the year.

Other long term investments
Other long term investments are stated at cost, less any identified impairment loss.
Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so far as the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as
expenses by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date on the
same basis as contract revenue. When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. Provision is made for
foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profit less recognised loss exceed progress billings,
the excess is shown as amount due from a customer for contract work. Where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profit less recognised loss, the excess is shown as amount due
to a customer for contract work.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the
terms of the relevant leases.
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Turnover

Turnover represents the total value of contract work certified and the gross proceeds received and receivable
from project management services in connection with contract work rendered by the Group, property rental
and related income, and gross proceeds received and receivable from sale of investment securities during the
year.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from a construction contract is recognised on the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the value of work certified during the year.

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised upon the execution of a binding sales agreement.
Income from sale of investment securities is recognised when the sale contract becomes unconditional.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the terms of the relevant
leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment has been
established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate
applicable.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets i.e.
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense or capitalised in
contracts in progress, where appropriate, as they fall due.

Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
(or negative goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rates ruling on the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates ruling on the balance
sheet date, Gains and losses arising on exchange are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations outside Hong Kong are translated at
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to
the Group's translation reserve. Such translation differences are recognised as income or expenses in the
period in which the operation is disposed of.
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4.

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group’s operations are currently organised into six operating divisions namely
building construction, civil engineering, specialist works, treasury investment, property investment and
infrastructure. These divisions form the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.

Business segment information for the year ended 31st March, 2005 is presented below:

TURNOVER
External sales
Inter-segment sales

RESULT
Segment result

Interest income
Allowance for amounts
due from associates
Unallocated corporate

expenses

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Gain on disposal and
dilution of interests
in associates

Gain on partial disposal
of subsidiaries

Impairment foss on
interest in an associate

Share of results of
associates

Share of results of jointly
controlled entities

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit before minority
interests
Minerity interests

Profit for the year

Building

construction

HKS$'000

2,227,525
11,942

Civil
engineering
HK3000

683,599

Specialist
works
HK$000

336,559
134,433

Treasury

investment

HK$'000

271,260

Property

investment Infrastructure

HK$'000

69,072
16,532

HK$'000

Others Eliminations Consolidated

HK$'000

HKS$'000 HK$°000

- 3588015
(162,907 -

2,239,467

683,599

470,992

271,260

85,604

{162.907) 3,588,015

46,446

15,269

10,215

8,159

22,889

6,437

(132)

898

(163)

73,518

102,978

52,036
(40,504)
(61.072)

53,638

6,266
519873

67,968

(182.087)
- 79,660
S

533,684
(11.812)

$21.812
985

§22,857

Inter-segment sales are charged at market price or, where no market price was available, at terms determined
and agreed by both parties.
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4. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
At 31st March, 2005
Building Civil  Specialist ~ Treasury  Property

construction engineering works investment investment Infrastructure Others Consolidated
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK3'000  HK$'000  HK$000

ASSETS
Segment assets 916,772 470,439 165,315 173,284 746,076 1,911,835 - 4,383,721
Interests in associates 6,509 24,652 1,399 - - - 349,586 382,146
Interests in jointly
controlled entities - 9,544 - - - - - 9,544
Unallocated corporate assets 2,335,905
Total assets 7,111,316
T—
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 724 863 352,493 39747 7875 397,366 - - 1,542,344
Unallocated corporate
liabilities - - - - - - - 1853314
Total liabilities 3,395,658
—
OTHER INFORMATION
Capital additions 1,750 1.470 - - 2,405 - 7,001 12,626
Amortisation of goodwill 2,305 - - - - - 1,066 3,371

Depreciation and amortisation
of property, plant and
equipment 19,441 1,959 10,741 - 11,094

9,349 52,584
——
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4, BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
Business segment information for the year ended 31st March, 2004 is presented below:
Building Civil Specialist Property

construction  engineering works  investment Others Eliminations Consolidated
HKS$'000 HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$ 000

TURNOVER
External sales 2,421,787 463,440 443,849 48,390 - - 3,382,466
Inter-segment sales 22,16% - 76,384 15,635 - (114,188) -
2,443,956 463,440 525,233 64.025 - (114,188) 3,382,466
RESULT
Segment result (35,045) (5,632) (4) 14,898 - (25,783)
Interest income 37,300
Allowance for amounts due
from associates (21,526)
Unallocated corporate expenses (67,237)
Loss from operations (77,246)
Finance costs (9,829)
Gain on disposal and dilution
of interests in associates - - - - 152,863 - 152,863
Share of results of associates 2,127 (16) - - 131,593 - 133,704
Share of results of jointly
controlled entities - 9,074 - - - - 9,074
Profit before taxation . 208,566
Taxation (45,678)
Profit before minority interests 162,388
Minority interests 739
Profit for the year 163,627
—

Inter-segment sales are charged at market price or, where no market price was available, at terms determined
and agreed by both parties.
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4. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
At 31st March, 2004
Building Civil Specialist Property

construction  engineering works  investment Others Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK3$'000  HK$'000 HK$000

ASSETS
Segment assets 1,002,397 450,958 179,949 559,663 - 2,192,967
Interests in associates 25,601 249 - - 1,400,858 1,426,708
Interests in jointly controlled
entities - 14,817 - - - 14,817
Unallocated corporate assets 1,227,836
Total assets 4,862,328
o——
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 806,557 297,904 99,633 22,636 - 1,226,730
Unallocated corporate liabilities 854,278
Total liabilities ) 2,081,008
———
OTHER INFORMATION .
Capital additions 4,373 992 2,975 351 54,926 63,617
Amortisation of goodwill 2,305 - - - - 2,305
Depreciation and amortisation
of property, plant and equipment 27.955 6,415 21,072 11,430 8,802 75,674
Impairment loss on property
interests ] - - - 1,496 - 1,496
Loss on option agreement - - - - 52,871 52,871
Impairment loss on listed
investment securities - - - - 2,142 2,142
———

Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are located in the People’s Republic of China other than Hong Kong and Macau (the
“PRC”), Hong Kong and Macau.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical market, irrespective of the
origin of the goods/services:

Turnover
2005 2004
HK$'000 . HK$'000
Hong Kong 3,476,116 3,292,897
Macau 71,871 -
PRC 40,028 89,569
3,588,015 3,382,466
L] ]
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and capital additions, analysed by the
geographical area in which the assets are located:

Hong Kong
PRC
Macau

Pacific region and South East Asia

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Gain on disposal of listed other investments

Interest income

Carrying amount

of segment assets

Capital additions

Net unrealised holding gain on listed other investments

Others

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Impairment loss on listed investment securities

Loss on option agreement

Net unrealised holding loss on listed other investments
Impairment loss on properties held for sale

Impairment loss on goodwill

Allowance for amounts due from associates
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2005 2004 2005 2004
HKS$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$°000
6,963,260 3,990,936 11,300 61,591
117,591 109,085 1,262 2,026
30,465 - 64 _
- 762,307 - -
7,111,316 4,862,328 12,626 63,617
2005 2004

HK$°000 HK$’000

- 3,892

52,236 37,300

- 36

283 -

52,519 41,228

2005 2004

HK$°000 HK$°000

92 2,142

- 52,871

6,424 -

3,000 -

9,554 -

40,504 21,526

59,574 76,539
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7.

PROFIT (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS

Profit (loss) from operations has been arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation and amortisation:
Property, plant and equipment (note (a} below)
Goodwill (included in administrative expenses)
Impairment loss on property interests
Operating lease rentals in respect of:
Premises
Plant and machinery
Staff costs (note (b) below)

and after crediting:

Rental income under operating leases in respect of:
Premises, net of outgoings of HK$19,867,000 (2004: HK$20,171,000)
Plant and machinery

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Notes:

(a) Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment:

Owned assets
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts in progress
Amount capitalised in respect of project under development

(b) Staff costs:

Directors’ emoluments (note 9):
Fees
Retirement benefit scheme contributions
Other emoluments

Other staff costs:
Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme contributions,
net of forfeited contributions of HK$1,914,000
(2004: HK$1,462,000)

Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts in progress

- 290 _

2005
HK$’000

2,442

50,439
3,371

48
8,614
128,589

13,154
64
917

2005
HK$’000

52,584
(1,546)
(599)

50,439

582
880

29,049

30,511

286,002

9,900

326,413

(197,824)

128,589

2004
HK3$'000

2,030

71,666
2,305
1,496

3,556
3,616
112,202

19,555
385
3,312

2004
HK$’000

75,674
(4,008)

71,666
———

100
885

30,157

31,142

286,924

8,326

326,392

(214,190)

112,202
S —
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8.

FINANCE COSTS

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK3'000

Borrowing costs on:
Bank borrowings wholly repayable within five years 10,418 13,628
Loan from a minority shareholder 4,833 -
Others 14 1,255
15,265 14,883
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts in progress (2,697) (5,054)
Amount capitalised in respect of project under development (6,302) -

6,266 9,829

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the emoluments of the directors and five highest paid individuals for the year are as follows:

(a) Directors’ emoluments
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fees:
Executive directors 74 80
Non-executive directors 508 20
582 100
Other emoluments:
Executive directors
Salaries and other benefits 11,949 12,697
Discretionary bonus 17,000 17,600
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 880 885
Non-executive directors
Salaries and other benefits 100 460
29,929 31,042
30,511 31,142

The emoluments of the directors were within the following bands:

Number of directors

2005 2004
Nil to HK$1,000,000 S 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 - 1
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 3 3
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10.

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included four directors and one employee
(2004: four directors and one employee). Particulars of the emoluments of these five highest paid

individuals are as follows:

2005

HK$’000

Fees 38
Salaries and other benefits 10,937
Discretionary bonus 16,700
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 696

28,371
——

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

2004
HK$'000

40
10,557
17,245

676

28,518
———

Number of employees

2005

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 -
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 3
——

2004

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including
directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In

addition, none of the directors has waived any emoluments during the year.

TAXATION
2005
HK$'000
The charge comprises:
Hong Kong Profits Tax:
Current year -
Underprovision in prior years 21
21
Overseas taxation 5,035
Deferred taxation . (28,828)
Taxation attributable to the Company and its subsidiaries (23,772)
Share of tax on results of associates 35,413
Share of tax on results of jointly controlled entities 171
11,812

2004
HK$ 000

166

166
3.322

(6,832)

(3,344)
49,022

45,678

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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11.

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per the income statement as

follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 17.5% (2004: 17.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose

Tax effect of deductible temporary difference not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of deductible temporary difference
previously not recognised

Tax effect of tax fosses not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised

Tax effect of different tax rates of associates and jointly controlled
entities operating in other jurisdictions

Underprovision in prior years

Taxation charge for the year

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 32.

DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend paid for 2005 — 1.5 cents
(2004: 1.0 cent) per share

Special dividend declared for 2005 — 70.0 cents
(2004: 29.0 cents paid) per share

Final dividend proposed for 2005 — 1.5 cents
(2004: 1.5 cents) per share

2005 2004
HK3$'000 HK$’000
533,684 208,566
93,395 36,499
44,883 29,361
(112,115) (43,366)
(3,434) 245
(4,857) (17,129)
11,655 24,086
(16,196) (8,220)
(1,540) 24,036
21 166
11,812 45,678
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$°000
20,538 10,937
957,177 317,174
20.511 20,179
998,226 348,290

Of the dividends paid during the year, approximately HK$17,591,000 (2004: HK$184,409,000) was settled in
shares under the Company’s scrip dividend scheme announced by the directors of the Company on 23rd July,
2004 in respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2004 and was credited to the accumulated

profits of the Company during the year.

On 17th June 2005, the Board resolved to declare a special cash dividend of 70 cents per share. The amount

of special cash dividend so declared was calculated by reference to 1,367,395,436 shares in issue.

The amount of the final dividend proposed for the year ended 31st March, 2005, which will be in scrip form
with a cash option, has been calculated by reference to the 1,367,395,436 issued shares as at the date of this

report.
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12.

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for the year is based on the following data:

Earnings:

Earnings for the purposes of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

Adjustment to the share of results of an associate

based on dilution of its earnings per share

Earnings for the purposes of diluted earnings per share

Number of shares:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Share options

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
522,857 163,627
- (4,651)
522,857 158,976

1,355,352,439

1,398,760

1,117.367,985

1,356,751,199

1,117,367,985

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st March, 2004 had not assumed the
conversion of the Company’s share options and warrants since their exercise prices were higher than the

average market price per share for that year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
Motor fixtures and
Land and Plant and vehicles computer
buildings machinery  and vessels equipment Total
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK3$'000 HK$'000
THE GROUP
COST
At Ist April, 2004 256,029 413,391 84,923 137,628 891,971
On acquisition of subsidiaries - - 460 11 471
Additions - 773 5,901 5,481 12,155
Disposals - (27,004) (2,105) (2,354) (31,463)
At 31st March, 2005 256,029 387.160 89,179 140,766 873,134
DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1st April, 2004 40,902 323,144 25,090 85,202 474,338
Provided for the year 4,995 24,958 9,531 13,100 52,584
Eliminated on disposals - (22,316) (1,796) (1,720) (25,832)
At 31st March, 2005 45,897 325,786 32,825 96,582 501,090
NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st March, 2005 210,132 61,374 56,354 44,184 372,044
At 31st March, 2004 215,127 90,247 59,833 52,426 417,633
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14.

15.

The net book value of land and buildings held by the Group at the balance sheet date comprises the following:

2005 2004
HK3°000 HK$°000
Long term leasehold properties in the PRC 138 141
Medium term leasehold properties in:
Hong Kong 209,426 214,400
PRC 568 586
210,132 215,127
N R
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK3$'000
VALUATION
Balance brought forward 515,000 572,608
Transfer from deposits and prepayments - 5,600
Disposals (60,000) (49,208)
Deficit arising on revaluation charged to income statement - (14,000)
Balance carried forward 455,000 515,000
S L

The carrying amount of investment properties held by the Group at the balance sheet date comprises the
following:

2005 2004

HK%'000 HKS$'000

Long term leasehold properties in Hong Kong - 60,000
Medium term leasehold properties in Hong Kong 455,000 455,000
455,000 515,000

—— ——

The Group’s investment properties are held for rental purposes under operating leases. They were revalued
on 31st March, 2005, on an open market value basis, by RHL Appraisal Ltd., an independent professional
valuer. No surplus or deficit was arisen on such revaluation. :

PROJECT UNDER DEVELOPMENT

2005 2004

HK$°000 HK$'000

On acquisition of subsidiaries 1,724,684 -

Additions 81,782 -

At 31st March, 2005 1,806,466 —
I

The amount relates to a development project located in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The development project
includes certain sea area use rights of HK$72,688,000, interest capitalised of HK$6,302,000 and other
development expenditure. The Group intends to reclaim certain parcels of land from the sea for the development
of a bulk handling port and properties for industrial use. According to the sea area use certificates, the sea
area use rights are granted for a term of not less than 50 years commencing 2004. At 31st March, 2005,
certain site formation has been commenced and the development is in progress.
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16. GOODWILL
THE GROUP
HK3'000
COST
At 1st April, 2004 385,531
On acquisition of subsidiaries 60,740
31st March, 2005 446,271
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At Ist April, 2004 371,700
Provided for the year 3,371
Impairment loss recognised 9,554
At 31st March, 2005 384,625

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31st March, 2005

61,646

At 31st March, 2004 13,831
———

The amortisation period adopted ranges from 10 to 20 years.
17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY

2005 2004

HKS$'000 HK$'000

Unlisted shares 5 212,921
Loans to subsidiaries - 142,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries 3,195,746 3,456,836
3,195,751 3,811,757
Less: Loan to a subsidiary due within one year - (71,000)
3,195,751 3,740,757

Less: Allowance for amounts due from subsidiaries (704,302) (704,302)
2,491,449 3,036,455

L] .|

The unlisted shares are stated at costs, or at their carrying values which are based on the book values of the
underlying net assets of the subsidiaries attributable to the Group as at the date on which the Company
became the holding company of the Group under a group reorganisation in 1993.

In March 2004, the Company entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited (“Paul Y. Engineering”, formerly known as Skynet (International Group) Holdings Limited)
for the disposal of the Company’s entire equity interest in, and shareholder’s loan to, Paul Y. - ITC Construction
Holdings (B.V.I.) Limited (“Paul Y Construction™), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in
exchange for an indirect controlling interest in Paul Y. Engineering. Details of this and other acquisition of
subsidiaries are set out in note 36.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The
Company will not demand repayment within the next twelve months from the balance sheet date and,

accordingly, the amounts are shown as non-current.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2005 are set out in note 44.

- 35—




APPENDIX I

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

18.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK3$'000 HK$'000
Share of net assets:

Listed shares in overseas (note (a) below) - 545,310
Listed shares in Hong Kong (note (b) below) 371,914 460,494
Unlisted shares 37,146 23,828
Premium on acquisition of associates (note (¢) below) - 370,676
409,060 1,400,308
Amount due from an associate (note (d) below) - 26,400
409,060 1,426,708
Less: Impairment loss recognised (26,914) -
382,146 1,426,708
R R

Market value of listed shares:
in overseas - 1,110,079
in Hong Kong 139,763 139,763
139,763 1,249,842
A L ]

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The listed shares in overseas at 31st March, 2004 represented the Group’s 21.3% equity interest in
Downer EDI Limited (“Downer”) which is a company listed in Australia and New Zealand and,
together with its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in engineering and infrastructure contracting
business. During the year, the Group has disposed of its 5.5 million shares in Downer at a price of
A$2.2 each to certain executives of Downer pursuant to the incentive option agreement, and the
remaining 56.2 million shares in Downer at a price of A$4.55 each to independent third parties.
Details of these transactions are contained in the Company’s announcements dated 10th December,
2004 and 15th December, 2004, respectively.

The resulting gain on disposal of Downer and the disposal of interests in other associates amounting
to HK$519,873,000 (2004: HK$152,863,000) has been credited to the income statement.

The listed shares in Hong Kong represents the Group’s 29.4% (2004: 29.4%) equity interest in China
Strategic Holdings Limited (“China Strategic”) which is a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and its financial year end date is 31st December. Since only published financial information
of China Strategic is available and used by the Group in applying the equity method, the Group’s
share of interest in China Strategic at 31st March, 2005 is calculated based on the net assets of China
Strategic at 31st December, 2004 and the results for China Strategic from Ist January, 2004 to 31st
December, 2004.
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The following details have been extracted from the financial information of China Strategic:

1.1.2004 1.1.2003
to to
31.12.2004 31.12.2003
HK$000 HK$’000

Results for the year:
Revenue from ordinary activities 123,403 2,884,493
Loss from ordinary activities before taxation (124,564) (169,184)
Loss from ordinary activities after taxation 131,028) 180,119)
31.12.2004 31.12.2003
HK$'000 HK3$’000

Financial position:

Non-current assets 808,151 1,124,597
Current assets 1,094,347 1,064,647
Current liabilities (110,256) (161,090)
Non-current liabilities (184,946) (244,614)

Minority interests 5295,609) !250,160)

On 14th March, 2005, China Strategic, Hanny Holdings Limited (“Hanny”, a substantial shareholder
of China Strategic) and certain others announced a proposed group restructuring by China Strategic
and, on the same date, the Company and Hanny entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party for the disposal of a 15.3% equity interest in China Strategic by each
of the Company and Hanny. The directors, having considered the estimated recoverable amount
under the conditional sale and purchase agreement, determined that an amount of HK$182,087,000
(2004: Nil) in respect of interest in the associate has been impaired and charged to the income
statement.

The conditional sale and purchase agreement has not been completed as at date of this report.

(¢) Movement of premium on acquisition of associates is analysed as follows:
THE GROUP
HK$'000
COST
At Ist April, 2004 447,619
Additions 8,911
Eliminated on disposal and dilution of interest (293,190)
At 31st March, 2005 163,340
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1st April, 2004 76,943
Provided for the year 21,954
Impairment loss recognised 155,173
Eliminated on disposal and dilution of interest (90,730)
At 31st March, 2005 163,340
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31st March, 2005 —
—
At 31st March, 2004 370,676
——
The amortisation period adopted ranges from 10 to 20 years.
(d)y The amount due from an associate in prior year was unsecured, bore interest at 1% over Hong Kong

prime rate and had no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, the amount would
not be repayable within the next twelve months from the balance sheet date and, accordingly, was
shown as non-current.

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31st March, 2005 are set out in note 44.
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19.

20.

21.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK$000 HK3$°000
Share of net assets 9,544 12,817
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity - 2,000
9,544 14,817
T

The amount due from a jointly controlled entity was unsecured, interest free and was settled during the year.
Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entities at 31st March, 2005 are set out in note 44.

OTHER LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted investments, at cost:

in Hong Kong 15,093 15,093
in overseas 388 388
15,481 15,481
R L]

In the opinion of the directors, the above investments are worth at least their carrying value.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Investment Other
securities investments Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’000

THE GROUP
Listed equity securities:
in Hong Kong 389 - 159,326 39,374 159,715 39,374
in overseas 1,389 1,481 8,040 ~ 9,429 1,481
Debt security:
Eurobond - listed in overseas - - 1,467 - 1,467 -
Equity link notes - unlisted - - 4,451 - 4,451 -
1,778 1,481 173,284 39,374 175,062 40,855
Market value of listed securities 3,743 1,481 168,833 39,374 172,576 40,855
Carrying amount analysed
for reporting purposes as:
Non-current 1,778 1,481 - - 1,778 1,481
Current - - 173,284 39,374 173,284 39,374
1,778 1,481 173,284 39,374 175,062 40,855
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22. LOANS RECEIVABLE

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK$ 000 HK$'000
The amounts bear interest at the following rates:
Interest-free 1,508 -
1.5% over Paris Interbank Offered Rate 4,032 3,821
2% below Hong Kong prime rate 69.869 69,869
0.25% over Hong Kong prime rate 100,000 130,000
1% over Hong Kong prime rate 2,000 6,700
2% over Hong Kong prime rate 14,500 14,500
3% over Hong Kong prime rate - 21,325
191,909 246,215
Less: Amount due within one year shown under current assets (190,401) (196,215)
Amount due after one year 1,508 50,000
—— ——
Analysed as:
Secured 1,508 -
Unsecured 190,401 246,215
191,909 246,215
R ]
23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORKS
THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK3’000
Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date:
Contract costs incurred to date 40,438,759 35,203,304
Recognised profits less recognised losses 882,008 862,708
41,320,767 36,066,012
Less: Progress billings (41,570,777 (36,248,942)
(250,010) (182,930)
——— —
Represented by:
Amounts due from customers for contract works 185,188 273,210
Amounts due to customers for contract works (435,198) (456,140)
(250,010) (182,930)
——— ——

At 31st March, 2005, retentions held by customers for contract works amounting to approximately
HK$369,874,000 (2004: HK$369,983,000) were included in debtors, deposits and prepayments.
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24,

25.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

The Group’s credit terms for its contracting business are negotiated at terms determined and agreed with its
trade customers. Trade debtors arise from property leasing business are payable monthly in advance and the
credit terms granted by the Group to other trade debtors normally range from 30 days to 90 days.

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are trade debtors of approximately HK$399,560,000 (2004:
HK$492,753,000) and their aged analysis is as follows:

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$°000
Within 90 days 329,058 432,280
More than 90 days and within 180 days 2,839 3,784
More than 180 days 67,663 56,689
399,560 492,753

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments is an amount of approximately HK$123,711,000 (2004:
HKS$123,711,000) which represents the Group’s share of losses arising on certain construction contracts to be
recovered from an ex-shareholder of Downer under guarantees provided by the ex-shareholder. The Group
has proceeded a court action against the ex-shareholder. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Court of
First Instance ordered that judgment is to be entered for the Group against the ex-shareholder and the Group
is entitled to recover the losses together with interest and other expenses incurred from the ex-shareholder.

The amount alse includes balance of proceeds from disposal of interest in Downer of approximately
HK$449,174,000 (2004: Nil) deposited with a broker in Australia. The amount was withheld by the Australian
Taxation Office until the clearance of all tax liability arising from the disposal of Downer’s shares. Subsequent
to the balance sheet date, an amount of approximately HK$314,138,000 has been paid to the Australian
Taxation Office out of the deposits with the broker.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES

THE GROUP

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$’000

Loans receivable:
Associate of ITC (note (a) below) 149,333 149,333
Associates of China Strategic (note (a) below) 169,463 86,881
Other related company (note (b) below) 779 -
319,575 236,214

Other receivables:
Associates of ITC (note (a) below) 15,665 28
Associates of China Strategic (note (a) below) 11,567 2,239
Other related companies (note (a) below) 74 289
346,881 238,770
Less: Amount due within one year shown under current assets (346,102) (238,770)
Amount due after one year 779 -

Analysed as:

Secured 779 -
Unsecured 346,102 238,770
346,881 238,770
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26.

27.

28.

Notes:

(a) The companies are related companies of the Group as they are under common directorship with ITC.
The amounts are unsecured, repayable within one year and interest free except for loans receivable
of HK$318,796,000 (2004: HK$236,214,000) which bear interest at 2% over Hong Kong prime rate.

(b) The amount represents loan to a shareholder of an associate and is secured, bearing interest at

prevailing market rate and repayable in October 2006.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS DUE TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

The amounts are unsecured, have no fixed terms of repayment and interest free except for an amount due
from an associate of HK$174,695,000 (2004: HK$174,659,000) which bears interest at 2% over Hong Kong
prime rate.

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Included in creditors and accrued expenses are trade creditors of approximately HK$236,743,000 (2004:
HK$338,430,000) and their aged analysis is as follows:

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HKS$'000 HKS$’000.
Within 90 days 218,556 320,155
More than 90 days and within 180 days ‘ 1,129 5,064
More than 180 days 17,058 13,211
236,743 338,430

Included in creditors and accrued expenses is margin account owed to brokers of approximately HK$5,819,000
(2004: Nil) which is secured by certain investments in securities held by the Group.

AMOUNT DUE TO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER

The amount is unsecured, repayable within one year and interest free.
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29.

30.

31.

BANK BORROWINGS

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Bank borrowings comprise:
Mortgage loans 337,000 364,000 - -
Bank loans 245,976 180,000 - -
Bank overdrafts 6,984 17,048 - 1,992
589,960 561,048 — 1,992
Analysed as:
Secured 517,000 544,000 - -
Unsecured 72,960 17,048 - 1,992
589,960 561,048 — 1,992
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand 289,960 44,048 - 1,992
More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 300,000 217,000 - -
More than two years, but not exceeding
five years - 300,000 - -
589,960 561,048 - 1,992
Less: Amount due within one year or
on demand shown under current liabilities (289,960) (44,048) - (1,992)
Amount due after one year 300,000 517,000 — —

LOAN FROM A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER

The amount is unsecured, repayable after one year and bears interest at 2% below Hong Kong prime rate.

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

The provision represents long service payments made in respect of qualified employees of the Group pursuant

to the requirements under the Employment Ordinance.
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32,

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and movements thereon during the

current and prior years:

Accelerated Undistributed

Recognition Revaluation

of  of project

tax  earnings of Tax  contracting under
depreciation an associate losses income development Others Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
THE GROUP
At Ist April, 2003 41,486 29918 (11,290) (3.333) - 219 57,000
Charge {credit) 10 income statement (9,424) 11,056 2,942 (93) - (204) 421
Realised on dilution of interest in
an associate - 19.799) - - - - (19,799)
Exchange differences - 8,690 - - - - 8,690
At 31st March, 2004 32,062 29.865 (8.348) (3,426) - 15 50,168
Charge (credit) to income statement 76 - 1,860 (897) - (2) 1,037
On acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - 900,000 - 900,000
Realised on disposal of
an associate - (29,865) - - - - (29.865)
At 31st March, 2005 32,138 - (6.488) (4.323) 900,000 13 921,340

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of the deferred taxation for financial reporting purposes:

THE GROUP
2008 2004
HK$°000 HK3'000
Deferred tax liabilities 923,020 52,882
Deferred tax assets (1,680 (2,714)

921,340 50,168
I I

At 31st March, 2005, the Group and the Company has unused tax losses of approximately HK$1,807,000,000
(2004: HK$1,354,000,000) and HK$3,806,000 (2004: HK$284,000), respectively available for offset against
future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised by the Group in respect of approximately
HK$37,000,000 (2004: HK$48,000,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset in respect of the remaining tax
losses has been recognised by the Group and the Company due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL

Number
of shares Value
HK3$°000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each:
Authorised:
At 1st April, 2003, 31st March, 2004 and 31st March, 2005 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid:
At 1st April, 2003 1,063,016,037 106,302
Exercise of warrants 9,648,758 965
Issue of new shares pursuant to scrip dividend scheme 272,584,224 27,258
At 31st March, 2004 1,345,249,019 134,525
Issue of new shares pursuant to scrip dividend scheme 23,946,417 2,395
At 31st March, 2005 1,369,195,436 136,920

Pursuant to the scrip dividend schemes which was announced by the Company on 23rd July, 2004, the
Company issued 23,946,417 (2004: 272,584,224) new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company to
shareholders who elected to receive scrip dividends in respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31st
March, 2004. These shares rank pari passu with the then exiting shares in all respects.

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(a) Initial Share Option Scheme

In accordance with the Company’s share option scheme (the “Initial Share Option Scheme”) which
was adopted on 1st September, 1993 for recognition of past services contributed by the eligible
directors and employees, the directors of the Company may at their discretion grant options to any
directors or full time employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The Initial Share Option Scheme was expired on 31st August, 2003.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share options under the Initial Share Option
Scheme and movements in such holdings during the prior year:

Number of shares of the Company
to be issued upon exercise of
the share options

Exercise price Balance at Lapsed during Balance at

Date of grant per share 1.4.2003 the year 31.3.2004
HKS$

17.12.1999 0.5552 16,100,000 (16,100,000) —~

All options granted under the Initial Share Option Scheme were lapsed during the year ended 31st
March, 2004.
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(b)

New Share Option Scheme

On 27th August, 2002, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the * Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentive or reward to any employees, executives or officers, directors
of the Group or any invested entity and any celebrity, consultant, adviser or agent of any member of
the Group or any invested entity, who have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any invested entity (“Eligible Person”). The Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for a period of ten years from that date.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may at their discretion grant options
to any Eligible Person to subscribe for shares in the Company without consideration. The directors
may at their discretion determine the specific exercise period which should expire in any event no
later than ten years from date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company and will be at least the higher of: (i) the subscription price as is
permissible under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules™) from time to time; and (ii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company as at its adoption
date, i.e. 103,674,492 shares. An ordinary resolution relating to the refreshing of the scheme limit on
grant of options under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
up to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of such general meeting, i.e.
134,524,901 shares, representing 9.84% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this report, was passed at the annual general meeting of shareholders of the Company held on 7th
September, 2004. Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting, the
limit may be refreshed to 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of which options may be granted to each
Eligible Person under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time unless such grant has been duly approved
by shareholders of the Company at general meeting at which the Eligible Person and his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstained from voting. Options granted to a substantial shareholder
and/or an independent non-executive director or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.10% of total number of shares in issue and have
an aggregate value exceeding HK$5 million must be approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting in advance.

Details of the share options which were granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year to
certain Eligible Persons of the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company are as follows:

Number of shares of the Company to be issued
upon exercise of the share options

Exercise Outstanding Granted Lapsed Outstanding

price as at during during as at

Date of grant Exercisable period per share 1.4.2004 the year the year 31.3.2005

HKS

28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to 1.94 - 22,100,000 -~ 22,100,000
26.08.2012

28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to 2.20 - 22,100,000 - 22,100,000
26.08.2012

- 44,200,000 - 44,200,000
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There is no consideration received during the year from Eligible Persons for taking up the options
granted.

The above options were all granted to directors of the Company.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme were outstanding or granted during the year ended
31st March, 2004.

As at 31st March, 2005, the number of shares in respect of outstanding share options granted under
the Share Option Scheme was 44,200,000 (2004: Nil), representing 3.23% (2004: Nil) of the shares
of the Company in issue as at that date.

35.

RESERVES
Share Capital Accumulated

premium reserve profits Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THE COMPANY
At 1st April, 2003 212,031 2,480,000 425,310 3,117,341
Premium on issues of shares 2,895 - - 2,895
Issue of shares under scrip dividend scheme (27,258) - - (27,258)
Credit arising on scrip dividends (note 11) - - 184,409 184,409
Share issue expenses (298) - -~ (298)
Profit for the year - - 32,962 32,962
Dividends paid - - (338,838) (338,838)
At 31st March, 2004 187,370 2,480,000 303,843 2,971,213
Issue of shares under scrip dividend scheme (2,395) - -~ (2,395)
Credit arising on scrip dividends (note /1) - - 17,591 17,591
Share issue expenses (164) - ~ (164)
Profit for the year - - 9,465 9,465
Dividends paid - - (40,717) (40,717)
At 31st March, 2005 184,811 2,480,000 290,182 2,954,993

The capital reserve of the Company represents the credit arising from the cancellation of share premium
upon capital reorganisation. The Company has given a guarantee in favour of, and entered into a letter of
undertaking (the “Letter of Undertaking”) with, a bank in connection with a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) entered into between certain subsidiaries of the Company and the bank. Pursuant to the Letter
of Undertaking, so long as any sums remain outstanding under the Loan Agreement, the Company cannot,
under certain circumstances, without the prior consent from the bank, reduce or distribute or use the capital

reserve including the transfer to any contributed surplus account.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders at 31st
March, 2005 amounted to approximately HK$290,182,000 (2004: HK$303,843,000).

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Company acquired the following subsidiaries:

(a)

As mentioned in note 17, the Company entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement dated
29th March, 2004 with Paul Y. Engineering pursuant to which the Company agreed to dispose of its
100% equity interest in, and shareholder’s loan to, Paul Y Construction and certain of its subsidiaries
which are principally engaged in civil engineering works, building construction, specialist works,
project management and construction management, in exchange for the issuance and allotment of
400,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each in Paul Y. Engineering, credited as fully paid, at an
issue price of HK$1.0 per share. Details of the transactions are contained in the Company’s circular
dated 30th November, 2004. The acquisition was completed in January 2005 and Paul Y. Engineering,
a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and, together with its subsidiaries, is engaged in
marble and granite products trading and installation business, then became a subsidiary of the
Company.
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(b) In April 2004, the Group acquired a 90.1% of the issued share capital of, and shareholder’s loan to,
Global Achiever Limited for a cash consideration of HK$396,197,000. Global Achiever Limited
indirectly holds 60% interest in each of Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd. and
Jiangsu Yangkou Port Development and Investment Co., Ltd., which held certain sea area use rights
in Jiangsu Province, the PRC for the joint development of a bulk handling port and properties for
industrial use. Details of the transaction are contained in the Company’s circular dated 5th May,
2004.

() In October 2004, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in Redcliff Property Corp. (“Redcliff™)
and Yetwide Investments Limited (“Yetwide™) for an aggregate cash consideration of HK$43,030,000.
Both Redcliff and Yetwide are engaged in the property development and sale in Taishan, the PRC.

The above transactions have been accounted for by the purchase method of accounting. The effect of the
acquisition is summarised as follows:

2005 2004
HK$000 HK$’000
Net assets acquired:
Project under development 1,724,684 -
Property, plant and equipment 471 53,758
Investment securities 389 -
Properties held for sale 82,700 -
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 16,704 -
Unsecured loans receivable - 3,585
Bank balances and cash 4,649 -
Creditors and accrued expenses (70,006) -
Taxation payable (398) -
Bank borrowings (28,275) -
Deferred taxation (900,000) -
Minority interests (418,389) -
412,529 57,343
Goodwill arising on acquisition 60,740 -
Total consideration 473,269 57,343
— —————
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration 448,557 57,343
Dilution of interests in subsidiaries reclassified to
minority interests (note 37) 24,712 -
473,269 57,343
L — L ———
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of subsidiaries:
Cash paid (448,557) (57,343)
Bank balances and cash acquired 4,649 -
(443,908) (57,343)
R L ——

The subsidiaries acquired during the year contributed HK$28,977,000 (2004: Negligible) to the Group’s
turnover and a loss of HK$5,420,000 (2004: Negligible) to the Group’s profit from operations.
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37.

38.

39.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
The Group had the following major non-cash transactions:
(a) additional shares were issued as scrip dividends during the year as set out in note 33; and

(b) the consideration for the acquisition of Paul Y. Engineering was satisfied by the partial disposal of
interests in subsidiaries as set out in note 36.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of
the schemes are separately held in funds under the control of trustees.

The cost charged to the income statement represents contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited
contributions.

At the balance sheet date, there were no material forfeited contributions which arose upon employees leaving
the schemes prior to their interests in the Group’s contributions becoming fully vested and which are available
to reduce the contributions payable by the Group in future years.

With effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme™). The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme at the rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged to the income statement
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$’000
Outstanding performance bonds
in respect of construction contracts 310,503 623,257 - -~
Guarantees given to banks and
financial institutions in respect of
general banking facilities granted to
subsidiaries - - 903,212 1,174,903
310,503 623,257 903,212 1,174,903
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40.

41.

42.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) The Group as a lessee:

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
Within one year 2,059 809
In the second to fifth year inclusive 3,968 1,607
After five years 407 718
6,434 3,134
L] D —————

Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed, for an average term of two years.
(b) The Group as a lessor:

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for future minimum lease payments
which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP
2005 2004
HK3'000 HK$'000
Within one year 28,898 26,391
In the second to fifth year inclusive 18,666 13,826
47,564 40,217
R R

The properties held have committed tenants for the next two years.
The Company did not have any significant operating lease arrangements at the balance sheet date.
PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31st March, 2005, certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, investment properties, and
investments in securities with an aggregate value of approximately HK$752,912,000 (2004: HK$668,638,000),
the issued shares of certain subsidiaries of the Company, and the Group’s benefits under certain construction
contracts have been pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure general credit facilities granted to
the Group. Facilities amounting to approximately HK$522,819,000 (2004: HK$544,000,000) were utilised as
at 31st March, 2005.

COMMITMENTS
THE GROUP
2005 2004
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the financial statements
in respect of acquisition of:
- Equity investments 48,126 450,671
- Property, plant and equipment 90,710 -
138,836 450,671

The Company did not have any significant capital commitment at the balance sheet date.
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43.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The Group entered into the following transactions with its related parties during the year:

Class of related party

Associates of the Group

Jointly controlled entities
of the Group

Subsidiaries of ITC

Associates of ITC

Other related companies

Minority shareholder of
a subsidiary

Other related companies are companies under common directorship or common control with ITC.

Nature of transactions

Construction works charged by the Group

Purchase of concrete products by the Group

Subcontracting fees charged to the Group

Interest income charged by the Group

Service fees charged to the Group

Rentals and related building management fee
charged by the Group

Service fees charged to the Group

Project management fees charged by the Group

Construction works charged by the Group
Project management fees charged by the Group
Subcontracting fees charged to the Group
Service fees charged by the Group

Rentals charged by the Group

Rentals and related building management fee
charged by the Group

Purchase of building materials and related
installation works by the Group

Rental income charged by the Group

Service fee charged by the Group

Rentals and related building management fee
charged by the Group

Interest income charged by the Group

Service fee charged by the Group

Project management fees charged by the Group

Rental and related building management fee
charged by the Group

Interest income charged by the Group

Subcontracting fees charged by the Group

Purchase of medicine and health products
by the Group

Service fees charged to the Group

Sales of property, plant and equipment
by the Group

Sales of goods by the Group

Interest charged to the Group
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2005
HKS$’000

41,813
36
300

590

5,285

300
7,246
303

577
20

420
53

4,610
10,486
106
330

6,150
20,943
7

2,120

159

4,833

2004
HK$'000

182
104
5,437
7,357
308

2,074
406

268

104,734
144
102

780

34

2,930
13,332

6,896
10,253
1,207

432
641




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

The above transactions were carried out on the following bases:

(a) Construction works and subcontracting fees were charged at market price or, where no market price
was available, at terms determined and agreed by both parties.

(b) Purchase of concrete products and building materials and sale of goods were carried out in accordance
with negotiated prices.

(c) Interest was charged by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate determined and
agreed by both parties.

(d) Building management fee, service fee and project management fee were charged at pre-agreed rates.
(e) Rentals were charged at pre-agreed fixed monthly amounts.

Details of the balances with associates, jointly controlled entities and related companies at the balance sheet
date are set out in notes 18, 19, 25 and 26.

44, PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES
{a) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2005 are as follows:
Percentage of issued
Issued and share capital/
fully paid registered capital
Place of share capital/  held by the  attributable
incorporation/ registered  Company*/ to the
Name of subsidiary registration capital  subsidiaries Group Principal activities
% %
Calisan Developments British Virgin USs1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary share
Century Harbour Limited British Virgin Uss1 100 100 [nvestment holding
Islands ordinary | share
Corless Limited British Virgin Uss? 100 65.17 Investment holding
Islands ordinary shares
Cycle Company Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 100 100 Property investment
ordinary shares and holding
HK$2 - -
nOR-VOting
deferred shares
(note (i) below)
DH Holdings Limited British Virgin Uss! 100 100 Investment holding
[slands ordinary share
Glory Well Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
ordinary shares
Gunnell Properties British Virgin Uss! 100 100 Property investment
Limited Islands ordinary share and holding
Hamker Concrete Products Hong Kong HK$10.000,000 85 55.39 Manufacturing and
Limited ordinary shares trading of concrete

products
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Name of subsidiary

Hanfull Enterprises Limited

Jiangsu Yangtong
Investment and
Development Co., Ltd.

Jiangsu Yangkou Port
Development and
Investment Co., Ltd.

Nation Cheer Investment
Limited

Paul Y. - CREC Engineering
Co., Limited

Paul Y. - CREC
Joint Venture

Paul Y. (E & M) Contractors
Limited (formerly known
as Paul Y. - ITC (E & M)
Contractors Limited)

Paul Y. Builders Group
Limited (formerly
known as Paul Y.

- ITC Construction
Group Limited)

Paul Y. Builders Limited
(formerly known as
Paul Y. - ITC Construction
Limited)

Paul Y. Construction &
Engineering Co. Limited
(formerly known as
Paul Y. - ITC Construction
& Engineering Co. Limited)

Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited (formerly known
as Skynet (International
Group) Limited)

Paul Y. General Contractors
Limited (formerly known as
Paul Y. - ITC General
Contractors Limited)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

British Virgin
Islands

PRC

PRC

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Bermuda

Hong Kong

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

US§!
ordinary share

US$$13,332,000
registered capital
(note (ii) below)

US$16,650,000
registered capital
(note (ii) below)

HKS$1,200,000
ordinary shares

HK$10
ordinary shares

(note {iii) below)

HK$20,000,000
ordinary shares

HK$2
ordinary shares

HK$1,000,000
non-voting
deferred shares
(note (v) below)

HK$102,000,000
ordinary shares

HK$42,000,000

ordinary shares

HK$288,350,000

HK$36,000,000
ordinary shares
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Percentage of issued
share capital/
registered capital

held by the  attributable
Company*/ to the
subsidiaries Group
% %

100 100

60 54.06

60 54.06

100 100

70 45.62

70 45.62

99.9998 65.17
100 65.17

100 65.17

100 65.17

65.17 65.17

100 65.17

Principal activities

Securities investment

Port development

Port development

Securities investment
and trading
Civil engineering

Civil engineering

Provision of electrical,
mechanical and
building services

[nvestment holding

Building construction

Building construction
and specialist works

Investment holding

Civil engineering
and building
construction
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Name of subsidiary

Paul Y. Interior Contractors
Limited (formerly known
as Paul Y. - ITC Interior
Contractors Limited)

Paul Y. - ITC Investments
Group Limited

Paul Y. - ITC Management
Limited

Paul Y. Plant Hire Limited
(formerly known as
Paul Y. - ITC Plant Hire
Limited)

Paul Y. Building

Management Limited

Paul Y. Construction
Company, Limited

Paul Y. Construction
(China) Limited

Paul Y. Foundation
Holdings Limited

Paul Y. Foundation Limited

Paul Y. Management
Limited

Paul Y. Project
Management

International Limited

Paul Y. Properties
Group Limited

Paul Y. Tunnel Enginecring
Co. Limited

Tai Shan Pau] Y.

Construction Co., Lid.

Unicon Concrete Products
(HK) Limited

Issued and

fully paid

Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered
registration capital
Hong Kong HK$2

British Virgin
Isiands

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

PRC

British Virgin

[slands

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin
Islands

Hong Kong

PRC

Hong Kong

ordinary shares

Uss!
ordinary share

HKS$2
ordinary shares

HK$2
ordinary shares

HK$2
ordinary shares

HKS$2
ordinary shares

HK$50,000,000

non-voting
preferred shares
(note {iv) below)

RMB60.000,000
registered capital

Ussi
ordinary share

HK$10.000,000
ordinary shares

HKS2
ordinary shares

HK$2

ordinary shares

Uss1
ordinary share

HKS$2
ordinary shares

US885,008,340
registered capital
(note (ii) below)

HK$12,000,002
ordinary shares
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Percentage of issued
share capital/
registered capital

held by the
Company*/
subsidiaries

%

100

100*

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100*

100

100

100

attributable
fo the
Group

%

65.17

100

100

65.17

100

65.17

6517

65.17

65.17

65.17

100

65.17

65.17

65.17

Principal activities

Interior decoration
works

Investment holding

Management services

Hire of motor
vehicles and plant
and machinery

Property management
services

Civil engineering,
building
construction and
investment holding

Civil engineering and
building construction

Investment holding
Civil engineering and
foundation works

Management and
secretarial services

Project management
services and
investment holding

Investment holding

Civil engineering

Civil engineering
and building
construction

Manufacturing
and trading of
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

Percentage of issued

Issued and share capital/
fully paid registered capital
Place of share capital/  held by the  attributable
incorporation/ registered  Company*/ to the
Name of subsidiary registration capital  subsidiaries Group Principal activities
% %
Unistress Concrete Hong Kong HK$200 100 65.17 Manufacturing
Products (H.K.) Limited ordinary shares and trading of
concrete products
HK$1,000,000 100 65.17
non-voting

deferred shares
(note (v) below)

Unistress Group Limited British Virgin US$1 100 65.17 Investment holding
Islands ordinary share

Winstate Limited British Virgin US$1 100 100 Vessel owning
Islands ordinary share

All of the above subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong except Hamker Concrete Products Limited,
Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd., Jiangsu Yangkou Port Development and
Investment Co., Ltd. and Tai Shan Paul Y. Construction Co., Ltd., all of which operate in the PRC.

All of the above subsidiaries are private limited companies except Paul Y. - CREC Joint Venture
which is an unincorporated business and Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited which is listed in Hong

Kong.
Notes:

{1

(i1)
(ii)

(iv)

)

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any
dividends unless the net profits of the company available for dividend exceed
HK$100,000,000,000,000 in which case they should be entitled to a fixed non-cumulative
dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for any financial year and are, on winding up, only
entitled out of the surplus assets of the company to a return of the capital after a total sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the
company.

All of those subsidiaries are the sino-foreign equity joint venture companies.
No capital has been contributed by the joint venture partners of the joint venture.

The holders of the non-voting preferred shares are not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any
dividends unless the net profits of the company available for dividend exceed
HK$100,000,000,000 in which case they should be entitled to a fixed non-cumulative dividend
at the rate of 5% per annum for any financial year and are, on winding up, only entitled out
of the surplus assets of the company to a return of the capital after a total sum of
HK$10,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any
dividends for any financial year and are, on winding up or otherwise, only entitled out of the
surplus assets of the company to a return of the capital after a total sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the
company.
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(b) Particulars of the Company’s principal associates at 31st March, 2005 are as follows:
Issued and Percentage of
fully paid issued share
Place of share capital/ capital/registered
incorperation/ registered  capital attributable
Name of associate registration capital to the Group Principal activities
%
China Strategic Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$88.159,508.70 29.4 Investment holding
{(“China Strategic™) ordinary shares
CSCEC - Paul Y. Construction PRC US$10,000,000 20.4 Civil engineering
Company Limited registered capital and building
(note below) construction
Paul Y. - CREC Construction Hong Kong HKS$100 326 Civi] engineering
Co., Limited ordinary shares
Zhujiang Kwan On Concrete PRC RMBS6,320,000 326 Manufacturing
Products Co., Ltd. registered capital and trading of
{note below) concrete products
Zhong Yu - Paul Y. PRC US$500,000 26.1 Project management
Project Management registered capital and consultancy
Company Limited (note below) services

All of the above associates are private limited companies except China Strategic which ts listed in
Hong Kong.

All of the above associates are held by the Company indirectly.
Note:  The company is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture company.
(c) Particulars of the Company’s jointly controlled entities at 31st March, 2005 are as follows:

Percentage of

Issued and issued share
Place of fully paid  capital attributable
Name of jointly controlled entity incorporation share capital to the Group Principal activities
%
DL & PY IV Limited Hong Kong HK$2 32.6 Civil engineering

ordinary shares

Paul Y. - Penta-Ocean Hong Kong - 326 Civil engineering
Joint Venture (note below)

Notre: No capital has been contributed by the joint venture partners, although the Group has
contributed working capital to this joint venture.

The above tables list the subsidiaries and associates of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries and associates would, in the opinion of the directors, resulit in particulars of
excessive length.
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3. UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE GROUP

The following is the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
six months ended 30 September 2005 as extracted from the Company’s interim report for the six months

ended 30 September 2005.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the six months ended 30 September 2005

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Increase in fair value of investment properties
Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Finance costs
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Write back of impairment loss on
interest in an associate
Loss on dilution of interests in associates
Share of results of associates
Share of results of jointly
controlled entities

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the period

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Dividends

Earnings per share — Basic
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Notes

~ N

Unaudited
Six months ended
30 September

2005 2004
HK$000 HK$’000
1,791,511 1,678,883
(1,645,900) (1,588,366)
145,611 90,517
101,906 21,829
85,400 -
(81,369) (63,152)
(74,194) (9,722)
(6,020) (2,900)
(82) -
23,289 -~

- (15,004)
(22,080) 25,673
2,101 118
174,562 47,359
(9,421 (8,827)
165,141 38,532
149,280 38,144
15,861 388
165,141 38,532
20,380 20,538
10.9 cents 2.8 cents
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
at 30 September 2005

Unaudited Audited
30.9.2005 31.3.2005
Notes HK3$000 HK$'000
(Restated)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 10 222,268 237,278
Investment properties 10 540,400 455,000
Project under development 11 1,838,003 1,772,455
Prepaid land lease payments 129,981 131,576
Goodwill 61,646 61,646
Interests in associates 12 415,383 381,209
Interests in jointly controlled entities 11,645 9,544
Investments in securities - 1,778
Available-for-sale investments 2,060 -
Loans receivable — due after one year 1,508 1,508
Amounts due from related companies
— due after one year 779 779
Other long term investments 15,841 15,481
Deferred tax assets 1,680 1,680
3,241,194 3,069,934
CURRENT ASSETS
Amounts due from customers for contract works 192,529 185,188
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 13 1,098,666 1,586,246
Properties held for sale 78,245 91,278
Project under development 11 34,200 34,011
Prepaid land lease payments 3,190 3,190
Loans receivable — due within one year 100,000 190,401
Investment in securities - 173,284
Investments held for trading 55,512 -
Amounts due from related companies 240,077 346,102
Amounts due from associates 181,750 168,683
Taxation recoverable 134 7,506
Short term bank deposits, bank balances and cash 671,681 1,254,556
2,655,984 4,040,445
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amounts due to customers for contract works 441,885 435,198
Creditors and accrued expenses 14 825,520 1,076,195
Amounts due to associates 2,907 2,804
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities 20,766 20,766
Amount due to a minority shareholder 1,368 104,833
Loan from a minority shareholder 172,697 -
Dividend payable 32,487 -
Taxation payable 2,342 1,882
Bank borrowings — due within one year 259,420 289,960
1,759,392 1,931,638
NET CURRENT ASSETS 896,592 2,108,807
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,137,786 5,178,741
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loan from a minority shareholder - 241,000
Bank borrowings — due after one year 296,875 300,000
Deferred tax liabilities 927,373 923,020
1,224,248 1,464,020
2,913,538 3,714,721
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 15 135,868 136,920
Reserves 2,237,599 3,041,906
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 2,373,467 3,178,826
Minority interests 540,071 535,895
TOTAL EQUITY 2,913,538 3,714,721
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the six months ended 30 September 2005

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Investment Accumulated
Share Share Special Capital revaluation Other Translation {losses) Minority
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total  interests Total

HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

At 1 April 2005
- as originally stated 136,920 184,811 124,695 2,480,000 - - (561)  253.898 3,179,763 535,895 3,715,658
- effect of changes in
accounting policies
{Note 3 - - - - - (1413 - 28,530 27417 530 1947

- a3 restated 136,920 184,811 124,695 2.480,000 - (1.113) (361) 282428 3207.180 536425  3.743,605

Exchange difference arising
from translation of

overseas operations - - - - - - 4,776 - 4,776 - 4,776
Deficit on revaluation of

investments - - - - (1,075) - - - (1,075) (163) (1,238)
Share of other reserve of

an associate - - - - - 6,149 - - 6,149 - 6,149
Share of translation

reserve of an associate - - - - - - (678) - (678) - (678)

Net income (expense)
recognised directly

in equity - - - - (1.075) 6,149 4,098 - 9,172 (163) 9.009
Profit for the period - - - - - - - 149,280 149,280 15,861 165,141
Total recognised income

and expense for the period - - - - (1,075) 6,149 4098 149,280 158,452 15.698 174,150
Shate repurchase (1052 (13.356) - - - - - - (14,608) - (14.608)
Transferred from capital

Teserve - - - (2,480.,000) - - - 2,480,000 - - -
Dividends paid and payable - - - - - - - (977557 (971557 (12,052)  (989,609)
At 30 September 2005 135,868 171.255 124.695 - (1L.079) 5,036 3537 1934151 2373467 540.071  2.913,538
At 1 April 2004 134,525 187,370 124,933 2,480,000 - 6,521 83356 (245,833} 277087 10,448 2,781.320

Exchange difference arising
from translation of

gverseas operations - - - - - - (29,063) - (29,063) - (29.083)
Share of other reserves of

an associate - - - - - 7 - - 7 - 1
Share of translation reserve

of an associate - - - - - - (1,493) - (1,493) - (1493

Net income (expense)
recognised directly

in equity - - - - - 7 (30,556) - (30,549) - (30,549
Profit for the period - - - - - - - 38,144 38,144 388 38.532
Realised on dilution of

interests in associates - - - - - (185) (190} - (375) - (375)
Total recognised income

and expense for the period - - - - - (178) (30,746 33,144 7.220 388 7,608
Share issue expenses - (26) - - - - - - {26) - {26)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 363229 363,229
Dividends paid - - - - - - - (20,179y (20,179 - (20,179
At 30 September 2004 134,528 187,344 124,933 2,480,000 - 6,343 52,610 (227.868) 2,757,887 374065 3,131,952

Other reserve represents the statutory reserves required by the relevant rules and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China applicable to the Company’s associates.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the six months ended 30 September 2005

Unaudited
Six months ended
30 September
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 167,411 65,927
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 335,331 (246,905)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (957,122) -
Repayment of bank borrowings (269,126) (31,850)
New bank borrowings raised 221,139 10,000
Loan repaid to minority shareholders (68,303) (4,630)
Loan advanced from a minority shareholder - 241,000
Payment for repurchase of shares (14,478) -
Share repurchase expenses (130) (26)
Interest paid (11,919) (4,389)
Amount repaid to a jointly controlled entity - (34,824)
(1,099,939) 175,281
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (597,197 (5,697)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BROUGHT FORWARD 1,247,572 233,207
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CARRIED FORWARD 650,375 227,510
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Short term bank deposits, bank balances and cash 671,681 239,534
Bank overdrafts (21,306) (12,024)
650,375 227,510
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the six months ended 30 September 2005

1.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 34 “Interim Financial
Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
certain properties and financial instruments, which are measured at fair values or revalued amounts, as
appropriate.

The accounting policies used in the condensed consolidated financial statements are consistent with those
followed in the preparation of the Group’s annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2005,
except that, in the current period, the Group has applied, for the first time, a number of new Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), HKASs and Interpretations (“Int”) (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “new HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA that are effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2005. The application of the new HKFRSs has resulted in a change in the presentation of
the income statement, balance sheet and the statement of changes in equity. In particular, the presentation of
minority interests and share of tax of associates/jointly controlled entities have been changed. The changes
in presentation have been applied retrospectively. In addition, the adoption of the new HKFRSs has resulted
in changes to the Group’s accounting policies in the following areas that have an effect on how the results
for the current or prior accounting periods are prepared and presented:

Share-based payment

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” which requires an expense to be
recognised where the Group buys goods or obtains services in exchange for shares or rights over shares
(“equity-settled transactions™), or in exchange for other assets equivalent in value to a given number of
shares or rights over shares (“cash-settled transactions”). The principal impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is
in relation to the expensing of the fair value of share options granted to directors and employees of the
Group, determined at the date of grant of the share options, over the vesting period. Prior to the application
of HKFRS 2, the Group did not recognise the financial effect of these share options until they were exercised.
The Group has applied HKFRS 2 to share options granted on or after 1 April 2005. In relation to share
options granted before 1 April 2005, the Group chooses not to apply HKFRS 2 with respect to share options
granted on or before 7 November 2002 and share options that were granted after 7 November 2002 and had
vested on 1 April 2005 in accordance with the relevant transitional provisions. As all the share options had
vested before 1 April 2005, the adoption of HKFRS 2 has had no material effect on the results for the current
or prior periods. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

Business combinations

In the current period, the Group has applied HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” which is effective for
business combinations for which the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005. The principal effects of
the application of HKFRS 3 to the Group are summarised below:

Goodwill

In previous periods, goodwill arising on acquisitions before | April 2005 was capitalised and amortised over
its estimated useful life. In the current period, the Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in
HKFRS 3 pursuant to which the Group has discontinued amortising such goodwill from 1 April 2005 onwards
and goodwill will be tested for impairment at least annually. Goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1 January
2005 is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses (if any) after initial recognition. As a result of
this change in accounting policy, no amortisation of goodwill has been charged in the current period.
Comparative figures have not been restated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Leasehold interest in land and sea use rights

In previous periods, owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings were included in property, plant and
equipment and measured using the cost model. In the current period, the Group has applied HKAS 17
“Leases”. Under HKAS 17, the land and buildings elements of a lease of land and buildings are considered
separately for the purposes of lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance
lease. To the extent that the allocation of the lease payments between the land and buildings elements can be
made reliably, the leasehold interests in land are reclassified to “prepaid lease payments” under operating
leases, which are carried at cost and amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. This change in
accounting policy has been applied retrospectively. Alternatively, where the allocation between the land and
buildings elements cannot be made reliably, the leasehold interests in land continue to be accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

Previously, sea use rights held for undetermined future use were carried at cost less impairment. Under
HKAS 17, such sea use rights are classified as prepaid lease payments under operating leases, carried at cost
and amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In the absence of any specific transitional provisions
in HKAS 17, such change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively. Comparative figures have
been adjusted in order to reflect the cumulative amortisation charge for the sea use rights. The amortisation
charge is included as part of the development cost of the project.

Investment properties

In the current period, the Group has applied HKAS 40 “Investment Property” and has elected to use the fair
value model to account for its investment properties which requires gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment properties to be recognised directly in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise. In previous periods, investment properties under SSAP 13 “Accounting for Investment Properties”
were measured at open market values, with revaluation surplus or deficit credited or charged to investment
property revaluation reserve unless the balance on this reserve was insufficient to cover a revaluation decrease,
in which case the excess of the revaluation decrease over the balance on the investment property revaluation
reserve was charged to the income statement. Where a decrease had previously been charged to the income
statement and a revaluation increase subsequently arose, that increase was credited to the income statement
to the extent of the decrease previously charged. The adoption of HKAS 40 has had no material effect on the
results for the current or prior periods. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

Financial instruments

In the current period, the Group has applied HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation”
and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. HKAS 32 requires retrospective
application. The application of HKAS 32 has had no material effect on the presentation of financial instruments
in the financial statements of the Group. HKAS 39, which is effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2005, generally does not permit to recognise, derecognise or measure financial assets and
liabilities on a retrospective basis. The principal effects resulting from the implementation of HKAS 39 are
summarised below:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in HKAS 39 with respect to classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities that are within the scope of HKAS 39.

By 31 March 2005, the Group classified and measured its equity securities in accordance with the benchmark
treatment of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 24 “Accounting for Investments in Securities” (“SSAP
247”)., Under SSAP 24, investments in equity securities are classified as “investment securities” or “other
investments” as appropriate. “Investment securities™ are carried at cost less impairment losses (if any) while
“other investments” are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses included in the profit or loss.
From 1 April 2005 onwards, the Group has classified and measured its equity securities in accordance with
HKAS 39. Under HKAS 39, financial assets are classified as “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” or “available-for-sale financial assets”. The classification depends on the purpose for which the assets
are acquired. “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” and “available-for-sale financial assets”
are carried at fair value, with changes in fair values recognised in income statement and equity, respectively.
Balance of the Group’s investment securities was remeasured at fair value with an adjustment of HK$1,521,000
to the previous carrying amounts of assets and the Group’s accumulated profits at I April 2005, which will
be released to the income statement upon disposal or impairment of the relevant available-for-sale investments.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets and financial liabilities other than debt and equity securities

From 1 April 2005 onwards, the Group classifies and measures its financial assets and financial liabilities
other than debt and equity securities (which were previously outside the scope of SSAP 24) in accordance
with the requirements of HKAS 39. Under HKAS 39, financial assets are classified as “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss”, “available-for-sale financial assets”, “loans and receivables” or “held-to-
maturity financial assets”. Financial liabilities are generally classified as “financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss” or “financial liabilities other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (other financial liabilities)”. “Other financial liabilities” are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

3. SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial effects of the changes in accounting policies described above are summarised as follows:

(a) Effects on the results for the current and prior periods:
Six months ended
30 September
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK3$ 000
Decrease in amortisation of goodwill 3,712 -
Increase in share of loss of an associate (14,217) ~
Decrease in profit for the period (10,505) —
(b) Effects on the balance sheet as at 31 March 2005 and 1 April 2005:
Share of Share of
effect of effect of
changes in changes in
accounting accounting
policies policies
As at Effect of on an As at Effect of on an As at

31.3.2005  HKAS 17 associate  31.3.2005 HKAS 39 associate 1.4.2005
HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HK3 000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HKS' 000 HK$000

{originally stated} (Note) (restated) (Note) {restated)
Effects on assets and liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 372,044 (134,766) - 237278 - - 237,278
Project under development
- non-current 1,806,466 (34,011) - 1,772,455 - - 1,772,455
- current - 34,011 - 34,011 - - 34,011
Prepaid land lease payments
- non-current - 131,576 - 131,576 - - 131,576
- current - 3,190 - 3,190 - - 3,190
Interests in associates 382,146 - 937) 381,209 - 27,363 408,572
Investments in securities
- non-cuerent 1,778 - - 1,778 (1,778) - -
- current 173,284 - - 173.284 (173,284) - -
Available-for-sale investments - - - - 3,299 - 3,299
Investments held for trading - - - - 173,284 - 173.284
2,735,718 - (937) 2,734 781 1,521 27,363 2,763,665

Effects on equity:

Other reserve - - - - (1,113) (1,113)
Accumulated profits 253,898 - (937) 252,961 991 28,476 282,428

Minority interests 535,895 - - 535,895 530 - 536,425
789,793 — (937) 788,856 1,521 27,363 817,740
Note:

The share of effect of changes in accounting policies arose from the adoption of Int 2 “The Appropriate
Accounting Policies for Hotel Properties”, HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” and HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations™ by the Group’s associate.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group’s operations are currently organised into seven operating divisions
namely building construction, civil engineering, project management, facilities management, port and
infrastructure development, treasury investment and property investment. These divisions are the basis on
which the Group reports its primary segment information.

Business segment information for the six months ended 30 September 2005 is presented below:
Building Civil Project Facilities Treasury Property

construction  engineering management management  investment  investment Others  Eliminations Consolidated
HK$'000 HKS000 HK§'000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

TURNOVER
External 1,008,967 438,146 6,044 1,919 307,639 28,79 - - 1,791,511
[nter-segment - 50210 - - - 9,659 - (59.869) -
Total 1.008,967 488,356 6.044 1919 307.639 38.455 - (59.86%) 179131
RESULT
Segment result 17,356 14270 1 800 1702 13 776 14656 - 103.659
Interest income 17417
Increase in fair value of
investment properties - - - - - 85.400 - - 83,400
Unallocated torporate
expenses (31,182)
Finance costs (6,020
Loss on disposal of
subsidiaries [£9)]
Write back of impairment loss
on inferest in an associate - - - - 23189 - - - 23.289
Share of results of associates 620 3] 608 - (23,339 - - - (22.080)
Share of results of jointly
controlled entities 260 1,341 - - - - - - 2,101
Profit before taxation 174.362
——
Business segment information for the six months ended 30 September 2004 is presented below:
Buildiag Civil Project Facilities Treasury Property
construction  engineering management management  investment  investment Others Eliminations Consolidated

HKS§ 000 HK§'000 HKS°000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000

TURNOVER
External 1,251,056 406,565 - - - 21,262 - - 1,678.883
Inter-segment - 1,810 - - - 187 - (9.686) -
Total 1,251,056 408,375 - - - 29.138 - (0.636)  1,678.883
RESULT
Segment result 12,047 30267 - - PR ) — 55,795
Tnterest income 20,344
Unallocated corporate

expenses (36,667)
Finance costs {2,900)
Lass on dilution of interests

in associates - - - - - - (13,004) - (15.004)
Share of results of associates 1938 (&) - - - - 23,740 - 25,673
Share of results of joindly

controlled entities - 118 - - - - - - 118
Profit before taxation 47.359

L]

Inter-segment revenue is charged at market price or, where no market price is available, at terms determined
and agreed by both parties. -

There is no contribution to the Group’s turnover and results from business segment of port and infrastructure
development during both periods.
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5.

OTHER INCOME

Gain on disposal of investment properties
Interest income
Recovery of interest and legal expenses
in connection with a court action against
an ex-shareholder of a former associate
Dividend income
Write back of allowance for doubtful debts

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment
Owned assets
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts in progress

Amortisation of goodwill (included in administrative expenses)
Decrease in fair value of investments held for trading
Loss on disposal of investments in securities
Unrealised holding loss on listed other investments
Share of taxation of assaciates
(included in share of results of associates)
Share of taxation of jointly controlled entities
" (included in share of results of jointly controlled entities)

TAXATION

The charge comprises:

Hong Kong Profits Tax:
Current period
Underprovision in prior periods

Overseas taxation
Deferred taxation

Six months ended
30 September

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$’000
- 1,129

17,477 20,344
79,928 -

- 356

4,501 -
101,906 21,829

Six months ended
30 September

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000
19,318 27,958
(1,215) (799)
18,103 27,159
- 1,153
4,029 -
- 1,579

- 8,143

446 23,108
390 —

Six months ended
30 September

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,871 21
3,197 -
5,068 21

- 1,177

4,353 7,629
9,421 8,827

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5% (2004: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits

for the period.

Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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10.

11.

DIVIDENDS

Six months ended
30 September

2005 2004
HK$°000 HK3$000

Interim dividend - 1.5 cent
(2004: 1.5 cent) per share 20,380 20,538

The amount of the interim dividend declared for the six months ended 30 September 2005 has been calculated
by reference to the 1,358,675,436 issued ordinary shares outstanding as at 30 September 2005.

A special cash dividend of HK70 cents per share amounting to approximately HK$957,177,000 (six months
ended 30 September 2004: Nil) was declared by the board of directors and was paid during the period. In
addition, a final dividend of HK1.5 cents (year ended 31 March 2004: HK1.5 cents) per share amounting to
approximately HK$20,380,000 for the year ended 31 March 2005, was approved by, and became payable to,
the shareholders during the period.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company
for the period is based on the following data:

Six months ended
30 September

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
Earnings:
Earnings for the purposes of basic earnings per share 149,280 38,144
Number of shares:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic earnings per share 1,365,282,332 1,345,249,019

No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both periods as the exercise prices of the Company’s
share options were higher than the average market price per share for the six months ended 30 September
2005 and no potential ordinary shares were outstanding during the six months ended 30 September 2004.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the period, the Group spent approximately HK$7,848,000 (2004: HK$4,143,000) on property, plant
and equipment to expand and upgrade its operating capacity. The Group also disposed of property, plant and
equipment with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$2,912,000 (2004: HK$2,373,000).

Investment properties were valued at their open market values at 30 September 2005 by an independent
professional valuer on an open market existing use basis. This revaluation gave rise to an increase of
HK$85,400,000 which was credited to the income statement during the period.

PROJECT UNDER DEVELOPMENT

30.9.2005 31.3.2005
HK$'000 HK3$'000
Sea use rights 1,662,216 1,669,907
Development costs 209,987 136,559
1,872,203 1,806,466

Less: Current portion of sea use rights shown
under current assets (34,200) (34,011)
Amount shown under non-current assets 1,838,003 1,772,455

The development project is located in Jiangsu Province, the People’s Republic of China.
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12.

13.

14.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

30.9.2008 31.3.2005
HK$'000 HK$'000

Share of net assets: :
Listed shares in Hong Kong 380,521 370,977
Unlisted shares 38,487 37,146
419,008 408,123
Less: Impairment loss recognised (3,625) (26,914)
415,383 381,209
Market value of listed shares in Hong Kong 214,820 139,763

The listed shares in Hong Kong represent the Group’s 29.36% (31.3.2005: 29.36%) equity interest in China
Strategic Holdings Limited (“China Strategic”). The Group’s share of net assets in China Strategic at 30
September 2005 is calculated based on their net assets at 30 June 2005 as shown in its latest published
interim report.

During the period, the directors have assessed the estimated recoverable amount of China Strategic based on
the terms of the scheme of group reorganisation as set out in its circular dated 10 September 2005. Accordingly,
an impairment loss of HK$23,289,000 previously recognised has been written back in the income statement.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

The Group’s credit terms for contracting business are negotiated at terms determined and agreed with its
trade customers. Trade debtors arising from property leasing business are payable monthly in advance and
the credit terms granted by the Group to other trade debtors normally range from 30 days to 90 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors at the reporting date:

‘ 30.9.2005 31.3.2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within 90 days 248,511 329,058
More than 90 days and within 180 days 16,345 2,839
More than 180 days 67,600 67,663
332,456 399.560

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments is an amount of approximately HK$132,164,000 (31.3.2005:
HKS$449,174,000) which represents the balance of proceeds from disposal of interest in Downer EDI Limited
(“Downer”), a former associate of the Group, deposited with a broker in Australia. The amount was withheld
by the Australian Taxation Office until the clearance of all tax liabilities arising from the disposal of
Downer’s shares. During the period, an amount of approximately HK$317,010,000 was paid to the Australian
Taxation Office out of the deposits with the broker.

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors at the reporting date:

30.9.2005 31.3.2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within 90 days 214,699 218,556
More than 90 days and within 180 days 4,976 1,129
More than 180 days 14,741 17,058
234,416 236,743
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15.

16.

17.

SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid

Number
of shares Value
HK3$’000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each:
At 1 April 2005 1,369,195,436 136,920
Shares repurchased and cancelled (10,520,000) (1,052)
At 30 September 2005 1,358,675,436 135,868

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
During the period, the Group disposed of certain subsidiaries which were engaged in property development.

The effects of the disposals are summarised as follows:

Six months ended
30 September

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK3’'000
Net assets disposed of 82,277 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (82) -
Total consideration 82,195 -
e — —
Satisfied by:
Cash 75,360 -
Balance of consideration included in debtors,
deposits and prepayments 6,835 -
82,195 -
Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash received 75,360 -
Bank balances and cash disposed of (5,887) -
69,473 -

The subsidiaries disposed of did not make any significant contribution to the results of the Group during the
period.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

30.9.2005 31.3.2005
HK$'000 HKS$'000

Outstanding performance bonds in respect
of construction contracts 130,908 310,503
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18.

19.

20.

COMMITMENTS
30.9.2005 31.3.2005
HK$’000 HK3$'000
Expenditure contracted for but not provided
for in the financial statements in respect
of acquisition of:
- Property, plant and equipment 41,388 90,710
— Equity investments - 48,126
41,388 138,836

In addition, the Group entered into a conditional agreement dated 12 August 2005 to invest an amount of
approximately HK$417,000,000 for the acquisition of a 45% equity interest in Nantong Port Group Limited,
a state-owned enterprise engaged in providing cargo loading, storage, shipping agent and other related
services in the People’s Republic of China. Details of this transaction are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 22 August 2005.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the period, the Group entered into the following transactions with its related companies:

Six months ended
30 September

2005 2004
Class of related party Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
Associates and jointly Construction works charged by the Group - 41,820
controlled entities of Purchase of concrete products by the Group 112 36
the Group Subcontracting fees charged to the Group - 1,917
Interest income charged by the Group 7,030 6,136
Project management fee, consulting and handling
fees charged by the Group 854 1,136
Rentals and related building management fee
charged by the Group - 861
Service fee charged to the Group 5 i
Subsidiaries of ITC Rentals and related building management fee
Corporation Limited charged by the Group 35 336
(“ITC™) Purchase of building materials and related
installation works by the Group - 16
Rental income charged by the Group 210 : -
Associates of ITC Rentals and related building management fee
charged by the Group 1,062 611
Interest income charged by the Group 7,892 5,241
Other related companies  Rentals and related building management fee
charged by the Group 2,290 2,781
Interest income charged by the Group 6,064 4,169
Service fee charged to the Group 72 1,150
Minority shareholder of a Interest charged to the Group 9,065 -
subsidiary

Other related companies are companies under common directorship or common control with [TC.
SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to 30 September 20035, the Group entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with a
joint venture company effectively owned by Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., Capital Strategic Investment
Limited and Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, for the disposal of the
Group’s subsidiaries owning entire interest in certain leasehold properties and investment properties with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$723,000,000 at 30 September 2005 at an agreed gross value
of approximately HK$780,000,000. Details of this transaction were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 November 2005.
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4, INDEBTEDNESS

At the close of business on 31 October 2005 (being the latest practicable date for the purpose of
this indebtedness statement prior to printing of this circular), the Group had outstanding borrowings of
approximately HK$830 million which were not guaranteed by any third parties. This amount consisted of
unsecured bank overdrafts of approximately HK$37 million, bank loans of approximately HK$620 million
of which HK$496 million was secured by property interests and certain bank balances of the Group and
an unsecured loan of HK$173 million from a minority shareholder of a 90.1% owned subsidiary of the
Group.

In addition, as at 31 October 2005, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of outstanding
performance bonds on construction contracts of the Group of approximately HK$186 million.

Save as set out in the preceding paragraphs and apart from intra-group liabilities and normal trade
payables and bills payable, none of the companies of the Group had outstanding as at the close of
business of 31 October 2005 any mortgages, charges, debentures, loan capital, debt securities (whether
issued and outstanding, and authorised or otherwise created but unissued), term loans and overdrafts, or
other similar indebtedness, finance leases or hire purchase commitments, liabilities under acceptances or
acceptances credits or other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of borrowings or any guarantees or
other material contingent liabilities.

For the purpose of the above indebtedness statement, foreign currency amounts have been translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the approximate exchange rates prevailing at the close of business on 31
October 2005.

There has been no material change in the indebtedness or contingent liabilities of the Group since
31 October 2005.

S. WORKING CAPITAL

The Directors are of the opinion that, after taking into account the internal resources available to
the Group, the net estimated proceeds of the Disposal and in the absence of unforeseen circumstances, the
Group has sufficient working capital for its present requirements for the next twelve months from the
date of this circular.

6. MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE
Up to the Latest Practicable Date, the Board was not aware of any material adverse change in the

financial or trading position of the Group since 31 March 2003, the date to which the latest audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group were made up.
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The following is a text of a letter and valuation certificate prepared by RHL Appraisal Lid., an
independent valuer for the purpose of inclusion in this circular.

m RHI. Appraisal Ltd.
Member of RHL International Property Consultants ﬂ( *'J ﬁ %iSF {E @ m ﬁ m /L\\ ﬁj

XHITERDEENEER B ) B BT - Al {H B - - oHb FR % 2 B R
HFHIILTELRWEHEITITI0OL0E

23 December 2005

The Directors

Cycle Company Limited and Gunnell Properties Limited
31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre

51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,
RE: VALUATION OF PAUL Y. CENTRE, 51 HUNG TO ROAD, KWUN TONG, KOWLOON
1. INSTRUCTION

In accordance with the instructions from Cycle Company Limited and Gunnell Properties Limited
(referred to as the “Companies”) for us to value the above property (referred to as the “Property”), we
confirm that we have carried out inspection, made relevant enquiries and obtained such further information
as we consider necessary for the purpose of providing our opinion of the market value of such property
interest as at 15 November 2005 (referred to as the “valuation date”) for disposal purposes.

2. BASIS OF VALUATION

The valuation is our opinion of the market value which we would define as intended to mean the
estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer
and a willing seller in an arm’s — length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each
acted knowledgeably prudently and without compulsion.

3. VALUATION METHODOLOGY

In valuing the Property, the direct comparison method is adopted where comparison based on
prices realized on actual sales of comparable properties is made. Comparable properties of similar size,
character and location are analyzed and carefully weighed against all the respective advantages and
disadvantages of each property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of capital values.

Since portion of the Property is let to third parties, we have also valued the property interest on
the basis of capitalization of the net rental incomes with due allowance for reversionary income potential.

4. ASSUMPTION

Our valuation has been made on the assumption that the owner sells the Property interest on the
open market in their existing state without the benefit of deferred terms contracts, leaseback, joint
ventures, management agreements or any similar arrangements which would serve to affect the value of
the Property.

We have assumed that the owners have free and uninterrupted rights to use the Property for the
whole of the unexpired term of its Government Lease.

5. TITLE INVESTIGATION

We have caused searches to be made at the appropriate Land Registries for the Property. However,
we have not inspected the original document to verify ownership nor to verify the existence of any lease
amendments which do not appear on the copies handed to us. All documents and Government Lease have
been used for reference only. No responsibility is assumed for any legal matter regarding the Property.
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6. LIMITING CONDITIONS

We have inspected the exterior of the Property valued but no structural survey has been made. In
the course of our inspection, we did not note any serious defects. We are not, however, able to report that
the Property is free from rot, infestation or any other structural defects. No tests were carried out on any
of the services. All dimension, measurements and areas are based on the information supplied by the
Companies and where possible, they will be verified by us by referring to the copies of documents
available to us.

We have relied to a considerable extent on the information provided by the Companies and have
accepted advice given to us by the Companies on such matters as statutory notices, easements, tenure,
occupancy and floor areas and in the identification of the Property in which the Companies has a valid
interest.

We have no reason to doubt the truth and accuracy of the information as provided to us by the
Companies. We have relied on your confirmation that no material facts have been omitted from the
information supplied.

No allowance has been made in our valuation for any charges, mortgages or amount owing on the
Property nor for any expense or taxation which may be incurred in effecting a sale. We have assumed that
the Property is free from encumbrances, restrictions and outgoings of an onerous nature which could
affect its value.

No reference to our name or our report in whole or in part, in any document you prepare and/or
distribute to third parties may be made without our written consent.

7. OPINION OF OPEN MARKET VALUE

In view of the above, we are of the opinion that the market value of the Property as at the date of
valuation, subject to the existing tenancies and free of any encumbrances, is in the sum of HK$772,000,000.-
(HONG KONG DOLLARS SEVEN HUNDRED AND SEVENTY TWO MILLION ONLY).

In this valuation, we have complied with all the requirements contained in Chapter 5 of the rules
governing the listing of securities issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited; the RICS
Appraisal and Valuation Standards (5th Edition) published by the Royal Institution of Surveyors and
effective from May 2003 and the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties (1st Edition) published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and effective from 1 January 2005.

We enclose herewith the valuation certificate.
Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of
RHL Appraisal Ltd.

Tse Wai Leung Sandra S. W. Lau
MFin BSc MRICS MHKIS RPS(GP) MFin MHKIS AAPI RPS(GP)
Director Director

TWL/SL/yh

Tse Wai Leung, who is a member of the Royal Institution of Charrered Surveyors, a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyor, a Registered Professional Surveyor in General Practice and a qualified
real estate appraiser in the PRC and Sandra S. W. Lau, who is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyor, an Associate of the Australian Property Institute and a Registered Professional Surveyor in
General Practice, have over ten years’ experience in valuation of properties in Hong Kong, in Macau and
in the PRC.

Encl.
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VALUATION ON THE PROPERTY

Property

Paul Y. Centre

51 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong
Kowloon.

Kwun Tong
Inland Lot 734.

Notes:

1. The registered owner of the Property is Cycle Company Limited (tenant-in-common of 1/3 share) and Gunnell
Properties Limited (tenant-in-common of 2/3 share).

2. The Property is subject to a Debenture and a Supplement to Debenture both in favour of Bank of China (Hong Kong)

Limited via memorial nos. 6938478 dated 23 January 1997 and memorial no. 8595309 dated 17 January 2002

respectively.

VALUATION CERTIFICATE

Description and tenure

The Property comprises a
29-storey industrial / office
building, including 6-storey
car parking floors for
private cars, trucks and
containers. The building
was completed in 1996.

The total gross floor area
of the Property is
approximately 377,443
square feet.

A schedule of use and gross
floor area of the subject
building is set out as

follows:

Gross
Floor Uses Floor Area

(sq.ft.)
G/F CP&IO 7,325
T/E-12/F 110 95,880
15/F-22/F 1/0 127,840
23/F 110 15,718
25/F /0 16,335
26/F-31/F 10 98,010
33(F 10 16,335

Total: 377,443

(No 4/F, 13/F, 14/F, 24/F

and 32/F)
C.P. - Car Park
/0 - Industrial/Office

The Property is held under
Conditions of Exchange
No.12413 with a term
commencing on 9 October
1996 and to expire on 30
June 2047.
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Particulars of occupancy

As at the valuation date,
some of the units on ground
floor and the upper floors
having a total gross floor
area of approximately
250,800 square feet were
subject to various tenancy
agreements with the latest
term expiring on 30 April
2008 at a total monthly rent
of approximately
HK$2,473,000 (exclusive of
management fee and air-
conditioning charges, rates,
Government rent and other
outgoings).

In addition, the carparking
spaces were subject to
various monthly tenancies /
licences.

The remaining portion of
the Property is either
vacant or owner-occupied.

Capital value in
existing state

15 November 2005

HK$772,000,000
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose of
giving information with regard to PYI. The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility
for the accuracy of the information contained in this circular and confirm, having made all reasonable
inquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no other facts the omission of which
would make any statement herein misleading.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF PIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8§ of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
and the Model Code and which were required to be entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, were as follows:

(A) The Company

(1) Interest in Shares

Approximate

percentage of the

Name of Director/ Long position/ Number of existing issued share

chief executive Capacity short position Shares held capital of the Company

Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 544,373,242 39.8%
Charles corporation (Note)

Chan Kwok Keung,  Beneficial owner Long position 11,840,896 0.87%

Charles

Note: Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed to be interested in 544,373,242 Shares by virtue
of his shareholding in Chinaview International Limited (“Chinaview”). Galaxyway Investments
Limited (“Galaxyway”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinaview, owned approximately
33.55% of the issued ordinary share capital of ITC which in turn owned the entire issued
share capital of ITC Investment Holdings Limited (“ITC Investment”). Hollyfield Group
Limited (“Hollyfield”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment, owned these Shares.

(2)  Options to subscribe for Shares

Approximate

Number of  percentage of

underlying the existing

Exercise Shares issued share

Name of Director/ price comprised capital of the

chief executive Date of grant  Exercisable period per Share in the options Company
HKS

Chow Ming Kuen,  28.12.2004 28.12.2004 t0 26.08.2012 1.94 650,000 0.048%

Joseph 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to 26.08.2012 2.20 650,000 0.048%

Tom Ko Yuen Lau  28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to 26.08.2012 1.94 6,500,000 0.475%

28.12.2004 28.12.2004 t0 26.08.2012 2.20 6,500,000 0.475%

Kwok Shiu Keung, ~ 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 10 26.08.2012 1.94 650,000 0.048%

Ernest 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 t0 26.08.2012 220 650,000 0.048%

Chan Shu Kin 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to 26.08.2012 1.94 650,000 0.048%

28.12,2004 28.12.2004 to 26.08.2012 2.20 650,000 0.048%
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(B) Associated corporations

(1) PaulY. Engineering

Number of Approximate
underlying shares percentage of
(in respect of the the existing
unlisted equity issued share
Number of derivatives) of capital of
Name of Director/ Long position/  shares of Paul Y. Paul Y. Paul Y.
chief executive Capacity short position ~ Engineering held Engineering held Engineering
Chan Kwok Keung,  Interest of Long position 375,826,317 - 64.83%
Charles controlled
corporation
{Note)
Chan Kwok Keung,  Interest of Long position - 100,000,000 17.25%
Charles controlled
corporation
(Note)

Note: The shares of Paul Y. Engineering were held by Paul Y. Investments Limited, an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company also directly held an interest in
100,000,000 underlying shares of Paul Y. Engineering by virtue of a loan facility, pursuant to
which convertible note(s) will be issued by Paul Y. Engineering upon draw down of the
facility in the principal amount of the facility drawn. Such convertible notes are convertible
into shares of Paul Y. Engineering at an initial conversion price of HK$1.00 per share, up to
a maximum aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000. By virtue of his deemed interests
in approximately 33.55% of the issued ordinary share capital of ITC and hence in the Company,
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed to be interested in these shares and underlying
shares of Paul Y. Engineering.

(2)  China Strategic Holdings Limited (“China Strategic”)

Approximate

Number of percentage of the

Name of Director/ Long position/ shares of China existing issued share
chief executive Capacity shert position Strategic held  capital of China Strategic
Chan Kwok Keung,  Interest of controlled Long position 258,819,795 29.36%

Charles corporation (Note)

Note: The shares of China Strategic were held by Calisan Development Limited, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. By virtue of his deemed interests in approximately 33.55%
of the issued ordinary share capital of ITC and hence in the Company, Dr. Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles was deemed to be interested in these shares of China Strategic.

The Company entered into a conditional share sale agreement on 10 March 2005 for the
disposal of 135,000,000 shares of China Strategic. The disposal was not yet completed as at
the Latest Practicable Date.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, according to the register of interest kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the Directors and the chief executive of the Company,
the following are details of the persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who were, directly or
indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital (including any
option in respect of such capital) carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any
other member of the Group:

(A) The Company
(1)  Substantial Shareholders
Approximate

percentage of
the existing

Long position/

Number of
shares of the

issued share
capital of the

Name of Shareholder Capacity short position Company held Company
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 544,373,242 39.8%
Charles corporation (Note)
Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 11,840,896 0.87%
Charles
Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse (Note) Long position 556,214,138 40.67%
Chinaview Interest of controlled Long position 544,373,242 39.8%
corporation (Note)
Galaxyway Interest of controlled Long position 544,373,242 39.8%
corporation (Note)
ITC Interest of controlled Long position 544,373,242 39.8%
corporation (Note) .
ITC Investment Interest of controlled Long position 544,373,242 39.8%
corporation {Note)
Hollyfield Beneficial owner (Note) Long position 544,373,242 39.8%

Note: Hollyfield, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment (which was in turn a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ITC), owned 544,373,242 Shares. Galaxyway, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinaview, owned 33.55% of the issued ordinary share capital of ITC. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles owned the entire issued share capital of Chinaview. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles,
Chinaview, Galaxyway, ITC and ITC Investment were therefore all deemed to be interested
in the said 544,373,242 Shares held by Hollyfield. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy, the spouse of Dr.
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, was deemed to be interested in the said 544,373,242 Shares held
by Hollyfield and 11,840,896 Shares held directly by Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles.
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(2) Other Shareholders

Approximate
percentage of the
existing issued

Long position/ Number of share capital

Name of Shareholder Capacity short position Shares held of the Company

Aeneas Capital Investment manager Long position 119,355,009 8.73%
Management LP

Deutsche Bank Beneficial owner Long position 57,722,476 4.22%
Aktiengesellschaft

Deutsche Bank Beneficial owner Short position 600,000 0.04%
Aktiengesellschaft

Deutsche Bank Security interest Long position 106,541,189 7.79%
Aktiengesellschaft

Gandhara Advisors Investment manager Long position 88,294,800 6.46%
Asia Ltd o/c Gandhara
Master Fund Ltd

Toggenburger Christian Beneficial owner Long position 82,027,653 6.00%
Emil

0Z Management, L.L.C.  Investment manager Long position 81,646,000 5.97%

(B) Other members of the Group

Approximate percentage
of the existing issued
share capital/

Name of subsidiary Name of shareholder registered capital
Associate Marble Maintenance Lam Shing Wing 40.0%
And Service Company Limited
D & C Engineering (H.K.) Limited Artery Construction 45.0%
Management Limited
Jiangsu YangKou Port Development MIRERBHEREAREMELHT 40.0%
and Investment Co., Ltd.
Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and NREREHEREARELLA 40.0%
Development Co., Ltd.
Paul Y. - CCECC Joint Venture China Civil Engineering Construction 40.0%
Corporation
Paul Y. - CREC Engineering China Railway Engineering Corporation 30.0%
Co., Limited
Paul Y. - CREC Joint Venture China Railway Engineering Corporation 30.0%
Paul Y. - CREC(HK) Joint Venture China Railway Engineering Corporation 40.0%
Skynet Limited Icon Master Enterprises Limited 18.1%

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company are not aware that
there is any party who, as at the Latest Practicable Date, had an interest or short positions in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings
of any other member of the Group or had any options in respect of such Shares.

_76 -




APPENDIX III GENERAL INFORMATION

SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had entered into any service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors was materially interested in any contract or arrangement entered into by any
member of the Group since 31 March 2005, being the date to which the latest audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company were made up, or subsisting as at the Latest Practicable Date, and
which was significant in relation to the business of the Group as a whole.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN ASSETS

None of the Directors has since 31 March 2005, being the date to which the latest audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company were made up, any direct or indirect interest in any
assets which have been acquired or disposed of by or leased to any member of the Group, or are proposed
to be acquired or disposed of by or leased to any member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or their respective associates are interested
in any business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

MATERIAL CHANGE

The Directors confirm that there has been no material adverse change in the financial or trading
position of the Group since 31 March 2005, being the date to which the latest audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company were made up.

LITIGATION

The Group has succeeded in its claim against an ex-shareholder of the Company under a guarantee
to recover losses incurred by an associated company of the Company amounting to approximately
HK$123,711,000. The Group was given judgment against the ex-shareholder on 18 July 2005 for these
losses, together with interest and costs incurred, in the total sum of approximately HK$210 million. The
ex-shareholder has made full payment, but has also lodged an appeal against the judgment. The appeal
will be heard in October 2006.

Save as disclosed above, no member of the Group was engaged in any litigation or arbitration of
material importance as at the Latest Practicable Date and there was no litigation or claim of material
importance known to the Directors to be pending or threatened by or against any member of the Group.

QUALIFICATION AND CONSENT OF EXPERT

The following are the qualification of the professional advisers who have given opinions or advice
contained in this circular:

Name Qualification
RHL Appraisal Ltd. Chartered surveyor

The Valuer has given and has not withdrawn its written consents to the issue of this circular with
the inclusion of its report and letter (if any), as the case may be, and references to its name in the form
and context in which it appear.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Valuer does not have any shareholding interest in any
member of the Group or any right, whether legally enforceable or not, to subscribe for or to nominate
persons to subscribe for securities in any member of the Group.

The Valuer does not have, since 31 March 2005, being the date to which the latest audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company were made up, any direct or indirect interest in any
assets acquired or disposed of by or leased to or proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or leased to
any member of the Group.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business of the
Group, have been entered into by the Group within 2 years preceding the date of the Announcement and
up to the Latest Practicable Date and are, or may be, material:

ey

(i)

(ii1)

(iv)

v)

()

(vii)

(viii)

the conditional sale and purchase agreement dated 27 March 2004 entered into between
Growing Success Limited (“Growing Success”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
and Wellington Equities Inc. (“Wellington™) as varied and supplemented by three supplemental
agreements entered into between the same parties dated 29 March 2004, 21 June 2004 and
20 October 2004 respectively, pursuant to which Growing Success agreed to acquire from
Wellington the entire issued share capital of Hidden Advantage Investments Limited
(“Hidden™) together with the outstanding shareholder’s loan due by Hidden to Wellington
(“Hidden Interest”) at a total consideration of HK$30,000,000;

the conditional sale and purchase agreement dated 29 March 2004 entered into between Paul
Y. Engineering (formerly known as “Skynet (International Group) Holdings Limited”) and
the Company (“Hidden Agreement”) as supplemented and varied by three supplemental
agreements entered into between the same parties dated 25 June 2004, 30 August 2004 and
20 October 2004 respectively, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to dispose of the
Hidden Interest to Paul Y. Engineering at a consideration of HK$113,600,000;

the conditional sale and purchase agreement dated 29 March 2004 entered into between Paul
Y. Engineering and the Company (“Acquisition Agreement”) as varied and supplemented by
three supplemental agreements entered into between the same parties dated 25 June 2004, 30
August 2004 and 20 October 2004 respectively, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to sell the the entire issued share capital of Paul Y. - ITC Construction
Holdings (B.V.I.) Limited (“Paul Y Construction”) and the shareholder’s loan owing by Paul
Y Construction to the Company to Paul Y. Engineering in consideration of the 400,000,000
new ordinary share(s) of HK$0.5 each in the share capital of Paul Y. Engineering
(“Consolidated Shares”);

the underwriting agreement dated 29 March 2004 entered into between the Company as
underwriter and Paul Y. Engineering as issuer (“Underwriting Agreement”) in relation to the
underwriting of up to 45,070,995 new Consolidated Share(s) to be issued under a proposed
open offer as varied and supplemented by three supplemental agreements entered into between
the same parties dated 25 June 2004, 30 August 2004 and 20 October 2004 respectively;

the sale and purchase agreement dated 30 March 2004 entered into between Century Harbour
Limited (“Century Harbour”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and now known as
PYI Port Limited) and Steady Forth Limited (“Steady Forth™) in relation to the acquisition
by Century Harbour from Steady Forth of 90.1% of the issued share capital of, and all
shareholders’ loans to, Global Achiever Limited (“Global Achiever”), which holds indirectly
a 60% interests in Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Yangtong Investment”) for a consideration of HK$396 million. Century Harbour also
undertook to advance to Global Achiever an amount up to US$16 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$124.8 million) to enable it or its subsidiary to pay up its proportion of
the registered capital of Jiangsu Yangtong Investment;

the Placing Agreement dated 30 August 2004 entered into between Paul Y. Engineering and
Tai Fook Securities Company Limited as placing agent for the placing of 141,530,000 New
Consolidated Shares at a price of HK$1.0 per new Consolidated Share;

the settlement agreement dated 29 November 2004 entered into between the Company,
Pembinaan DGL Holdings Sdn. Bhd. (“Pembinaan”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and the grantee in relation to the exercise of option over the consolidated shares
in Downer EDI Limited (“Downer”) under the incentive option agreement dated 28 April
2003 entered into between the Company, Pembinaan and the grantee;

the agreement entered into between the Company, Pembinaan and UBS AG, Australia Branch
(“UBS”) in relation to the disposal by the Group of approximately 56.2 million shares in
Downer on 14 December 2004 through UBS for gross proceeds of approximately A$255.8
million, which were equivalent to approximately HK$1,504 million;
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(ix) the placing agreement dated 24 January 2005 entered into between the Company and Tai
Fook Securities Company Limited in relation to the placing of 156,000,000 Consolidated
Shares at a placing price of HK$1.0 per Consolidated Share;

(x) the sale and purchase agreement dated 10 March 2005 entered into between the Company,
Hanny Holdings Limited and Nation Field Limited in relation to the disposal of 135 million
shares in China Strategic for a consideration of HK$26,055,000;

(x1) the conditional agreement dated 12 August 2005 entered into between Paul Y. Corporation
Limited (“Paul Y”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), State-owned Assets
Supervision And Administration Commission of Nantong Municipal Government, SDIC
Transportation Co. and Nantong Port Group Limited (“Nantong Port Group”) in relation to
the proposed investment in Nantong Port Group by Paul Y. by way of injection of
approximately RMB4335 million, which was equivalent to approximately HK$417 million,
into Nantong Port Group; and

(xi1) the S&P Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS

(1) The qualified accountant of the Company is Mr. Wong Yiu Hung, CPA, FCCA.

(i1)  The secretary of the Company is Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa, LL.B., LL.M., MCF, a qualified solicitor in
Hong Kong and England and Wales.

(iii) The registered office of the Company is at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda and the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is at 31st Floor, Paul
Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

(iv) The principal share registrars and transfer office of the Company is Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited of Rosebank Centre, 11 Bermudiana Road, Pembroke, Bermuda and the branch
share registrars and transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong is Secretaries Limited at Ground
Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

(v)  The English text of this circular shall prevail over the Chinese text for the purpose of interpretation.

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection during normal business hours at the

head office and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at 31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre,
51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong up to and including the date of SGM and at the

SGM:

(1 the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company;

(ii)  the written consent of the Valuer, referred to in paragraph headed “Qualification and consent
of expert” of this Appendix;

(iii)  the audited consolidated financial statement of the Group for the two years ended 31 March
2005 and 2004, the text of which is set out in Appendix I to this circular;

(iv) the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 September 2005;

(v)  the valuation report on the Property, the text of which is set out in Appendix II to this
circular;

(vi) the material contracts referred to under the paragraph headed “Material contracts” in this
Appendix;

(vii) the following circular issued by the Company pursuant to the requirements set out under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules since 31 March 2005, being the date to which the latest
published audited consolidated financial statements of the Group were made up:

- the circular dated 22 August 2005 containing, inter alia, certain information regarding

a discloseable transaction arising from the Company’s investment in Nantong Port
Group.
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NOTICE OF SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

10D

PYI1 Corporation Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 498)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special general meeting of PYI Corporation Limited (the
“Company”) will be held at Harcourt Room, 1/F Hong Kong Club, 1 Jackson Road, Central, Hong Kong
on Monday, 16 January 2006 at 4:30 p.m. for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the
following resolution (with or without modifications) as an ordinary resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
“THAT:

(a) the conditional sale and purchase agreement (“S&P Agreement”) dated 23 November 2005
entered into between PYI Properties Group Limited (“Seller”) as vendor and Gain Resources
Limited as purchaser for the sale and purchase of the entire issued share capital of Linkport
Holdings Limited (“Linkport™) and all the shareholder’s loans due by Linkport and/or Cycle
Company Limited and Gunnell Properties Limited (collectively, the “Subsidiaries”) to the
Seller on completion of the S&P Agreement (“Completion™), other than the principal in the
aggregate amount of HK$117 million due by the Subsidiaries (a copy of which has been
produced to this meeting and marked “A” and initialled by the chairman of this meeting for
the purpose of identification) be and is hereby approved in all respects and that all the
transactions contemplated therein (including the deferred payment by way of the promissory
note of a face value of HK$117 million (“Promissory Note”, a draft of which has been
annexed as Schedule 9 of the S&P Agreement) to be issued by the Subsidiaries to the Seller
on Completion and the entering into of the rental guarantee by the Seller in favour of the
Subsidiaries and the Purchaser upon Completion (“Rental Guarantee”, a draft of which has
been annexed as Schedule 10 of the S&P Agreement)) be and are hereby approved; and

(b)  the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) be and they are hereby authorised to do all
such acts and things, to sign and execute all such further documents and to take such steps
as the Directors may in their absolute discretion consider necessary, appropriate, desirable
or expedient to give effect to or otherwise in connection with or incidental to the S&P
Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated therein (including the Promissory Note
and the Rental Guarantee).”

By Order of the Board
PYI Corporation Limited
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Company Secretary
Hong Kong, 23 December 2005

Principal place of business
in Hong Kong:

31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre

51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

As at the date hereof, the composition of the Board is as follows:

Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph (Independent Non-Executive Chairman)
Mr. Tom Ko Yuen Lau (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin (Independent Non-Executive Director)
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Notes:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above notice is entitled to appoint one or more
proxy to attend and, subject to the provisions of the bye-laws of the Company, vote in his/her behalf. A proxy need
not be a member of the Company.

A form of proxy for use at the special general meeting is enclosed. In order to be valid, the form of proxy must be
duly completed and signed in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and deposited together with a power
of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or
authority, at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To
Road, Kwun Tong, Kowioon, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or
the adjourned meeting (if any).
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5o R TR B A O o B AR
AHBEZERRRE > REEN
T T A 5 I O AR R )

%W‘uﬁ%
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B & = - RESR

BRZEZRAR

RERARBRATEN  REBALFAEHRELMMEROAEDBGFEZ ERE M
HMESRALAIZTHAENA - REBLE LB EGRHEXVIRE2REE30 B Z XA
MALNERENERZRGZEEROOERIRE > RERNEREA T EAE R T A
AEEEMEMEEARAZERAG ERBAERBEZATMER RA (E5F &R AR AE
A RERLHE) EEI0%H U EREZ AT NEFEFLALAEIETHAR) ZHBEHRIT

(A) EAT

(1) 2R R

EEAARE

#e/ #BELELE ERGRE

BRRESR 8 &4 KRR RGOBE Byas
B B THEHEEER (W) TR 544,373,242 39.8%
B B 38 HHEEEA HE 11,840,896 0.87%
{0 TE#E R (W) ) 556,214,138 40.67%
Chinaview FEMEEER (W) 08 544,373,242 39.8%
Galaxyway FHEHERES (W) HAE 544,373,242 39.8%
mrhE THEHEEES (Mi) T8 544,373,242 39.8%
ITC Investment FERHEEES W) T8 544,373,242 39.8%
Hollyfield EHRBEAAN (W) HA 544,373,242 39.8%

M3 ¢ ITC InvestmentZ 2 & Bf B 2 B Hollyfield# A 544,373,242 B {5 > T ITC Investment§l
BEXLEZEZEWMBE AR o ChinaviewZ 2 &M B A 7 GalaxywaylE T EE L XD
BEAT B A33.55% - BREIE 1§ L %A Chinaview®2 H E BT A& - UL BEEEHE
4 Chinaview * Galaxyway * &% /& # R ITC Investment¥ # # 1E 7 L ¥ Hollyfield B
BAEZ54433 242 s R ELR - MEBEM L2 EELAE L L HERER Lk
Hollyfield i $& 5 Z 544,373,242 1% {7 B B B 08 18 + B4R 35K 2 11,840,896 % M fr
HiER -
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M 5% = - REH
(B) HEEzM
1 #HEZE
BEREER
HERG GRER%
BB (58 By
Ezx ¥ BE/ RERERY ¥EHRE BREARZ
TRAGHZS 54 KE RO&®E fTATE) BATIHL
B TEHER e 375,826,317 - 64.83%
B3 (M)
BB & THHEE g - 100,000,000 17.25%
G (W)

(2)

Wi ZEREBEROGEALEZ—FRHE2EHE 2 fPaul Y. Investments LimitedF¥
B AREIE—EEFREZHEGF  RNESEHEREZEY 100,000,000 H G -
BEBLEZEXHME  RERETRAZEETEN T4 € B ET 100,000,000
BUAZUMBRER HEAF ABLIRNSEREERBMI00B TAbhFRERE
2 BG BEREERE LR ERCHE BT EERRAH33.55%M A
NELBEARALAFEZELR  UHERBLE R A SR ER LN ARG
ZHER .

TEREBRARNE ([FXR])

HREERE
Ex x8 3 - REDE CBRITRZE
TRAEH®S =2 KE ROBE HPESR
B 58 ZIRAEEER (M) HA 258,819,795 29.36%

M REPERGAELFZ — KM EL2EH B L T Calisan Developments Limited B F -
EXFEEE LR A EC BT S EREARY33.55%M > FEMLES
AATZHERE  RHEEEE T WHEREAZS R R M EiE -

BABR_ZBEEREZATHIT LI EEKERGEERSE  LEEFEZ
135,000,0008 By - REEEBATAH  KIEHER KT -

BREXEHEEES  REREETTEY BEFRTIENEARMERESSLHRE
BPIEXVIETRES D BRAL A BAL[AE SR AL RO EXVIRETE N AEE B Z R
HEEBOERERTHEAEMEEIORE > SUEAMLEI AR FREE S KR HEEIE352
TFLUFEZERM A ZEMERSIRE ST AR AR 8 < BT L 78 1 A 2 8] K2 BT A
WZAEABERIRE -
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M & = —REHR

RIEE8H

ABHTHENDER EAAHNRAAHEREER 2GR - ERHERAELIRZE
Kz IR RERRE2REE > WRIEE — 2 BEMRE > MRS TN EHEE
AERITBEBREMEE > RO BRRNZEMBREFRE -

EERIETBHABZREGRARE

O RBEEBTEEN > EERAAT EBFEOR R A F B 85 R e
XV 796 A0 B8 06 B 2 A0~ AR R R O TR o 45 AT R 48 5 L S B O U8 4 T AR 7S 8
857 T A e 57 A6 1) 7 A 7 % 6 50 T o 85 % 0 J B A 4 ) AR 6 2 5 T 9 0 0 09 38 352 0
FUFEZ BHM A2 R FAE (FEIRIEE S RS 00 2 4 B W S (E 5
B2 M SRR W

(A) EAF

(1) BHhH#Hs

HEQAFTRE

EE B g8/ ¥E BRITRAX

THRAEHR 54 8-} K& E BOUBLH

B B 5 T EE 351 544,373,242 39.8%
BER (W zx)

PR B o FHiEAa A Ta 11,840,896 0.87%

Bz 0 BEEYRR 1 1+ R A H Chinaview International Limited ( { Chinaview]) 2 B T #1185
4 544,373,242 B = ChinaviewZ 2 & it B 24 %] Galaxyway Investments Limited
(TGalaxyway)) BEAEH AR BT L BERM A 433.55% > MEHEREMHEFITC
Investment Holdings Limited ([1TC Investment)) £2# B BT & » ITC InvestmentZ
2 & it /8 2> Tl Hollyfield Group Limited ([Hollyfield]) Bl #EH ZE M 7 -

(2) BHMBRZ R

HEATEER

Ez/3E 8 BRESRZ BRTRE
THABESR RHBH Rid] TEE HRBRREE BREAk

AL

FE 28.12.2004 28.12.2004% 26.08.2012 1.94 650,000 0.048%
28.12.2004 28.12.2004Z 26.08.2012 220 650,000 0.048%

HER 28.12.2004 28.12.2004% 26.08.2012 1.94 6,500,000 0475%
28.12.2004 28.12.2004% 26.08.2012 2.0 6,500,000 0.475%

BT 28.12.2004 28.12.2004% 26.08.2012 .94 650,000 0.048%
28.12.2004 28.12.2004% 26.08.2012 220 650,000 0.048%

B e 28.12.2004 28.12.2004% 26.08.2012 1.94 650,000 0.048%
28.12.2004 28.12.2004% 26.08.2012 120 650,000 0.048%
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Bt g2 — Y] ¥ (4 E
HERE
R-ZBERF
+—B+3AH
BRTZ
L/ ¥R R 5B RS BXE
RESEP LD ZHEOE 2B E AMEEE S mTHEELE 772,000,000 T
JLHE TTEHNEYE MEZETEMN (BEAE
B g BECEMARE - BE  @H4H£250,800F
& EES5198 REEEERZER ) B AR AE A S
BB RKEE—LNLSN MH>BREZHEHIZPA
B EER - AEZZENENA=+
A H B 73458 H-BRAZHEEELH
TYEZAEEERA  3£2,473,0008 T (REE
$377,443F R - EHEBERERE =
i~ BLAF AR R oA
ZRKEZRERERE H) -
HREEZEFMTF :
oAb > JAE (7 TR #E
#8E RBIAM REFIHFAH
BE B# k- i
(FHR)
ZYEZRAFGERGT
BT CP& IO 13 Z=EBHABAELER-
TRENE Vo 95880
ISBE2E 110 127,840
238 o 15718
2518 0 16,335
26 E I o 98,010
334 Vo 16,335
BF 377,443
* (dMmakE - 134
1448 ~ 2448 2 3248)
CP. — f[FEIE
V0 — ITE/MAF
A E SRIISYTE: SR 3
HEE 1241355/ > 8
m—fLILASE+TANLA
HEZENELERA=
+Hit -
Wiz

1. HHMEZERELIARSEMRAT FEFEEE - (=42 —) KEGunnell Properties Limited (EF % F -

E=a22) -

ZHRDIVFARTEARLAAAZRAZEEERRABESHIAR  2REUFAAE-AALE

— A -+ =08 R e R A A EE_FE— A+t B#H 5HmEER595300 -
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i E AR

6. PR&IEMA

EERREZLEYMEZ IR B ERETEENE - SERHERER T > WEEHR
EABRERSE - A > BXEREELZYERETRERS  BESEMEMEHRERSR - 5%
TMEETEMEFXEAR - AR - BERAMYIRE BLFAFREZEMNAT &
WHRFLT  BENEREBESHERM I XHBIAMUERE -

ESERRBEELRE BAFEFERZER  EMh BARERTESZER
LB mAMECEE  EE S48 (hRAFRAEEEEUSRMNZY R RAFAEISZY

Kz AEHR) -

BERUREOEE BARARGUTFEEZZEHZEAEMLERE ST ER BL
B PRtr AR AR E T EE R -

FEZMEYEXEBZYETER LM ?&W IR SRIE > HEE EAE OB R
gﬁ%ﬁ%iZEﬂEﬁi&ﬁﬁ EEBRRZYWEM W?%’I%/%EEE{EZ§EE%E% R 1

ERBEBEEZEERZM - AR BTHERERBIRETE =T Z MM 5]

ll

MEBEEZZBERNEAREZ 2L -
7. ABTEZER

Berk btk - BERE
ZHEAEREXRFRAMBESE T (772,000 ooo,%x)

B 7
EHER BSCETEEHAXEMERAGZES LTHAUSESE - EEHERSTH

5 0 1 S B P A R (BT AR - B~ BE S TA B ER - bR i R AT
ZERHHEENEZGYRMGER M $:§2€£$~H~Hﬁﬁﬁé$§ﬁ) BT R 2R
E =)

LEMESEZMAEESE -
7=

g s
R 44 I o Rl o

ES15E

EEH O3S

= H IR 2~ B X Gunnell Properties Limited

¥ E &8

3
XRITIFEEBERQT
TF TF
HER L
MFin BSc MRICS MHKIS RPS(GP) MFin MHKIS AAPI RPS(GP)

ZEZERE+T+-_ARZT=H
TWL/SL/yh

HIERAABEZRANEGHEGETE AR THEEEE  aMELnsR(EEMNE)
BREPBEASEREREFEG - NFRAEEFAN TGS TR - BNV ERBTETRGTE REM
EEZMBH(EEMNT) - KREAEFR EMATEHESAEATORAAETELR -

W 4
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Bt & — I RCR

ATABLGEGRANAFEAMARDGARAA LB IAH LI J[HRLEHE

%

:m RHL Appraisal Ltd.

Member of RHL International Property Consultants j( *IJ 1_1‘ :;F {E @ rﬁ ﬁ m /\ j

AFOTERDEENEERE W Bk B - A 4B BT - L M 5% ¥ 2 A A
FBHNAUEARWIEHENITLI010E

BORCE

R AENANEBEESEEBSIRERELERD

1. EBFE

E % HE BIES A RA 7 X Gunnell Properties Limited (U T # B & AR )) f8x > $ il
W ([ ETHEE TERALCHZYEETHRERFLAHEN > WHEESERAA
FEZHAMER  UEERESHERDERGR _FZAF+—A+HB ((EERD 24
AMEZER FAHEZVEZZEER -
2. fHEEE=E

ESZHERHZYETEZEL - IBTHE  REEHMTEENMS - EEHETE
BEREFREETSHEEEERATRE A8 F70E  FHREHEBFR TR EERERSR
WEZMFHEE -
3. fEEFE

R EZYER > BERMTERLERE] MREBRETE LR SREREL L
B o E%ﬁ\*ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁl*ﬁﬁ MERMEZTELEYE  IFREEXEYESEZ—UE
B REUERATZERELE-

HRZEETETHOHCHATE= > U TS HELERHR - FAMESEA
BRBRAEARZTE > At AHABBEES KA ZES -

4. B®

EHZMENBREXEINAHMEEZYEZEARLEZYAELRE > MERFELRK
RKeH - EHEE - R0 FEURNEMEMUEY  UBBZYEZEE -

EXBRAHAXEINABTEHRBERERMHAAEEAAAX THIHERZD X -
5. HERE
ESCHZYERBEZ I MBEETER - AN ESYBEEEZYWEIRAEX

HLUESEBABERETHFERTESZRIARE BRI EMBELBRT - BiA X RBFE
RERK2E - BEAEHBYEMABELAEREL -
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B o — FEEZHBER

4, EX

MoZEERFE+TA=Z T A ELRMERF (NETNABRA > JESREFEV AT
HEHZEEERAAIT AR » AEEE WK EE B 3K 4830,000,000% T GRETMAE =Fit
IR IE ) - ZEE ﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%mommm%m $B 4T B 3K 9620,000,000% JT
(E #496,000,000% 7T M A< 45 E — E%%%m&ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ,& EmAEEER
90.1% % 2 7 Bt 8 1~ 7l 2 — U 7D B 3% R 4R i > 4% K 4 &£ 3K 173,000,000 7T -

ok > RZEEHETAZ+—H > AEBEH4186,000,000 C 2 HAEME > HH
AERZERTIRGAZETHARERBARESR -

BREXHBEELGEARBARAMZABE - RENE S A RBNREIN > RZF
TRETA=ZT - HEXRHHERF $%@YT%&E®T%ﬁEﬁﬁ%E%ZE% iy
woEE - BEEER - BEHEER (THETCBITEIMARNSR REREBRTHERILEM
REAT) - AMERBIES ﬁEﬁﬁUﬁ% M%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%% AMEHHALEE
HEMENEBEIEEZEHF R MERIAMERSARE -

MER T REFBERNE AR ENE _FFAFTA=Z T -HEXRHGERER
A AR ERERETT -

BEFLE+TA=Z1T—BUR > FRBZEEXSIAERETETTERES -
5, #ER®

ARNRERERS > LT AAEETEH A2 A MG R HIEST S EREZHE
WS R BT TR 2 SR o 7 B A B ISk B AR %K+ BAR
AEBHEENEEESRMBARNEAT -
6. EXFTHNES

BERARAAAAAL BEERUAREAEH I MBAEFRRNE-FTZTAEFE=

g§+~ HEALRAREHET BRERGEMBHRRIEER) DIRE &R AEMERAF
o
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M 8 — XEE B ER
18. EW
—B22EF —BP2EE
AhB=+H =ZA=+-A8
+ 3% 7 F# A
MITBLUTHEERITAR
ERBHHRELBEHEZTY
~¥ - HMEERE 41,388 90,710
AR E - 48,126
41,388 138,836
Mo ZEHTHPMA BT RENA T B2 HEHHE > U E4417,000,0008 7T
MR TREARAXTMBEAEREEEYEY  #7F  MEREBELREMARERE2EELE£FHEE
OHEBERAFTZSLRAHRE - AFRULBELSZHBERFLAAN_SETEREAA T8
T ZEEA -
19. BEBEAIXRE
BR o FEBREFELATLIUTES
BEAB=1+RHILXMEA
—8BRE —BB@RE
BEALZEH THHHE F & A F kA
FEBZEBENFAR HEBMKRBERERTIEE - 41,820
R FEABEERLIER 112 36
REFBIAIERBE - 1,917
4 B U EUR) B A 7,030 6,136
SEBEREEEHRE -
B EFHEE 854 1,136
AEBUBESAEHEYETER - 861
EEEZTRER 5 1
EHESCEEEFRAT AEHRRE2EHEDESHEE 35 336
(TEHLE) 2 AEEAEEREEMA RS ETRE - 16
ol =R/ AEBEWBRESIA 210 -
EHLEZHE LT FEHURBLREDLEEHES 1,062 611
A E WA B LA 7,892 5,241
H th B 3 A A FEBEBRES R EERE 2,290 2,781
722 BT B A Bl A 6,064 4,169
AREBIAREE 72 1,150
B Az SBARE AEEZHFE 9,065 -~
HUBEAR N AAER S ERFEEREREHZ AT -
20, #HER®BESF

RZEFZAFNA =+ B 1% > &% @& fH Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. * EARBETEHFR
ARAEREREERFRLOA (BELAZHB LA BEREAZSBEEAFATY—HAR
HREWE » 417800000008 T2 B ERALEAEEMBLAAN ZEZTEEAAZTH
AR AE{E 4 £723,000,0008 L2 E THEVERBEYEZ 2HES - FHLEXS ZH#S
BRALNAR_ZEREL—AZTHBERRZLMHRN -

— 68 ~




B 8% — rXEBzHEER
15. RBR=x
ERTRER
g g E{E
F R A
EREEH BT EER
MNoEXFEAFEEA—H 1,369,195,436 136,920
T E RS B (10,520,000) (1,052)
W_EZEEREALA=+H 1,358,675,436 135,868
16. HEHNELAT
R AEBLEETHREDEBRRHMEBEAF -
HERHEEHA T ¢
BEAAB=+RIL~<EA
—B2EF —B2B2NF
TR F A
TR EZREE 82,277
HERBATZER (82) —
MAE 82,195 —
AR
He 75,360 —
RESBEECEEEBIEX T
R EE) 6,835 -
82,195 —
HERELEZ2HSRARE
B2z RE 75,360 -
FTHEZRITHEHEEIAES (5,887) —
69,473 —
R THEZHEATHAEE X80 EELITAELRER -
17. =HAREE
—E28RE —8ZRF
hAB=+8 =ZA=+-—8
THEA F B A
MARBRZEEZEHRAERS 130,908 310,503
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B g% — TEBzHEER

12. BELATER

—E22EF —ZESRHE
hB=+8 =ZH=+-8
F %R F # A
BIEEBEEE
HiB-mRm 380,521 370,977
I w7 R 38,487 37,146
419,008 408,123
B BHEZEBEER (3,625) (26,914)
415,383 381,209
FHEETROZTE 214,820 139,763
FHRITMRGBEAEENTREEERAT (THF]) 229.36% (31.3.2005: 29.36%) A -
FEBNR _EERENSZTEBEFRZBEENREBEPREEAMFWERESEIRZ
FERW_FEERAEANAZTHAZEEETE -
HR EFECHEFEACETIENATARSZEBRFRZZ2EBEEAHERFTEZ
FAGRT AT 28 - B » DIERER 2 MEE 823,280,000 Tt R IERER -

13. ERER - -TESREBEMGZE
AEEASNROEE BN A S F R L B BRI - X EEEH R
gwﬁgjﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ FAY MALEAREMBREZERFLEZEEH - KE30E908 R
RERBGHZBUE S RFAEE T T

221 F —221HEF

hB=+8 =ZB=+-8

F3# A FH A

90H A 248,511 329,058

90R 2 LB RHEEI80H 16,345 2,839

B 180H 67,600 67,663

332,456 399,560

FEWHEER « ST& RAMFIEP M HE—F4132,164,000% 7T (31.3.2005: 449,174,0008 7T) Z X H -

Th AL FHE R BB M E L Z HE Downer EDI Limited ([Downer]) (BAEHZ I BE A 5F))

FBHERE HWERECHRNBBRENEREETEAE B EDowner iy 2 B HETE
FTEEWN - -BR CHZEENNELEZ HE R BMBIE BB #317,010,0008 7T -

14. EARIABEZHEX

REHREBBZEMESRIRBOFTOT

el 3 - 3 —Z2Zhf

hB=+HB =BA=+-8

FH AT FRA

908 & 214,699 218,556
90 UL L EAREIR180H 4,976 1,129
#1808 14,741 17,058
234,416 236,743
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Bt &% —

10

11.

=
BEhARB=+BLXER
—E28hLE —2ZWME
F# A T+ #H A
FHIRRE — &AL s#E Al (2004: 1580 20,380 20,538

BRE_ZLFFENA=ZTELEASAMAERZFEREZEE  N2RAETTEFAA=Z+
B2 BT EEA1,358,675,4368 & -

i EERTERENEEBRESKI0EM > 5354957,177,000 ¢ (BE_ZTZTHNFERLA=
+EIEAMEA &) > FERBRIRM - A MEHOCHERBYEXRBABIAEE_TT
AEZAZ+T—HBLEEZAHMBESER15EBW EBE_SFNE=ZA=+T—8LEFE: 15
A > BB A4 2 4920,380,0008 T -

ERERN

HREAFAZEERAENELzERESARBERA I RBLU T EETE

BENAR=1TBLEAREA

—2B2IF R g3
F# A T # 1
BA
AEERERRFIZ AR 149,280 38,144
RGEE
FEERERRAZ EEBMETHE 1,365,282,332  1,345,249,019

HRALABREZTHEESNERRMEBEE _FTAFEAA=ZTELEABA ZFHHE -
MRBZE_ZZNEAA=ZTHERNEALENRTEZEMECLER  HEITEEIW
EHEz G REER T -

NE -BRRRERREYHE

HRAEEB R E - #E R HRIEIL #477,848,000H: 7T (2004: 4,143,000 78) - FBUE R
BERABEEEEH - AEE T BEYE  BHREAEHE > 52 ARHEE2,912,0004 5T
(2004: 2,373,000% 7G) °

BREMEDA - BYHEEGETRB AT ERARABREESFAN _SEAELA=ZTEZ
AW EAEE - WIEE MG E 4 1 {H85,400,0008 T > EMRBARAWBEE -

ZRPEE

—EgRE 220 F

hAz=z+8 =ZB=+-H

R TR

A 1,662,216 1,669,907
BA 5§ B A 209,987 136,559
1,872,203 1,806,466

HoIRABEEETZEREREZNE R D (34,200) (34,011)
FIREREEEZ HHE 1,838,003 1,772,455

ZERHEBIMURFTEARLMBEILIES -
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Rpur A
BEABR=1TRiEAER
—ETLE - - 410K 3
FHEA T A
HEREWEZ Wi - 1,129
FI B A 17,477 20,344
KEFRESEHEGTHEEARDZ
RIS RME S ZEEFRZ
MEREEEA 79,928 —
N PN - 356
8 [o] R B 4,501 -
101,906 21,829
BREAER
B i AT 8 F E F0 B -
BEhAhB=+RBLEXEAR
—BERE bl 4 Ju =4
T & + %
ME -  BREREZITERES
HEEE 19,318 27,958
B BEEBEHNIREESZ 8 (1,215) (799)
18,103 27,159
HEEBS (EEAETHRERR - 1,153
BEEEREATFEERD 4,029 -
HEBHHEZER - 1,579
Rt HHEZREHER - 8,143
BB E AR BIIE
(BREBILHEATERN) 446 23,108
AL SRR IE
(BEAHIE AR ERBRBESN) 390 —
g
BEARAR=+TBLKRBEA
—BERfF —BBMNE
TR A T # A
BEZXHaE:
FHFEHE
7= 55 1,871 21
WMESEEERE 3,197 -
5,068 21
A1 Fl TE - 1,177
iR SEHL IR 4,353 7,629
9,421 8,827

FHEMNER B R A EEBEF LB 217.5% (2004: 17.5%) 518 -

WO ARARAEEEAR ZBERANHE -
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B &% —

TEHER

HEEFTEMS  FAEEAZEFRIBCREERM > 2l AETREETR - LATE H
HEE REEE BOREZRR EFRNGRYERE - WEBMANAEEERIES

ME R 2

BE_ZERAFAAZTREANEAZEBHERMT ¢

FEL
5
M

)

E+ 4
HMER

HEEA
BRYELTREERN
AABLERL
BEME
HERBLRAZER
BEBEATEAY
BEER
BIEBE LA £
BlEEREH

BRER

B AT A

LT
B
v

28

Y |
ARER

FEHA
FRROXRHE
REARL
FARRLAREIER
BERELTER
BELRERBEES

gAY

BFRETIR  LXRIBR EEEE REEE EBER UEBRAE ¢ Ha g4
AL TR F#L TR FHA TRt 2R TEA FEL
1008567 438,146 6,044 1919 307,639 2879 - 19150
- 50210 - - - 9,659 (59.869) -
(008967 488,356 6044 1919 307,639 38.455 - (59.869)  1.79L511
37,356 14,270 3899 1702 33,776 14,656 ~ 105,659
17477

- - - - - 85,400 ~ - 85,400
(31,482)
(6,020)

(82)

- - - 23,289 - - 23,289

620 31 608 - (23,339 - - (22,080)

260 1,841 - - - - - - 2,101
174562

L]

BHEZTZZTNENRB=ZFTHEANBAZEESHERTT

HPREIR IAIB GEEE REYE EBRE UERH Rt HE g4
fRi FRA T®A TR F#L FEL F#A EE 39 T#i
1,251056 406,565 - - 21,262 - - 1678883
- 1,810 - - 7876 - (9.686) E
1251056 408375 - - - 29,138 - (9.686) 1,678,883
17.047 30,267 - - - £.48) - 55,795
20,344
(36,667)
(2900)
- - - - - - (15,004) (15,004}

1938 (5) - - - - 23,740 - 25,673

- 118 - - - - 118

47359

N

SGEZ B E TR TIBEARRE (HEN2F 2 WIHEE) ST EERREZ HER -

REESEER BORESEREF I BHELEAZEERLERALRATER -
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i % —

EEEzHEEHR

FESHEE-&

£WMIB -

B ABABRANSZ LA BEER LAY

B EERTENA—ARE AEERBEEEEHENE0RIRE  HREBAREESRL
NZEBEERERAEB UERESHERERE 4z HER) BT EAGE - REF
BEFRENEIN  SREENSER T RATHERANARZEREE! - (MTEHEZ S
MEE] B RENREBEIRIBEZINHEREE] - 2REBF R4 EAEAFEMA
BARGERZEBERINBEATEARAREEZERMBEUIZSBREE (HMERE
B - TEMEBMEBINIHEREBARESEZEHBERNAETE -

BN BRRERZREME

THEFEOEFEN B AR T

(a) HEXHMEBRBEMBzZEEZIEE:
BEAARZtHLEAMEA

—BTIf C—2BRF
FH A -
FmEBEZHD 3,712 —
BiIRg BN F EREM (14,217) -
HA [ %5 g (10,505) -
by HR-BBIEE=-RA=+T-AR-SSLFNA-AzEEAfMKRZES®:
g% B4y B U3 -H
B itEg BEER B Biteg REEX B
bt 1383 B178% HEPELT -9%If B398 HEEELT -2%1f
ZBzt+-H 2EE 2E® Zhz1+-8 b4 2 4 Fa 7 RA-8
T#7 +EA tHA FRi TR +RA EE S
F-EXEA M) (EHRK W) (EHA%
HYEREBZVE:
N BHERE 372,044 (134,766) - 237,278 - - 237,078
BRHEE
- kiH 1,806,466 (34011 1,772,455 - - 1,772,455
-8 - 34,011 - 34,011 - - 34,011
BRLBEETE
i - 131,576 - 131,576 - - 131576
L - 3,190 - 3,190 - 3,190
BRLAER 382.146 - (937) 381,209 - 27,363 408,572
REHE
ke 1778 - - 1,778 (1,778) - -
el 173,284 ~ - 173,284 (173,284) -
THHESR - - - - 3299 - 3,299
KEERRE - - - - 173,284 - 173,284
2,735.718 - (937)  2.734781 1,521 27363 2.763,665
HhazBES:
Kb R - - - - - {1,113 (1,113)
ARE 253,398 - 937 232,961 991 28,476 282,428
SERFES 535,895 - - 535,895 530 - 536,425
789.793 — (937 788,856 1,521 27363 817,740
M2z ¢

BLEHHREN BRI HAEAZHELAFIRAZREEEYEZ BEEHHT
R EBEHRAFOREM TR BRLAGEI LFEMBERELAEIIXE S

HrIMES -
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FEB2HBEHR

TEEHBRE-&
T REHEEARZETRER

PUESE > XEERZAB LM AETIFAYE - BEERE > LLURAEASEE - ®
AEH ARBCERTEEFENZI7RHEE] - REBEFEGFEMNE175 > T RETF
HEZLHMERFHMOBRRFEESEMBLIAR HEEXELERETEANR L IET
M ZEELDE > MRKERTEGHE-BAAREEE - A HENEET AR L1
TR ZEENAR ARt AZHEEGREN o FAEEAETZ RAHEE LK
B> TUMRAAREEEHSEREEHESE - REGHERLHEELEHER - Bt F
QE%%%%%%%%iﬂ&@?%%ZEW&%M7%iﬁ2ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁkﬁﬂﬁ%
. R A .

i IR RERR AR Z BHEMEZEANREEIR - REETE ST EAF 175
ZEBIAMEAENIFAEEER T 2 EMEENE » WRAARIIZERENE S -
AFEEGTEUF IR EEMHEECRBELGX BT > ZEGFHEREHCELEBHE
$$§@Z§ﬂi§€¢3ﬂ% IR ERE ZREHA - #HRAIIEAMER 2%

RENE

MAME  2EEFRAGTEGEALI0NREYE] ) FCEERALPEEREAREER
REYE BUHANBEYELTFEESHEL AL  AEECREFELZ MR ERHERA
R RUEEH e EREREBRIREYECEHEETEI TZHRYE LKL
BMEME > MEGMARIBMT ANEREYXRGMENNRE > REL-FHETZH
BMARUEHEMEE THFRTEAREEH A EEARERBELBOEREERA
I MUESERSRAMBRZEEERARHREGAIE - WUAZAC MR ZEES RS
ERFIAMER - RABFEGFHIEN 0N A MM UENM I XA BEIMERLE -
B> BAE R EHEE -

ERTIR

PAME > AEHERAEEGENSEREHMTE - HERES REEGFERE30
FIeMIR WRALMGE) FEEFBUENRFREEWER - ERFTEGFENF0NR
HEFEZMBERRASM TAEZEN T AL EBEMEREE - R_FFHF—H B U
FEHEZEFAMEN FR G ENER  ~BAAFREWEERT - & FEIDE
ESREERRA - RAFBREFENFE ORI ERZ IR BHENT ¢

CHBAERLBRANI S HARLE

ALEEOREERGIEAEORMEREAZEREEReBAMRZOELMGEE  RAT®R
ERTERISE 9 Z AR BB E R -

MR-ZFTZRE=ZA=Z1+—Hf > 2REARBEAHEFLEAZ MR EEREZ G EE I %]
(TR EHRREAS 4R 2 BERBHEMEARABESIRLEME - REGHEBHEAE24
%o RABLHEEESELHEESF M OHMBE] (WER) - (HEEF] HEAANBREE
R E) FIER > M HAREASEATFEERE  RERRsERIIAKESR - =-F
ZHENA—A#®  AEECRBEETHERNFEORBHRAB R ERME - REEE
SRS eREESEARATEHERARRRZ GREE X (AHLEZEME
Bl - nBARTFHBEEZENME - B0 TFEESAUEXRZEHMEE]| A HEEZ
SBMEEINEATVHEEIR  AFEEZEH AR UERRESR TR - AEEZLET
HZERNEATEEENGE  THEEREZREEAASEAR _FTAFTA-HZ
ZEE A HE1,521,000E7T R THEERENENMEREAWREE -
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BHGSMBHRRMEE
BE-_EEZHAAZ+ A5 A

1.

RAUEE

BRGEe M ERETIR BT AR ARAABL LT RANBRIcCEARERERTE
ﬁ@%ﬁgﬁﬁ@ (HEgmAE) HEZTH TR ((FHest Al F34HE P HHE
WIRE -

EEEHEBE

BRETYERSBIANHEAFEEREMIE WER) HE > HHEASHMBRRTIRE
BERAERR -

RUAGRGAMBEREARNZEHBER AL EERE_FTAE A=+t -ALEHEZHE
FHMBBRRAFRNERN  ERAPEE > ARAERRABTEG A STHEGZ L BT
HEMBHREER ([FEMBREGEA])  FHREFEUIRE (28)) (TXHBIHTE
WEHHEREER])  ZEEAR _ETRAE—A - BHUEHBZ Gt HHEER - KA
FEVBRGENEH ISR EEAERAREZHRZERTRAENUE - TEEDH
MRS RBEHELR HEAEGBRERECER TGS - HEEHTAEHDE
MR - o BRI ERMBRESEWNEIAFHEAY THERZ GFTER B REY > #
BRBUEEAEMIXARREZANFAERES

N8 - R E A

RAEAEEN  AEBECRAFTENEREEE2RLRMOAINZHIEA] > ZRAREFEDR
LI ERmBE RSB RS ((RASGEXS ) AU EHB 2 R ARBERAREE T K
MEE ((HREFEXE)F > HRAEIHEL FEMBREEIF 2RHAEHN I TELE
ARTHAEBEELEECERECROEIRERLLFEE  URBBHAIEMI - B
RANBEMBEREENE Y AEEREEBRESTERIBIEMBEEE - XEEH
MZEREMBREENF2RERAN _FXAFTUA - AR ZERHZBRE - FER _FF
EEMA—RZAEH ZEEE  REMEBESRY . 2EEEEAUR _FT _H+—
HEtAZRZARE 2 BRERR _FF _F+—ACAZAREMAHGRBE IR —FF
AEMA-BRZERERAETEMBEREENFE S - AN ABBECR _FTEFHLFNHA
—HHER EURATEMHERSENENE AWMU PRI ERTRITMERRE -
Bt AL EMATHAE -

EREH

EALH FERCEAEEMEREEEIEEBESH] > ZEAFARBRIPA-F
FHFE-A—HBRUEZEHaH BRATEMEREENRINHAEAZ ZZREMLD
o

LES

RUZHEM AR -FZRAEFNA-BMETREMELE HENAMATTERAEHRES
e RS - RAPRE > AEMCRAFEMFREENFEIEZAAMBEEGRI  HHAED
HRZFZTAFHEA-AEFLHEEZHER URRERESFHBHBET - RBEEFH - B
ROFFAF-A-HBRETEWHEMELA MERWKERRDHERARZTRELGR (0F)
HE - B EMBEEZEE > ZHHLEFACAHERE - LBREFAETLUES -
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it 3% — 3 EE

ZHBEHR

HHASESREBR
BE-_EEREHSHAZ+REXEA
REEX
BEAB=+BILA<EA
“EEnLF —EZME
F %A + %
RERKEXB RS EE 167,411 65,927
XBE (AR REER2EERESR 335,331 (246,905)
(AR)XREREZB2HEERER
B iZ & (957,122) —
EBBITHERK (269,126) (31,850)
HEEBITHER 221,139 10,000
BELOVHEBEEEXR (68,303) (4,630)
DB RBRATZEK — 241,000
B | Ry AT 2 SR (14,478) -
% {47 B (o) BE <2 (130) (26)
EATF & (11,919) (4,389)
18 33 3L [F) ¥ ) 4% # 20E - (34,824)
(1,099,939) 175,281
HeRHEBESEEBEERL R (597,197) (5,697)
HeFHERSZEEER R ' 1,247,572 233,207
Be4RRESEEEELSE 650,375 227,510
BeRBBRSCEZEEBLEEIN
HHBRTER  ROTEHFEABE S 671,681 239,534
WITHEZ (21,306) (12,024)
650,375 227,510
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BREFERESH R
BE_EZASHAAZ+ B ESMEA
ARAZRBREAES
g5
REEfR (B8 LPEBR

BE ROEBE KAUHE EX588 BE RURE BARR B P &% a3t

t#A  FRA O FHL TREA FHEA THEA FRA THEA THA TEA FEi
RIEFIENA—H
- B EFIE 136,020 184,811 124,695 2,480,000 - - (561) 253898 3,179,763 535,895 3,715,658
0 -Lil¢ L

2 EE (Hi3) - - - - - (LI - 28530 17417 530 27947

-EFIER 136,920 184,811 124,695 2,480,000 - (L1 (561) 282,428 3,207,180 536,425 3,743,605
B £5
MELZBRER -~ - - - - - 4,776 - 4,776 - 4,776
ERREZEY ~ - - - {1,075 - - - (107 (163 {1,238)
BlUEBEAAEREE - - - - - 6,149 - - 6.149 - 6,149
BUBBEANELRE - - - ~ - - (678) - (678) - (678)
ERRRERD
ZWAEE BH - - ~ - (1073 6149 4,008 - 9.172 (163 9,009
ekl - - - - - - - 149280 149,280 15861 165,141
HMORAN AR - ~ - - (075 6,149 4098 149,280 158452 15698 174,150
BER G (1,052)  (13,556) - - - - - =~ (14.608) - (14,608)
BRAEARE - - = (2,480,000) - - ~ 2,480,000 - - ~
ENRETES - - - - - - (971557 (9M.55T) (12,0523 (989,609)
RZFZRFNLAZHA 135,868 171.255 124,693 - 075 503 3537 1934151 2373467 540071 2.913.538
RIZEFEEEA-A 134525 187370 124,933 2,480,000 - 6521 83356 (245833) 2,770,877 10,448 2,781,320
BHREBIEE
MELELZS - - - - - - (29,063) - (29,063 - (29,063)
ZUBELRANGR - - - - - 7 - - 7 - 7
BUBELAELGE - - - - - - {149 - {149 - (1493
EERBEERY
WA BX) EE - - - - ~ 7 (30,556) - (30,549) - (30.549)
BEEBA - - - - - - - 3144 38144 388 38,532
RBRAGZER
BENER - - - - - (185) (190) - (375) - (375)
BHERALLEE - - - - - (178)  (30746) 38144 7220 388 7,608
BUROER - (26) - = - - - - (26) - (26)
g3 N - - - - - - - - ~ 363229 363,229
BEffkA - - - - - - ~-(20,179)  (20,179) - {20,179
REZEEAAZTR 134525 187344 124,933 2,480,000 -~ 6343 52600 (220.868) 2757.887 374065 3.13195

HbREEETEARKNRBARNALABELAAZARRIRERREZEERHE
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TEB2HMBEER

HHRGSEERER
A EEZFAAZT B

ERBEE
B R A R R
BEYE

BREPEE

FEAT T L AH & I
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& S A 48

3L (3] £ B A R 2
BHERE
A

—FE IR ) 5 2 M

— 1% 5 B > FE i B ) F) 3KIE
EiEnnE

AR THEE

nEBEE
EWEF &4 TREKIE
JEULRRSK ~ 7] & KA #E
R ES

#REFAIEE

BT MRS RE
—EREIH 2 I
HaRE
HEEERY

JE i B 4B B) ZIE

JE i B 2 N B 3KOB

] i 5] 8 2 .
BHRTER  SBOEFEEERE
RESE

T F 40 TR R

FE AT B 3K M FE 5t B 32

FE AT B 2 s &) 3R

HE o 3L ] £ 1] 18 1 200

JE A5t D B AT R FRIA

DR RS

AT IR B

% {8108 o
—E R B2 |ITE K
RBEERE

85 T B A
FREEE
TwmRes

T BB BT
RIEH IR A E

BXRFHB

iy

i

BREZ BERE ABIEES
D B R 1

M

M ik

10
10
11

12

13
11

14

15

-g955 -BVIE
hB=4+8 =A=1+—8H
F & A F & T
(&4 7] #)

222,268 237,278
540,400 455,000
1,838,003 1,772,455
129,981 131,576
61,646 61,646
415,383 381,209
11,645 9/544
— 1,778

2,060 -
1,508 1,508

779 779
15,841 15,481
1,680 1,680
3,241,194 3,069,934
192,529 185,188
1,098,666 1,586,246
78,245 91,278
34,200 34,011
3,190 3,190
100,000 190,401
- 173,284

55,512 —
240,077 346,102
181,750 168,683
134 7,506
671,681 1,254,556
2,655,984 4,040,445
441,885 435,198
825,520 1,076,195
2,907 2,804
20,766 20,766
1,368 104,833
172,697 -
32,487 -
2,342 1,882
259,420 289,960
1,759,392 1,931,638
896,592 2,108,807
4,137,786 5,178,741
- 241,000
296,875 300,000
927,373 923,020
1,224,248 1,464,020
2,913,538 3,714,721
135,868 136,920
2,237,599 3,041,906
2,373,467 3,178,826
540,071 535,895
2,913,538 3,714,721




M & — FEBz2HEERER

3. FEHEZAKREBERFEMBEE

UTAAEBEBRE _TTRAFNA=ZFTHLEAMAZABECHUGEHMBRR - A
AR AANABRE_FTEAFNLA=ZTH itTfElEZ‘#%‘iiﬁ%%

WAGRE Wz &
ME_ZRZIFHNAZ+ A LENMEA

RBEX
BEhRE=THLEXEA
ZEBLEF —EZNE
B st T H#H A T #H T
X 4 1,791,511 1,678,883
B E A (1,645,900) (1,588,366)
£ F 145,611 90,517
H g A 5 101,906 21,829
BREYEZ N TFEEEM 85,400 —
TEE H (81,369) (63,152)
H % A (74,194) (9,722)
& R AR (6,020) (2,900
LEWMBARZER (82) -
BRI B AR 2 WE R A 23,289 -
BHEE N AR REE - (15,004)
WILE SN A ER (22,080) 25,673
BIE AR REESE
2,101 118
R B A i A 6 174,562 47,359
BiIA 7 (9,421) (8,827)
HA 4] 8 F1 165,141 38,532
DT Ak I
EARZRERE A 149,280 38,144
DR A A 15,861 388
165,141 38,532
BB 8 —_—0380 20,538
FRAEF - EAR 9 10.9 il 2.8 il
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B &% — FEEH2HMBEAEN

by FRRAEEHELAR _FEAF=ZA=Z+—HZHBWT :
EROR AREEL

B/ #RRE/ ERTRE/
BELTEH R BEREx DREXESNH TEEE
%
mEEEARAE ([HE]) Hi 88,159,508, 707 7T & 7 f 294 BREER
FEREZEERELALF i 10,000,000 T3 & & 04 TRIBREFER
(FLM3)
RE-FEEERRAE & 1004 71 & 48 1 N6 TAIE
RUKIHERRER i 6320000AR%HMESE 126 BEIEMEERESH
HRAT (T X B
IreFRETRER el 500,000 T A& 26) EREERHSARE
ERERNE (FALM )

TR EHEARYARAGTRAG - WEREEHB LT -
THFEHE AR e ANGHERSE -
Wi BAoTEBTSHEESBAT -

() FRAHFAZERBER _FZEAF=ZA=Z+—BZHFEFOT

ZERAR AEMES
HELHERERE B BEkEx CRIRFFIHL TEER
%
DL & PY JV Limited % i METEER 326 TAIE
Paul Y. - Penta-Ocean Joint Venture B - 32.6 TAIE
(FXLH#)

B FEALELE EXAKECMUSELCXREEBEERS -

ERFFIBESTLIREEALFEFERTEGINEARLFETAAMMFEEZALAMBL R
PBBENE #HERL HIAMHMEAARBEARZEMMSEEIIE -
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Bt &2 —

FEBCHEEN

i PCE ]

BARELEA BD)
ERAT

Unistress Group Limited

Winstate Limited

EEARE/
BERTR HRETESH
gRRs/ BEAR/
RY/HReY BE-L HELAKE FEmMELS FEER
% %
i WOETERR 100 6517 REIEREER
1,000,000 75 £5
EREFELH
(FLHEW 100 65.17
ERETEE IFTERR 100 6.7 HEER
EREREE IETEER 100 100 MEEE

tHFEMB AR EREEE > MEMBRLIMBAERLF - IHTFEMEREAR

2 F

CABFEOEBRERBRAERLA

EUTRERZEFRAAEPHEE -

LTHFEWMB LTI AN NERALE > #Paul Y. - CREC Joint Venture & Mk X R #
B> MEESZEERFRLoFDUESFTE LT -

g A

(1)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

W

HWEERERRERSAARBERE  FEMEBRRE > RIEZLFATHIREH
F| H8 4 100,000,000,000,00047C - EIHER T » HEGERAT O S EEEFLER—
HEEABAEZEAEHERRE  BRAAREZAIFERSYRER
mggmmmmm%ﬁ%aﬁﬁ%ﬁ&%%k%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ%Z%ﬁT=ﬁﬁ
=3 o

HEMBLARYRAFIHGESELF -
HEGBLEZEBALELE -

HEEREEELRFANEERE  FEZBRBE  BREZAFTHERE &
) ¥ #1 100,000,000,0008: 00 » ZWBHRT » BEEHM T AMEBEEBIR—EE
ERAEBEZEEHRERBRE > HREEEZL GE B IR 10,000,000,000
BLTFHAALTERBAABNARREEZRNT - BEBEAX -

HWEEREHERERSE A NEERE TEEBRTOHBREEZRE > 2
HETE B B 75 AR R ER AR H A 1E LT 43 UR 428 100,000,000,000,000% T F %A
BREFSABNEHGEEZENT > BBEBEAR -

A
&

24 5o
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B #& — XEBEZBHKER
BEARE/
BRAR ARMELELY
BERE/ HERF/
HWEBLEEE RY/BMLY SREX KWRARAEE LEMEL TEER
% %
RELHIRFRAA B ETTEAR 100 6517  ERHEIR
(HIBREELEHTE
HRAED
Paul Y. - ITC Investments EBEIHE 1 EREER 100% 100 HBEEER
Group Limited
REmEEFRAE - &R DETEER 100 100 FERE
FEERBEERAD FH ETLEB 100 617 KRE BREER
(EREEHBEHE BREEE
KR
REYLEERRAA  Fi WEEER 100 100 HEEERE
REZRHARLT FE MWL ER 100 6517  LAIER -EFE
EREEER
50,000,000% 7% - -
BOZEELE
[F X B iliv)
REEE (PEH) TR 60,000,000 K % 100 6.7  TAIBR
ERAF M Eres
Paul Y. Foundation EBRTHE 1ELLER 100 65.17 REER
Holdings Limited
BEREERAH Fis 10,000,003 7 100 65.17  TAIBER
LER WETR
BETEERAT B ELLAR 100 65.17  EHRUERE
BREHBIREE £ 23 T 48 B 100 6517 EREERE
FRAH RREER
Paul Y. Properties
Group Limited KBELHE IEFRERR 100+ 100 HEER
RERETEFRAT B dETL TR 100 6517 LAIE
BUTREREARLT TH 5,005,340% ¢ 100 6517 LAIBREF
iEfEx g
(F X W)
BHMERIER £ 12,000,002# 7T 100 65.17 REIERBEER
(B HRAF TER €5
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FEE2UBESNR

ot GEE

Hanfull Enterprises
Limited

TR ERERR
HRLA

IHFNERERE
ERRA

EERRARAA

REFHETEEMLA

Paul Y. - CREC
Joint Venture

FERTIRARLA
FIRGEEHRT
IRERALA

RESEEMERAT
MERESREX
FRAERNE)

REREFRLA
(IRREEHEE
BRRAD

RERETHARLA
(MBREEREE
TEARAR

REREETARLTA
(MEXE EEEE)
ARAA)

RERZEERERLT
MBRGEERER
BRAHE)

ERNER
BREE/
R/ SRl EREX

KRECHE  ZATER

el 13,332,000%
HfREE

(F L M)

% 16,650,000 T
HMEE

(T L M)

Fi 1,200,000% T
LER

EE 105 TEER
Fik -
(F £ W 42 (iii))

B 20,000,000 7t
LTER

i UETEER
1,000,000% T

BREERER

(F L M)

Fi 102,000,0008 7
LR

Ei 42,000,000 7T
LER

BEE 288,350,000 7G
Fit 36,000,0008 T
TER

—-52 -

ERGRE/
EREXEAL
BELE/
HWRLARE AREEE
% %
100 100
60 54.06
60 54.06
100 100
0 45.62
70 45.62
99.9998 65.17
100 65.17
100 65.17
100 65.17
65.17 65.17
100 65.17

TERE
REDE

BOBE
BOBRE

BERRRER

IAIE
IAIE

REtTRLEE
R#

RELR

BTEE

BYRERER
I8

BRERH

TAIRRET
B




rEEzMBEESR
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@ BETRESRORTRBSAR (RS ETREE) FRETRERAEL A

by BWMEBRBETIEMREEMBURBELR NG EHBES -
() FMERBREREFSBFEAME T RERFE ZFI R -
(dy WEEREF RBEBELRESEEBZHEELZHL -

() HEHEEZEEFABEEBUL -

PEBHRBEAA  HEAZHBEERMEARZZSHBRFFRIVNKRBFE18- 19 25
£26 -

TEMELOR  BEQXARAEEHBERER
(@ FALRAEFBEMBAAR_FEFRAFA=Z+—-HZHEOT :

BRARE/
2EHR ERERT AL
BrR%/ BAAF/
il INGES RI/EREE gREs WRAERE ZRBEL TEXH
% %
Calisan Developments ERELER IZTEER 100 100 HEESE
Limited
Century Harbour Limited RBEL RS \ETLER 100 100 RESR
Corless Limited KEECESR FELEER 100 6517 REEE
REEERLA (3 WAL ER 100 100 YELERRE
Ao - -
ERFEEER
(F LB
DH Holdings Limited EBELEE IETEER 100 00 BEER
Glory Well Limited E# WL EER 100 00 HEER
Gunnel} Properties RRELES 1ETERR 100 100 YMERERRE
Limited
EMRELH & B 10,000,000 7t 85 5539 BELIEREE
ERAHE LER RES
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XEE 0B AN

43.

RMEALXERER

R AEEEABEALTIUTRS ¢

BEALZEH

AEBZBENF

7 52 W 2 3[R 72 ) R AR

EHEEZWE LA

BHLRZHBEAR

HA B E R A

MEAFRZ D BER

HittBErm DA RERCEAREHLAREN LA -

REHE

AEHERELTER
AEEBERRBELIER
AEEXM SRR
A 22 B R Bl A
FERBXTREER
A& E R & XA
Y EER T

AR RER
AREEBREEEHEE

AEERREETRRYE
AEBRBEREER
FEEZAAAE
T R
AREBURES

752 BT BUR £ K AH R
Y EEER
FEBMBREEMH R
HEXELRE

7 S BT B &
FEEERREE

A& E TR £ X AR H
VEERE

7 & H U BB A
AEBMYHEER
AEEIBEE B E

5 B YRR & A8 B
YRERE

7 5 B W B B U A
AEE B o R EE
AEABREERES
74 5 [ S A R &
FEEEEDE -

B R R
AEEHE R R

A E B

- 50~

—e2nf
FAA

41,813

36
300

590
5,285
300

7,246
303

577
20

420
53

4,610
10,486
106
330

6,150
20,943

2,120

159

4,833

—pems
T2 A

182
104
5,437
7,357
308

2,074
406

268

104,734
144
102

780

2,930
13,332

6,896
10,253
1,207
432
641




B &% — FEBz2HMBEER

40, BEBENZH
(a) FTEMEBERA:

REEE > AEEERNTREZARERAMEREXHATE A RRREHESFIAKR
P o WLEARBZIAMUT

BEM
—EBIE —BEME
F & A F &
— &R 2,059 809
E_EEIFE(ERWMEEEER) 3,968 1,607
B AR 407 718
6,434 3,134

—RFYEEWENEHEAREETAHE -
(b) FHREMEHLBA:
REEE > AEMABFERRRRBEHSHKETLH - IAHWTF :

EER
—S25F —EBEZMOF
F 3k F & A
— 4R 28,898 26,391
BIEFEAE(FRMECUEERN) 18,666 13,826
47,564 40,217

s ECEBRRMEIHFE -
NHEER AARAUEAMERELEHOZE -
41. HBEEP
RZFEFREZA=Z+—0 » AEFEELN 752,912,000 5T (ZFZFE : 668,638,000 JT)
TETYE BEARE REYE - BERERAQAETHELAZCETROULES

EANETRESCHZARCHKETHETERMEEE  EAREHRGE-REEREZERH -
RIEZRFE=ZRA=+—8  ZEECE H#522,819,0008 T (ZFFE W : 544,000,000 7T)

THRE -
42, &R
EEM

—EZFRE el ) -
F#% A F % A,

MU TEEETHERNIRENEHZHEX :
- AR E 48,126 450,671
—~% - BMEERRE 90,710 -
138,836 450,671

AREAREEB N EEMERZ AR
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FEEz2HBESN

37.

38.

39.

EXRFRERE

AEHABETTIERERLES

(a) FRFIBTROEAHEYRE RIIRMEED R

by WHRREZAAECHIE—MHE LS 2 5468 HE 3N G R EE -
EBHERGE

g%ﬁg%%f@ﬁ%ﬁ%E?‘?Z’tfﬁ%ﬁ%&%%ﬂ%‘f% CHETNHZEERXAIANEEREZSEE
EE °

REBRBLEZERALAAEEEZEFBHZAUTEZ LA NTESZ MK - MEEAET
EFEAERERTHENERNBLZEHE > ZEEBMHIETRBEABERZ EFER -

R SREEENRFESTEAFAEEHAAINENELENBLZEFEMELZER
BEHR LT HAEERRRFERSBEAHRRZ ERRMR -

BoFTREH AR ALZEMABHEARSHE ((BREHE)) - @FEsHHE
REBHMELCHEHHGHATRAGNELAHEEERET - BN P ZRER IR AEHZ
HE BAVIFAANEHRZESSS - REBREFHZIBA > BELERYES B LR
AHZEERFEHER A EHEHEMEeHHCEEREAREBABFEREEZHK - B
AT QSR T B Inis B R AT K -

FRESF BmEL ZBREMNRMK ERERNE > MERFREEAFIRUTHZ
RaEe BT Z MK -

RARER
FEM ADF
g3 3 —Z2TNE —B2IHEF —B2NE
F # L FH A T # A F A
PRERZBESHBHBEEE 310,503 623,257 — -
EMBAGER—BBITHE

MEBITRMEEEELZ
Ei g - - 903,212 1,174,903

310,503 623,257 503,212 1,174,903
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FEBEZMBAEAR

(by MFZNENH > A%£HLI396,197,0008: 7T 2 ] £ 1L 8 Uk B Global Achiever Limited
Z90.1%C HiTHA LI HEE K - Global Achiever Limited Bl R AN HHFEEHBRER
AR RIHEQOBRERSERLATAZ0%HER - TMEANFEBEFFRIHEET
AKEGEREURFABRRAZHUEBHERATIERAEYE - XSGHEERANAATA A
ZZNUETARAZEH -

() RIEZEWEA+H > 24 HLL43,030,000% 7T 2 B IH & X (& Y B Redcliff Property Corp.
(TRedcliff)) B EREFMAF (THRE]) 2HWBAMER o Redcliff BEFEMNPHRE
eEWYEERES -

LR ZGEU G EZHEBEAR  WEBEHZBERFQNT

EBERE —E2NE
T #& A T % T
BAEESE:
BRERPIEH 1,724,684 —
Y - &R 471 53,758
WEEH 389 -
HiEHENXE 82,700 -
JBIIRS - ST& REMHIE 16,704 —
4 4K 5 RE Wi R K — 3,585
|TEFLEEE 4,649 -
EiTaR sk R ERT B X (70,006) -
FE 15 i 18 (398) —
ATE X (28,275) —
IE LB IR {900,000) —
LB RS (418,389) -
412,529 57,343
WEBEAZESR 60,740 —
HMAE 473,269 57,343
A HRX
waRE 448,557 57,343
BEMRBLAFER  EFIESDBBRRMELR (W237) 24,712 -
473,269 57,343
WERBAFELZRER B ITHE
B4 ME (448,557) (57,343)
BARTHEERARE 4,649 -
(443,908) (57,343)

RENKEZHBAAHAEB 2 BXEAREEHA /B & 828,977,000/ 5T (ZFEHE -
MR RE) RIEE5,420,0008 0 (ZFEME - A EHE) -
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TEBEZRBEEAR

B I R AR A B R A T AR T W B T ACAE e
LRBRETS2EBRTAARAZESR -
BE_TTNME=ZA=+—HLEFER  BREMHRTLERTERF L Z BRE -

RZEFERF=ZA=+—08 » RBERAEFTBIZ 2w K47 (5 E AL HE 9] 58 844,200,000
(ZEZTWE B\ BRG WEALAREAZROHZ3 2% (ZFEFNE + &) -

%
BeBE BExftE EEHEN 1%
T % A F @A F#A FH#A
b ]
WR_EE=ZFENUA—H 212,031 2,480,000 425,310 3,117,341
BT 2 18 2,895 — - 2,895
B LU B a BB R (27,258) — - (27,258)
PR BEAZER
(B 3:11) - - 184,409 184,409
ROBETER (298) - - (298)
| - - 32,962 32,962
BT R - - (338,838) (338,838)
BoFEENE=A=+—8H 187,370 2,480,000 303,843 2,971,213
BRBUBREFF BT RE (2,395) - - (2,395)
PR EEAZER
(B 3211) - — 17,591 17,591
BinETER (164) - - (164)
4 i R - - 9,465 9,465
B E - - (40,717) (40,717)
WZREEREZA=+—H 184,811 2,480,000 290,182 2,954,993

FRAZEFABEARBRAEAFZHROBREEZER - AQCACRERLAETHEL
AE-FROTLZER MR ((EXW®E]D > mERTRERR  TRIBTITLRES (K
FED  REAET AZRBEERBBENFEARMRIE  ALFARETHRLTERT
RARBBERITZBAFABMAER 2 REBAELAHG  CHERETHEAR -

WERAE > ANAR_EZRFEZA=Z+—H a0 B8 FTREZ B4 E290,182,000# T (=
FEEIUE : 303,843,000 7T) -

KWK DT
FR-ARANETIIHBLT

(a) WHEFR PIEFEEZRAZ+TNRE AT EAEEET I GG EE RS
Bl AoFFEREHPPaul Y Construction R EETH B A (FEXSEL AT -
BMERE HEIR EHETHEHRBESEZER 21000 FHERBRFESEE . Uik
B EBITEE R 1.0 T HT RE 400,000,000 R EREXER T HoSEB T2 ARYIE
BEBRKEER XHEHEBCENEAANTIPA_TEENE+—B=Z+HZER - I
BHECRZZEZAFE—RATH > MRERE (FBBEXHIETAT) REWBAS (EE
THARERERESREWES BHARAERALTZHEBALAR -
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B &2 —

FEECHBER

3% HE

REFFZHEANAZFCH > AR A RAHERES# ((EREE]) - Lo
USRS EMRERBELREMZIAEARNEAREREEMESR - TTHAR
FARME  EFGALMAERERELEAL AFRELMBEQASEAMREREZH
fé‘@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé%%kiﬂ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂ%°%%%%§%E%Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ

REEREAS AOFEFEFNHBEOEMEEEALRHBEE > BRF 02 BRE
BRIATEMER - EHIHERETHEMAR > MEEAMBERLT > LRTEHRAGE
BEBPEAFBERAEOERNTFE - THEBEAQAEFZUTIHREMEE : £
gmﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%WLW%%MK%ﬁ%Z%%Eme$®ﬂ%%ZE

REBEBREABREAATNERTTEMERES#H Y FTREZBRETREREL 2R
WU ARAEBBEBRBARAATANENE M EBTRMEREZ10% - 103,674,420 - &
HEFRBEERETHEAR AR T MM ERETHZ SR EZ ST RE T ERE
REMRZBRZNENALHETZALNTARRBERG LER > WRARS AR AR
ZREASHHEBITRMEEE Z10% (134,524,901 F5 A2 4) » MIE AN T RARSE H
BEBITHRAZI % MEEBARATBRHEEBRRERE LME . ZRETEHFAALN T
BREREAG L HEZEICBTROEEZ10% - BEWL » CREBERETH SF
AFEMEMBERESSFREMRITEZ A BEREETH T FRIT 2R B AL
EREZFNEBHBAFCBITREERZ30% -

PR+ HM - REEREFIRAAREMEMERENH IR TEMSER
AEZBERE BEEAHE CHEEARTERRE FERZALNARGCEE » &S
ABEBAFESITROIEE 1% BELEMBEECESEBALIREREE AL
(ZEALTHRI REREZRRARGLEESALTABRRERME  IARZHRE - 7
A+ —AAREARAAENEERAR, B EATEESHESEAZTMBEE AL
(FEHER TR FLERERS EMFEERERSER2BRETRBE BT RIS
Z2010%sk B EH 5,000,000 7T WELELBEEESFTAFBRRERE RS LHME -

%W#E?ﬂﬁ%%%@ﬁﬁ@$%EZ%?%§%A$§$@%%$Q%&%Z%%
> 7 []_F

BRERGERRTRAZEDARGBEA

R-genE R-29L%

58 BA-A EPES:

#ERS ol FEE KAfE  EARE  ERXR BAGE
)

28.12.2004 28.12.2004 % 26.08.2012 1.94 - 22,100,000 - 22,100,000

28.12.2004 28.12.2004 % 26.08.2012 220 - 22,100,000 - 22,100,000

= 44,200,000 — 44,200,000
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EEFE2HMBER

B’ &
il = -§E
F A
BREEI0EB T TEK
BE
W_EE=ZFNA—H -
CTEENE=ZA=+—BR
LEERE=A=+—H 3,000,000,000 300,000
BEEHTRER
WoZEZ=FENA—H 1,063,016,037 106,302
1718 3R A A 38 9,648,758 965
RBLUBRAEFEHEITHR 272,584,224 27,258
M_EENF=ZF=+—H 1,345,249,019 134,525
BEBURNACERINETHR 23,946,417 2,395
W_EBEHRE=ZA=Z+—H 1,369,195,436 136,920

REFNARFFNELA _FT=ZBLAMZLURREFE » ARF#1T23,946417TR (ZF
TIO4E ¢ 272,584,224/8) B R EHO.10B T2 AL A L E R FREBIBRG » LABRBEZ
i%mﬁzﬁz+—5i%§2%%%%2&ﬁ°%%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@@ﬁﬁa%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@
R A

BRETH

(a) WHBRETH
ALAR-ANRZENA-EBRK—EWBRERH ((HBRERS]) URGSR
BRERREEBEZEM - REF QA ZVHABBEFY > ALFEETHERAL A
FEECMHBLAAZMEMEEREBE R BB UDBWA LT RM - RAAFAZNHA
BEREAFIENR _ZF=FAA=Z+—HEH -
TEHRBVHBREAHET AL AMBEREFEEIRLEZZ 2B FE

BREBTERSTRTZFLAROEE

RZB8=F R-BENE

B8R mE—A =ZA=+-A8

#E A TEE ®e FRER <323
A

17.12.1999 0.5552 16,100,000 (16,100,000) —

ggi%¢&ﬂzmﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁZﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁi:%ﬁ@ﬁiﬁE+—E¢$
53 X e
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B & —

32.

EEBE

AEERELEZORRAZITEERERR (BR L AHBSHNT ¢

L3 3
R-ZEF=£KA-H
Rl 405 (BT A)

BRBENARENER

ELZH®

RZFFMEEZA=Z+-H

Rk R (GEA)
Yo Tt 22 5]
HEBELAARER

RZFFAF=ZF=1—H

mE BELF EHIR Eff

HERE A2REN HEERE WARZ REVEE Rt 5t
t#i FRA FRA fRA 0 FEA fEA TEA
41486 29918 (11,290)  (3333) 219 57,000
(9.424) 11,056 2,942 (93) - (204) 4271
- 19.799) - - - - 19.799)

- 8,690 - - - 8,690
32062 29.865 (8.348)  (3,426) - 15 50,168
76 - 1,360 (897) - @) 1,037

- - - - 900,000 — 900,000

- (29865 - - - - (29.869)
32,138 - (6.488)  (4.323) 900,000 13 921340

BHTEREARREY ETREVHHEEELRMEC THEE - UTAMBREEMNMIEL 2

EEBHEBRZ

I JE 3 TR 55 1]

FEM
—®e®HEF —BEMOF
+ % %A
923,020 52,882
(1,680) (2,714)
921,340 50,168

RNZEEREZRAZ+—H  REEREAFE XY A BREEEL1,807,000,0008 7T (ZEZE
P94 : 1,354,000,0004 70) K 3,806,000 70 (Z T E U4 : 284,000 78) 7] il LAHE S R AR FERE L
BE - ALEHDM L MEEE ERIELERIEEE 437,000,000 70 (ZFZEPE © 48,000,0004
J) c AN ARBEMERFEFRE > HAEBARAAN AV ERERUEERENREEHER

B

_ 43—




B &% — rEBMZzHHEESR

29. SHRITER
TEW b N
- 3 - —EEINE —BEERE —sSgnE
FHEA F & FHEA FHEA
RATB KB IE
B EX 337,000 364,000 - -
$RITE R 245,976 180,000 — -
|ITHEX 6,984 17,048 — 1,992
589,960 561,048 — 1,992
kil
H g 517,000 544,000 - —
HIKHF 72,960 17,048 - 1,992
589,960 561,048 - 1,992
BITEREEDNT
—EREEED 289,960 44,048 - 1,992
HBBR—4F ERBERWE 300,000 217.000 — -
BEME BEREBEAFE - 300,000 - -
589,960 561,048 - 1,992
B —ERHEREIR
FIERB BB HIE (289,960) (44,048) - (1,992)
—EZ B A 300,000 517,000 — —

30, RELEBRRER
WHIRREIEH - AR —FREMRUFEREEMNEFH2ERNE -
3. RUBRBEEME |
ZREERBEEBEAZAEBNAEBEERERIRERES -
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B &2 —

= 2B ER

26.

27.

28.

i 32

(a) BHEAANRERCEZFAF2EBEE AR HERAEEZHBENA -
AHEFELERT AR —FERAEEBEARE » HEKEI318,796,000% T (ZFTIWHE :

236,214,000 70) ML HEEHREEMNRM2ES L -

(b FHAEAXRETHELAZ-ZRRZEN > AFAN  HATHHANEFELRAR

“ETERETAMEE -
EY (B BELARARESARZHERUER

FEREVEEN - £ R EE T EREY > M E A T 3E174,695,0008 T (ZFE W

£ 1 174,659,000 70) ML EEEEEF EN2ESE -
EAERRESHX

PEATER 2k B PERT B X B 31 A #9236,743,0008 7T (ZFE B IULE © 338,430,000 70) 2 EMNE 5B

;o MHESSTIT

90H &
HiR90H B 180H A
iR 180H

BAMEXEEARETOERELET BEZKYS5,819,0008 7T
HETEEREELREW -

D BB R A
WHRELSHEER AR —-FREMRELE -

—41 -

EM
—28RE —EZ2mF
T & T I #& A
218,556 320,155
1,129 5,064
17,058 13,211
236,743 338,430

(ZEFEF 8 > HUREEF
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24.

25.

BRER  TERANRR

AEEANERAERZ GRMNRESEFRENHERKENRTY - WEEBEHSR
ZEWEE%%E%EH&H=ﬁ$%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%%%%ﬁm2%ﬁ%~%me%B
%

FEULBR 2K ~ 3T & MFE (T 3E B & A £7399,560,000% 7T (Z B E W E © 492,753,000 70) 2 FE U
HHRK MERBRISTUOT -

TEM
—BETE g 3 3110% -3
i F#A
90H A 329,058 432,280
ABEHOOH B A 1808 & 2,839 3,784
BiE180H 67,663 56,689
399,560 492,753

BWRE - 5T&RBEMEREL S H123,711,0008 7T (ZFETDI4E ¢ 123,711,0008 55) 2 3 E
DAEREEETHA —ZDownerfI REF HZBESHEE (BEBEZARFREBEHZEHR) -
FREECABERESZATRE  -REBRE > FRBEESCHALEEBTR > fIREMNE
MAEE NZE R EHBLENE R MY -

I X JE 7R 195 77 B M S 48 2 2 Downer H 25 BT 15 SR TE 82 4 49449,174,000% 75 (T B F N4 ¢
M) c WERELABRMNBEERENERHTEA R L EDownet BB 2 MEEXHE T THHR -
BEBHE CEZEARMNELZ HIE R ENBERH4314,138,000% 5T -

FE I R E D R] FRE

TER
—2BIF “B28NF
F %A I %A
FE Wi BB -
EECEZHENT (TLHiER) 149,333 149,333
FRZEE N F (T X W iz) 169,463 86,881
H A B E AR (F X 3z(b) 779 _
319,575 236,214
H g smE
TEHOEZHENF (F XMW@ 15,665 28
FERZBEAT (F W) 11,567 2,239
H A BN T (F X M3z (a)) 74 289
346,881 238,770
B OR—ERBBEEIIERSEEZRA (346,102) (238,770)
—EE R X I 779 -
R s
g 779 -
E i 346,102 238,770
346,881 238,770
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FEB2HBER

22.

23.

FE 1R B X

FRBEAEUTAMEGFE -

%R
ERESTRZFREMISE
EHBEEEANERE
EHEEBEMNERMO2E
FHEEEEMNEMIE
EHEEEAEMmME
EHREEARMIE

BHoR—FRNIBAIARBRERZKE

—FHBM A

T

I
I

Bl (B EFENIRRE

RERBZERZTRE
REEXHZTREER
Rl D K T B 1R

R AR

RE

AR F &4 TRRE
FFARMNERF &# TRKA

rEWN
—EBEIF ZEENE
F %R F %R
1,508 -
4,032 3,821
69,869 69,869
100,000 130,000
2,000 6,700
14,500 14,500
- 21,325
191,909 246,215
(190,401) (196,215)
1,508 50,000
1,508 -
190,401 246,215
191,909 246,215

EEM
—ETBnHF —EZ@E
T # A F %A
40,438,759 35,203,304
882,008 862,708
41,320,767 36,066,012

(41,570,777)

(36,248,942)

(250,010) (182,930)

185,188 273,210
(435,198) (456,140)
(250,010) (182,930)

WoETEFSAS+—H EHARKEY TeRENREAZANIREREE LR

B 4 #) 5 369,874,000 7C (ZFFIM4E © 369,983,000 7T)
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By &% — 22 BB ER
19. HEZHBEER
FEM
—ZZTIRE ey 3 Juig:
F# L F A
HIEBFEE 9,544 12,817
FE i 34 F] 4 I R EE - 2,000
9,544 14,817
W EREGREBEREAEENREE - AHAECRENHEE -
AEFELFEGFEBER _ZEERAFEZA=Z+— B2 #BFET R MHEd4 -
200 EMEHKRE
EEMN
—B2FE b - 3 J10
F A FH A
FELEWHRE > Bl
s 15,093 15,093
7 5k 388 388
15,481 15,481
EERB AP EEERPHAERTEERSE -
21, BHKRE
RERS HuprE ok
“221F Z22ME -22InF —2EME -¥2TIF _—TBOF
F R A F#E A FEA FHA FHEA F &AL
TEN
THBAES
FiE 389 - 159,326 39,374 159,715 39,374
& s 1,389 1,481 8,040 - 9,429 1,481
BEEH
BEEsE—BIILET - - 1,467 - 1,467 -
BREHGFEE—F W - - 4,451 - 4,451 -
1,778 1,481 173,284 39,374 175,062 40,855
tHEETHE 3,743 1,481 168,833 39,374 172,576 40,855
HEBRENMAFZEEE
kHE 1,778 1,481 - - 1,778 1,481
& - - 173,284 39,374 173,284 39,374
1,778 1,481 173,284 39,374 175,062 40,855
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M 48 — Bt 15 & ®
DTHBIREBFRZHEER

—EEBNg —BE=-F
~B-BE -B—RE
TSEnE —eg=%
+=ZBA=+—-8B +=ZB=+-—-8
FRA F B A

EFEL:
HEEFWA 123,403 2,884,493
MELEH W EREIR (124,564) (169,184)
BHERELEBER (131,028) (180,119)
—BENE —BB=F
+=—B=+-8B +=ZRA=+-8
F & A FHR T

BEES R
FEBEE 808,151 1,124,597
RBEE 1,094,347 1,064,647
REE & (110,256) (161,090)
FEREBARE (184,946) (244,614)
DR (295,609) (250,160)

(¢)

(d)

TEFERE=ZHA+TWNE PR BELEEAERAT([HH) PRZFERR EET
HEMpEGREETTR2EBEL MRAB  AAFIRBEHEEELBIBE =TI —H
FHELHEEHE AN I RBHEZSEEIS3 T R2BEAER FEEREAGKHESE
BHEET AT REEE  BENBHE A HECITEI1$2,087,0008 T (ZFENEF -
#)WE BB -

MARERY > AREBERTRTK -
WHEBRE AR ZREREBSFMT

TEMW
T BT
[
W _EFZWEFENH—H 447619
"E 8,911
HEREEE R (293,190)
N oBEERE=ZA=+—H 163,340
BERRE
P oFEEREEEA—H 76,943
A A e 21,954
BEZRZEEER 155,173
HERBEEGREE (90,730)
R_EFREFE=ZA=1+—H 163,340
EEFE
NoBERE=ZA=+—H _
PRoEFNEZ/F=1+—H 370,676

FRZEBEEERI0E 208 -

LEEZEEBEAFAREABRERRERERBEENENUERE  BREZEBIM -
EERA > BUBELAAKERANGEEEN T _MAREE  8OIAXKE -

AEEFTERBELARNR _FZREFAZF—HZHBRIIN M 44 -
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EEMzRBER

BWRATERS
FERE
—EB2RF el -3 3110k
T &4 F A
WILEHEE -
wAETT RS (T XU Miza)) - 545,310
FEHEIHRG (FXMiEbd)) 371,914 460,494
IF b A% 4 37,146 23,828
IS NT ZBE (T X M) - 370,676
409,060 1,400,308
FEW— BB AR HIE (TLmE) — 26,400
409,060 1,426,708
W B EEE (26,914) -
382,146 1,426,708
WGz EE
12 4h - 1,110,079
F 139,763 139,763
139,763 1,249,842
i A

(a) RIZFENE=ZF=+— B L7 &GS LB R Downer EDI Limited ([ Downer] )
Z213%ME AR - Downet TR BRIMEFHFAE LT Z A7 WERENBARAFTERSE
ITREERBARGES - ER - AE2HCREEEHHESH KSR 2 2BTHER
5,500,0008% Downerfi% % T 3 T DownerfTERLA B » R ¥ S 4,558 7T 1 5 H £ 56,200,000
BDowner @ FEEZBUIEZH - ZEXGZHBFENEFLBAARNHR _EENE+ -
A+BR-ZFEZWNE+ZH+TREHZ M -

& Downer & B H B & A R HE 2 2 Y2532 519,873,000 7T (= T F W4
152,863,000 7¢) - EFtAWEE -

(b) FELTRGEESLEAFELMARLD (FR) 2204% CEEME  20.4%) B
A FRINEEB AL RF EMZAE HMBERSRAMA T A=t~
B AR AREERMR G ETENRE AR R LB ER - OARTR
SEERE=A=H-BREPRZERNRE RN - FFNET A=+ —B 2R
EFERTA-FRNGE—A—HE_ZFME+_A=+— 02 EHHA -
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FERBEBZUBESR

R
A £ W
F &
S|
RoZZNWENE—AH 385,531
WM B AR AFEA 60,740
RIEZHEZHA=Z+—8H 446,271
BERRE
RIEZENEWH—H 371,700
A% A Y 3,371
CHERBEER 9,554
RIEERAF=ZA=+—H 384,625
SEEEE
RN_EEREFE=ZA=Z+—H 61,646
RoOEEZNE=ZA=Z+—H , 13,831
Bz EHEPEBI10E 208 -
g NGTE - E
QT
—E22LEF —E2HREE
F & A T+ %
F LT A 5 212,921
FTHBAR ZER - 142,000
FE Ui B B 2 ] 3R T 3,195,746 3,456,836
3,195,751 3,811,757
BEFT-EMBLATAZER-R—FEXEN - (71,000)
3,195,751 3,740,757
W RGBS R R E (704,302) (704,302)
2,491 449 3,036,455

FLMBEGERAMIREEIE MENTEARXARBE-AN=ZFKRATAREFEB TR
RAZH  AEEAREHBEARAEREEEZREEE -

IEFNEZR > FALAFARERESBARAT ((HREZE - IBXH EABEE FRA
EEEBREGEEERE  BERANTREAEEHE2ZERB A FPaul Y. - ITC Construction
Holdings (B.V.L) Limited ([Paul Y Construction]) Z 2R AE R R R NENR > DIBRRER
T MEERER - BRICE R E MU BN E AR 2 3 IF R 536 -

EMBEARAENELENF SEREBREESY -ALAMFAEREERBT _EARE
KRBT MABRFETIIERREG -

45 B 2 R R R SR AL M A A A R R 2 R -
FARASEETEMBLAAR FTAFEZA=ZT— A ZHBRIVA K44 -
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Mt & — XEEBzHEER
AEBHRRZIHEESAEEBZEERERR
—2EIF —2EMmE
F A F # A
TREHEHEEDE 138 141
FHAEEWER
i 209,426 214,400
B 568 586
210,132 215,127
14, REYE
TEX
—22HE —BENE
FHEA T # A
&8
REER 515,000 572,608
HAREREMRE - 5,600
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should consult a licensed
securities dealer, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in PYI Corporation Limited (the “Company”), you should at once hand
this document to the purchaser or the transferee or to the bank manager, licensed securities dealer or other agent through
whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or the transferce.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this document, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this document.

i)

PYI Corporation Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability}
(Stock Code: 498)

Independent Non-executive Directors. Registered office:
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph OBE, Ip (Chairman) Clarendon House
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 2 Church Street
Chan Shu Kin Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
Executive Director:
Tom Ko Yuen Lau {Deputy Chairman & Managing Director) Principal place of
business in Hong Kong:
Non-executive Director: 31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles 51 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong
Kowloon

Hong Kong

12 January 2006
To the shareholders of the Company
Dear Sir or Madam,

Scrip Dividend Scheme with Cash Option
in relation to the Interim Dividend
for the Six Months Ended 30 September 2005

On 13 December 2005, it was announced that the board of directors of the Company had resolved to pay an
interim dividend of HK$0.015 per share of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company (“Share”) for the six months
ended 30 September 2003, such interim dividend to be satisfied by way of a scrip dividend of Shares (“Scrip Shares”)
with an option to elect cash, payable to shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders™) whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company as at the close of business on 11 January 2006 (“Scrip Dividend Scheme”). The register of
members of the Company was closed from 9 January 2006 to 11 January 2006, both dates inclusive, during which period
no transfers of shares could be effected. In order to qualify for the interim dividend, all transfers of shares together with
the relevant share certificates were required to be lodged with the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong, Secretaries
Limited of 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong on 6 January 2006.

Particulars of the Scrip Dividend Scheme
Under the Scrip Dividend Scheme, each Shareholder has the choice of receiving:

(a) an allotment of Scrip Shares at HK$1.4883 per Scrip Share (as determined by the market value stated
below) credited as fully paid in lieu of payment of the interim dividend to which such Shareholder is
entitled; or

)] HK$0.015 in cash for each existing Share held on 11 January 2006, or

(c) a combination partly of (a) and partly of (b) above.

As stated in the announcement of 13 December 2003, for the purpose of calculating the number of Scrip Shares to
be allotted, the market value of Scrip Shares will be fixed by reference to the average of the closing prices of the Shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) for the three consecutive trading days ended 11
January 2006 Iess a discount of five per cent. of such average price or to the par value of Shares, whichever is the higher.

Since the average closing price of Shares on the Stock Exchange for the three consecutive trading days ended 11
January 2006 was approximately HK$1.5667 (“Average Closing Price”), the entitlements of Shareholders who elect to
receive Scrip Shares under the Scrip Dividend Scheme shall be determined based on the price of HK$1.4883 (which is
higher than the par value of Shares), being the Average Closing Price less a discount of five per cent. Accordingly, the

~1-




number of Scrip Shares which each Shareholder will receive under the Scrip Dividend Scheme will be calculated by the
following formula:

Number of Scrip Shares Number of existing Shares held on 0015
to be received under the = 11 January 2006 for which the X :
Scrip Dividend Scheme dividend is to be satisfied in Shares 1.4883

under the Scrip Dividend Scheme

If all Shareholders elect to receive their entitlement in Scrip Shares, based on 1,367,540,720 Shares in issue as at
11 January 2006, not more than 13,782,913 Scrip Shares will be issued under the Scrip Dividend Scheme.

The number of Scrip Shares to be issued to each Shareholder will be rounded down to the nearest whole number.
Fractional entitlements to Scrip Shares will not be allotted and the benefit thereof will accrue to the Company.

The Scrip Shares will rank pari passu in all respects with the Shares existing as at the date of issue save that they
will not be entitled to the interim dividend for the six months ended 30 September 2005. The Scrip Shares will rank in full
for all future dividends and distribution which may be declared, made or paid after the date of issue thereof.

Cash Election Form

A Cash Election Form is enclosed. Any Shareholder who wishes to receive only Scrip Shares in respect of his/
her interim dividend entitlement need not complete the Cash Election Form. No Cash Election Forms are being
sent to Shareholders who have previously lodged a form of election electing to receive all future scrip dividend in
cash. Any Shareholder who wishes to receive cash in lieu of Scrip Shares in respect of his or her interim dividend
entitlement, either in whole or in part, must complete the Cash Election Form and return it to Secretaries Limited
of 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:00 p.m. on 2 February 2006.
No acknowledgement of receipt of the said Form will be issued.

If you complete the Cash Election Form but do not specify the number of Shares in respect of which you elect to
receive cash, or if you elect to receive cash in respect of a greater number of Shares than your registered holding on 11
January 2006, then in either case you will be deemed to have exercised your election to receive the interim dividend
wholly in cash in respect of all the Shares of which you were then registered as the holder(s).

Overseas Shareholders

Based on the register of members of the Company as at 11 January 2006 (being the record date for the purpose of
determining the Shareholders entitled to the said interim dividend), all of the Shareholders have registered addresses in
Hong Kong save that there was one Shareholder in Malaysia and one Shareholder in Taiwan.

The directors of the Company, having made enquiries with legal advisers in the relevant jurisdictions, have formed
the view that it would be expedient to exclude the Shareholders with registered addresses in these places on the ground of
legal restrictions and requirements under the laws of the relevant jurisdictions and/or that the costs of complying with the
requirements in each jurisdiction will exceed materially any potential benefit to the Company of doing so.

Accordingly, no Shareholders whose registered addresses are outside Hong Kong will be permitted to participate
in the Scrip Dividend Scheme and accordingly, they will receive the interim dividend wholly in cash. No Cash Election
Forms are being sent to such Shareholders. None of this circular, the Cash Election Form nor the Scrip Shares will be
registered or filed under the securities laws or equivalent legislation of any jurisdiction. A copy of this circular will be
delivered to the overseas Shareholders for their information only in compliance with the local laws, regulations and
requirements.

Stock Exchange Listing and Despatch of Share Certificates

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting listing of
and permissjon to deal in the Scrip Shares. Application will be made to the Stock Exchange for listing of and permission
to deal in the Scrip Shares. Certificates in respect of Scrip Shares and cheques in respect of cash dividends are expected to
be sent to Shareholders by post at the risk of such Shareholders on or around 13 February 2006. You may deal in the Scrip
Shares to be issued to you upon receipt of the relevant share certificate. In the unlikely event that the Scrip Shares are not
admitted to listing before 13 February 2006, the Cash Election Forms will be disregarded and the full cash dividend will
be paid in the way as described above.

No equity or debt securities of the Company are listed on or dealt in on any other stock exchange and no listing or
permission to deal in on any other stock exchange is being or is proposed to be sought.

Dealings in Scrip Shares are expected to commence on 14 February 2006.
Advantage of Scrip Dividend Scheme

The Scrip Dividend Scheme will give Shareholders the opportunity to increase their investments in the Company
at a discount to market value or at par as provided above, without incurring brokerage and stamp duty costs. The Scrip
Dividend Scheme will also be to the advantage of the Company because, to the extent that Shareholders receive Scrip
Shares, in whole or in part, in respect of the interim dividend, such cash as would otherwise have been paid to Shareholders
will be retained for use by the Company.

Recommendation

Whether or not it is to your advantage to elect to receive cash in lieu of Scrip Shares, in whole or in part, will
depend upon your own individual circumstances and the decision in this regard, and all effects resulting therefrom, are
the sole responsibility of each Shareholder. IF YOU ARE IN ANY DOUBT AS TO WHAT TO DO, YOU SHOULD
CONSULT A LICENSED SECURITIES DEALER, BANK MANAGER, SOLICITOR, PROFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANT OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISERS.

Yours faithfully,
By Order of the Board
PYI Corporation Limited
Tom Ko Yuen Lau
Depury Chairman & Managing Director
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES}O/A’I:}Q IMMEDIATE ATTENTION
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If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circulgr’oi#ds to the action E@;‘ ¢ taken, you should consult a
licensed securities dealer, bank manager, solicitor, pr\q\f\ssiqﬁg\yacgo%ntfblbgr\ ‘\her professional adviser.
\&

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in PYI (Sff);p\g}ration Limit e “Company”), you should

at once hand this circular to the purchaser or transferee or ¥ ‘Ctge l?%c af Y 1, licensed securities dealer or
other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected fi \tt ns iOn to the purchaser or transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibilify for the contents of this circular, makes
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

PYI Corporation Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 498)
PROPOSED ADOPTION OF NEW SHARE AWARD SCHEME
AND OF
NEW SHARE FINANCING PLAN
AND

PROPOSAL TO ADJUST SUBSCRIPTION PRICES IN RESPECT OF CERTAIN
OPTIONS OUTSTANDING UNDER EXISTING SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Independent Financial Adviser

e

KPMG Corporate Finance Limited

A notice convening a special general meeting of the Company (“SGM™) to be held at Chater II, Level B1,
The Ritz-Carlton, Hong Kong, No. 3 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, on Tuesday, 14 February 2006 at
11:00 a.m. is set out on pages 32 to 33 of this circular. A proxy form is also enclosed. Whether or not you
intend to attend and vote at the SGM, please complete and return the enclosed proxy form in accordance with
the instructions printed thereon to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 31st Floor,
Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event
not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding of the meeting. Completion and return of the
proxy form will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the SGM or any adjournment of it
should you so wish.

27 January 2006
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the following

meanings:

“Adoption Date”

“Announcement”

“Board”
“Director(s)”

“Eligible Person”

’

“Existing Share Option Scheme’

“IFA”

“Independent Shareholders”

“Invested Entity”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Model Code”

“Plan Loan”

means in respect of a Settlor the date it adopts the Share Award
Scheme;

means the announcement issued by the Company on 29 December
2005 regarding the Share Award Scheme, the Share Financing Plan
and the Reduction; -

means the board of Directors;
means the director(s) of the Company for the time being;

means any employee (whether full time or part time), executive
or officer, director (including any executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive director) of a Group Company or any
Invested Entity and any consultant, adviser or agent of any Group
Company or any Invested Entity, who, in the sole discretion of
the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the growth and
development of the PYI Group or any Invested Entity, and “Selected
Eligible Person” means an Eligible Person who has been selected to
and does participate in the Share Award Scheme;

means the share option scheme of the Company adopted by resolution
of the Shareholders on 27 August 2002;

means KPMG Corporate Finance Limited, the independent financial
adviser appointed by the Company for the purpose of advising
Independent Shareholders on the Reduction;

means Shareholders that have no interest in the Reduction and are
permitted under the Listing Rules to vote on the resolution to approve
the Reduction;

means any entity in which a member of the PYI Group holds an
equity interest;

means 25 January 2006, being the latest practicable date before the
printing of this circular for ascertaining certain information for the
purpose of inclusion in this circular;

means the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;

means the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules;

means in respect of an Eligible Person who has been invited to apply
for and has been issued new Shares under the Share Financing Plan,
the sum(s) owed by him/her by way of subscription price for the
relevant Shares;




DEFINITIONS

“PYT” or the “Company”

“PYI Group” or the “Group”
“Reduction”

“Returned Shares”
“Settlor(s)”

“SFO”

“SGM”

“Share Award Scheme”

“Share Financing Plan”

“Shareholders”
“Shares”
“Stock Exchange”

“Subsidiary(ies)”

“Trust”

“Trust Deed”

“Trust Period”

means PYI Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and the Shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange;

means the Company and its Subsidiaries, and a “Group Company”
shall mean a member of the PYI Group;

means the proposed reduction in the subscription prices of certain
existing share options referred to herein;

means Shares and related income which are not vested and/or forfeited
in accordance with the Share Award Scheme;

means the settlor(s) under the Trust Deed which will be the Company
and one or more Subsidiaries;

means the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong);

means the special general meeting of the Company convened to
approve the Reduction, notice of which is set out on pages 32 to 33
hereof;

means a share award scheme adopted on the Adoption Date by the
Board whereby awards of Shares may be made to Eligible Persons
(such Shares being purchased by the Trustee) pursuant to the Trust
Deed and the related rules;

means the plan adopted by the Board whereby Selected Eligible
Persons may be invited to apply for new Shares and offered the
opportunity to finance their subscription by way of Plan Loans;
means shareholders of the Company;

means shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company;

means The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;

means subsidiary(ies) of the Company from time to time within the
meaning of the Listing Rules;

means the trust constituted by the Trust Deed;

means the trust deed to be made between the Company and some or
all of its Subsidiaries as settlors and the Trustee as trustee, establishing
the Share Award Scheme;

means in relation to a Settlor the period beginning with date in
which it becomes party to the Trust Deed and ending upon the first
to happen:—

(a)  theexpiry of the period of 80 years beginning with the Adoption
Date; or
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“Trustee”

(b)  the date when an order for the winding-up of the Settlor or the
Company is made or a resolution is passed for the voluntary
winding-up of the Settlor or the Company (otherwise than
for the purposes of, and followed by, an amalgamation or
reconstruction in such circumstances that substantially the
whole of the undertaking, assets and liabilities of the Company
or the Settlor pass to a successor Company); or

(c) the date that the Trustee declares to be the end of the trust
period as may be informed by the Company that the Share
Award Scheme will be terminated; and

means a professional trustee to be appointed by the Board for the
purpose of the Share Award Scheme which is independent and not
connected with the Company.
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PYI Corporation Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 498)

Independent Non-Executive Directors: Registered office:

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph OBE, JP (Chairman) Clarendon House
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 2 Church Street
Chan Shu Kin Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
Executive Director:
Tom Ko Yuen Lau (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director) Principal place of
business in Hong Kong:
Non-Executive Director: 31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles 51 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong
Kowloon
Hong Kong

27 January 2006

To the Shareholders and option holders
under the Existing Share Option Scheme

Dear Sir or Madam,
PROPOSED ADOPTION OF NEW SHARE AWARD SCHEME
AND OF
NEW SHARE FINANCING PLAN
AND

PROPOSAL TO ADJUST SUBSCRIPTION PRICES IN RESPECT OF CERTAIN
OPTIONS OUTSTANDING UNDER EXISTING SHARE OPTION SCHEME

INTRODUCTION

It was announced on 29 December 2005 that the Board proposes to adopt the Share Award Scheme and
the Share Financing Plan, in addition to the adjustments proposed to options outstanding under the Existing
Share Option Scheme. This circular contains, inter alia, details of (i) the proposed reduction in subscription
prices together with the advice from KPMG Corporate Finance Limited, the independent financial adviser
appointed by the Company to advise the Independent Shareholders on the proposal; and (ii) the Share Award
Scheme and Share Financing Plan. As all the Directors (save and except for Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
who is a non-executive Director but a substantial Shareholder) have an interest in the Reduction, there is no
independent Director eligible to advise the Independent Shareholders.
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Purposes and Eligible Persons

The purpose of the Share Award Scheme and the Share Financing Plan is to recognise the contributions
of Eligible Persons (including employees, consultants, advisers or agents of the PYI Group and an Invested
Entity), to seek to retain them for the continued operation and development of the PYI Group, and to attract
suitable personnel for the further development of the PYI Group. Through the Share Award Scheme and Share
Financing Plan, Eligible Persons will be encouraged to re-invest part of their remuneration by way of equity
participation into PYI, thus closely aligning their goals and interests with those of PYI and its Shareholders
as a whole. A summary of each is set out below.

The Company now has in force the Existing Share Option Scheme. Once they have been adopted it
will also have in force the Share Award Scheme and the Share Financing Plan. It is intended that these will
give the Company more flexibility in providing incentives, by way of equity participation, to such Eligible
Persons in various jurisdictions in which members of the PYI Group 6perate, where different regulations and
tax regimes make it desirable for these Eligible Persons to be given different ways of participation in equity
subject to all restrictions of the Listing Rules, including the prohibition on issue of new Shares to connected
persons of the Company without independent Shareholders’ approval.

The adoption of the Share Award Scheme and the Share Financing Plan and their related rules do not
require approval of Shareholders. The substance of both is provision of financial benefits to employees and
others structured so as to benefit the Company by requiring them to invest in it. They are effectively cash
bonuses. They are to be administered by the Board and the Board will have full authority to delegate this role
to a committee of Directors (including the Remuneration Committee of the Company). All Directors will be
eligible to sit on any such committee, subject to conflicts of interest, which will be selected by the Board if
and when it determines to establish such a committee.

NEW SHARE AWARD SCHEME
Duration

Unless earlier terminated, the Share Award Scheme will be valid for a term of 10 years from the
Adoption Date for the relevant Settlor.

Restrictions

No instructions and no payments to purchase Shares will be given to the Trustee when any Director
is in possession of any unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company or where dealings
by Directors are prohibited under any code or requirement of the Listing Rules and all applicable laws from
time to time.

Operation

The Board will select Eligible Persons to invite to participate in the Share Award Scheme and determine
the number of Shares to be awarded to each by reference to, amongst other things, their past or potential
contributions to the growth and development of the PYI Group or any Invested Entity. Similar factors may be
taken into account under the Existing Share Option Scheme. No guidelines have been established on whether
Eligible Persons who are also employees will be invited to become Selected Eligible Persons or offered options
under the Existing Share Option Scheme, or both.

The Board will pay the Trustee the purchase price and the related expenses from the Company’s
resources. The Trustee will purchase from the market the relevant number of Shares awarded and will hold
such Shares until they are vested in accordance with the rules of the Share Award Scheme. There are no set
limits on such purchases or financing and no set limits on the awards to any Eligible Person and it is not at
present intended to apply guidelines similar to the requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules (which
apply to share option schemes). The conditions attached to each offer will be decided on a case-by-case basis
and may be different for different Eligible Persons.
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The Trustee may purchase further Shares for the Selected Eligible Persons to be funded by the proceeds
of the sale of any non-cash distributions such as dividends in specie. When the Selected Eligible Person has
satisfied all vesting conditions specified by the Board at the time of making the award and become entitled
to the Shares forming the subject of the award, the Trustee will transfer the relevant vested Shares (awarded
Shares, related scrip distribution and further Shares acquired or subscribed out of the income derived therefrom)
to that Selected Eligible Person at no cost (other than transaction costs). The Shares will not be repurchased
by the Company or for its benefit and the purchase of the relevant Shares will not fall within the definition
of “share repurchase” for the purpose of the Code on Share Repurchases or within Rule 10.06 of the Listing
Rules.

No Eligible Persons have yet been selected for offers under the Share Award Scheme.
Vesting and Lapse

Awarded Shares and the related income derived therefrom may be subject to a vesting period for
the Eligible Person in question. Vesting of the Shares will be conditional on the Selected Eligible Person
remaining an employee, consultant, adviser or agent of the PYI Group or the Invested Entity (as the case
may be) until and on each of the relevant vesting dates and his/her execution of the relevant documents to
effect the transfer from the Trustee.

An award will automatically lapse when the relevant Eligible Person ceases to be eligible and qualified
under the definition of “Eligible Person”, or the Group Company or the Invested Entity employing or engaging
the relevant Eligible Person ceases to be a Group Company or

Invested Entity, save that in the case when the relevant Eligible Person dies, or retires at his/her normal
retirement date or earlier by agreement prior to a vesting date, all the awarded Shares and the related income
will be deemed to vest on the day immediately prior to his/her death or retirement. In case there is no claim
of the vested interests by the legal representative of the relevant deceased Selected Eligible Person within two
years of his or her death (or such longer period as the Trustee and the Board will agree from time to time)
or the Trust Period (whichever is shorter), such vested interests will be forfeited and cease to be transferable
and will be held as Returned Shares for the purposes of the Share Award Scheme.

Where the awarded Shares do not vest in accordance with the Share Award Scheme, the Trustee will
hold such Shares and the related income for the benefit of one or more Eligible Persons as it determines in
its discretion, after having taken into account the recommendations of the Board.

Voting Rights

The Trustee may exercise voting rights in respect of any Shares held under the Trust (including but not
limited to the awarded Shares, and further Shares acquired out of the income derived therefrom) at its sole
discretion. It will be entitled to vote at its discretion on transactions requiring Shareholders’ approval under
the Listing Rules (subject to restrictions under the Listing Rules including but not limited to restrictions on
connected transactions).

Termination

The Share Award Scheme has not yet been adopted. Once adopted it will terminate on the earlier of
the 10th anniversary of the Adoption Date or such other date as may be determined by the Board provided
that such termination will not affect any subsisting rights of the Selected Eligible Persons.

Upon termination, all awarded Shares and the related income derived therefrom will become vested on
the relevant Eligible Persons so referable on such date of termination, subject to the receipt by the Trustee of
the transfer documents duly executed by the Selected Eligible Persons within the stipulated period. Net sale
proceeds (after making appropriate deductions) of the Returned Shares and such non-cash income together
with the residual cash and such other funds remaining in the Trust will be remitted to the Company forthwith
after the sale.
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The Board intends that subject to any legal restrictions full disclosure will be made in the Company’s
annual reports of awards under the Share Award Scheme:

In addition to the Share Award Scheme, the Directors propose the Share Financing Plan.

SHARE FINANCING PLAN

Under the Share Financing Plan, the Board can make invitations to Eligible Persons inviting them to
apply for up to a number of Shares as specified in the invitation. The Eligible Persons who choose to apply
for Shares will be issued new Shares by the Company at such subscription price as the Board may determine
at the relevant time. Subject to obtaining all consents and approvals as may be required by law or under the
Listing Rules, the Company will issue Shares to the relevant Eligible Persons. There are no set limits on the
number of Shares that Eligible Persons may be invited to apply for and it is not at present intended to apply
guidelines similar to the requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules (which apply only to share option
schemes). No Eligible Persons have yet been selected for invitations.

The Eligible Persons may either pay the acquisition price in full or, if they fail to do so, will be deemed
to have applied for a loan from the Company for the acquisition price less the amount of any payment made
by the relevant Eligible Persons for allotment of the Shares. Any such loan will be interest free.

If an Eligible Person is not a connected person of the Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules,
then loans or deemed loans to that person will be not connected transactions of the Company for the purposes
of the Listing Rules but may be notifiable transactions under Chapter 14 depending on their size.

If an Eligible Person is a connected person of the Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules, then
loans or deemed loans to that person will be connected transactions of the Company for the purposes of the
Listing Rules and may also be notifiable transactions under Chapter 14 depending on their size.

The Company will at the material time comply fully with the Listing Rules (including Chapter 14
as regards notifiable transactions and Chapter 14A as regards connected transactions). Depending on the
sums involved this may entail a press announcement and a circular to Shareholders and approval by those
Shareholders who are permitted under the Listing Rules to vote on the proposal.

Whilst issues of Shares generally can be made under general mandates granted to Directors from
time to time, if a proposed issue of Shares is to a connected person of the Company for the purposes of the
Listing Rules then it will entail a press announcement and a circular to Shareholders and approval by those
Shareholders who are permitted under the Listing Rules to vote on the proposal.

Again, the Company will at the material time comply fully with the Listing Rules including the restriction
on issuing new Shares at a discount higher than that as permitted under Rule 13.36(5) of the Listing Rules.
The Company will also issue an announcement on each issue of new Shares under the general mandate to
Eligible Persons (with appropriate details included) and apply for the necessary listing approval on each
occasion before issue of the relevant Shares.

Duration

The Share Financing Plan has no set term and may be terminated or suspended by the Board at any
time. '
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Repayment

Whilst the Plan Loans remain outstanding no dividends will be passed over in cash to the relevant
Eligible Person in respect of the Shares to which that Plan Loan relates and instead the repayment of Plan
Loans may be made from cash representing dividends received from those Shares. If there are no such
dividends that will not affect the obligation to repay the relevant Plan Loan. Each Plan Loan must be repaid
by the relevant Eligible Person within 3 years after the Plan Loan is made (or such other period as may be
determined by the Board either generally or in a case-by-case basis).

A Plan Loan must be repaid in full on the earlier of the day:~

(a)  the relevant Eligible Person ceases to be employed or engaged by a Group Company or an
Invested Entity for any reason whatsoever;

(b)  the relevant Eligible Person fails to observe or comply with his/her obligations under the rules
governing the Share Financing Plan; and

(¢)  the aggregate value of the Plan Shares beneficially owned by the relevant Eligible Person
calculated based on the market price (being the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
subject day) is less than 50% of the Plan Loan then owed by that Eligible Person.

If a Plan Loan is not repaid to the extent required, the Company may sell, dispose of the relevant Plan
Shares and apply any proceeds towards repayment of the Plan Loan in question. At all times until the Plan
Loan has been repaid in full the certificates or other title documents for the relevant Shares will be in the
physical custody of an agent. The Eligible Person will not hold the scrip.

Restrictions

Shares acquired by the Selected Eligible Persons under the Share Financing Plan cannot be disposed
of until the later of:—

(a)  the expiry of the prohibition period, being a minimum of 6 months and a maximum of 2 years
from the date of acquisition of the Shares as determined by the Board before determining to
grant the Plan Loan (unless the person ceases to be an Eligible Person); and

(b)  the date on which the relevant Plan Loan is repaid in full.
The Directors are satisfied that the Share Financing Plan is lawful under the laws of Bermuda and that
Plan Loans can be made to Selected Eligible Persons under it in compliance with the laws of Bermuda. It is

their intention to comply fully with all relevant laws.

The Board intends that subject to any legal restrictions full disclosure will be made in the Company’s
annual reports of awards under the Share Financing Plan.
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PROPOSED REDUCTION IN SUBSCRIPTION PRICES OF OPTIONS

The Company has outstanding a total number of 44,200,000 share options granted under the Existing
Share Option Scheme to Directors and former Directors. The subscription price for half of all these options
(i.e. 22,100,000) is HK$1.94 per Share and for the remaining options (i.e. 22,100,000) is HK$2.20 per Share.
The following Directors and former Directors (who are still engaged as general advisers of the PYI Group)
own the options set opposite their names below exercisable at the prices specified below:-

No. of Shares
in respect of
which options

No. of Shares were granted

in respect of as percentage

Name Subscription which options of existing

of Directors price Options exercisable were granted issued Shares
(HKS)

Tom Ko Yuen Lau 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 6,500,000 0.475%

220 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 6,500,000 0.475%

Chan Fut Yan 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 6,500,000 0.475%

2.20 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 6,500,000 0.475%

Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 6,500,000 0475%

220 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 6,500,000 0.475%

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 650,000 0.048%

2.20 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 650,000 0.048%

Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 650,000 0.048%

220 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 - 650,000 0.048%

Chan Shu Kin 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 650,000 0.048%

2.20 28 December 2004 10 26 August 2012 650,000 0.043%

Cheung Ting Kau, Vincent 1.94 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 650,000 0.048%

220 28 December 2004 to 26 August 2012 630,000 0.048%

The proposed new subscription prices are HK$1.24 for options with a current subscription price of
HK$1.94 per Share and HK$1.50 per Share for options with a current subscription price of HK$2.20 per Share.
The closing price of the Shares reported in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on 29 December
2005 (the last trading day prior to the issue of the Announcement) was HK$1.48 per Share and the closing
price on the Latest Practicable Date was HK$1.60. The Directors believe that one reason why the current
market price is significantly below the subscription price for the options is that the Company declared and paid
a special dividend of HK$0.70 per Share in July 2005. The Reduction was calculated not by reference o a
particular formula widely used in respect of options generally but by deducting from the existing subscription
prices under the relevant options the cash value of this special dividend enjoyed by the Shareholders. The
dividend which was not afforded to the existing option holders as the Existing Share Option Scheme does
not provide for any adjustment to the option subscription price following the payment of a cash dividend
which is not a capital distribution by nature. The Directors believe the Reduction is reasonable as a way of
encouraging the option holders to continue their efforts for the PYI Group and to exercise their options, and
taking into account the aforesaid circumstances, it is fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

GENERAL

The Reduction will constitute connected transactions between the relevant Directors and the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules requiring Independent Shareholders’ approval. Further, as the Reduction
is to the advantage of the option holders, Shareholders’ approval is required under the rules of the Existing
Share Option Scheme. The Board is proposing the Reduction to Independent Shareholders for approval at
the SGM.
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Special General Meeting

The SGM has been convened for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving the Reduction.
Shareholders who have an interest in the Reduction will abstain from voting on the resolution put to them.

An announcement will be made by the Company on the business day immediately following the
conclusion of the SGM to inform the Shareholders and the public of the results of the SGM. Set out on pages
32 to 33 is a notice convening the SGM to be held at Chater II, Level B1, The Ritz-Carlton, Hong Kong, No.
3 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 14 February 2006 at 11:00 a.m. A proxy form is also
enclosed. Whether or not you intend to attend and vote at the SGM, please complete and return the enclosed
proxy form in accordance with the instructions printed thereon to the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at 31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong as soon as
possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding of the SGM. Completion
and return of the proxy form will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the SGM or any
adjourned meeting should you so wish.

PROCEDURES FOR DEMANDING A POLL

Under bye-law 66 of the bye-laws of the Company, a resolution put to the vote of a general meeting
shall be decided by poll if a poll is demanded:

(1) by the chairman of the meeting; or;

(ii) by at least three Shareholders present or, in the case of a Shareholder being a corporation, by
its duly authorized representative or by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting;
or

(iii) by a Shareholder or Shareholders present in person or, in the case of a Shareholder being a
corporation, by its duly authorized representative or by proxy and representing not less than
one-tenth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having the right to vote at the meeting;
or

(iv) by a Shareholder or Shareholders present in person or, in the case of a Shareholder being a
corporation, by its duly authorized representative or by proxy and holding Shares conferring a
right to vote at the meeting being Shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to
not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the Shares conferring that right; or

(v)  if required by the rules of the Designated Stock Exchange by any Director or Directors who,
individually or collectively, hold proxies in respect of Shares representing five per cent. (5%)
or more of the total voting rights at such meeting, and if on a show of hand a meeting votes in
the opposite manner to that instructed in those proxies, provided that if it is approved from the
total proxies held that a vote taken on a poll shall not reverse the vote taken on a show of hands,
then the Director or Directors shall not be required to demand a poll. A demand for poll must
be made before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of
any other demand for a poll.
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RECOMMENDATION

The Board is of the opinion that the terms of the Reduction is fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Board recommends the Independent Shareholders
to vote in favour of the ordinary resolution to be proposed at the SGM to approve the Reduction.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Your attention is also drawn to the letter from the IFA additional information contained in the appendix
to this circular.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of the Board
PYI Corporation Limited
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph OBE, Jp
Chairman

-11 -




LETTER FROM THE IFA

The following is the text of a letter of advice from KPMG Corporate Finance Limited to the Independent
Shareholders in respect of the proposal to adjust subscription prices in respect of certain share options
outstanding under the Existing Share Option Scheme, and is prepared for inclusion in this circular.

27th Floor
M Alexandra House
16-20 Chater Road
KPMG Corporate Finance Limited Central

Hong Kong

27 January 2006

The Independent Shareholders
¢/o PYI Corporation Limited
31/F Paul Y. Centre

51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,

PROPOSAL TO ADJUST SUBSCRIPTION PRICES IN RESPECT OF
CERTAIN SHARE OPTIONS OUTSTANDING UNDER
EXISTING SHARE OPTION SCHEME

I INTRODUCTION

We refer to our role as the independent financial adviser to the Independent Shareholders considering
the Board’s proposal to adjust subscription prices in respect of certain share options outstanding under the
Existing Share Option Scheme (the “Proposal”). Details relating to the Proposal are contained in the Company’s
circular dated 27 January 2006 (the “Circular”). Capitalised terms used in this letter shall have the same
meanings as defined in the Definitions of the Circular.

The Company has outstanding share options representing a total number of 44,200,000 Shares granted
under the Existing Share Option Scheme to Directors and former Directors. The Board proposes to reduce the
subscription price per Share for half of those share options from HK$1.94 1o HK$1.24 and for the remaining
half from HK$2.20 to HK$1.50.

As at the date of this letter, the Board comprises five Directors, namely Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph
OBE, JP, Independent Non-Executive Chairman; Mr. Tom Ko Yuen Lau, Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director; Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, Non-Executive Director; Mr. Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest, Independent
Non-Executive Director; and Mr. Chan Shu Kin, Independent Non-Executive Director. Each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors has outstanding share options subject to the Proposal. Given their material interests
in the Proposal, none of the Independent Non-Executive Directors is eligible to form an independent board
committee for the Proposal. In accordance with provisions in the Listing Rules, we are giving recommendations
in this letter to the Independent Shareholders in respect of the Proposal only.
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In our capacity as the independent financial adviser to the Independent Shareholders, our role is to opine
as to whether the Proposal is fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as
a whole and to advise on whether the Independent Shareholders should vote in favour of the Proposal.

In formulating our opinion and advice, we have relied on the information and facts supplied, and opinions
expressed, by the Directors and their advisers, which we have assumed to be true, accurate and complete. We
have also sought and received confirmation from the Directors that no material factors have been omitted from
the information supplied and opinions expressed to us. We consider that the information we have received
1s sufficient for us to formulate the opinion and advice as set out in this letter and we have taken reasonable
steps in compliance with Rule 13.80 of the Listing Rules to justify our reliance on such information as we
have no reason to doubt the truth and accuracy of the information provided to us or to believe any material
information has been omitted or withheld. We have not, however, conducted an independent investigation
into the business, operations or financial condition of the Group. We have also assumed that all facts and
representations contained or referred to in the Circular were true at the time they were made and will continue
to be true up to and including the date of the SGM.

II. THE PROPOSAL

On 29 December 2005 the Company announced the Proposal. The Company has outstanding share
options representing a total number of 44,200,000 Shares granted under the Existing Share Option Scheme
to Directors and former Directors. The Company proposes to reduce the subscription price per Share for half
of those share options from HK$1.94 to HK$1.24 and for the remaining half from HK$2.20 to HK$1.50.
The closing price of the Shares reported in the daily quotation list of the Stock Exchange on 29 December
2005 (the last trading day prior to the issue of the Company’s announcement) was HK$1.48 per Share. The
Directors believe that one reason why the current market price is significantly below the subscription prices
for the options is that the Company paid a special cash dividend of HK$0.70 per Share in July 2005.

We understand from the Directors that the proposed reduction was calculated not by reference to a
particular formula widely used in respect of options generally but by deducting from the existing subscription
prices under the relevant options the cash value of that special cash dividend enjoyed by the Shareholders.
The Directors believe the proposed reduction is reasonable as a way of encouraging the option holders to
continue their contributions to the Group, and taking into account the preceding circumstances, it is fair and
reasonable for the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

III. FACTS
Special cash dividend of HK$0.70 per Share

The Company paid a special cash dividend of HK$0.70 per Share on 29 July 2005 in relation to its
divestment of Downer EDI Limited (“Downer™). According to the Company’s circular dated 24 January
2005, Downer’s shares are listed on the Australian Stock Exchange and the New Zealand Stock Exchange.
Its principal activities include the provision of comprehensive engineering and infrastructure management
services to the public and private power, rail, road, telecommunications, mining and minerals processing
sectors in Australia, New Zealand, Asia and the Pacific.

In November 2004, a company controlled by certain executives of Downer purchased from the Group
5.5 million shares in Downer at A$2.2 each pursuant to the incentive option agreement entered into with the
Company in April 2003 and the subsequent settlement agreement dated 29 November 2004. In December
2004, the Group disposed of its entire remaining interest in Downer of 56.2 million shares at a price of A$4.55
each to independent third parties.
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In the Company’s announcement dated 17 June 2005, the Board announced that it had resolved to
declare a special cash dividend of HK$0.70 per Share in the capital of the Company to the Shareholders whose
names appeared on the register of members of the Company on 8 July 2005. The special cash dividend was
to be paid out of the proceeds arising from the disposal of the Company’s entire interest in Downer.

The register of members of the Company would be closed during 6 July 2005 to 8 July 2005, both
dates inclusive. In order to qualify for the special cash dividend all transfer of Shares needed to be presented
for registration not later than 4 pm on 5 July 2005. The ex-dividend date of the special cash dividend was 4
July 2005.

The Existing Share Option Scheme

On 27 August 2002, the Company adopted the Existing Share Option Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentive or reward to any Eligible Person. The Existing Share Option Scheme will remain in force
for a period of ten years from that date.

Under the Existing Share Option Scheme, the Directors may at their discretion grant options to any
Eligible Person to subscribe for Shares in the Company. No consideration is required from the Eligible Person
upon the acceptance of the options granted. The Directors may at their discretion determine the specific
subscription period which should expire in any event no later than ten years from date of adoption of the
Existing Share Option Scheme. The subscription price is determined by the Directors and will be at least the
higher of: (i) the subscription price as is permissible under the Listing Rules from time to time; and (ii) the
nominal value of the Shares.

Outstanding share options

On 28 December 2004, the Board resolved to grant share options representing a total of 44,200,000
Shares to certain Eligible Persons. The closing Share price was HK$1.94 per Share on 28 December 2004.
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Details of the share options granted under the Existing Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Percentage in the

issued shares
upon exercise of
Shares that aptions granted
may fall (based on issued
Name of to be issued QOutstanding share capital of
category of Exercise in relation to asat the Latest ~ 1,367,540,720 as
participant Dateof grant  price  options granted  Exercised Cancelled  Exercisable period ~ Practicable Date at 25 Jan, 06)
HES$
Director

Chow Ming Kuen, B4 1% 630,000 - - BN2I04-26008N2 £50,000 0.0475%
Joseph w104 220 650,000 - - 28/12104-26/08/12 650,000 0.0475%
Total 1,300,000 1,300,000 0.0951%
Chan Shu Kin w04 194 656,000 - - 281204-26/08/12 650,000 0.0475%
B 20 630,000 - - I312104-26/08012 630.000 0.0475%
Total 1,300,000 1,300,000 0.0951%
Kwok Shiu Keung, B4 1% 650,000 - - 212042600812 650,000 0.0475%
Ermest BN 10 £50.000 - - 180426008012 630,000 0.0475%
Total 1,300,000 1,300,000 0.0951%
Tom Ko Yuen Lau w19 6,500,000 - - 2120426008012 6,500,000 0.4733%
e 20 6,500,000 - - JBIE04-26008/12 6.500.000 04753%
Total 13000000 13,000.000 0.9506%

Former Director
Chan Fut Yan W02004 194 6,500,000 - - 2812042608012 6,500,000 04753%
W 20 6,500,000 - - BI1204-2600812 6.500.000 04753%
Total 13,000,000 13,000,000 0.9306%
Chay Mei Wah, BN 1Y 6,500,000 - - IY04-26/08112 6,500,000 04753%
Rosanna w20 6,500,000 - - 8/12004-26/08112 6,500,000 04753%
Total 13,000,000 ‘ 13,000,000 09506%
Cheung Ting Kau, 112004 194 650,000 - - 2B12104-26/08112 650,000 0.0475%
Vineent W 20 650.000 - - QY12004-26/08112 . 650,000 0.0475%
Total 1,300,000 1,300,000 0.0951%
Grand Total 44,200,000 332%
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According to the Directors, it was decided to grant half the share options at a subscription price of
HK$1.94 per Share, calculated in accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, whilst the remaining share
options were granted at a subscription price of HK$2.20 per Share, a commercial decision by the Board to
provide incentivisation to the Directors and former Directors to increase the value of the Company and hence
the price of the Shares.

Historical share price information

The special cash dividend was payable on 29 July 2005 and its amount was first announced on 20
June 2005. The ex-dividend date of the special cash dividend was 4 July 2005. The Share price increased by
HKS$0.15, representing approximately 7% from HK$2.225 as at 17 June 2005, the business day immediately
preceding announcement of the amount of the special cash dividend, to HK$2.375 as at 20 June 2005, the
business day immediately after the publication of that announcement. The Share price later decreased by
approximately 34% from HK$2.225 as at 30 June 2005, the business day immediately preceding the ex-
dividend date, to HK$1.47 as at 4 July 2005. The Shares closed at HK$1.48 per Share on 29 December 2003,
the date the Proposal was announced. It represents a decrease of HK$0.745 or 33% as compared to HK$2.225
per Share as at 17 June 2005.

IV. FACTORS TAKEN INTO CONSIDERATION
Share price movements

The Directors believe that the fluctuations in the price of the Shares around dates of announcement and
payment of the special cash dividend were due to the payment of the special cash dividend in July 2005. We
consider it appropriate to analyse that attribution by comparing the Company’s Share price movements with
that of other comparable local listed issuers, other local listed issuers which have paid special cash dividends,

and of the Hang Seng Index.

In order to identify comparable local listed issuers, companies (collectively, the “Peers”) were searched
for based on the following conditions:

The Peer
1) is listed in Hong Kong;
i1) has similar/comparable principal business operations to that of the Company which include
construction services, civil engineering services, trading of construction materials, and engineering

and infrastructure services; and

iii)  is comparable in market capitalisation to the Company.
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The Company is in the process of transforming itself from an engineering service provider to a port
investor and developer through investments in the Yangkou and Nantong ports. For the year ended 31 March
2005, the Group’s operations were organised into operating divisions including construction and engineering,
property investments, infrastructure and treasury investments. Accordingly the following Peers were identified
in Table A below:

Table A
Market Capitalisation
Stock Code Company name as at 29 Dec. 2005
(HK$ mn)
983 HK Shui On Construction and Materials Ltd. 3,781
190 HK Hong Kong Construction (Holdings) Ltd. 1,467
610 HK Wai Kee Holdings Ltd. 1,158
711 HK Chun Wo Holdings Ltd. 491
404 HK Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. 326
15 HK Vantage International Holdings Ltd. 188
498 HK PYI Corporation Ltd. 2,024

Source: Bloomberg

Graph A below illustrates trends of the share price of the Company and that of the Peers during 3 January
2005 to 29 December 2005 based on their actual share price. During this period none of the Peers paid any
special cash dividends or carried out any corporate actions which resulted in capital change to the company
(including rights, scrip dividend, bonus shares issue, share split, share consolidation and spin offs). The impact
of the Company’s special cash dividend on its Share price was therefore highlighted in Graph A.

Graph A: Share price of the Company and that of the Peers during 3 Jan. 2005 to 29 Dec. 2005
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The special cash dividend was payable on 29 July 2005 and its amount was first announced on 20 June
2005. The ex-dividend date of the special cash dividend was 4 July 2005. For studying the effects on the
Share price both 20 June 2005 and 4 July 2005 were considered the critical dates (collectively, the “Critical
Dates”). The Share price increased HK$0.15 representing approximately 7% from HK$2.225 as at 17 June
2003, the business day immediately preceding announcement of the amount of the special cash dividend,
to HK$2.375 as at 20 June 2005, the business day immediately after the publication of that announcement.
The Share price later decreased by approximately 34% from HK$2.225 as at 30 June 2005, the business day
immediately preceding the ex-dividend date, to HK$1.47 as at 4 July 2005.

Near or around each of the Critical Dates, the trends of the share prices of the six Peers did not show
similar movements, as illustrated by the relatively flat lines in Graph A.

Certain local listed issuers which declared and paid special cash dividends during 2005 were identified.
These are listed in Table B below:

Table B
Actual
decline
in share
price
Share price Special Share as % of
cum-special cash price on Actual special
Stock cash dividend  Ex-dividend ex-dividend  decline in cash
code Company name dividend  per share date date  share price dividend
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
SI8HK Tungtex (Holdings) 3.550 0.330 8 Mar. 2005 3.250 0.300 91%
Co., Ltd.
248HK HKC International 0.315 0.040 25 Apr. 2005 0.270 0.045 113%
Holdings Ltd.
438HK Trico Group 0.650 #0028 19 May 2005 0.630 0.020 %
Electronics Co., Ltd.
626HK JCG Holdings Ltd. 7.950 0.290 15 Sep. 2005 7.550 0.400 138%
Average: 103%
498HK PYI Corporation Ltd. 2.225 0.700 1470 0.755 108%

Source: Bloomberg

*  Special cash dividend of RMB0.03 per share. Exchange rate as at 19 May 2005 was 1 CNY = 0.9416 HKD
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The movement in share prices as a result of the payment of the special cash dividends is also highlighted
in Graph B: ‘

Graph B: Actual Share prices of the Company and actual share prices of other special cash dividend
paying issuers during 3 Jan. 2005 to 29 Dec. 2005
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In all the cases identified, the payment of a special cash dividend has resulted in the share price of the
listed issuer decreasing. In the cases of the two highest special cash dividends paid per share, the reduction
amounted to 91% and 138% of the special cash dividend declared. In the third highest, the price decline
amounted to 113% of the special cash dividend declared. On average, the decline amounted to 103% of the
special cash dividend declared, or just over the amount of the special cash dividend paid.

In Graph C below, the Company’s actual Share price was compared with the Hang Seng Index.
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Graph C: Actual Share price of the Company and Hang Seng Index during 3 Jan. 2005 to 29 Dec.
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The Hang Seng Index is generally considered a barometer of the Hong Kong stock market. It currently
comprises 33 constituent stocks which are representative of the market. The aggregate market capitalisation
of these stocks accounts for about 70% of the total market capitalisation of all eligible stocks listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Movements of the Hang Seng Index were reviewed during the seven
months up to 29 July 2005, and more particularly around the Critical Dates. We considered that this review
would generally provide a picture of the overall market sentiment in Hong Kong. The Hang Seng Index was
relatively stable across both the seven month period, and more specifically around the Critical Dates. The
Hang Seng Index stood at 13,945 as at 17 June 2005 and 13,979 as at 20 June 2005. It stood at 14,177 as
at 30 June 2005 and 14,124 as at 4 July 2005. The trend of the Company’s Share price as compared to the
Hang Seng Index is summarised in the following table:

Share price of

Average during (monthly) Hang Seng Index the Company

“ (HK$)
3 to 31 Jan. 2005 13,613 2.280
1 to 28 Feb. 2005 13,942 2.474
1 to 31 Mar. 2005 13,746 2.495
1 to 29 Apr. 2005 13,681 2.564
3 to 31 May 2005 13,824 2.091
1 to 30 Jun. 2005 14,009 2.115
4 1o 29 Jul. 2005 14,503 1.223

Graphs A and C highlight a generally stable share price trend of the Peers and the Hang Seng Index
around the Critical Dates. This compares with an overall decreasing trend for the Share price of the Company,
as illustrated in the graphs above. The average Share price of the Company was HK$2.280 per Share in January
2005, HK$2.115 per Share in June 2005, and HK$1.223 per Share in July 2005. The Hang Seng Index during
the comparable periods demonstrated the opposite behaviour, increasing from an average of 13,613 for January
2005, to an average of 14,009 for June 2005, and further to an average of 14,503 for July 2005.
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Graph B highlights that in all cases where a special cash dividend was paid, the share prices of the
relevant listed issuer decreased. The average decline amounted to 103%, or just over the amount of the special
cash dividend paid.

The Directors attributed the decrease in the Share price from HK$2.225 per Share on 30 June 2005 to
HK$1.47 per Share on 4 July 2005 to the payment of the special cash dividend of HK$0.70 per Share in July
2005. Based on the share price analysis set out above, and our discussion with the Directors, we do not find
any reason to disagree with the Directors’ basis.

Reduction

The Proposal seeks to reduce the subscription price of each existing granted share option by HK$0.70
per Share. We understand from the Directors the reduction amount was set to equally match the special cash
dividend by HK$0.70 per Share paid to Shareholders on 29 July 2005.

In theory, we can determine option value objectively using complicated formulae or procedures. We
are not aware of any commonly used procedures for pricing adjustments of subscription price of share options
applicable in the current situation. Reference was made to (1) the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s
circular (“HKEx’s Circular”) dated 2 March 2004 as regards adjustment of the subscription price and the
contract size of outstanding share options granted under its share option schemes; and (2) the procedures
stipulated in Chapter 14 of the Operational Clearing Procedures for Options Trading Exchange Participants
available at the website of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (www.hkex.com.hk) which provide
for adjustments to the terms of options contracts. The subscription price and the contract size of the options
are subject to adjustments according to the following formulae:

Adjusted Subscription Price

ASP = OSp x _S-OD-CD
S-0D

Adjusted Contract Size

ACS = _OSPx Old Contract Size

ASP

where:

ACS = the contract size of the option (being the number of shares which are the subject matter
of the option (insofar as it is unexercised)) adjusted in accordance with the resolution

ASP = the subscription price of the option adjusted in accordance with the resolution

OSP =  the original subscription price of the option prior to adjustment

CD =  the per share amount of the special cash dividend approved by shareholders at the
AGM

OD =  the per share amount of any ordinary cash dividend approved by shareholders at the
AGM

S =  the closing price of shares on the Stock Exchange on the last trading day on which the

shares are traded cum the special cash dividend
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It is set out in the Letter from the Board of Directors in HKEx’s Circular that the purpose of such
adjustments 1s to maintain as far as possible the value of the option contract unchanged before and after the
ex-entitlement day or the corporate action effective day. For the sake of fairness to employees of HKEx and
its subsidiaries, HKEx’s Board of Directors considers that an adjustment should be made to the terms of the
options granted under the relevant share option schemes in line with the adjustment provisions set out in
Chapter 14 of the Operational Clearing Procedures for Options Trading Exchange Participants. We believe that
it is appropriate and have considered these formulae as part of our review of the Proposal as set out below.

Based on the results computed by the Company, application of the adjusted subscription price formula
would result in theoretical adjustments of subscription price per Share from HK$2.20 to HK$1.51 and from
HKS$1.94 to HK$1.33. These theoretical pricing results compare to a reduction of HK$0.70 under the Proposal
to a subscription per Share of HK$1.50 and HK$1.24 respectively.

The application of the adjusted contract size formula would increase the current outstanding share
options, representing a total number of 44,200,000 Shares, by 20,234,765 Shares or 46% to approximately
64,434,765 Shares. Under the Proposal, the number of outstanding share option remains unchanged.

Compared to the adjustments computed subject to the relevant provisions set out in Chapter 14 of the
Operational Clearing Procedures for Options Trading Exchange Participants, the Proposal therefore results
in a slightly more favourable proposed subscription price to the option holders for 50% of their entitlement,
of HK$1.24 per Share as compared to HK$1.33 per Share. However, existing shareholders of the Company
benefit from the fact that the total number of Shares exercisable under the Proposal remains unchanged, rather
than increasing by 46%, the impact of which would be seen through a dilution in ratios such as earnings per
share and dividends per share, assuming these share options are fully exercised.

After considering the proposed adjustments as a whole, the fact that the proposed reduction of HK$0.70
compares to a decrease of HK$0.755 per Share on the business day immediately preceding the ex-dividend
date and HK$0.745 per Share on 29 December 2005, the date the Proposal was announced, as well as the
other factors we have considered as set out in this letter, we do not find any reason to object to the reduction
amount being proposed by the Directors.

Possible alternatives and effects on the Company and the relevant option holders

Following the Directors’ attribution above and given that the purpose of granting share options was to
provide incentives to Eligible Persons, the following alternatives were also considered.

Granting new share options and cancelling existing outstanding share options

The Board could have granted the relevant option holders new share options to provide the same level
of reward as they would have been entitied to under the existing outstanding share options and cancel the
existing outstanding share options on a back-to-back basis.

The Proposal is, nonetheless, subject to a no less stringent set of regulatory requirements under the
Listing Rules and therefore also provides a no lower level of transparency.

We further note that the proposed subscription prices per Share after reduction will be HK$1.24 for half
the outstanding share options and HK$1.50 for the other half, or an average of HK$1.37. Applying Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules would result in the lowest subscription price for any new granting of share options,
assuming the date of grant was 29 December 2005, to be around HK$1.41 per Share. The difference, applying
the existing average subscription price of HK$1.37 per Share, amounts to HK$0.04.
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However, the existing share options were granted in December 2004 based on the circumstances
prevailing at that time. The granting of new share options via the back-to-back route based on the Company’s
current Share price entails a new set of circumstances and ignores the supposedly related incentivisation at
the time these share options were granted.

In addition, the current maximum 1% threshold on granting of share options to any one individual
over a 12-month period would not provide the Board with the incentivisation tool via granting of further
share options during 2006 to a number of the current and former Directors who are already close to the 1%
threshold, without the special approval of Shareholders.

Having regard to these points, we do not consider that this alternative would be any more beneficial
to the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Cash bonuses

We understand from the Directors that cash bonuses are used appropriately in accordance with the
Company’s remuneration policy. For instance, it would be feasible to consider allocating cash bonuses to
compensate those affected option holders. However, such payments would reduce the Company’s cash reserves.
Having regard to such effects, we do not consider that this alternative would be beneficial to the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

V. RECOMMENDATION

We have considered the Company’s Share price performance around the Critical Dates when the
special cash dividend was announced and paid. Taking into account analyses of the share prices of the Peers,
certain local listed issuers which have paid special cash dividends and the Hang Seng Index during relevant
periods, and our discussion with the Directors, we do not find any reason to disagree with the Directors’
basis, including the proposed value of reduction, of the Proposal. We have also considered alternatives to the
Proposal and do not believe that they would result in terms materially more favourable to the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole than the Proposal.

Based on-our analysis above, we consider that the Proposal is on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole and we recommend the Independent Shareholders
to vote in favour of the ordinary resolution to be proposed at the SGM to approve the Proposal.

Yours faithfully
for and on behalf of
KPMG Corporate Finance Limited
Gavin H. Geminder
Director
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the PYI Group. The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility
for the accuracy of the information contained in this circular and confirm, having made all reasonable enquires,
that to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no other facts the omission of which would make any
statement herein misleading.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and the Model Code and which
were required to be entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, were
as follows:

(A) The Company

(1) Interest in Shares

Approximate

percentage

of the

existing issued

Name of Director/ Long position/  Number of share capital

chief executive Capacity short position ~ Shares held  of the Company

Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled ~ Long position 544,373,242 39.8%
Charles corporation (Note)

Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 11,840,896 0.87%

Charles :

Note: Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed to be interested in 544,373,242 Shares by virtue
of his shareholding in Chinaview International Limited (“Chinaview”). Galaxyway Investments
Limited (“Galaxyway”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinaview, owned approximately 33.47%
of the issued ordinary share capital of ITC which in turn owned the entire issued share capital of
ITC Investment Holdings Limited (“ITC Investment”). Hollyfield Group Limited (“Hollyfield”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment, owned these Shares.
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(2)  Options to subscribe for Shares

Approximate

Number of percentage

underlying of the

Shares existing issued

Subscription comprised share capital

Name of Director/ Date Exercisable price per in the of the

chief executive of grant period Share options Company
HK$

Chow Ming Kuen, 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 10 26.08.2012 1.94 630,000 0.048%

Joseph 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 t0 26.08.2012 220 650,000 0.048%

Tom Ko Yuen Lau 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to 26.08.2012 1.94 6,500,000 0475%

28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to 26.08.2012 220 6,500,000 0475%

Kwok Shiu Keung, 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 0 26.08.2012 194 650,000 0.048%

Ernest 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 10 26.08.2012 2.20 630,000 0.048%

Chan Shu Kin 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to 26.08.2012 1.94 650,000 0.048%

28.12.2004 28.12.2004 10 26.08.2012 100 650,000 0.048%

(B) Associated corporations
(1) Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ( “Paul Y. Engineering”)
Number of  Approximate

underlying shares  percentage of
Number of (in respect of the the existing

shares unlisted equity  issued share
Long of Paul Y. derivatives) of capital of
Name of Director/ position/short Engineering Paul Y. Paul Y.
chief executive Capacity position held  Engineering held  Engineering
Chan Kwok Keung,  Interest of Long position 375,826,317 - 64.83%
Charles controlled
corporation
{Note)
Chan Kwok Keung,  Interest of Long position - 100,000,000 - 17.25%
Charles controlled
corporation
(Nore)

Note: The shares of Paul Y. Engineering were held by Paul Y. Investments Limited, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company also directly held an interest in 100,000,000
underlying shares of Paul Y. Engineering by virtue of a loan facility, pursuant to which convertible
note(s) will be issued by Paul Y. Engineering upon draw down of the facility in the principal amount
of the facility drawn. Such convertible notes are convertible into shares of Paul Y. Engineering at
an initial conversion price of HK$1.00 per share, up to a maximum aggregate principal amount
of HK$100,000,000. By virtue of his deemed interests in approximately 33.47% of the issued
ordinary share capital of ITC and hence in the Company, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was
deemed to be interested in these shares and underlying shares of Paul Y. Engineering.
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(2)

China Strategic Holdings Limited (“China Strategic”)

Approximate

percentage

of the

Number of existing issued

Name of Director/ Long position/  shares of China share capital of
chief executive Capacity short position Strategic held China Strategic
Chan Kwok Keung,  Interest of controlled Long position 258,819,795 29.36%

Charles corporation (Note)

Note: The shares of China Strategic were held by Calisan Development Limited, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. By virtue of his deemed interests in approximately 33.47%
of the issued ordinary share capital of ITC and hence in the Company, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles was deemed to be interested in these shares of China Strategic.

The Company entered into a conditional share sale agreement on 10 March 2005 for the disposal
of 135,000,000 shares of China Strategic. The disposal was not yet completed as at the Latest
Practicable Date.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or
as recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, according to the register of interest kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, the following
are details of the persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or
short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital (including any option in respect of such capital)
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any other member of the PYI Group:

(A) The Company
(1)  Substantial Shareholders
Approximate

percentage of the
existing issued

Long position/ Number of share capital
Name of Shareholder ~ Capacity short position Shares held  of the Company
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 544,373,242 39.8%
Charles corporation (Note)
Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 11,840,896 0.87%
Charles
Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse (Note} Long position 556,214,138 40.67%
Chinaview Interest of controlled Long position 544,373,242 39.8%
corporation (Note)
Galaxyway Interest of controlled Long position 544,373,242 39.8%
corporation (Note) ‘
ITC Interest of controlled Long position 544,373,242 39.8%
corporation (Note)
ITC Investment Interest of controlled Long position 544,373,242 39.8%
corporation (Note)
Hollyfield Beneficial owner (Note) ~ Long position ~ 544,373,242 39.8%

Note: Hollyfield, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment (which was in turn a wholly-owned
subsidiary of 1TC), owned 544,373,242 Shares. Galaxyway, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinaview, owned 33.47% of the issued ordinary share capital of ITC. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles owned the entire issued share capital of Chinaview. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles,
Chinaview, Galaxyway, ITC and ITC Investment were therefore all deemed to be interested in
the said 544,373,242 Shares held by Hollyfield. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy, the spouse of Dr.
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, was deemed to be interested in the said 544,373,242 Shares held
by Hollyfield and 11,840,896 Shares held directly by Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

(B)

(2) Other Shareholders

Approximate

percentage of the

existing issued

Long position/  Number of share capital of

Name of Shareholder Capacity short position  shares held the Company

Aeneas Capital Investment manager Long position 119,355,009 8.73%
Management LP

Deutsche Bank ~ Beneficial owner Long position 22,784,629 1.67%
Aktiengesellschaft

Deutsche Bank Security interest Long position 127,299,151 9.31%
Aktiengesellschaft

Gandhara Advisors [nvestment manager Long position 88,294,800 6.46%
Asia Ltd a/c Gandhara
Master Fund Ltd

Toggenburger Beneficial owner Long position 82,027,653 6.00%

Christian Emil

OZ Management, L.L.C. Investment manager Long position 81,646,000 5.97%

Other members of the Group

Name of subsidiary

Associate Marble Maintenance
And Service Company Limited

D & C Engineering (H.K.) Limited

Jiangsu Wanhua Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

Jiangsu YangKou Port Development
and Investment Co., Ltd.

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and
Development Co., Ltd.

Paul Y. - CCECC Joint Venture

Paul Y. - CREC Engineering
Co., Limited

Paul Y. - CREC Joint Venture
Paul Y. - CREC(HK) Joint Venture

Skynet Limited

Approximate
percentage of the
existing issued
share capital/

Name of shareholder registered capital
Lam Shing Wing 40.0%
Artery Construction Management Limited 45.0%
NEERRLEEEREERETRE 40.0%
MFRBGRRLEREREERALLE 40.0%
MERRRH G REREEREL LA 40.0%
China Civil Engineering 40.0%
Construction Corporation
China Railway Engineering Corporation 30.0%
China Railway Engineering Corporation 30.0%
China Railway Engineering Corporation 40.0%
[con Master Enterprises Limited 18.1%
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company are not aware that
there is any party who, as at the Latest Practicable Date, had an interest or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
member of the PYI Group or had any options in respect of such Shares.

SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had entered into any service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the PYI Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors was materially interested in any contract or arrangement entered into by any
member of the PYI Group since 31 March 2005, being the date to which the latest audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company were made up, or subsisting as at the Latest Practicable Date, and which
was significant in relation to the business of the PYI Group as a whole.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN ASSETS

None of the Directors has since 31 March 2005, being the date to which the latest audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company were made up, any direct or indirect interest in any assets which have
been acquired or disposed of by or leased to any member of the PYI Group, or are proposed to be acquired
or disposed of by or leased to any member of the PY1 Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or their respective associates were interested in
any business, apart from the PYI Group’s businesses, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the PYI Group.

MATERIAL CHANGE

There has been no material adverse change in the financial or trading position of the PYI Group since
31 March 2005, being the date to which the latest audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
were made up.

LITIGATION

The Group succeeded in its claim against an ex-shareholder of the Company under a guarantee to recover
losses incurred by an associated company of the Company amounting to approximately HK$123,711,000.
The PYI Group was given judgment against the ex-shareholder on 18 July 2005 for these losses, together
with interest and costs incurred, in the total sum of approximately HK$210 million. The ex-shareholder has
made full payment, but has also lodged an appeal against the judgment. The appeal will be heard in October
2006.

Save as disclosed above, no member of the PYI Group was engaged in any litigation or arbitration of

material importance as at the Latest Practicable Date and there was no litigation or claim of material importance
known to the Directors to be pending or threatened by or against any member of the PYI Group.
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QUALIFICATION AND CONSENT OF EXPERT

The following are the qualification of the professional advisers who have given opinions or advice
contained in this circular:

Name

Qualification

KPMG Corporate Finance Limited A licensed corporation

under the SFO to carry out
Type 6 regulated activity
(advising on corporate finance)

~ The IFA has given and has not withdrawn its written consents to the issue of this circular with the
inclusion of its letter, and references to its name in the form and context in which they appear.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the IFA does not have any shareholding interest in any member of
the PYI Group or any right, whether legally enforceable or not, to subscribe for or to nominate persons to
subscribe for securities in any member of the PYI Group.

The IFA does not have, since 31 March 2005, being the date to which the latest audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company were made up, any direct or indirect interest in any assets acquired or
disposed of by or leased to or proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or leased to any member of the PYI

Group.

MISCELLANEOUS

@
(ii)

(iii)

(v)

(v)

The qualified accountant of the Company is Mr. Wong Yiu Hung, CPA, FCCA.

The secretary of the Company is Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa, LL.B., LL.M., MCF, a solicitor qualified
in Hong Kong and England and Wales.

The registered office of the Company is at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is at 31st Floor,
Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal share registrars and transfer office of the Company is Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited of Rosebank Centre, 11 Bermudiana Road, Pembroke, Bermuda and the
branch share registrars and transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong is Secretaries Limited
at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The English text of this circular shall prevail over the Chinese text for the purpose of
interpretation.
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DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection during normal business hours at the
head office and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at 31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51
Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong up to and including the date of SGM and at the SGM:

1) the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company;

(i1)  the written consent of the 1FA, referred to in paragraph headed “Qualification and consent of
expert” of this Appendix;

(iti)  the audited consolidated financial statements of the PYI Group for the two years ended 31 March
2005 and 2004;

(iv)  the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 September 2005; and

(v) the following circulars issued by the Company pursuant to the requirements set out under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules since 31 March 2005, being the date to which the latest published audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group were made up:

- the circular dated 22 August 2005 containing, inter alia, certain information regarding,
amongst other things, a discloseable transaction arising from the PYI Group’s investment
in Nantong Port Group; and

- the circular dated 23 December 2005 containing, inter alia, certain information regarding,

amongst other things, a major transaction arising from the PYI Group’s disposal of Paul
Y. Centre.
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NOTICE OF SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

~10D

PYI Corporation Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 498)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special general meeting of PYI Corporation Limited will be
held at Chater II, Level B1, The Ritz-Carlton, Hong Kong, No. 3 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong on
Tuesday, 14 February 2006 at 11:00 a.m. for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the following
resolution (with or without modifications) as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

“That the subscription prices payable under the options set opposite the names of the persons below
and granted under the share option scheme of the Company adopted by resolution of the shareholders of the
Company on 27 August 2002 be reduced from the prices stated in the second column below to the prices
stated in the third column below:—

No. of shares
in respect of

Subscription New subscription | which options
Name of director price price were granted

HK$ HK$
Tom Ko Yuen Lau 1.94 1.24 6,500,000
2.20 1.50 6,500,000
Chan Fut Yan 1.94 1.24 6,500,000
2.20 1.50 6,500,000
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna 1.94 1.24 6,500,000
2.20 1.50 6,500,000
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph 1.94 1.24 650,000
2.20 1.50 650,000
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 1.94 1.24 650,000
2.20 1.50 650,000
Chan Shu Kin 1.94 1.24 650,000
2.20 1.50 650,000
Cheung Ting Kau, Vincent 1.94 1.24 650,000
2.20 1.50 650,000
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and the board of directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do such act and execute such
documents as it sees fit to effect the reduction.”

By Order of the Board
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 27 January 2006

Principal place of business in Hong Kong: Registered office:

31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre Clarendon House

51 Hung To Road 2 Church Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon Hamilton HM 11

Hong Kong Bermuda

Notes:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies

to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. A form of proxy for the meeting is enclosed. In order to be valid, the form of proxy together with a power of attorney
or other authority, if any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority, must be
deposited at the Company’s principal place of business at 31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.
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PYI Corporation Limited
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to you the interim report and condensed
consolidated financial statements of PY| Corporation Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Company, the “Group”)
for the six months ended 30 September 2005.

The Group recorded solid financial results for the period under review, with
unaudited net profit after tax and minority interests of approximately
HK$149 million, an increase of 291% compared with the corresponding
period last year. The net profit represented a return on your eguity in
excess of 6% for the half-year period. Earnings per share rose by 289% to
HK10.9 cents per share. Further to the special dividend of HK70 cents per
share paid in July 2005, we are pleased to maintain our regular interim
dividend of HK1.5 cents per share which will be distributed to our
shareholders in February 2006. Further, the Board is still favouring the
possible distribution to shareholders of a significant portion of the value to
be derived from its divestment of China Strategic Holdings Limited.

The Group has completed the re-positianing of its core business in the
development of bulk cargo ports and infrastructure in China during the
period under review. This strategic adjustment took a big step in August
2005 following the Company'’s planned investment in Nantong Port Group,
the largest port enterprise in Nantong, liangsu Province, China.

The Nantong Port investment will allow us to take advantage of the growth
opportunities available in the China marketplace today and position us
well for the future development of a comprehensive and integrated
transshipment network along the Yangtze River.

Upon commencement of operation of our development at Yangkou Port, a
deepwater seaport in Nantong, the synergy generated from the operations
of Yangkou Port and Nantong Port will further strengthen our
competitiveness in the marketplace.

On 13 September 2005, our new company name of “PYi Corporation
Limited"”, with the adoption of the Chinese name “FEEEHBR 27" for
identification purpose, was officially approved. The new company name,
replacing the former name of “Paul Y. - ITC Construction Holdings Limited”,
signifies our new business focus on bulk cargo ports and infrastructure
development in China.

In line with our strategy to divest non-core businesses, the Company
entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement to dispose of Paul
Y. Centre in November 2005, shortly after the period under review. The
disposal will enable us to free up capital to finance our investment in bulk
cargo port and infrastructure development in China,
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Lnairman's statement

TEHREE

The Company holds in the highest regard the interests of its shareholders.
A commitment to good corporate governance is central to the Group’'s
management philosophy. Following reform in September 2005 with the
retirement of three executive directors and a non-executive director, your
Board is now governed by a majority of independent non-executive
directors. Continuous efforts are made to formalize best practices in
keeping with international standards.

Taking this opportunity, | would like to express my appreciation again to Mr.

Chan Fut Yan; Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna; Mr. Cheung Hon Kit and Mr.
Cheung Ting Kau, Vincent; directors who retired during the period under
review, for their valuable contribution to the Company throughout the past
years. | would also like to extend to our shareholders my warmest
seasonal greetings and best wishes for a very happy holiday season and a
prosperous New Year.

Yours faithfully,
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ost,

Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 December 2005
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| have pleasure to report to Sharehoiders the performance of PYI
Corporation Limited (the "Company”} and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) for the six months ended 30 September 2005.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

> Turnover HK$1,792 million +7%
> Net profit after tax HK$14% million +291%
> EPS HK10.9 cents +289%
> Interim DPS HK1.5 cents Unchanged
> NAV/S HK$1.75 -15%

MBHHE

> BEE 1,792,000,000 T +7%
> BEEHFIES 149,000,000  +291%
> BREF 10980 +289%

158 TR
17587 —15%

> ERPHBE
> BREERE

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND
POSITIONS

Continuous growth

For the six months period under review, the Group’s consolidated turnover
was approximately HK$1,792 million (2004: HK$1,679 million), representing
an increase of approximately 7% when compared with that of last
corresponding period. The increase was mainly attributable to an increase
in the Group's business in treasury investment.

The Group's gross profit rose by 60% ta some HK$146 miliion (2004: HK$%1
million), representing a gross margin of 8% of the consolidated turnover.
Profit before taxation of some HK$175 million was achieved as compared
to some HK$47 million for the same period last year. The Group's profit
before taxation comprised:

(i) net gain of approximately HK$57 million in construction and other
contracting businesses (2004: HK$47 million);

(il net gain of approximately HK$34 million in treasury investment
(2004: Nil;

(i) net gain of approximately HK$15 million in property investment
(2004: HK$8 million);

(iv)  interest income of approximately HK$18 million (2004: HK$20
milliony,

(v) increase in fair valuge of investment properties of approximately
HK$85 million (2004 Nil);

(vi)  net corporate expenses of approximately HK$31 million (2004:
HK$36 million);

(vii)  finance costs of approximately 6 million (2004: HK$3 million); and

(viiiy net gain of approximately HK$3 million from associates and jointly
controlled entities (2004: HK$11 million).

Profit for the period attributable to shareholders of the Company was
approximately HK$149 miflion (2004: HK$38 million) and earnings per share
was HK10.9 cents (2004 HK2.8 cents).

When compared with the Group’s financial positions as at 31 March 2005,
total assets decreased by 17% to some HK$5,897 million and net current
assets decreased by 57% to some HK$897 million, mainly due to the
payment of a special cash dividend totalling approximately HK$957 million
in July 2005. Consequently, current assets decreased from 2.1 times to 1.5
times of current liabilities. After accounting for the net profit of
approximately HK$149 million net of dividends paid/declared of
approximately HK$978 million, equity attributable to shareholders of the
Company decreased by 25% to some HK$2,373 million, representing
HK$1.75 per share as at 30 September 2005 (31.3.2005: HK$2.32 per
share).
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Net cash inflow from operations was about HK$167 million and outflow in
respect of investing and financing activities was about HK$764 million,
resulting in a net decrease in cash of about HK$597 million for the period
under review.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Port & Infrastructure Development

The rapid economic growth of Mainland China gives rise to a growing
demand on the ports and logistics sector which is now the Group’s
business focus, and it is expected to contribute positively to the Group's
future earnings base.

The development of Yangkou Port progressed well during the period under
review. In September 2005, an official groundbreaking ceremony was held
to signify the commencement of work on the 13-kilometer Yellow Sea
Crossing. On completion, the Yellow Sea Crossing will link the 1 square-
kilometer man-made island and berthing facilities with the 42 square-
kilometer harbour front industrial park. The master planning of the
industrial park is also under way.

Completion of the initial phase of Yangkou Port will align with the apening
of Sutong Bridge, connecting the Yellow Sea with the southern side of the
Yangtze River delta through Nantong. On completion in late 2007, the
Sutong Bridge will link up Suzhou and Nantong and cut by half the
commuting time between Shanghai and Nantong.

In August 2005, the Group announced a proposed 45% investment in
Nantong Port Group at a cost of approximately HK$417 million. This move
fits well into the Group's strategy to develop & comprehensive and
integrated transshipment network on the Yangtze River.

At present, Nantong Port Group owns a total of 4 major terminals which
together operate more than 20 productive berths at Nantong Port, the first
major bulk cargo port in the Yangtze River delta.

In 2004, Nantong Port Group achieved a cargo throughput of
approximately 33 million tonnes. Currently, it is undertaking major
expansion plans, upon completion of which by mid-2006 throughput
capacity will be increased by more than 50%.

The proximity in location and the complementary nature of Nantong Port
and Yangkou Port not only will aliow the Group to build up an effective
logistics network but also will offer a comprehensive spectrum of services

to shippers in the Yangtze River delta.

Engineering businesses - Paul Y Engineering

For the period under review, Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ("Paul ¥
Engineering”) and its subsidiaries (the “Paul Y Engineering Group”)
achieved a gross profit of some HK$98 million as compared to some
HK$91 million for the last corresponding period. Net profit after tax
attributable to shareholders of Paul Y Engineering for the period was
approximately HK$46 million as compared to some HK$37 million for the
last corresponding period.
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During the period, the Paul Y Engineering Group secured new contracts
with an aggregate value of approximately HK$1,734 million. At this period
end, the value of work remaining increased by 9% to approximately
HK$4,933 million when compared with that of the last financial year end.
Profile of contracts on hand as at the end of this period is as follows:

BHA - REZXEEHRZNIEANEEN
1,734,000,000 7T - RABREERE - Hth2
TiEEAER L —EMBEFEERB LA9%E
#74,933,000,000/8 7T - RAEERIEFE 2
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Value of contracts Value of work

on hand remaining

ASs at 30.9.2005 As at 30.9.2005

#HEIESHRE BT ILEME

#30.9.2005 #30.9.2005

HKS 'million HK$ 'million

HEEET HEET

Building construction BFEETR 6,096 3,909
Civil engineering TARITRE 2,266 1,024
8,362 4,933

Subseguent to the period end, the Paul Y Engineering Group has secured
further contracts of approximately HK$165 million.

Property investment

During the period under review, approximately HK$15 million (2004: HK$8
million) of the operating profit was contributed from the business of
property investment.

Total value of the Group’s property portfolic, excluding those self-used
properties, amounted to approximately HK$619 million (31.3.2005: HK$546
million) as at 30 September 2005, equivalent to abolt 10% (31.3.2005: 8%)
of the total assets of the Group. Included in the property portfalio is mainly
Paul Y. Centre, the Group’s headguarters in Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. The overall rental rate of Paul Y. Centre has increased when
compared with that of last period and occupancy rate was maintained at a
satisfactory level of around 95% (31.3.2005: 97%) at 30 September 2005.

Treasury investment
During the period under review, HK$34 million (31.3.2005: Nil) of the
operating profit was contributed from the business of treasury investment.

Total value of the Group's investment securities amounted to
approximately HK$58 million (31.3.2005: HK$175 million) as at 30
September 2005, equivalent to about 1% (31.3.2005: 2%) of the total assets
of the Group. Portfolio of high-yield loan receivable amounted to
approximately HK$489 million (31.3.2005: HK$668 miltion) as at 30
Septemper 2005, equivalent to about 8% (31.3.2005: 9%) of the t0tal assets
of the Group.
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China Strategic

In March 2005, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party in relation to the disposal of 135 million
shares in China Strategic Holdings Limited ("China Strategic”) at HK$0.193
per share. Upon completion of the disposal, the Group’s shareholding
interest in China Strategic will decrease from 29.4% to approximately 14%,
and China Strategic will cease to be an associated company of the
company.

The disposal is conditional upon, inter alig, the completion of & capital
reorganisation {including, inter alia, a consolidation of two existing shares
into one consolidated share) and a group reorganisation (the “Group
Reorganisation”) involving in specie distribution of certain assets to
shareholders by China Strategic. Hanny Holdings Limited (“Hanny”) has in
turn proposed a voluntary offer {the “Hanny Offer”) to acquire the assets
distributed under the Group Reorganisation. Under this offer, the Company
will be entitled to receive one Hanny share plus HK$1.80 for every 5
consolidated shares of China Strategic.

Currently, the Board continues to favour a possible distribution to
shareholders of a significant portion of the value to be derived from the
divestment of China Strategic. However, given that the requisite court
approval for effecting the proposed capital reorganisation is yet to be
obtained by China Strategic and there is still no definite time frame in
relation to the effective date of the Group Reorganisation currently, the
Board does not consider it appropriate to make any decision regarding the
aforesaid distribution at this stage.

MAJOR EVENT SUBSEQUENT

Disposal of Paul Y. Centre

Subsequent to 30 September 2005, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with a joint venture company effectively
owned by Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., Capital Strategic Investment
Limited and Paul Y Engineering for the disposal of Paul Y. Centre (through
disposing 100% of the subsidiaries owning Paul Y. Centre) at an agreed
gross value of HK$780 million. Such agreed value is derived from a yield
rate of 6.28% based on the rental income of approximately HK$49 million
for the year ended 31 March 2005, The disposal constitutes & major
transaction of the Company and is subject to approval by shareholders in
a special general meeting to be convened. Details of this transaction were
set out in an announcement of the Company dated 24 November 2005.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, CAPITAL
STRUCTURE AND GEARING RATIO

The Group continues to adopt a prudent funding and treasury policy with
regard to its overall business operations. A variety of credit facilities are
maintained to meet its working capital requirements. During the period
under review, the Group cbtained new bank facilities in the amount of
HK$45 million, of which HK$22.5 million were used to finance the purchase
of a property in Hong Kong and the remaining balance for general working
capital purpose. The loans of the Group bear interest at market rates and
are with terms of repayment within five years.

As at 30 September 2005, the Group’s total borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$729 million (31.3.2005: HK$831 million), with HK$432
million (31.3.2005: HK$290 miilion) repayable within one year and HK$297
million (31.3.2005: HK$541 million) repayable after one year. Cash balances
as at 30 September 2005 amounted to approximately HK$472 million
(31.3.2005: HK$1,255 million).

As at the period end, HK$662 million (31.3.2005: HK$765 million) of the
Group's borrowings bore interest at floating rates and were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, and HK$67 million (31.3.2005: HK$64 million) of the
Group’s borrowings bore interest at a fixed rate and were denominated in
Reminbi. The Group’s gearing ratio was 0.31 (31.3.2005: 0.26) which is
calculated based on total borrowings of HK$729 million (31.3.2005: HK$831
million) and equity attributable to shareholders of the Company of
HK$2,373 million (31.3.2005: HK$3,179 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 September 2005, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of
outstanding performance bonds on construction contracts of
approximately HK$131 million (31.3.2005: HK$310 million).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

AS at 30 September 2005, certain of the Group’s properties and investment
securities with an aggregate value of approximately HK$834 million
(31.3.2005: HK$753 million) and the issued shares of certain subsidiaries of
the Company and its benefits under certain construction contracts have
been pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure general credit
facilities granted to the Group.

Ir+arirmm Doameard ONN L

THES UBRE EXEEBR
BEXRBELE
FEBEEFERBESLYERMBREZES
RUBRE SRESHEEEEREMEZLEE
A o RARHRM - RNEBEE45,000,000 7T
ZHETRITRE - £H22,500,0008TE AE
BRUB-—EFENEZES HERE-RK
BEES AEEZERRTSEEETE &
REBAAER -

R-BZRAFAB=+E - *EBERAH
729,000,000 7T (31.3.2005: 831,000,000%
7)) - HA432,000,000% 5T (31.3.2005:
290,000,00058 7T) BN —FEREE - S5
297,000,000 7T (31.3.2005: 541,000,0007%
T)BAR—FHREE - RZEERENLA=+H
2 BE 45 5672,000,000 7T (31.3.2005:
1,255,000,0005 7T) °

RABIEE R - FEBEE P 662,000,000
7T (31.3.2005: 765,000,000 7T) THHZ 81 8
REE - WABTREN - 67,000,000 7T
(31.3.2005: 66,000,000 7T) DREE 8 £ 5
B URAREAREN - RIEREE
729,000,0003% 7T (31.3.2005: 831,000,0007%
7o) RARRBIIREFE(L 2 #252,373,000,000%
7£ (31.3.2005: 3,179,000,0008T) st & - &%
By EFRBEHESR0.31(31.3.2005: 0.26) °

BREE

R-ZBERFAB=TH  ZEBRDARER
ZREREANEBHEREE131,000,000% T
(31,3.2005: 310,000,000 7T) 2 HARE -

BRI

RIFRAFAAZ+H FREZED
834,000,000 7E (31.3.2006: 753,000,000
T ZETHEREEES  URAARETH
BREIZEBOBRNERETRESHZ RE
BEATROIRMBERE  RTRERE R
FERE -




Managing Director's Report

ESEEENESS

COMMITMENTS

AS at 30 September 2005, the Group had expenditure contracted but not
provided for in the financial statements in respect of acquisition of certain
property, plant and equipment in an amount of approximately HK$41
million (31.3.2005: HK$%1 million in respect of certain property, plant and
equipment and HK$48 million in respect of certain equity investment).

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION
POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at 30 September 2005, the Group employed a total of approximately
1,235 full time employees {among which about 1,090 were employed by
Paul Y Engineering) {31.3.2005: 1,163). Remuneration packages comprised
salary and performance-based bonus. Details of the share option scheme
were discussed in the Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 March
2005. No share option was granted or exercised during the period under
review.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board has resclved to pay an interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per
share for the six months ended 30 September 2005 (2004; HK1.5 cents per
share) to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company as at the close of business on 11 January 2006. The
interim dividend is expected to be paid to sharehalders by post on or
around 13 February 2006.

The Board has also proposed that the interim dividend should be satisfied
by way of a scrip dividend of shares, with an option to elect cash in
respect of all or part of such dividend. The market value of the shares to
be issued under the scrip dividend proposal wiil be fixed by reference to
the average of the close prices of the Company’s shares for the three
consecutive trading days ending 11 lanuary 2006 less a discount of five
per cent. of such average price or to the par value of the shares,
whichever is the higher. The proposed scrip dividend is conditional upon
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited granting listing of, and
permission to deal in, the new shares. A circular giving full details of the
scrip dividend proposal and a form of election will be sent to shareholders
in due course.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the period
from 9 January 2006 to 11 January 2006, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of share(s) of the Company will be effected. In order to
qualify for the interim dividend, all transfer of share(s), accompanied by the
relevant share certificate(s) with the completed transfer form(s) with
overleaf or separately, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at its new address at 26th
Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(effective on 3 January 2006, formerly at Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia
Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong), for
registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on 6 lanuary 2006.
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CUTLOOK

China's GDP grew 9.4% in the first nine months of 2005, while its consumer
price index rose 2%. China’s central bank sees a continuation of GDP
growth and expects it to surpass 9% for 2005.

The momentum of global economic growth is likely to remain relatively
steady over the next six months, though moderated somewhat by oil-price
volatility and US interest rates rising at a measured pace.

A relatively stable global environment should underpin external demand in
China, thus creating a favourable environment for our ports and
infrastructure business in the Maintand.

Having secured the spearheading position in the Yangtze River delte, the
Group will focus on the development of Yangkou Port as well as the
enhancement of capacity and efficiency of Nantong Port Group. In addition
to the dry bulk operational skill at Nantong Port Group, the Group is
exploring opportunities to invest in liquid bulk terminals in the upper
stream of Yangtze River.

with our well defined business focus and a highly liguid balance sheet, we
are fully committed to redeploying our resources to the ports and logistics
sector in the Mainland and are prepared to maximize the opportunities
that lie ahead.

Tom Ko Yuen Lau
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
13 December 2005
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INDEPENDENT REVIEW REPORT BUYBEHHREE

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
PYI CORPORATION LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS PAUL Y. - ITC CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED)

INTRODUCTION

We have been instructed by the Company to review the interim financial
report set out on pages 11 1o 29.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited require the preparation of an interim financial report to
be in compliance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 34 “interim
Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the relevant provisions thereof. The interim financial
report is the responsibility of, and has been approved by, the directors.

it is our responsibility to form an independent conclusion, based on our
review, on the interim financial report and 1o report our conclusion solely
t0 you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

REVIEW WORK PERFORMED

We conducted our review in accordance with Statement of Auditing
Standards 700 “Engagements to Review Interim Financial Reports” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A review
consists principally of making enquiries of the management and applying
analytical procedures to the interim financial report and, based thereon,
assessing whether the accounting policies and presentation have been
consistently applied unless otherwise disclosed. A review excludes audit
procedures such as tests of controls and verification of assets, liabilities
and transactions. It is substantially less in scope than an audit and
therefore provides a lower level of assurance than an audit. Accordingly
we do not express an audit opinion on the interim financial report.

REVIEW CONCLUSION

On the basis of our review which does not constitute an audit, we are not
aware of any material modifications that should be made to the interim
financial report for the six months ended 30 September 2005.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

13 December 2005

BRELMFRLA
FIREREEEZEEEAR QT Z
BEER

=
AEBETE ALATENRRENER
BFEZFBIBRE -

ERZEE
EEBORSFERLCTAESF LTRURE
EARAMBEAGHMAGRM2EEER
EREUR [P HABRESI REERERETF
HETR®RE . BRECEEASERERE
R ERE -

ATREEREATHTBUBREEMT
F REEFREERER LR aRER
BRERMEFDE - RITHRABERNTEHE
MEMASHETESR -

B ZEMIIE
FAIRBRBERSHILEERZREERNE
70015 (B PBTBRE I TIEIBITEMT
- EHEEZEZLERAZHERNTARS
MRFUBHTHUBRE  MRISTHRES
o FERTEREASHRERZIAN -
EHSEEMIZEREFERARERE AR
BEEE BERXBS - BEHIELRIE
FEBHRBIESRE R HEERUETR
B Bt AITHPHHBRETERELE
BR -

BRI

BESTEN L THRBHEIM 2BR - &
A TERAHBRE-_TTEFAA=TEL
NBA 2 MR E (A M EA 2 R -

BH - BERS G
NEE AT

Elc
“EFAFT=RTIR




CUNDENSEUD CONSULIDATED INCONIE STATEVIENT  [EBIFHNR/ 1X m ZX

for the six months ended 30 September 2005 H#ZE—FEERF/NLA=+HIUEA
Unaudited
KEEE
Six months ended 30 September
BEARZ+BULNEA
2005 2004
Notes HKS$'000 HK$°000
KisE FET FHET
Turnover b4 4 1,791,511 1,678,883
Cost of sales HERE (1,645,900) (1,588,366)
Gross profit EF| 145,611 90,517
Other income HpA 5 101,906 21,829
Increase in fair value of investment properties %°E4% 2 2R EESEMN 85,400 -
Administrative expenses THES (81,369) (63,152)
Other expenses HEWER (74,194) 9,722
Finance costs BBEKE (6,020) {2,900)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZER (82) -
Write back of impairment loss on BEBENTERZ
interast in an associate RESE 23,289 -
Loss on dilution of interests in associates — #TEEE4 Q FIEAFTEUE S - (15,004)
Share of results of associates S NI (22,080) 25,673
Share of results of jointly BEHFEISIEEER
controited entities 2,101 118
Profit before taxation DNl 6 174,562 47,359
Taxation IR 7 (9,421) (8,827)
Profit for the period EARER) 165,141 38,532
Attributable to: AT AL :
Equity holders of the Company ARF 2 BREREA 149,280 38,144
Minority interests LEREEX 15,861 388
165,141 38,532
Dividends g8 8 20,380 20,538
Earnings per share - Basic BREF -ER 9 10.9 centsfll | 2.8 centsill




CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET FfSRE4ES

at 30 September 2005 R=FEERAFAA=+H

BERER

Unaudited Audited
KBEY EEE
30.9.2005 31.3.2005
Notes HKS$ 000 HK$000
i3 FHT FHET
(Restated)
(BFZ8R)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BERRE 10 222,268 237,278
Investment properties EmE 10 540,400 455,000
Project under development BRERFIEE - 1M 1,838,003 1,772,455
Prepaid land lease payments Rt ERE 129,981 131,576
Goodwill [EE:S 61,646 61,646
Interests in associates e N E 12 415,383 381,209
Interests in jointly controlled entities HEEHIBEES 11,645 9,544
Investments in securities BHIEE - 1,778
Available-for-sale investments DEaTl=—=s: 2,060 -
Loans receivable — due after one year —FHRIBZERER 1,508 1,508
Amounts due from related companies —FRIB ERREE
- due after one year NRIFRIA 779 779
Other long term investments HuREHRE 15,841 15,481
Deferred tax assets BREREEE 1,680 1,680
3,241,194 3,069,934
CURRENT ASSETS REBE
Amounts due from customers for BEUEFP&HIERE
contract works 192,529 185,188
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUERRS - STE RIEMEIE 13 1,098,666 1,586,246
Properties held for sale FIELEME 78,245 91,278
Project under development BEETIEE 11 34,200 34,011
Prepaid land lease payments AR LA ERIE 3,190 3,190
Loans receivable — dug within one year —ERFBZERER 100,000 190,401
Investment in securities BERE - 173,284
Investments held for trading BIEEERE 55,512 -
Amounts due from related companies FEWREELFINIE 240,077 346,102
Amounts due from associates JEULEE & X R RIE 181,750 168,683
Taxation recoverable RIREIFH R 134 7,506
Short term bank deposits, bank balances RERRITIER - RITHETT
and cash RE& 671,681 1,254,556
2,655,984 4,040,445




Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

BEEAEERER

at 30 September 2005 R - EE A=+B
Unaudited Audited
*EEZ BEE
30.9.2005 31.3.2005
Notes HK$°000 HKS000
Hist FET FHET
(Restated)
(E#T5ER)
CURRENT LIABILITIES Bk B=Ri=¢
Amounts due to customers for EREFENIRRE
contract works 441,885 435,198
Creditors and accrued expenses FEMERRRES R 14 825,520 1,076,195
Amolnts due to associates FEATES & 2 B RRIR 2,907 2,804
Amounts due to jointly FE{T AR B RUIE
controlled entities 20,766 20,766
Amount due to a minority B ERERE
shargholder 1,368 104,833
Loan from a minority shareholder DERFEER 172,697 -
Dividend payable FETRR B 32,487 -
Taxation payable FERTTRE 2,342 1,882
Bank borrowings - due within —FARBEZRITER
one year 259,420 289,960
1,759,392 1,931,638
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 896,592 2,108,807
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERTHDAR
LIABILITIES 4,137,786 5,178,741
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EHEBER
Loan from a minority shareholder LERREER - 241,000
Bank borrowings - due after —EEREBCIRITER
one year 296,875 300,000
Deferred tax liabilities BRILERIEEE 927,373 923,020
1,224,248 1,464,020
2,913,538 3,714,721
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAAERFEE
Share capital xR 15 135,868 136,920
Reserves i 2,237,599 3,041,906
Equity attributable to equity AARZREREA
holders of the Company FE(S R 2,373,467 3,178,826
Minority interests LB T 540,071 535,895
TOTAL EQUITY b 2,913,538 3,714,721




CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY EERiRERREE EIR

for the six months ended 30 September 2005 B EZ - EFAFNAZ+HIENEA

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRAZREREABE
Investment Accumutated
Share Share  Special  Capital revaluation Other Translation  (losses) Minority
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  Sub-total  interests Total
REER i (ER) PEBE

g% ERER  KHEE  2igE 8F  AtAE EiAF i it gt &t
HSO0  HSTOD RSO HKGD0 AT RSO0 RSO0 ACTID HGDD S0 ASTOO

TET B TER TR AL gL TEx TEL TR TR TERL
A1 Aprit 2005 RIERIERA-B
- as originally stated ~RRiE 136920 184811 124695 2,480,000 - - {561 253898 3179783 535895 3715658
- gffectof changes in ~SEHEEN
acoouring policies 3
(Note 3} (Bz£3) - - - - - (1,113} - 2,53 7417 530 21947
- 85 festated RETHE 136,320 184811 124695 2,480,000 - 113 561 282428 3207180 336425 3743605
Exchange difference arising ~ RAEERER
from translation of MEEZELEE
overseas operations - - - - - - 4,776 - 4,776 - 477
Deficit on revaluation of Efery vk i
fvestrents - - - - (1,075) - - - {1,075} (163) (1,238)
Sharzof offier resenve of  BEBHELE,
an associate Al - - - - - 6,149 - - 5149 - 849
Share of trenslation BEBELT
reserve of an associate EREE - - - - - - (878) - (678) - (78)
Net income (epense) EERBERY
recognised directly 28
nequity 3 - - - - (1,075) 5,149 4,098 - 9,172 (163) 9,009

Profit for the period - - - - - - - 149,280 149,280 15,361 165,141

Total recognised income ECRNTRE

anid expense for the period - - - - {1,075) 4,149 4,098 149,280 158,452 15,698 174,150
Share repurchase EERH (105 (1355) - - - - - - 1608 - (4408
Transferred érom capial EREATER

eserve - - - {2480,000) - - - 2,480,000 - - -
Dividends paid anapayatle  EftRZERRA - - - - - - - OIS OMSS) (205)  (989409)
At 30 September 2005 RZBRIENR=1E 135868 171,255 124,695 - (1,075) 5,036 3537 1934151 2373467 540,071 2913538
A1 Aprit 2004 R-TERENA-F 134525 187,370 124933 2480000 - 6521 8335 [245833) 2770872 10448 278130

Exchang cifference arising
from translation of

OVErseas operadons - - - - - - (29.063) ~ (29,063) - (29,063)
Shareof other resenves of  BEBELA

2 associate EfbE] - - - - - 7 - - 7 - 7
Share of franslation reserve. BERELR

of &n associate EipE - - - - - - 149) - 1.4%3) - (1493)
Net incoms {expense) TRIERDZ

recogrised directly A ER)

inequity 38 - - - - - 7 30,556} - 30,549) - (30549
Profit for the periog EHEF - - - - - - - 3,144 3,144 388 38,532
Realised on dilution of REEARA RS

interests in assoclates BERED - - - - - 185) (190) - (375) - 3
Total recognised income EHERTEE

and expense forthe period 488 - - - - - [178) (30,744} 38,144 7,220 38 7608
Share isslie expenses - {26) - - - - - - (26} - %)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 363229 363229
Dividends paid - - - - - - - 20,179) {20,179} - {2017%)
At 30 September 2004 RZZERENAZTA 134,525 187,344 124933 2480000 - 6,343 52610 (207808) 2751887 34065 3131992
Other reserve represents the statutory reserves required by the relevant EfGEEEPEARLFNBEEAN KO HE
rules and regulations of the People’s Republic of China applicable to the DARIZIBBBRAIRERIBEZEEHE °

Company’s associates.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED LASH FLOUVW STAIEMENT

for the six months ended 30 September 2005 BZ_—ZF

EAFANAZ+BIENEA

EFPANTE L E 7L E IR

Unaudited
KIBEH
Six months ended 30 September
BEABE+ALAEAR

2005 2004
HKS$'000 HKS000
FHET FHT
NET CASH FROM OPERATING RABEERZ
ACTIVITIES REEHW 167,411 65,927
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING XE (BR)#EBEHZ
ACTIVITIES REeBR 335,331 (246,905)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING (AW RXERMEEHZ
ACTIVITIES REB®
Dividends paid SRS (957,122) -
Repayment of bank borrowings BIBRITHER (269,126) (31,850)
New bank borrowings raised BB IRITRR 221,139 10,000
Loan repaid to minority shareholders BELEEFER (68,303) (4,630)
Loan advanced from a minority shareholder 2 EARERFZER - 241,000
Payment for repurchase of shares HRELRGZTZRIE (14,478) -
Share repurchase expenses RDEBEIFRX (130) (26)
Interest paid EATFA (11,919) (4,389)
Amount repaid to a jointly controlled entity  {EiE HRIZHBERE - (34,824)
(1,099,939) 175,281
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERAUREEEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS BB HE (597,197) (5,697}
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERAREEE
BROUGHT FORWARD EHBKE 1,247,572 233,207
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERHREEHE
CARRIED FORWARD HE&®E 650,375 227,510
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH RERURGEHEER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BESW
Short term bank deposits, bank balances REASRITIFR - BITHEF
and cash REg 671,681 239,534
Bank overdrafts RITEX (21,306) (12,024)
650,375 227,510




for the six months ended 30 September 2005

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the applicable disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 to the
Rules Gaverning the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and with Hong Kong Accounting Standard ("HKAS™ 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial instruments,

which are measured at fair values or revalued amounts, as appropriate.

The accounting policies used in the condensed consolidated financial
statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the
Group’s annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2005,
except that, in the current period, the Group has applied, for the first time, a
number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), HKASS
and Interpretations ("Int") (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new
HKFRSS") issued by the HKICPA that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The application of the new HKFRSS has
resulted in a change in the presentation of the income statement, balance
sheet and the statement of changes in equity. In particuiar, the prasentation of
minarity interests and share of tax of associates/jointly controlled entities
have been changed. The changes in presentation have been applied
retrospectively. In addition, the adoption of the new HKFRSS has resulted in
changes to the Group’s accounting policies in the following areas that have an
effect on how the results for the current or prior accounting periods are

prepared and presented:

Share-based payment

in the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”
which requires an expense to be recognised where the Group buys goods or
obtains services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (“equity-settled
transactions”), or in exchange for other gssets equivalent in value to a given
number of shares or rights over shares (“cash-settled transactions”). The
principal impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is in relation to the expensing of the
fair value of share options granted to directors and employees of the Group,
determined at the date of grant of the share options, over the vesting period.
Prior to the application of HKFRS 2, the Group did not recognise the financial
effect of these share options until they were exercised. The Group has applied
HKFRS 2 to share options granted on or after 1 April 2005. In relation to share
options granted before 1 April 2005, the Group chooses not to apply HKFRS 2
with respect to share aptions granted on or before 7 November 2002 and
share options that were granted after 7 November 2002 and had vested on 1
April 2005 in accordance with the relevant transitional provisions. As all the
share options had vested before 1 April 2005, the adoption of HKFRS 2 has
had no material effect on the results for the current or prior periods.

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Business combinations

In the current period, the Group has applied HKFRS 3 "Business
Combinations” which is effective for business combinations for which the
agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005. The principal effects of the
application of HKFRS 3 to the Group are summarised below.

Goodwill

In previous pericds, goodwill arising on acquisitions before 1 April 2005 was
capitalised and amortised over its estimated useful life. In the current period,
the Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in HKFRS 3 pursuant
to which the Group has discontinued amortising such goodwill from 1 April
2005 onwards and goodwill will be tested for impairment at least annually.
Goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1 January 2005 is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses (if any) after initial recognition. As a result of
this change in accounting policy, no amortisation of goodwill has been

charged in the current period. Comparative figures have not been restated.

Leasehold interest in land and sea use rights

In previous periods, owner-occupied feasehold land and buildings were
included in property, plant and equipment and measured using the cost
model. In the current period, the Group has applied HKAS 17 “Leases”. Under
HKAS 17, the land and buildings elements of a lease of land and buildings are
considered separately for the purposes of lease classification, unless the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance
lease. To the extent that the allocation of the lease payments between the
land and buildings elements can be made reliably, the leasehold interests in
land are reclassified to "prepaid lease payments” under operating leases,
which are carried at cost and amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. This change in accounting palicy has been applied retrospectively.
Alternatively, where the allocation between the land and buildings elements
cannot be made reliably, the leasehold interests in land continue to be

accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Previously, sea use rights held for undetermined future use were carried at
cost less impairment. Under HKAS 17, such sea use rights are classified as
prepald lease payments under operating leases, carried at cost and amortised
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In the absence of any specific
transitional provisions in HKAS 17, suich change in accounting policy has been
applied retrospectively. Comparative figures have been adjusted in order to
reflect the cumulative amortisation charge for the sea use rights. The
amortisation charge is included as part of the development cost of the

project.
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements RSB BEBREM T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Investment properties

In the current period, the Group has applied HKAS 40 “Investment Property”
and has elected to use the fair value model to account for its investment
properties which requires gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties to be recognised directly in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise. in previous periods, investment properties
under SSAP 13 "Accounting for Investment Properties” were measured at
open market values, with revaluation surplus or deficit credited or charged to
investment property revaluation reserve unless the balance an this reserve
was insufficient to cover a revaluation decrease, in which case the excess of
the revaluation decrease over the balance on the investment property
revaluation reserve was charged to the income statement. Where a decrease
had previously been charged to the income statement and a revaluation
increase subsequently arose, that increase was credited to the income
statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged. The adoption of
HKAS 40 has had no material effect on the results for the current or prior
periods. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

Financial instruments

In the current period, the Group has applied HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation” and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and MeasUrement”. HKAS 32 requires retrospective application. The
application of HKAS 32 has had no material effect on the presentation of
financial instruments in the financial statements of the Group. HKAS 39, which
is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005,
generally does not permit to recognise, derecognise or measure financial
assets and liabilities on a retrospective basis. The principal effects resulting
from the implementation of HKAS 39 are summarised below:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in HKAS 39 with
respect to classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are within the scope of HKAS 39.

By 31 March 2005, the Group classified and measured its equity securities in
accordance with the benchmark treatment of Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 24 "Accounting for investments in Securities” ("SSAP 24").
Under SSAP 24, investments in equity securities are classified as “investment
Securities” or “other investments” as appropriate. “Investment securities” are
carried at cost less impairment f0sses (if any) while “other investments” are
measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses inciuded in the profit
or loss. From 1 April 2005 onwards, the Group has classified and measured its
equity securities in accordance with HKAS 39. Under HKAS 39, financial assets
are classified as "financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” or
"avallable-for-sale financial assets”, The classification depends on the
purpose for which the assets are acquired. “Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” and “available-for-sale financial assets” are carried at
fair value, with changes in fair values recognised in income statement and
equity, respectively. Balance of the Group's investment securities was
remeasured at fair value with an agjustment of HKS$1,521,000 to the previous
carrying amounts of assets and the Group’s accumulated profits at 1 April
2005, which will be released to the income statement upon disposal or

impairment of the relevant available-for-sale investments,
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SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities other than debt and equity securities
From 1 April 2005 onwards, the Group classifies and measures its financial
assets and financial liabilities other than debt and equity securities {which
were previously outside the scope of SSAP 24) in accordance with the
requirements of HKAS 39. Under HKAS 39, financial assets are classified as
“financial assets at falr value through profit or loss”, “available-for-sale
financial assets”, “loans and receivables” or “held-to-maturity financial
assets”. Financial liabilities are generally classified as “financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss” or “financial liabilities other than financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss {other financial liabilities)”. "Other
financial liabilities” are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF CHANGES iN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
The financial effects of the changes in accounting policies described above

are summarised as follows:

(a)  Effects on the results for the current and prior periods:
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(a) HEPHRBEHMZESAZRE:

Six months ended 30 September
BEANRE+RUEFBAR

2005 2004
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Decrease in’ amortisation of goodwill BRI D 3,712 -
Increase in share of loss of an associate R R EEIBIE N (14,217) -
Decrease in profit for the period BB RIS {10,505) -




Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (SRS AFERERW =T

The share of effect of changes in accounting policies arose from the

3. SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 3. BHERERZCHEHRE-H
POLICIES - continued by HR-BFIE=ZA=+-BRIEE
(b)  Effects on the balance sheet as at 31 March 2005 and 1 April TEMA-AZAEERRZIEE

2005:
Share of Share of
effect of effect of
changes in changes in
accounting accounting
policies policies
As at Effect of onan As at Effect of onan As at
31.3.2005 HKAS 17 associate  31.3.2005 HKAS 3¢ associate 1.4.2005
Fr Biey F#  HEGH
EHER HFEEY BHER EBEREY
3 E178% HEELF 7 £398 HEENT b3
31.3.2005 ZRE ZRE 3132005 ZRE ZRE 1.4.2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET TET FET FHET FERT
(originally stated) {Note) (restated) (Note) {restated}
(RAFgE) (Biz) (BEFHE) () (EFHE)
Effects on assets and liabilities: HEERARZVE:
Property, plant and equipment nE - BHREE 372,044 (134,766) - 237,278 - - 237,278
Project under development BR=ES
- non-current 1,806,466 (34,01 - 1,772,455 - - 1,772,855
- current - 34,011 ~ 34,011 - - 34,011
Prepaid land lease payments
- non-cusrent - 131,576 - 131,576 - - 131,576
- current - 3,190 - 3,190 - - 3,190
Interests in associates 382,146 - 937) 381,209 - 27,363 408,572
Investments in securities
- nan-current 1,778 - - 1,778 (1,778 - -
- current 173,284 - - 173,284 (173,284) - -
Available-for-sale investments - - - - 3,299 - 3299
Investments held for trading - - - - 173,284 - 173,284
2,735,718 - 937) 2,734,781 1,521 27,363 2,763,665
Effects on equity: SRAZEE
Other reserve EibiES - - - - - (1,113 113
Accumulated profits RBEF 253,898 - (937) 252,961 991 28,476 282,428
Minority interests LEBRER 535,895 - - 535,895 530 - 536,425
789,793 - (937} 788,856 1,521 27,363 817,740
Note: B

BUESHERERZVEDESERZ

MAEARRARBHERBEENEZE
BEHEE] FEGHERNSER S

I ERARGZIREEHHRSE
associate. QB (EBEHIMEL -

adaption of Int 2 “The Appropriate Accounting Policies for Hotel
Propertias”, HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement” and HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” by the Group’s

ﬁgl
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4, SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. SERE R
For management purposes, the Group's operations are currently organised REBHEME  AEBrEKESALAY
into seven operating divisions namely building construction, civil engineering, EBHMY SRAETFELEIR LAIR B
project management, facilities management, port and infrastructure BEEE HHETE BORERER BEBR
development, treasury investment and property investment, These divisions ARMERE - WSHPHINEEBEREED
are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information. WERZ HE o
Business segment information for the six months ended 30 September 2005 BE-_ZEZRFNAZTELENEAZERS
is presented below: H;EMMT
Building Civit Project  Facilities  Treasury  Property
construction  engineering management management Investment ipvestment Others Eliminations Consolidated
HFREIR IXIE REFZ REEE AHERE WELER p-1:] L:F g8
HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 S0 HKS 000
THT THET FHT TET FET FEE FEE FET
TURNOVER 3
External 5 1,008,967 438,146 6,044 1919 307,639 28,7% - - 1915
Inier-segment ox v - 50,210 - - - 9,659 - {59,369) -
Total a% 1,008,967 488,35 6,044 1919 307,63 38,455 - {59.869) 1,791,511
RESULT 4
Segment result SHEE 37,35 14,270 389 1,702 33,776 14,656 - 105,659
Interest income HBRA 17477
Increase in fair velug of RENE ATEE
investment properties A - - - - - 85,400 - - 85,400
Unaliocated corporate FARLERT
expenses (31,182)
Finance costs BEAL 6,020}
Loss on disposal of HEMBLAZ
subsidiaries B8 ]
Write back of impairment loss ~ BEBEQTERZ
of interest in an associate REER - - - - 23,289 - - - 23,289
Share of results of associates  B{ERBDEEE 620 3 608 - {23.339) - - - (22,080}
Shar of resulis of jointly BEAREH
controlled entlties BERE 260 1,841 - - - - - - 2,101
Profit befare taxation BEARER 174,562




Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements RG4S BHE T

4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 4. HHEH-H
Business segment information for the six months ended 30 September 2004 BE_BEZNENA=TRLENERZERSE
is presented below: BERmT
Building Civit Project  Facifities Treasury Property
construction  engineering managemen K investi invest Others Eliminations Consolidated
BEREIE 1¥IE FEEE HEER BHEE yESRF -5 58 £&
HKS000 HK$ 00 HKS 000 HK3000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FER FET FET THT TER FAL FET FER THT
TURNOVER 121
Externat ik 1,251,056 406,565 - ~ - 21,262 - - 1,678,883
Inter-segment AH2E - 1810 - B - 7876 - 9,686) -
otal ik 1,251,056 £08,375 - ~ - 29,138 - (3,686) 1,678,883
RESULT E4:1
Segment result SHEE 17,047 30,267 - - - 8,481 - 55,795
Interes: income HakA 20,384
Unallocated corporate FARLERT
EXDENSES {36,667)
Finance cosis BERA (2900
Loss on dilution of interesis HEHE
in associates it - - - - - - (15,004) - {15,004)
Shave of resulis of associates BIEESLERE 1938 {5) - - - - 23,740 - 25673
Share of resuls of jointly
controlled eniities - 118 - - - - - - 18
Profis before taxazion FRENER 47359

Inter-segment revenue is charged at market price or, where no market price is

available, at terms determined and agreed by both parties.

There is no contribution to the Group’s turnover and results from business
segment of port and infrastructure development during both periods.

SH2ARBEDETSERLRE (HETEE
IHBERREFBEERREZ GRUKER -

KRESRERN  EOREERREKDDYTE
B EEBRERYREEM -
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5. OTHER INCOME 5  Hipd A
Six months ended 30 September
BEARZ+RALNEA
2005 2004
HKS'000 HK$'000
FHEI FHET
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME T WS - 1,129
Interest income FBMA 17,477 20,344
Recovery of interest and legal expenses DEE = Ead-sh SN ol

in connection with a court action against AR MR 2 EERLZ
an ex-shareholder of a former associate MeRERER 79,928 -
Dividend income AR B A - 356
Write back of allowance for doubtful debts BERERE 4,501 -
101,906 21,829

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

B B9 i )

BRIAERIS AR

Six months ended 30 September
BEAA=SFBULSBEBA
2005 | 2004
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Depreciation and amortisation of property, Y% BMARSRBZAEREN
plant and equipment
Owned assets BEAE 19,318 27,958
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of B BEEREHIRER
contracts in progress 28 (1,215) (799)
18,103 27,159
Amortisation of goodwill {included in EREH REETHREARN)
administrative expenses) - 1,153
Decrease in fair value of investments BEEERE D FEERD
held for trading 4,029 -
Loss on disposal of investments in securities HEFHREZEE - 1,579
Unrealised holding loss on listed Hip EHREZ ATRARE
other investments - 8,143
Share of taxation of associates (included BIEBELRANE (RETEE
in share of results of associates) AR R REN) 446 23,108
Share of taxation of jointly controlied entities B RRIBHIRERIE
(included in share of results of jointly (BIEERB G AT IS
controfled entities) EHER) 390 -
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7.  TAXATION 7. BIE

Six months ended 30 September
BEAAZ+BiEFMEA

2005 2004
HK$'000 HKS'000
FH#IT FET

The charge comprises: RIBLHEE

Hong Kong Profits Tax: BEEFEH

Current period REERD 1,871 21
Underprovision in prior periods BIEEAREETR 3,197 -
5,068 21
Overseas taxation EOMRIR - 1177
Deferred taxation BERIR 4,353 7,629
9,421 8,827

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5% (2004. 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the period.

Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
jurisdictions.

DIVIDENDS

BEMNNEHIRPAZETERBETARER
17.5% (2004: 17.5%) 5t & »

BORARERDEEBRZIRENE -

Six months ended 30 September
BEAAZ+BLEAHEA

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
interim dividend - 1.5 cent RHRR B - %1 55
(2004, 1.5 cent) per share (2004 1.5840) 20,380 20,538

The amount of the interim dividend declared for the six months ended 30
September 2005 has been calculated by reference to the 1,358,675,436
issued ordinary shares outstanding as at 30 September 2005.

A special cash dividend of HK70 cents per share amounting to approximately
HK$957,177,000 (six months ended 30 September 2004: Nil) was declared by
the board of directors and was paid during the period. In addition, a final
dividend of HK1.5 cents (year ended 31 March 2004: HK1.5 cents) per share
amounting to approximately HK$20,380,000 for the year ended 31 March
2005, was approved by, and became payable to, the shareholders during the
period.

BE_FTAFAAZTBLERERERZTE
HREZEE NEBR_FEAFAAZL
B2 EEITEERI,358675436RHE -

BA-ERRTREHNASHRESHTOEWL
& RA957 177,000 T (BE-SZFRENA
ST BLEREA 8 XEHRERIEN - it
G BREHERBETEREARIAEES
EERFZR=+-RLEFEZRIRESR
158 (BE_EE@REZA=Z+—BLFE:
1.5% M) - REEES 420,380,000 7T -
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9.

10.

1.

EARNINGS PER SHARE 9.
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
equity holders of the Company for the period is based on the following data:

SREH
BATLE2REREABGZBRESRE
EREFDREBATRESE

Six months ended 30 September
BENLAZ+BLFEBA

2005 2004
HKS'000 HKS'000
FHEIL FHET
Earnings: B
Earnings for the purposes of basic earnings HESRETRNZ AR
per share 149,280 38,144
Number of shares: ARing g
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HESRERRHZ EBR

for the purposes of basic earnings per share hoiETEI98

1,345,249,019

1,365,282,332

No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both periods as the
exercise prices of the Company’s share options were higher than the average
market price per share for the six months ended 30 September 2005 and no
potential ordinary shares were outstanding during the six months ended 30
September 2004.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND INVESTMENT 10.

PROPERTIES

During the period, the Group spent approximately HK$7,848,000 (2004;
HK$4,143,000) on property, plant and equipment to expand and upgrade its
operating capacity. The Group also disposed of property, plant and equipment
with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$2,912,000 (2004:
HK$2,373,000).

Investment properties were valued at their open market values at 30
September 2005 by an independent professional valuer on an open market
existing use basis. This revaluation gave rise to an increase of HK$85,400,000

which was credited to the income statement during the period.

HREREBEEZTERSRERBNRE
—EFHEFAASTRERNERAZFHWE
MRBE-FFEEAAZTELANBRYEE
WMARTRZAEFMEEERE  BRYE27/M
EREzBRETAT -

ME BEREEHERREYE

BRAEEANDE  BRERBZFERD
7,848,0003% 7T (2004: 4,143,000 T) +
RARBABEEERD - REBTHEY
¥ BERRE BEZRKREEX2912,000
&L (2004: 2,373,000/ 7T) °

BEMEDH—BUBEEEMRBERARTS
BERREERAR_BTRAFNAAZFEZ
RETEEE - LIESHEEE1EE85400,000
BT ERERETARRER -

PROJECT UNDER DEVELOPMENT 11. BEHIEAR
30.9.2005 31.3.2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Sea use rights g {E A 1,662,216 1,669,907
Development costs k95 209,987 136,559
1,872,203 1,806,466
Less: Current portion of sea use rights shown W FIREBEEET 28
under current assets EREZ R ER (34,200) (34,011)
Amount shown under non-current assets G IERB A E 2 E 1,838,003 1,772,455

The development project is located in liangsu Province, the People’s Republic
of China.

HERBEEDUNTEARANEIFRE -
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12.

13.

N\ R
/m@
ya )

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 12, BELFEHE
30.9.2005 31.3.2005
HKS'000 HKS$’000
FET FET
Share of net assets: BEEE
Listed shares in Hong Kong & LHIRD 380,521 370,977
Unlisted shares ) 38,487 37,146
. 419,008 408,123
Less: Impairment loss recognised B EERZRESR (3,625) (26,914)
415,383 381,209
Market value of listed shares in Hong Kong EB TR ZTE 214,820 139,763
The listed shares in Hong Kong represent the Group’s 29.36% (31.3.2005: ERELTRNEFAEERTREBER QA
29.36%) equity interest in China Strategic Holdings Limited (“China Strategic”). ([h#]) 229.36% (31.3.2005: 29.36%) BA&
The Group's share of net assets in China Strategic at 30 September 2005 is EHH - AEER-_ZEFAFHLA=ZTEEED
calculated based on their net assets at 30 June 2005 as shown in its latest R REENBBETREROIAMTHEERS
published interim report. FRZPENR_TERERA=TEZFEE
) iTE .
During the period, the directors have assessed the estimated recoverable
amount of China Strategic based on the terms of the scheme of group HN EESRRBRER-_ZETISEAATHE
reorganisation as set out in its circular dated 10 September 2005. Accordingly, TRRzBIHABIEEEAHEIERTEZS
an impairment loss of HK$23,289,000 previously recognised has been written RIGATREE - Bt MAERZRESE
back in the income statement. 23,289,000 T2 R EHERER -
DEBTORS, DEPQOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 13. BEURHT - -FT&EEAFFHE

The Group's credit terms for contracting business are negotiated at terms
determined and agreed with its trade customers. Trade debtors arising from
property leasing business are payable manthly in advance and the credit
terms granted by the Group to other trade debtors normally range from 30
days to 90 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors at the reporting date:

FEBANERREBZEHNERZETFRE
EREAGEBARTYL - MEBEEBERZ
BUESERBLERAZN  MrREREM
FEWREZERRR 2 EEH - RE0VENAT

a

% .

REABAB BRESRFERHESHTNT

30.9.2005 31.3.2005

HKS'000 HK$'000

FHT FET

Within 90 days 90E A 248,511 329,058
More than 90 days and within 180 days 90R U LBT#:B180H 16,345 2,839
More than 180 days B3/ 180H 67,600 \ 67,663
332,456 399,560

included In debtors, deposits and prepayments is an amount of approximately
HK$132,164,000 (31.3.2005: HK$449,174,000) which represents the balance of
proceeds from disposal of interest in Downer EDI Uimited ("Downer”), a
farmer associate of the Group, deposited with a broker in Australia. The
amaount was withheld by the Australian Taxation Office until the clearance of
all tax fiabilities arising from the disposal of Downer’s shares. During the
period, an amount of approximately HK$317,010,000 was paid to the
Australian Taxation Office out of the deposits with the broker.

FEERER AT RBEARAPBE 24
132,164,000 7 (31.3.2005: 449,174,000/
T ZHIE - DREFHRNBNELZHE
Downer EDI Limited ([ Downer]) (RF£E 2
B AR ARG FIESKE - LLERUEE A
BN BB INEBE RS H R EDownerf}
MzRBEEEEREBEHR - BN CEZEF
MRS 2 RIERRMNR BB H
317,010,000/ T »



Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements ERELGAE P ERERMGE

14. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 14, BEHRAREFEX
The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors at the reporting date: REREBRIENTEIERERINNOT ¢
| 30.9.2005 | 31.3.2005
HK$'000 | HK$'000
FEE FET
within 90 days 908 R 214,699 218,556
More than 90 days and within 180 days S0B LA 1B ERE180R 4,976 1,129
More than 180 days #BiB180R 14,741 17,058
234,416 236,743
15. SHARE CAPITAL 15, BE#&
Issued and fully paid
EBITREEE
Number
of shares Value
Bomg W&
HK$'000
FHEL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each: SREEONELZ LR .
At 1 Aprit 2005 R-ZEERFEWNA—A 1,369,195,436 136,920
Shares repurchased and cancelled FrEBE R EHERY (10,520,000} (1,052)
At 30 September 2005 R-IBBRRAFNFZ=T8H 1,358,675,436 135,868
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16.

17.

18.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the period, the Group disposed of certain subsidiaries which were

engaged in property development.

The effects of the disposals are summarised as follows:

186.

H B 2 ]
BN 2REHEETRENEZRZMBL
g -

HEFREEFANT

Six months ended 30 September
BEAAZ+ALAHEE

2005 2004
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FET FRET
Net assets disposed of FrEySEE 82,277 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNB AT EE (82) -
Total consideration BAE 82,195 -
Satisfied by: FIAR
Cash RHe 75,360 -
Balance of consideration included in debtors, REHKD (DETRKEN - F
deposits and prepayments RIEREIR) 6,835 -
82,195 -
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: PERELEZRSR/EH
Cash received Rz RE 75,360 -
Bank balances and cash disposed of ez RITEHBRRS (5,887) -
69,473 -

The subsidiaries disposed of did not make any significant contribution to the

results of the Group during the period.

BR - HE 2B AN AKE Y REWEIE
HERENES -

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 17. BAEH
30.9.2005 31.3.2005
HK$’'000 HKS'000
FHET FHET
Outstanding performance bonds in respect MREBZEEENEN
of construction contracts BRE | 130,908 310,503
COMMITMENTS 18. KB
30.9.2005 31.3.2005
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
Expenditure contracted for but not provided RUEBUATRERTHE
for in the financial statements in respect RRUBEE BB
of acquisition of: k-2l
- Property, plant and equipment —M%E - B REE 41,388 90,710
- Equity investments -IRERE - 48,126
41,388 ‘ 138,836

In addition, the Group entered into a conditional agreement dated 12 August

2005 to invest an amount of approximately HK$417,000,000 for the acquisition

of a 45% equity interest in Nantong Port Group Limited, a state-owned

enterprise engaged in providing cargo loading, storage, shipping agent and

other related services in the People’s Republic of China. Details of this

transaction are set out in the circular of the Company dated 22 August 2005.

o AEEITAMA_FRFRENAT A
ZHEREIRE - LARE £9417,000,000 8 THEE
RPBARAMERSREEDED 657 M
BREREGEBREzBECXEREDEE
FROFZAS%RARERE - FRULER B2 HE
ERALFRIEFEFNATZBRIEZA
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 19. BEALLS
During the period, the Group entered into the following transactions with its B AEMEEWEATIUTRS -
related companies:
Six months ended 30 September
BEAASE+HLEAEA
Class of related party Nature of transactions 2005 2004
BREALZH5 ZERF HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHET
Associates and jointly Canstruction works charged by the Group - 41,820
controlled entities of FEEYERETRE
the Group Purchase of concrete products by the Group 112 36
FERZBMEDAIR FEEEERETER
HEZHIBE Subcontracting fees charged to the Group - 1,917
AEELASEBE
Interest income charged by the Group 7.030 6,136
7K SR BN ER B R
Project management fee, consulting and handling
fees charged by the Group 854 1,136
ARBRRIEAEER  BAMETFHEE
Rentals and refated building management fee
charged by the Group - 861
FRERDES RERYERERS
Service fee charged to the Group 5 1
FEEZTRER
Subsidiaries of ITC Rentals and related building management fee
Corporation Limited ("ITC") charged by the Group 35 336
EECEEAER AT TEBERHAS REMNEERR
(B 2HBRA Purchase of building materials and related
installation works by the Group - 16
AEBEIFEEVREMTRIR
Rental income charged by the Group 210 -
ARBYRESEA
Associates of ITC Rentals and related building management fee
ERCEZHREN charged by the Group 1,062 611
FTRERDRES REABYEEER
Interest income charged by the Group 7,892 5,241
T H B FLE A
Other related companies Rentals and refated building management fee
HiRfE LS charged by the Group 2,290 2,781
KEBEDAS BB DEERER
Interest income charged by the Group 6,064 4,169
REBUWER BB
Service fee charged to the Group 72 1,150
AEBITREE
Minority shareholder of a subsidiary  Interest charged to the Group 9,065 -
MBAFZ 8RR REEZFFE
Other related companies are companies under common directorship or HafE LS D AHEECERAREESRHLR
common control with (TC. mE T A
20. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 20, #EB#EHRE

R-ZZTRAFNA=TEE  FEHER

Subsequent to 30 September 2005, the Group entered into a conditional sale
Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. - BARAEIRE
BRABDRREREEBDER LG (BRI ZH
BAR)EXEF2ABEERAEL—HERE
BE R - 1RN780,000,0008 Ly BERED
EXREEMBASNR _FRAFENAAZTERE
BEAA723,000,000B T2 ETHENERR
By 2BES -  BRUBRSZHEERE
RERZEZEF+-AZTREERZILMH

R e

and purchase agreement with a joint venture company effectively owned by
Lehman Brothers Holdings inc., Capitat Strategic Investment Limited and Paul
Y. Engineering Group Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, for the disposal of
the Group's subsidiaries owning entire interest in certain leasehold
properties and investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$723,000,000 at 30 September 2005 at an agreed gross
value of approximately HK$780,000,000. Details of this transaction were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 24 November 2005,




DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 30 September 2005, the interests/short positions of each of the
directors (the "Directors”) of PYI Corporation Limited (the “Company”), the

chief executive and their respective associates in the shares, underlying

shares and debentures of the Company or any of the Company’s

associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance ("SFO™)), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFQ, are set out below:

n

The Company

OTHER INFORMATION

H Al &R

%%&EEGHA%%%EE%%
TTAFNAZTE  RE(ESREEE
Al EIs2EMEMEFE 2 ZEMAL AR
£EBERRE([ARF) ZEE(ESE))
EIBTRABREEENHBEAELDAR(E
#REEEED T BN EAALDIEEEN
Refd - BRERR (A REEENES AR B0

__\
/g

Number of shares / underlying shares hefd

#ERG ERREE
(Note Hf#%1)
Name of Director/ Personal Family Corporate Other % of Issued
chief executive Capacity Interests Interests Interests Interests Total share capital
5E S EBITRE
FEFTHABRE 5# BARA HIERER WA R Fod g BB
Chow Ming Kuen, Beneficial owner 1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000 0.096
Joseph EXBEA (Notelf1522)
[E)RR
Tom Ko Yuen Lau Beneficial owner 13,000,000 - - -~ 13,000,000 0.957
ST BHIFEA (Notefffz£2)
Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner 11,840,896 - 678,791,961 ~ 690,632,857 50.831
Charles & Interest of (Notel75£3)
ek controlled
corporation
ERHBAEAR
2islEE
i
Kwok Shiu Keung, Beneficial owner 1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000 0.096
Ernest EXFEA (Notefff#£2)
P
Chan Shu Kin Beneficial owner 1,300,000 - ~ - 1,300,000 0.096
PRI 2 EEBEA (Notel}7£2)
Notes: B s
1 All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company 1, FRAELERG REERDAERIRTE
were long positions, None of the Directors and chief executive or their RoFBHAEAB=TRH  BEREETERA
associates held any short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the EXBF2HBARERERQE RN RERR
Company as at 30 September 2005. BRBEERE »

2. All these interests held by such Directors/chief executive represented
underlying shares in respect of share options granted to them on 28

HREER TETRASHAINERED
ERBRLEBRETHR —FENE+-A

December 2004 pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below,

678,791,961 shares were owned by Hollyfield Group Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ITC Carporation Limited (“ITC”). By virtue of his deemed interests
in approximately 33.55% of the issued ordinary share capital of ITC, Dr. Chan
Kwok Keung, Charies was deemed to be interested in these shares. On 28
September 2005, ITC entered inte a placing agreement to unconditionally
dispose of 150,000,000 shares in the Company and the disposal of such
shares were settled on 4 October 2005.

ZHNARTREEE T ETHARNER
A R2AEBRYG - FHFECRBIIRTX
B EREstEl -

3, 678,791,961 RN R HEECEEEERAF
(et ])N—R2EWEB LD Hotlyfield
Group Limited# % - s MREEE TR IEE
EHIBSSNEROECD BT ERMAE QR
B REREHERMD ZE2E - RZTET
RENAZ+N\B  BHLCECHFIT-BEE
5% - E{R{E L 5 150,000,0008 K A B
B MEERPZEEER _EERFTAN
B3 -
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AR M

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of these
associated corporations were long positions. None of the Directors and chief
executive or their associates held any short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the associated corporations as at 30 September 2005,

Such interests in Pau! Y. Engineering Group Limited (“Paul Y Engineering”)
comprise:

{0 375,826,317 shares held by Paul Y. investments Limited, an indiract

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and

[} 100,000,000 underlying shares directly held by the Company by virtue
of a loan facility under which convertible note(s) will be issued by Pau!

Y Engineering to the Company upon draw down of the facility.

By virtue of his deemed interests in approximately 33.55% of the issued
ordinary share capital of ITC and hence in the Company, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles was deemed to be interested in these shares and underlying shares
of Paul Y Engineering.

The shares in China Strategic Holdings Limited (“China Strategic") were held
by Catisan Developments Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. By virtue of his deemed interests in approximately 33.55% of the
issued ordinary share capital of ITC and hence in the Company, Dr. Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles was deemed to be interested in these shares and underlying
shares of China Strategic.

The Company entered into a conditional share sale agreement for the
disposal of 135,000,000 shares of China Strategic on 10 March 2005. The
disposal was not yet completed as at 30 Septermber 2005.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS ERTETHABHNESZSRXR
AND SHORT POSITIONS - continued — 18
(2) Associated corporations (2) HBZEHE
Number of shares / underlying shares held
HERY BEREEE
(NotefifsE 1)
Name of Name of Director/ Personat Family Corporate Other % of issued
Corporation chief executive Capacity interests  Interests  Interests  Interests Total  share capital
-4 BERT
ZEEH ETETBRAEGEE S BAEZ  FEgHE LEEFZ REegs A BEHE S
Paul Y. Engineering  Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of - - 475,826,317 - 475,826,317 82.51
Group Limited Charles controlied (Notelfis2)
REZEEE R corporation
BRAT RiEslEEER
China Strategic Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of - - 258,819,795 - 258,819,795 29.36
Holdings Limited Charles controlled (NotefiTi£3)
FREBRERLR  BEHA corporation
FEuEEER
-Notes: Bt

Lz EREEERD RIEBRINOERSS
#E R-FBERFAASTE EHRREE
ABABHEE2HEASSNEBREZERD
BB RHEERR -
RERERRASEFROA(IRERED B
B

375,826,317 RBHREER LT —KRMAE
E2ANB A EPaul Y. Investments
Limited# %5 : &

U

100,000,000 R IEEIRR R AR AR
—ERRRAMERNE BLESR
ERRTERARBENRATNRG
THAER -

(i}

BRI TR FEELN3.55% B R
ERITEREA  BEHEREFEAQTIOER
MBEAEREELSREREROREBRNZ
f#E% -

WERHREAFRAE([PRETDBNHR
RRE-REEZEHBLF Caiisan
Developments Limited$$ 8 - AR EREEE L
WRIERBHIO%NEHFEECHITERR
A EHBELEESRQTNESMERERY
W ERERDRABRYD 28R -

FEARR-_FEFRF=ZATHIALRLE
135,000,000 R AR D 2 H HHFRNHER
B GEREE_TRAFAAZTREERR
B o

1‘7}




DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS - continued

Save for those disclosed above, no interests and short positions were held
or deemed or taken to be held under Part XV of the SFO by any Directar or
the chief executive or their respective associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed issuers (“Model Code”) or which are
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register
referred to therein. Nor any of the Directors and the chief executive
{including their spouses and children under the age of 18) had, as at 30
September 2005, any interest in, or had been granted any right to
subscribe for the securities and options of the Company and its associated
corporations within the meaning of the SFO, or had exercised any such
rights.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 27 August 2002, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) under which the Directors may, at their
discretion, offer to any employees, executives or officers, directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) or any invested entity and any
celebrity, consultant, adviser or agent of any member of the Group or any
invested entity, who have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any invested entity, options to subscribe for
shares in the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in
the Share Option Scheme.

As at 30 September 2005, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme was 135,867,543, representing the 10%
scheme mandate limit refreshed by shareholders at the annual general
meeting held on 8 September 2005.

Other Information Hfth&#

EFERIETHABHEHERKE
— &

BEMBRBEEN  EAMEFHEBFTHARX
REZENBREANEREEURORARE
& WRBGEHFRBEEAEXV BERBH
B A AR B A TEAEM AR RGEHF R
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FETHRMEEH135,867,5438% - ARER
—EERENANBETZREBEARAELE
2 10%5 8| R




Other Information E &%}

SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued B ESE -F
Details of the share options outstanding as at 30 September 2005 under the R-ZFZTEFAA=TEB -  REEBRETEE
Share Option Scheme are as follows: EmEkRITEZBREEENT
Number of shares issuable under the options granted
RFBEBRETRITHRAEA
Issued
upon
Granted  exercise Lapsed
Exercise As at during during during As at Exercise
Grantee Date of grant price  1.4.2005 the period the period the period 30.9.2005 period
rHEA
® XEEA BiFE FHEA 7
RIFA #HEH TR 1.4.2005 #4 T8IT %3 30.9.2005 ITEHT
HKS
ET
Directors
g
Chow Ming Kuen, 28.12.2004 1.94 450,000 - - - 650,000 28.12.2004 -
Joseph 26.08.2012
EEEE: 28.12.2004 2.20 650,000 - - - 650,000 28.12.2004 -
26.08.2012
Tom Ko Yuen Lau 28.12.2004 1.94 6,500,000 - - - 6,500,000 28.12.2004 -
2ER 26.08.2012
28.12.2004 220 6,500,000 - - - 6,500,000 28.12.2004 -
26.08.2012
Kwok Shiu Keung, 28.12.2004 1.94 650,000 - - - 650,000 28.12.2004 -
Ernest 26.08.2012
EPE 28.12.2004 220 650,000 - - - 650,000 28.12.2004 -
26.08.2012
Chan Shu Kin 28.12.2004 1.94 650,000 - - - 650,000 28.12.2004 -
ey 26.08.2012
28.12.2004 220 650,000 - - - 650,000 28.12.2004 -
26.08.2012
Former Directors (Note)
BIEEE (L)
Chan Fut yan 28.12.2004 1.94 6,500,000 - - - 6,500,000 28122004 -
BRiEE 26.08.2012
28.12.2004 220 6,500,000 - - - 4,500,000 28.12.2004 -
26.08.2012
Chau Mei wah, 28.12.2004 1.94 6,500,000 - - - 6,500,000 28.12.2004 -
Rosanna 26.08.2012
AxzE 28.12.2004 220 6,500,000 - - - 6,500,000 28.12.2004 -
26.08.2012
Cheung Ting Kau, 28.12.2004 1.94 650,000 - - - 650,000 28.12.2004 -
Vincent 26.08.2012
REIR 28.12.2004 220 650,000 - - - 650,000 28.12.2004 -
26.08.2012
Note: Mr. Chan Fut Yan, Ms. Chau Mel Wah, Rosanna, executive Directors and Mr. it RITERRBIEEL  BEEZ T RIENTE
Cheung Ting Kau, Vincent, a non-executive Director, retired by rotation at the ERTRALER-_FEFTRFALANBETZ
annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 September 2005. EARRRAFAG L BERIES -
No option granted under the Share Option Scheme was cancelled during BEZ_ZFAFAAZTEHLESERR #8

the six months ended 30 September 2005. RIEEARETEIIR e B T -




Other Information iy &% /\M@

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF BRHEESRRAE

SHAREHOLDERS REERTETRAEHRH HR-TTAFAH
So far as is known to any Director or chief executive, as at 30 September A=+EB  TIATRALTRG REERG
2005, the following persons had an interest/short position in the shares FHEERB(ESARBERADEICHREFD
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of the BRMRzZER KR

Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

(1) Substantial shareholders 1 TEBE
Number of % of issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held share capital
HERITHRE
BRELE E-3 HERGME BB
(NoteHt#F1)
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Interest of controlled corporation 678,791,961 49.96
RE Rirt=EER (Notefff5£2)
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Beneficial owner 11,840,896 0.87 .
RS EHBAEA
Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse 690,632,857 50.83
Rk feEEs (NoteH75£2)
Chinaview International Limited Interest of controlled corporation 678,791,961 49.96
RiEGlEEER (Notefs£2)
Galaxyway Investments Limited Interest of controlled corporation 678,791,961 49.96
RESERES (Notef15£2)
ITC Interest of controlied corporation 678,791,941 49.96
BEeHE FintEEEE (Notefif#£2)
ITC Investment Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 678,791,961 49,96
RiEsEERR (Notefit#t2)
Hollyfield Group Limited Beneficial owner 678,791,961 49,96
ERFEA (Notelf15£2)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

SHAREHOLDERS - continued

(1)  Substantial shareholders - continued

Notes.

1 All the above interests in the shares of the Company were long positions.

2. Hollyfield Group Limited (“Hollyfield"™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC
Investment Hotdings Limited ("ITC Investment”), which was in turn a wholly-
owned subsidiary of 1TC, owned 678,791,961 shares in the Company.
Galaxyway Investments Limited (“Galaxyway"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinaview international Limited (“Chinaview"), owned 33.55% of the issued
ordinary share capital of ITC. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles owned the entire
issued share capital of Chinaview. Dr. Chan Kwok Kelng, Charles, Chinaview,
Galaxyway, ITC and ITC Investment were therefore all deemed to be interested
in the said 678,791,961 shares in the Company held by Hollyfield. Ms. Ng Yuen
Lan, Macy, the spouse of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charies, was deemed to be
interested in the said 678,791,961 shares in the Company held by Hollyfield
and 11,840,896 shares in the Company held directly by Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles.

On 28 September 2005, ITC entered into a placing agreement to
unconditionally dispose of 150,000,000 shares in the Company and the
disposal of such shares were settled on 4 October 2005,

BEESREXS -8

(1) FEBHRE-®&

M-

1. LFERARTROOHERHETE -

2. ITC investment Holdings Limited (11TC
Investment] )2 2 & M B 2 5] Hollyfield Group
Limited ([Holiyfield] ) 5678,791,96 1 IR A2
FIR&R - WITC InvestmentB| AEBELAE 72
A W{EE 2 F] o Chinaview International Limited
({Chinaview])Z 2 E#i B 4 S1Galaxyway
Investments Limited {[Galaxyway]) 5
IBESREHCECRITERRS  MBRB L
B Chinaview2 SR B1TIRA - BULPRED S
@+ - Chinaview - Galaxyway - B EER
ITC InvestmenttgE R IER il Hollyfield# A
2678791961 BADTIRGPEGER - B
EuEt s ERRANZtHRER LR
Hollyfield$5 5 7 678,791,961 8 R R S A& {3 R
LREEETEESE 211,840,896 F 1A
BRIGRIERR -

RIBERFEAAZTAR  BREREEL
—EEERHE - @GS 150,0000008 %
RERY  MHRERHZHEETR-_FRREF

TAmMBERY -
(2y Other persons 2 H AL
Number of % of issued
Name Capacity shares held share capital
HEBITRE
28 4 HERGHE BFIE St
(Notel13%)
Aeneas Capital Management LP Investment manager 119,355,009 8.78
BARE
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft Beneficial owner 51,178,470 3.77
EEERIT ERFEA
Deutsche Bank Aktiengeselischaft Security interest 98,577,189 7.26
BEERT REEE
Gandhara Advisors Asia Ltd. Investment manager 88,294,800 6.50
a/c Gandhara Master Fund Ltd. REEE
Toggenburger Christian Emil Beneficial owner 82,027,653 6.04
BERIBEEA
0OZ Management, L.L.C. Investment manager 81,646,000 6.01

wrEEE

Note:

All the above interests in the shares of the Company were long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2005, the Company has not
been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executives)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

fiad : LR A LERDOERBGFE -

BREXPEBEN R2BZEAFAA=T+

B BEEFALESETIRITRARRN

LHGARNREETREGEFRATEIDEXV
HE2REINBZENEME LN RENLH
RARRRGESFRAEGIDFEI6 HETFZ
BEMANARERMNLBEBIRN < BETK

°

iy




PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the period under review, the Company purchased a total of
10,520,000 ordinary shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at an aggregate price of
HK$14,477,780, representing an average price of HK$1.38 paid for each
share purchased. All of these shares were cancelled upon repurchase,

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company has, throughout the period ended 30 September 2005,
complied with the code provisions and, where applicable, the
recommended best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices ({the "Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) except for the
following deviation from code provision A.4.2 of the Code:

Under code provision A.4.2 of the Code, every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

The rotation of Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 8 September 2005 was in accordance with the Company’s
previous bye-laws which stipulate, inter alia, that one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that notwithstanding anything therein, the Chairman
of the board of Directors and/or the Managing Director of the Company
shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to retirement by rotation or
be taken into account in determining the number of Directors to retire in
each year. This deviated from the requirements of code provision A.4.2.

To fully comply with code provision A.4.2, relevant amendments to the
Company's bye-laws were proposed and approved by shareholders at the
same annual general meeting of the Company, pursuant to which every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years at the annual general meeting in future.

MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the six months ended 30 September 2005.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed with the management
and the Company's auditors the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters including the audited financial statements for
the six months ended 30 September 2005. The Audit Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Shu Kin, Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph and Mr. Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been revised and
approved by the board of Directors on 31 March 2005 in order to comply
with the code provisions of the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

SECURITIES IN ISSUE
As at the period end, there were 1,358,675,436 shares of the Company in
issue.
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BE HERBELTES

B RAARBBHAXZFAR A (8
RER]) BA14,477, 7808 T2 BER (AEQER
BRSO NZ138 BT FHER BEAH
10,520,000 A AR EER - 2HZSRNH
EREBEEFH -
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) W HAE 2 (EEERFHRTAD
(T¢=FRD D) Z=FAlEX R (B R) EFERET
Bl EECFED BEA4ETAHEXE U TR
B

BECTEDFAA2ETRIBR - SEEE (B
ERBREEHEC eI RE=FRIHER
-k -
RIZEZTAFARNHBOZARAREEBSF
AELETZERGERENERREAATZE
ELEMRIMENT  AARZBEQTEIR
E(EFBEEH=ZD— (HPEEARANF=
BZEE  MNERABTER=S—Z8R
E)2EEEFEHERE  ETRALFZE
EREBRUFRE  KREZBERERERS
REZHEEEARERBRERTIRAES
BFEEARTZBERTABA - LRTREBEALZ
EFRHER ZHRE -

BTZ2ETEAL2ETRRX  TARFREE
BYRRMAIFLEBEE  LEERRNE
—ERLCERRBEFAE LiLE B BEE
RERNAREFRBRRABFAGLEE
BE—K .

REFR
FARBEHRMCETRAD M T PREGREST
A) AT FEHREEETESIIZRTE
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ARARBREREGDEERERTREREM
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.20 AND

13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

The following disclosure is made by the Company pursuant to Rules 13.20

and 13.22 of the Listing Rules:

(1) Advances to entities

(ETHRBIDE13.20R 132218 E
ZHE

AATZBRBCENHRDE13.20R13.2218%F

HUTHE :

Q)

Pursuant to Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules, details of the advances

("Advances”) to and trading balances due from entities as at 30

September 2005 which individually exceeded 8% of one or more of
the relevant ratios as set out in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules are as

AETRBIRAKRK

BEB(ETRADEIZ20E  R-BRA
FNAZTH FRAEEARERESR
ER(ESER) REKEBZESSE
% BREERSERENSBA(ETR

follows: BDE14OTIRFTE 2 — @A A L2 B/
SLbt B 28% - HIEWT |
Interest rate  Amount of
Amount of in relation to trading % of total % of market
Entities Advances the Advances balances Total assets capitalisation
HEEH 1hARE EHE
o WEEHE REFHE &8 Zet Z2EHLE ZERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
(Note 1B 1) (Note i 2) (Note Ajiz 3)  (Note ME 4)
Hanny Holdings Limited, 384,262 Best Lending Rate 3132 387,394 6.6 18.4
its subsidiaries (the "Hanny +2%
Group”) and its affiliated BEENE
companies, including the + 2%
China Strategic Group
{Note 5)
REEEHBLF
EMBAE ([ RER])
REBBASBERRER
(#75 5)
China Strategic, its subsidiaries 348,616 Best Lending Rate 5,654 354,270 6.0 16.8
(the “China Strategic Group”) +2%
and its affiliated companies, (for the China
including China Velocity Strategic Group
Group Limited ("China Velocity”) and the wing On
and wing On Travel (Holdings) Group)
Limited and its subsidiaries FEER=
("wing On Group”) (Note 6) +2%
PE EMNBAR(RREED (PRKRERKTEER)
REBMBAE (BIE Best Lending Rate
TERREEE) BFELT +0.25%
(TPEEE]) Rk Rk (E5) (for China velocity)
BERATREMBLE SEERE
(kZEE)) (Bt 6) +0.25%

(+8EE
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES - continued

(1)

Advances to entities - continued

Notes:

Best Lending Rate represents Hong Kong Dollar Best Lending Rate as
quoted by a designated bank.

All of the trading balances are interest free,

Total assets amounted to HK$5,876,798,000 which is calculated based
on total assets of the Group of HKS5,897,178,000 as at 30 September
2005 according to the Group's consolidated balance sheet as at 30
September 2005, net of interim dividend declared for the six months
then ended of HK$20,380,000.

Market capitalisation refers to the average closing price of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding 30
September 2005.

The Company does not have any interest in Hanny Holdings Limited.

China Strategic is owned as to 29.4% by the Company and is also an
affillated company of the Company (as defined in rule 13.11 (2)(@) of
the Listing Rules). Wing On and China Velocity are indirectly owned as
t0 27.7% and 22.7% respectively by China Strategic as at 30 September
2005,

The amounts are unsecured and are repayable on demand.

(EFHAUYE13.20R13.2263HE
ZHE- &

(1) AETERREES-H

Bt

1. SEREFEE-RBERTABZERT
REBRE -

2. MERZEBHARE

3. BEES 5876798000 T HERE
SRBEE_ETREAA=ZTRZIRS
AEAERAMTAKERE-_TETRF
NBZ=+TBZ#AES897,178,000%8
T MBRHEBEEZRLERNBEATRZT
HiR% 2.20,380,000/8 7T °

4. MEESEUZMERRERNTRER
ZREAFENAZTANAEEER L
FRARARBFHRTE -

5. FRENERERERERERAFRZE
%o

8. PEENDEEF294%  FHEBERF
ZHBRR (EBR(LETHRID
13.11(2)@)%) c RZBTAENA
=48 kFREFBEIRSAHFR
FIEEE27.7T%R22.7% °

HEHEARERRAREREER -
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DISCLOSURE PURSUARNT TO RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES - continued
(1) Advances to entities - continued

The Group made the Advances to these entities for their general

working capital purpose in return of interest income. The trading

balances above represent amounts arising from rental and related

building management services, share of administrative services and

staff secondment services rendered to the respective entities as

fallows:

(EHHRAUYE13.20R13.221R8 F
ZHE-&

(M

AETEBRMAEN-K
FEEANERBEHER  UEFR
HERFE-—REEES TR DA
BRA - LI ESREHBARMERTER
HREBRERBTEERS - SETERR
BRETTRAREMELRUERERZ
BB BHEOT:

Rental and
related building Share of Staff
management  administrative secondment
services services services Total
HERIBH HEITE BT
BFEERY BRE B @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FHETT FET
The Hanny Group and its affiliated BEEERE
companies, including the MEBLE) - BE
China Strategic Group FEEE 1,282 5 1,845 3,132
The China Strategic Group and PEEERE
its affiliated companies, #BLAR BE
including China velocity and FESRER
the Wing On Group XEER 2,245 1,8%4 1,515 5,654

As at 30 September 2005, the Group had trading balances including

retention monies (the “Trade Receivables”) due from two trade customers,

their subsidiaries and their affiliated companies, which individually

exceeded 8% of the consideration ratio as set out in Rule 14.07 of the

Listing Rules.

Details of which are set out as below:

BE_FEAFNA=ZTRE  FHEER
ZEEEFES  BEZHMBRREES
ZBMBRAzESRG (EERES) (R
WERH]) - ELAammmEZ ERERY

BE TR E47TERBEARRLER

Z28% =

FEHINBT -

Amount
of Trade % of total % of market
Receivables assets capitalisation
B RRRL Etid-7-4 & E
ZEE ZES ZERI
HK$°000
FET
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited, RIBX (EB)BERRAF - 209,613 36 10.0
its subsidiaries and its affiliated HHBAER
companies, including the HBgoa
Hutchison Group (BENERE®R)
Hutchison Whampoa, its subsidiaries #iEEH « EHELF 188,790 32 9.0

(the "Hutchison Group”)
and its affiliated companies

([FIEEE])
REBBRE

The Trade Receivables, which are unsecured, interest free and with

payment terms ranging from 30 days 1o 90 days, mainly arose from

construction services rendered by the Group to the relevant customers.

BREFABEMREE - BRANTIORE
WERTE - BURREIEDELERNEHRES
RUCEABRBES -




DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TQ RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES - continued

(2)

Financial assistance given to and other balances due from
affiliated companies

As at 30 September 2005, the aggregate amount of the financial
assistance provided by the Group to its associated companies and
jointly controlled entities (collectively the "Affiliated Companies”
within the meaning under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules) and the
guarantees given by the Group for facilities granted to the Affiliated
Companies exceeded the relevant percentage ratios of 8% under the
Listing Rules.

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 13.22 of the Listing

Other Information

H B R

(EHRAU)E13.20R 1322 E
ZHE-&

2)

BMBEBRAREMBENEBRHRE A
ZE i

HRZBERFNA=FE  FREHEH
ERBRARZHER REBEQ

Bl ERRLWRAUBIIB)EHRYE
EORAEERBETHEARZEHERMR
BFRZ2EEEAITRUZEBHESLE
ZB8% e

REBIETHRADE 132262 HF - RE

Rules, a pro-forma balance sheet of the Affiliated Companies, to FE13 6B THEEREBE O EREHNE

which the provision of financial assistance and/or guaranteed by the BYE/CERZEBARIZEEZELES

Group are subject to disclosure under Rule 13.16, is set out below: BERET :

The Group's

Proforma combined balance sheet attributable
as at 30 September 2005 interest
BELSHEEERE 3. 54
W_BEIFARZ+A EEE R
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Non-current assets ERBAE 1,018,410 300,298
Current assets RMENEE 1,039,910 305,201
current liabilities MERE (395,932) {122,038)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (103,667) (43,398)
Minarity interests SBUARAER (323,088) (94,859)
Net assets BEEEE 1,235,633 345,204




CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
independent Non-Executive Chairman
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph cae, »

Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
Tom Ko Yuen Lau

Non-Executive Director
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest
Chan Shu Kin

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ose, /»
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest

Remuneration Committee
{established on 1 April 2005)

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph cat, s» (Chairman)
Tom Ko Yuen Lau

Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest

Nomination Committee

(established on 8 November 2005)
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ose, »» (Chairman)
Tom Ko Yuen Lau

Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Afternate to Tom Ko Yuen Lau)
Chan Shu Kin (Alternate to Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest)

Compliance Committee

(established on 8 November 2005)
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ose, i (Chairman)
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest

Chan Shu Kin

wong Lai Kin, Elsa

Share Repurchase Committee
(established on 8 November 2005)
Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)

Chow Ming Kuen, loseph oag, 1 (Alternate to Chan Shu Kin)

Tom Ko Yuen Lau
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QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
wong Yiu Hung

SECRETARY
wong Lai Kin, Elsa

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Tom Ko Yuen Lau

wong Lai Kin, Elsa

Wong Yiu Hung (Alternate to Tom Ko Yuen Lau and Wong Lai Kin, Elsa)

AUDITORS
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

LEGAL ADVISERS

Herbert Smith (Hong Kong)
Richards Butler (Hong Kong)
Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
31/F, Paul Y. Centre

51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2831 8338

Fax:  (852) 28331030

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
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BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Secretaries Limited

G/F, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre
56 Gloucester Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

(to be relocated to

26/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen's Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

effective 3 January 2006)
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